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ALWAYS LEAPNING

Pearson is the world’s leading learning
company, with 40,000 employees in more
than 80 countries working to help people
of all ages to make measurable progress
in their lives through learning.

We provide learning materials, technologies, assessments and services
to teachers and students in order to help people everywhere aim
higher and fulfil their true potential

We put the learner at the centre of everything we do

READ QUR REPORT ONLINE
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Financial highlights

In financial terms, Pearson’s goal is to achieve
sustainable growth on three key financial goals
— earnings, cash and return on invested capital,
and reliable cash returns to our investors
through healthy and growing dividends

tn 2013 trading was tough in many of our biggest and most established
markets At the same tme we are now In a more ntensive phase of
mvestment, investing much more, both in bullding the technology and
related infrastructure, and m the next generation of preducts and
services We also continue to finance the one-off costs of the biggest
restructuring in Pearson s recent history Headline earnings and cash were
agam lower than the previous year and our return on invesied capital fell
to 5 4% from 9 1% 1n 2013 We are proposing 2 7% dividend increase

08 2042 HEADLINE CER UNDERLYING
€ m GROWTH GROWTH GROWTH

Business performance

Sales 5177 5059 % 2% 1%
Adjusied operaung

profit before net

restructuring charges 871 932 (73% (6)% (9)%
Adjusted operating p1ofit 736 932 (21)% ans (23)%
Adjusted earmings

per share 701p 826p {15)%

Operaung cash flow 588 788 {25)%

Free cash flow 269 657 {59)%

Free cash flowpershare  333p 817 {59)%

Return on invested capizal  54% 9% -
MNet debr 1,379 H8 (50)%

Statutory results

Sales 5069 4959 2%
Operaung profit 458 487 (6)%
Profit before tax 382 3AH (2%

Basic earmings per share é6ep 3B7p 71%

Cash generated

from operations 684 916 (25)%
Dwvidend per share 480p 450p 7%
Note

a) Growsih rates ai e stated on a constam exchange 1 ate (CERY basis unless otherwise staed
Where quoted underlying prowth rates exclude bath currency movements and portfolio changes
Unless otherwise stated sales exclude Penguin while operating profits include both Penguin and
our share of Penguin Random Haouse (PRHY Continuing operations exclude both Penguin and
Mergermarket butinclude our share of PRH

b} The business performance measures are non-GAAP measures and reconchiations to the equivalent
statutory heading under IFRS are includedinnotes 2 7 and 8 to the financial statements

2012 SALES

£5.2bn
+29%

2013 ADJUSTED QOPERATING PROFIT

Before net restructuring charges

£8/1m
-6%

OUR FIVE YEAR RECORD

Average annual growth in
headline terms 2008-2013

Adjusted earnings per share

+4%

Operaung cash flow

-676

Cividend

+/7%
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*Exclude. Penguin/PRH (£78m)
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Chairman's introduction

Image removed

GlenMoreno Charrman of Pearson

While the business
environment remains
challenging, the board is
confident that Pearson is
well placed with a clear plan
to deliver future growth
| and create value for our
shareholders.

Dear shareholders,

Pearson has always invested time and energy n

producing a clear and compelling annual report,

but with the new edition of the UK Corporate

Governance Code now in place we have worked

parucularly hard to ensure that our annual report

and accounts1s fan, balanced and understandable

At this important ume in the company's history we

have focused con providing the information necessary

for shareholders to fully assess the company s business ,

model, strategy, development, performance, position |

and future prospects |
I

2013 was an extremely significant year for Pearson

and the first full year under the leadership of

john Fallon as chief executive Our restructuning |
programme — designed to accelerate our shift

towards fast-growing economes and digital and

services businesses — 15 on track and we began 2014

under a new, integrated operating model for a singte

and global educatton company

As a company we also made a series of unique
commtments designed to measure and increase the
company’s impact on learning outcomes around the
world, indluding to commut to report audited learning
outcomes alongside our financial accounts, covering
our whole business by 2018

Strengthening the board and executive team ]

{ohn Falion has strengthened his executive team by
promoting our best internal talent and recruiung some
excepuonal global leaders in their specific fields

We have also focused on the devefopment of the
board, which | address in the Governance section of
this report With recent and planned appointments,
| am confident that the beard reflects the right biend
of skills and experience to gutde Pearson in the best
interests of shareholders



SHARE PRICE PERFORMANCE
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TOTAE SHRAREHOLDER RETURN
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A challenging 2013

As CFQ Robin Freestone outhines in his report

(page 19). our 2013 financial performance was
challenging Market condsions conunued to be strong
tn digital, services and emerging markets but
rermained more difficuit 1n some of our largest
textbook publishing markets

These challenges were reflected in our share price
performance, which underperformed our indices
While the business environment remains challenging,
the board 15 confident that Pearson s well placed with
a clear plan to deliver future growth and create value
for aur shareholders Longer term, our share price
and total shareholder return have reflected a 10 year
track record of strong business performance We are
now focused on establishing a base for similar business
growth over the next decade

Conunued transformation

As | said in last year's annual report, the basic
direcuion of Pearson's strategy has not changed but
we are acceleraung the pace to shift capital and talent
more quickly towards our most significant growth
opporturities The restructuring of our global
education business, continued investment in
technology and focus on operauonal efficiency are
well underway

[ am confident that the global demand for affordable
and effective learning will conunue to grow As the
world’s leading learning company we are in an
increasingly strong position to take advantage of
this demand and dehver products and services that
measurably improve learning outcomes for our
customers and learners ! am also confident that
this will posiively impact shareholder value

Glen Moreno Chairman
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Our business models

Pearson is the world’s
leading learning company,
working to support
learners and teachers in
over 80 countries around
the world.

BUSINESS MODEL

Inside services

Image removed

Where we provide a set of integrated services
to instututions {public and private) that have

an mstitunon-wide impact on improved learming
outcomes (often at lower cost)

Includes

Sistema COC provides a2 complete
selution from digit st and trachonal
faarming to assessment tools and
pedagogical support, for pre

K12 smools in Brazd reachmg

160 D00 swdents

Logo removed

Emabnet s the leading provider of online

E m b a n e t' lear ing ser vices for the world s prenner

schools roficp=s and uriver siues

We provide technology and
management services 1o support ASU s
wnline students ASU s the targest public
unsversity in the U5 by enrolinent

Logo removed

Whether it s through new digital learning products
in the US, developing qualifications and assessments
tn the UK, traimung school leaders in the Middie East,
teaching Englsh in China or educaung professionals
through content from the Financial Times, we're
helping people make measurable progress in thetr
Iives through learning

Our products and services may be provided and used
in & standalone way but are increasingly integrated
and customised to meet the needs of indmvidual
education systems, customers and learners We have
idenufied four major market opportunities for our
products and 5o we create value for our customers

in four different. but related ways, outhned below

BUSINESS MODEL

Direct delivery

image removed

Where we own and operate the learning institution
(physical, virtual and/or blended), providing an
integrated learning environment direct to the
{earner rather than through other parues

Includes

CTlis a private bigher education
insumon in South Afrca offering futl
aha bar-time studios in lnfor mauon
Logo removed Techaolag) Psycnology and Counsellng
Creauve Arts and Graphue Desgn
Commerce and Law on campusey
spread thsoughout South Afiiza

Wall StrectEnghishis among the largest
providers of Englsh language mstrrucuon
for adults and corpo) ate chients alound
the worla operiung over 450 rentres
18 couniries

Logo removed

Connecuons Academy offer s a vatety
of accredited i waal school opuons for
swdents ingrades K-12 inthe US

L ogo removed




Underpinning the effecuveness of each of these

four models, from design through to delivery, is the
Efficacy Framewort, a tool we have devised to help
understand how our products or services can achieve
the best possible outcomes or results You can read
more about our commitment to efficacy from page 14,
and online at efficacy pearson com

Like any bustness, we understand that there are
certan risks assocrated with each model Read more
about how we are managing and metigating these

on pages 4| to 45

BUSINESS MODEE

Learning services

Image
removed

The individual elements of our products, including
learning materials, that are increasingly digital in
nature and operatng as part of an integrated
learning ecosystem

Includes

enVisionMATH 15 designed for swudents
in grades K-é and seeks 1o help students
develop an understandng of maths
roncepts through problem based
mstructon smak group imeracton

and visual learning wah a focus on
reasorneng and modelling

image
removed

Mylab & Mastermg 15 the workd s leading
collecton of online homewerk, wtorial
and assestment produtts (restet

MyLab &

M as te Il ng personahsed and conunuously adapuve
le st ng expenences
Sprakoutis an wward-wanmng Enghsh
course for adults used around the world
speakout In partnership with the BBC nindludes

exarcises smatl group work auvdo
chips and video chps from well known
TV programines

Sectuion { Overview 07

Associates and joint ventures

We have a 47% stake in Penguin Random House,
the world’s first truly global trade book publisher
Pengun Random House was formed on | July 2013,
upon the completion of an agreement between
Bertelsmann and Pearson to merge thetr respecuve
trade publishing companies, Random House and
Penguin Other associates and joint ventures
mclude Vedomostiin Russia and a 50% stake in

The Economist Group

BUSINESS MODEL

Assessment

fmage
removed

Where we provide services that enable an
INstituton or system to measure and validate
learner progress towards relevant standards
or to cerufy competency

Includes

Pearson VUE is the word s eading
computer pased tesng and assessment
business workung wath organisasions

of afl sizes 1o create fiexible custom
buile wasegsinent sofunons and
delnenng them m d secur £ 2nd rekable
resting Fnviz onment,

PEARSON VUE

BTEC vocavonal qualifications are

Logo recogoisud mmare than B0 countries
removed woildwide and i 2041/2012 over 2m
fearners registered for BTECs inchuding
650 000 schaol students

We cieate deliver and process state and
natronal dssessments tn the Uy in 2013
we admuustered nearly 50m online and
pdperLesis

Graph removed
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We have a remarkable opportunity

to make animpact

on some of the biggest and toughest

challenges in education

Image removed
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Pearson’s strategy: John Fallon, Chief executive

john Falion Chief executive of Pearson

By accelerating the
transformation of Pearson
we become more
confident of our ability

to seize that once in a
generation opportunity

— to become directly
accountable for helping
people make progress in
their lives through learning.

Dear shareholders,

Last year, in my first letter to you as Pearson’s
chief executive, | wrote about the establishment
of a clear Pearson education strategy and s
accelerated implementation That acceleration —
the transformation of the company - 1s now well
underway Twelve months on, | am convinced that
we started it not a moment Loo soon, and that the
changes we need to make must go deeper, and
happen faster, than | onginally envisaged

The global opportunicy

The long-term opportunity in global educaton ts
greater than ever Last year, the OECD reported

that poor math and hiteracy skills limit access to
better-paying and more-rewarding jobs People who
are strong i these skils are not just wealthier and live
healthier lives, they are alsc more actively engaged in
pubhe hfe Netson Mandela was rnight education really
ts the most powerful weapon with which to change
the world

As rapid advances in technology conunue to disrupt
the world of work, the econommic value of education
and skalls wiil continue to increase Governments
spend tnilions of dollars per year on education and
traiming, and, each year, the stll rapidly growing nuddle
class invests more of its own increasing wealth in the
educanon of themselves and thetr chuldren And yet.
the world fails to meet the learnming needs of far too
many of our fellow citizens One i five adults in today's
world stil lack the written communication skills they
need to progress in fife, 57 milhon children remam out
of school, and many millions more are in education, but
not really learning anything very much at all

Pearson has a unique set of advantages with which to
help meet this global demand for better education and
skills, i part by zpplying technology to belp tangibly
improve learning outcomes And, by being better able
to meet some of the biggest challenges in global
education, we can build a stronger, more profitable
and faster growing company
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Pearson's strategy John Fallon, Chief executive

continued

The transformation of our company

Ta seize this opportunity, we need to acceterate our

shift from mature to developing markets, from print to

digital products and from education mputs to services
with demonstrable learning outcomes For much of

the last decade, we've been implementing this strategy

by reshaping the company portfolie through
acquisitions and disposals — and we continued this
worlk last year We completed the Penguin Random
House merger, securing both Penguin's commercial
and creauve future and the opportumity for significant
economies of scale We sold Mergermarlet m
February 2014, which has flourished under Pearson’s
ownership, but was not part of our strategy n global
educavon The sale proceeds helped us to finance the
acquesition of Grupo Multi, the leading adult English
language traiming company in Brazi it fits very well
with our strategy of invesung more in faster growing
economies and in digital and related services that can
have a greater and more measurable impact on
education around the world

WE ARE TRANSFORMING FASTER

Our revenues in emerging markets
and services

$1,302m

£819m £3,020m

Our revenues in digital products

$4,72/m

More urgently, the strategy now demands that we
run the company in a fundamenzally different way, 100
Early last year, we started the biggest restructuring

in the compagny s recent hustory, to ult us towards our
biggest growth opportunities, and by measuring
everything we do interms of impact in improwving
learning outcomes

This is what we are doing

Redirecting more of our operating expenses,
1 and our organic investment, more guickly
10 Our Most promising apportunites

We need fewer pecple, and resources, deployed

in the publishing, production and manufacturing of
textbooks and their physical distrbution, sales and
marketing We need less print-based testing capacity,
as we conschdate our operations and move more
towards online testing By spending much less on
these actwvities as demand falls (for example, US
Higher Educauon textbook volumes have dechined
by more than 20% in four years), we can invest much
more in our biggest growth opportunities (for
example, Mylab digitat registrations and our sales

in emerging markets have both doubled over the
same period)

Qur revenues i print vs
digital products and services

2013 revenues

2013 2613

$4/Im

£235m £1,125m

2007 image 2007
removed

$2,253m

Graph removed

Image

removed Print  Daigital and
services




2 Running Pearson as one globally
connected company

Our operations are now entirely focused on our global
education strategy in which we include the FT Group
We have appointed a new executive team to lead it
We'd outgrown our organisation and, as a collecuon of
relatively stand-alone companies, we were duplicating
investrnent and prolferating small-scale initauves,
lwruting our ability to budd global scale We are now
organising around a smaller number of global products
and platforms, burlt around a single, world-class
infrastructure and common systems and processes
This will help us to grow more quickly, as it frees up
resources to invest in our digital transformation, and
the new, more service-orented, products that are vital
to future growth

3 Publicly commutting to efficacy and
improving learning outcomes

We will judge ourselves - and invite others to judge
us — not by the products that we make but by their
impact on learners This changes how we decde
which companies to acquire, where and how we
nvest, which products we get behind and which

WORKING A5 ONE PEARSON

Global funcuons

Partner with geographies and lines of
business operate as integrated global
functions to achieve scale economies

Lines of Bustness

Responsible for global strategy, investment
prortties product strategy and product
portfolo for respectrve lear nor ‘age and stage

Geographies

Responsible for customer relationshups
sales and markeung and delivery of
educavaon products in their markets

Secuon | Overview I

we retire It changes how we recruit, tram and reward
each and every person in this company [t will change
how we develop new products, unleashing, | beliave,
a new wave of innovation and creatvity across the
company ltwill be difficult to pull off, and 1t will take
time That's why we specifically talk about the ‘path
to efficacy’ that we are on And it1s why we have
committed to providing audited learming outcomes
data for all our products and services by 2018 Bur,

as detalled elsewhere in this report, we are making
some spearfic, and measurable, efficacy commitments
for this year

4 We are putting the learner at the heart
of everything we do

We are putting the learner at the heart of everything
we do QOur commtment to efficacy recogruses the
fact that, whilst our customer s often a teacher, an
mstitution, an educaton authority, a parent, or a
company, the real beneficary of our work — and of
our customers’ work — i1s always the learner

Our purpose as a company — and, ultimately, the true
measure of our success — s whether we really do help
to equip more people with the educauon and skills
they need to progress in their ives

Graph removed
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Pearson’'s strategy" John Fallon, Chief executive

contimued

A necessary transition

This 1s changing the way that every person in the
company works At times, itis proving difficult and
disruptive in the short term, 1t 1s made more pamful,
but all the more necessary, by the fact that we are
batthing against a number of cyclical, policy-related.
structural and operatonal headwmds These led ro

a sharp decline in earmings and free cash flow last year
and will continue to make life difficult for us In 2014

The creauon of Penguin Random House 1s a major
portfolto change, which creates economic value for
Pearson. but the move to associate accounting
reduces our reported operaung profit in 2013

and 2014

Qur US college business, our biggest and most
profitable actwity, i1s highly counter-cychcal, as
enrolments grow strongly during a recession, when
jobs are harder to come by, and then fall back in the
early years of economic recovery

Our two big assessment and quaklifications businesses,
in the US and the UK, are seeing demand fall in the
short term due to changes in government policy,
which will open up new, and bigger. opportunities

as these changes are smplemented

UNIQUE MARKEY POSITION

The transformauon of our company 1s fundamental to
get ahead of the significant structural changes taking
place i education — chiefly the digital shift, in which
Pearson is playing a leading role [t means that we are
now in a much more intensive phase of investment at
the same time as we are finanang the one-off costs of
the biggest restructuring in Pearson’s recent history
We are investing much more, both in building the
technology and relared infrastructure, and in the next
generation of products and services, that are vital to
making the most of that global education opportunity

We make this nvestment with confidence as we
continue to grow strongly in emerging markets and
with our digital and service-related products In future
years, investing in these new growth areas wiil be
financed by cutting back in the print-led related areas

{ outiined earhier But, first we face significant one-off
costs, both 11 2013 and agan in 2014, to achieve this

Graph removed




An ever more purposeful, and faster growing, company

We have a lot of work ahead of us, bur when |

write again in 12 ronths we will have completed

our secand year of significant restructuring and
reorganisation We will be reaping the rewards of
significant investrment, and we will start to see the
benefits of a more favourable trading environment
as those headwinds, over ume, begin 1o ease and the
operational risks recede

By accelerating the transformation of Pearson,

we are ensuring that we shorten this transitional
period —and that we get the company growing n a
mare profitable and sustainable manner, as quickly
aswe can As we do 50, we open up, for Pearson,
bigger growth opporwunites, a larger addressable
market and a greater impact on learning cutcomes

We becorne more confident of our ability to seze that
once-in-a-generation opportunity — to became
directly accountable for helping people make progress
in their lives through learning We see the chance for
Pearson to be the stand-out company in educawon,
which 1s now emerging as one of the new giobal
growth industries

Secuon [ Overview 13

I thank all my colteagues for all their hard work and
commutment, including alt our former colleagues, who
have served the company with such disunctoon I'm
sorry to see many good colleagues feave the company
as a result of our restructuring and | wish them every
success i thew future careers | also thank all our
shareholders for thewr support and pauence through
this short, sharp transiuon

I'm determined to ensure that 1tis rewarded, as soon
as possible, by building a leaner, more cash generatve
and faster growmg business — and one ever more
equipped to tackle some of the biggest and most
intractable problems in global education

John Fallon Chief executive
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Pearson's commitment to efficacy

In November 2013,
Pearson announced a new
commitment to report

on learning outcomes
across its product portfolio
from 2018. This new and
transparent approach

to efficacy is central to our
purpose to help people
make progress in their
lives through learning.

We want Pearson’s customers to be confident that
working with us will help them to achieve their long-
term learning goals and enable them to make progress
in their hives

In November 2013, Pearson announced a new
commitment to report on learning outcomes across
its product portfoito from 2018 We also published
The Incomplete Guide to Delivering Learning Outcomes,
sharing the actions we have taken over the last two
years to prepare our company to meet this unique
chalienge and demonstrate the efficacy of

our products

This new and transparent approach to efficacy 15
central to our purpose and also makes good business
senise We hope that by demonstrating the evidence
base that supports our products we wifl encourage

a deeper engagement with learning outcomes across
the education sector and at the same time clearly
demonstrate the benefits of using those products

We are now defining the practical approach that we
will take 1o reporung publicly on learning outcomes
in 2018, and how we will demonstrate and report
on our progress along the ‘Path to Efficacy’

Below, we summanise our work to date and share our
prioriies for 2014 Qur approach will continue to be
refined in the coming years as we work towards our
goal, and we will consult upon it within and outside

of Pearson through 2014 and beyond Qur vision 1s
that by 2018, we will report on learning outcomes
alongside our financial results

We welcome comments, feedback and support
as we take our next steps Please email our
senior vice-president of efficacy, Saad Rizwi
saad rizvi@pearson com with any questions

or comments that you may have

Pearson's Efficacy Framework and Review Process

Pearson has developed an Efficacy Framework to
support our product development and management
teams to define measurable learning outcomes for
Pearson products and services, and progressively

to improve the hkelthood of actweving them

The Framework is a tool of systematic discovery that
helps us to ask key quesuons about our solutions,
and evaluate the hkelthood that they will deliver ther
mtended learner outcomes

A standardised Efficacy Review process accompanies
the Framework to ensure 1ts wide and consistent use
across the organisation More detail onthe
Framewaork, review process and scoring system can
be found at efficacy pearson com




THE EFFICACY FRAMEWORK

Secuon | Overview

Graph removed

How it worlks

Using this Frameworl we assess

the potential efficacy of a product o
programme agunst 12 critena By giving
each o iteria a raung on the four point
scale (green to red) we gauge the likely
overalf effectivencss of a product

The Framework serves to idenufy specific
areas which, f improved, will increase our’
ikelthood of intended impact Teams are
able fotus their acuvity on taking these
steps before the product is assessed again

EMBEDDING THF EFFICACY FRAMEWORK

Our progress

-

In 2012 we began using the Efficacy Framework to

review alf mvestments above $3man value and i 2014

all investments above $1m wil undergo a review

Products and programmes are repeatedly reviewed over
e to ensure progress and improvements are being made

-

Pearson acquisttion opporiunities are + eviewed using the
Framework to evaluate the opporwuniy to improve learming
outcomes through Pearson ownerstip

We will now focus on securing the consistency with which
the Framework s applied by dlarfying our definivons and
expectations of research, efficacy and quality standards

~

Key statisucs at year end 2043

|23 33%

Reviews completed, Showed progress
including nine potential N repeat reviews
acguisiions and

14 internal functions

Qur plans in 2014

» A standardised Pearson Product Lifecycle will be sntroduced
ensuring that the principles which support greater efficacy
are embedded consistendy i alf new product investments

~

We will increase the number of repear Reviews on single
products and increase the percentage of products showing
an improved score between Reviews

~

Fearson s Lines of Business and Geographies wifl be
reviewed against Key Performance Indicators which address
the inplementation of Pearson s Efficacy Framework and
Review processes

~

targets, measut s and systems necessary to wacl learner
outcomes over time

-

All new product developments will have defined and
measurable learner outcomes

~

We will have atleast three products which are already in
a POSIUON Lo Feport on flearming outcomes, covering the
range of learner ages and stages

At least 40 of our top products will have in place the detaded
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Pearson's commitment to efficacy
continued

Towards reporting on outcomes

The Efficacy Framework and Review process ensures
that all Pearson products and programmes address
the factors that couid affect the learning outcomes
that they are ulumately able to produce, in a
CONSIStEnt way

Scores on the Framework do not in themselves
represent evidence of impact Pearson's ulumate goal
15 1o produce evidence of impact aganst defined
fearning outcames for all of our products

Evidence will take a variety of forms depending on
where a productis within its ifecycie Efficacy
evidence tends to be a longitudinal measure requiring
mutuple measurements aver the lifecycle of a product
The standard of evidence that 1s available will vary by
product according to the specific learning outcome
targets for that product and s maturity

We anticipate therefore, that the nature of evidence
will vary by product and time We will be transparent
about the standard for each of our products

TOWARDS REPORTING OUTCOMES
Our plans in 2014

> We will investigate and consult on how best to define our
evidence standards wori kng with an independent partner

~

We will complete and share efficacy studies that
demonstrate learner outcomes for several
praduct categories

As we move towards 20i8

~

We will be able to make avaitable mcreasing detail about
the standard of evidence that exists for each of our
products, in support of its stated intended outcome and
the esumated nuwmber of learners reached by that product
Our goal 1s to conunually improve the standard of
evidence availabie

Execurtves will be measured on learner outcome-oriented
KPIs, including the quality of evidence avaifable across ther
product portfolios, along with finanaal retutns

KPis will be updated and refined to mclude targets which
capture Pearson's aggregated impact on agreed [earning
outcomes Areas addressed may include academte quality,
employabihity learner progresston, access or afiordabiliny

Improving cutcomes, in partnership

By usmg the Efficacy Framework and committing
to high standards of evidence, we will be better
able to anucipate and mitigate potenual challenges
to our products’ efficacy, and to report back clear
evidence as to they success inmproving defined
learning outcomes

We are acutely aware that our efficacy challenge 1s not
one we can meet alone We rely on guidance, support
and insights of our colleagues and partners across the
education community We see a significant opportunity
to work in collaborauen to debate and address the
broad educatonal research guestions that will nform
and improve our contribution to learning worldwide,
and drive continuous improvement across education

As part of our commmnment to efficacy m November
we brought together experts from inside and outside
of education to share their perspectives on the
opportunity ahead to improve learning outcomes
globally through the paper Asking More The Pathto
Efficacy We also began a sertes of pubiic engagements
on the topic of efficacy, bringing together expertsin
dedicated events at the Nauonal Insticute of Educanion
in Singapore, and the MIT Medua Lab in Boston

We also discussed the challenges around efficacy

at important global events such as the Educaton
World Ferum in London and the World Economic
Forum i Davos




PROGRESS IN 201314

An Avalanche 1s Coming

Sir Michael Barber Saad Rizvi Katelyn
Donnelly pubhshed vath think tanlk IPPR,
this report explores the chaltenges and
opporwnities for hugher education i an
age of MOOCs felong learning and
students as consumers

Image
removed

www ippr org/publication/55/10432/
an-avalanche-is-coming-higher-
education-and-the-revolution-ghead

Learning Metrics Task Force

Pearson co-chan ed this Broolangs
Foundaton siniuauve which sought mput
fromimore than 1,700 individuals in £18
countries to make a series of
recomemendations onimproving learning
opportutities and ourcomes for childran

image
removed

and young people worldwide

www brookings edu/research/
reports/2003/09/learning-metrics-task-
force-universal-learning

A Rich Seam How New Pedagogtes Find
Deep Learning

Published in partnet shup with {TSE, MaRS
Discovery District and Nesta Professor
Michael Fullan and Marta Langworthy s
report asks how technology i schools 1s
changing the student-icacher relationship

Image
removed

research pearson com

We will continue and extend this programme of
research, dialogue and engagement in 2014 and
2015, worksng wrth partners to pursue and share
research outputs around eight key gquestions which
we believe will shape the effectiveness of education
tn the future, through our new Global Research
Funcuon This includes exploring educator quality
and pedagogy. system teform and the future role
of learmng technologies and fearning science 1n
UMProving cutcomes

Qur research 15 now shared at research pearson com

Secuion | QOverview

Ahve i the Swamp

Professor Michaet Fullan, Katetyn
Donnelly published with Nesta, this
report addresses the impact of digial
mnovatien n education

www nesta org uk/publications/alive-
swamp-assessing-digital-tnnovations-
educaton

Askang More The Path to Efficacy

This pamphlet shares insights from some
of the world s leading education
practitioners and business people to
highhight the urgent need for a global
focus on outcomes in education

efficacy pearson com

Image
removed

Image
removed
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Putting the learner

at the heart

of everything we do

Image remaved
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Our performance: 2013 financial overview

Image removed

Robin Freestone, Chief financial officer of Pearson

In 2013, Pearson increased
sales by 2% in headline
terms to £5.2bn generating
adjusted operating profit

of £736m after net
restructuring charges.

Penguin Random House was reported post-tax
followsng completion of the transacton on | july 2013
and resulted in a £23m reducuon in the contribution
10 operating income with an equal benefit to our tax
charge ‘We expensed £135m of net restructuring
charges during the year Adjusted operating profit
including the negative impact of Penguin Random
House assocate accounting but excluding the
restructuring charges was £87[m

The headline growth rates were helped by both
currency movements and acquisiuons Currency
movements nct eased sales by £19m (with a £50m
benefit primarily from a stronger dollar partly offset
by a £3im reducuon from non-dollar currency
depreciation refative to sterling, primarily in emerging
markets) but reduced operating profits by £4m
(with an £8m benefit from a stronger dollar more
than offset by a £12m reduction from non-doilar
currency depreciaton) At constant exchange rates
{1 e stripping out the impact of those currency
movernents), our sales and adjusted operatng
profit grew 2% and dechned 21%, respectively

KLY FINANCIAL GOALS

Graph removed

Graph removed

Graph removed

Acquisitions contributed £119m to sales and £50m to
operating profits This includes mtegration costs and
mvestments related to our newly-acquired comparues,
which we expense Disposals and our exit from
Pearson in Pracuce reduced revenues by £49m but
boosted operaung income by £23m Associate
accounting ansing from the Penguin Random House
transaction reduced operating income by £23m

Stripping out the impact of portfoho changes the
Penguin Random House transaction, net resuructuring
costs and benefit and currency movements, revenues
grew by 1% underlying white adjusted operatng profit
declined by 9%

Qur tax rate in 2013 was 14 6% compared to 23 1%
in 2012 reflecung the associate accounting tmpact
from Penguin Random House and movements in
tax settlements in each year

Adjusted earntngs per share before the impact of
net restructuring charges were 83 4p (2012 B2 6p)
Total adjusted earnings per share after net
restructuring charges were 70 Ip
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Our performance 2013 financial overview
continued

Cash generation

Headline operating cash flow declined by £200m
reflecting restructuring and increased investmentin
new education programmes Free ¢ash flow declined
by £388m ta £269m, addionally reflecuing lugher tax
payments Qur average working capital to sales ratio
improved by a further 0 4 percentage points to 13 4%,
helped by lower inventary levels and the absence of
Penguin m the second half of the year

Return on invested capital

Our return on average invested capital was 5 4%
(2012 91%) ROIC was affected by lower underiying
profit, restructuring costs and higher cash taxes

Statutory results

Our statutory results show a decrease of £29min
aperating profit to £458m, from £487m in 2012,
reflecting the absence in 2013 of the £1i3m closure-
related costs for Pearsonin Pracuce 1n 2012, lower
underlying profits and restructuring costs Basic
earnings per share increased to 66 &6p in 2013, up from
38 7p in 2QH2, mainly due to the Penguin Random
House transaction

Balance sheet

Our net debtincreased to £l 379m (£918mn 2012)
reflecung higher cash tax payments from settlements
and deferred payments from 2012 due to Hurricane
Sandy. lower cash conversion costs associated with
disposals, restructuring costs and increased pre-
publicavon investment Since 2000, Pearsons net
debt/EBITDA ratio has fallen from 3 9x 1o { 6x and
our interest cover has increased from 3 Ixto 10 2x

Dividend

Tire board 1s proposing a dwidend increase of 7% to

48 Op, subject to shareholder approval 2013 wil be
Pearson's 22nd straight year of increasing our dividend
above the rate of inflavon Over the past |0 years we
have increased our dividend at a compound annual rate
of 7%, returning more than £2 9bn to shareholders
We have a progressive dividend policy we intend to
build our dividend cover to around 2 Ox over the long
term, increasing our dividend more n line with
garmings growth from then

Graph removed

Outlook 2014

In 2014, we will conunue the major restructuring and

product investment programime, irtiated in 2013,

designed to accelerare Pearson’s shift towards

sigrificant growth opportunities in digital, services and

fast-growing economies We beheve this will provide |
Pearson with a significantly larger market opportunity,

a sharper focus on the fastest-growing markets and

stronger financial returns

This restructuring coinades with conunued structural,
cycheal and policy-related pressures in some of our
largest markets At thes early stage in the year, we
expect to report adjusted earnings per share of
between 62p and 67p in 2014 This guidance
incorporates our expected trading environment,
restructuring activity and product investment

This guidance also assumes current sterling exchange
rates aganst the dollar and key emerging

market currencies

The major factors behind our guidance are as follows

Portfolio changes

The sale of Mergermarket to BC Partners was
completed on 4 February 2014 and will reduce 2014
adjusted operating profit before centra! cosis by
£28m This will be partly offset by a part-year
comtribution from Grupo Mulu which will be diluted
by integration costs and the weakness of the Real
against sterhing

We expect the contribution to adjusted operating
profit from Penguin Random Hause w0 be
approximately £20m fower mn 2014 compared to the
£78m contributton i 2013 That reflects currency
movements, integration charges {winch will be
concentrated in the first half of 2014) and an addmonal
half-year of associate accounting



Currency movements

Pearson generates approximately 60% of its sales in
the US A five cent move in the average £ $ exchange
rate for the full year (which in 2013 was £1 $1 57) has
an wmpact of approximately 1 2p on adjusted earnings
per share The move from an average £/3 exchange
rate of | 57 1n 2013 to the rate at the end of February
of | 67 will reduce operating ncome by approximately
£30m if it continues for the full year Similarly, when
compared to 2013 average exchange rates, Steriing
has significantly appreciated agamnst a range of non-
dollar currencies, primaridy in emerging markets

If current exchange rates for those markets persist
throughout 2014, that would reduce operating income
on our 2013 base business by a further £20m

Restructuring and investment programme

We will benefit from the absence of £176m of gross
restructuring charges expensed in 2013, which we
expect to generate £60m of incremental cost savings
m 2014

These benefits will be partly offset by an addrional
net restructuring charge of approximately £50m

in 2014, primardy m North Amenica and weighted
towards the first half of the year. Our goal s to
complete cur restructuring programme by the

end of 2014, returning to more normal annual levels
of restructuring expenditure from 2015,

As previously announced, we expect addiional
product investment of approximately £50m in 2014
in chgreal, services and emerging markets to
accelerate growth

Trading conditions

We expect trading conditions to reman challenging
in 2014, reflecting

In North America, our largest mariet, we expect
college enrolments to dechne agamn and some states
to defer assessment programmes as they transition
to the Common Core State Standards Though we
expect the School publishing market to show some
improvement, we expect the benefits to be largely
offset by higher revenue deferrals and pre-publication
amorusation We expect margins to be lower in 2014
when compared to 2013, reflecting the above organic
outlook, revenue mix, launch costs for major mulu-
year service-based contracts, higher amortisation
and new product development expenditure

Section 2 Qur performance 21

In our Core markets {which include the UK and
Austraha), we see tough trading conditions in the
UK as curriculum change affects school, vocational
publishing and assessments, market stabilisatson in
Austraha, and a new adoption year in ltaly

In our Growth markets (which include Brazil, Cluna,
indra and South Africa), we expect continued growth
in China with Brazif benefitting from a better year in
public sistemas and a part-year contribution from
Grupo Multi We expect a slower year i South Africa
after strong gains in 2013

Looking at our global Lines of Business, we expect
Schoof and Higher Education to remaimn challenging,
especially in our two largest markets, North
America and the UK In Professional, we expect
continued good growth n Pearson VUE and English
with the Financial Times conunuing to benefit from
tts digital transition

Interest and tax

We expect our interest charge to be simdar to 2013
reflectuing higher floating rates broadiy offset by a
weaker dollar aganst sterling We expect a tax rate
of between |9% and 21% on aur total profit before
tax {which includes the post-tax contribution from
Penguin Random House)

As Pearson’s structure has changed to better suit
our marketplace and aspirations, so must our
financial reporung change In this year s annual
report, we discuss the progress made through
the lens of our existing financial reporung segments
{North American Education, International
Education, Professional and the Financial Times
Group) We will report our 2014 revenues and
aperating profit against new segments that better
refiect the shape of our business, these wili be by
Geography (North America Core and Growth)
and by Line of Business (School, Higher Education
and Professional)

We will make available hustorical 2013 half-year
and full-year revenues and operating profit by
Line of Business and Geography in the second
quarter of 2014
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Creating personalised products and services

that meet learners need

and deliver measurable results

Image removed




North American Education

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

North American
Education is Pearson’s
largest business, with

2013 sales of £2.8bn and
operating profit of £406m.

CASE STUDY

Onlinelearning

We miroduced adaptive learning capabthues in
over 200 MylLab and Mastering producis across

I} subjects Student registrauons i North Amernica
grew 9% to almost |1 mithon Usage continues

to grow strongly with graded submussions up

[5% to almost 370 million across the globe
Evaluation studies show that the use of Mylab
programmes as part of a broader course redesign,

Total number of MylLab registrations

Secuon 2 Our performance

Sales Adjusted operatung profic
2013 £2779m 2013 £406m
2012 £2 658m 2012 £536m

"Headine growth $%  Headinegrowth  (24)%
CERgrowth 3%  CERgrowth (25Y%
Underlying growth 0% Underymggrowth  (30)%

can significantly improve student test scores and
institutional efficiency (hetp //bit ly/ lderVym)

We acquired Learning Catalyucs, which allows
faculty to obtain real-uime responses to open-ended
or critical thinking questions, to determune which
areas require further explanation, and enables
earlier intervention to help improve retention

and outcomes

llm

2013

99m

2012

fmage removed

Image removed
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North American Educaton
continued

In 2013, we generated good growth in our digital and
services bustnesses, where we continue to invest to
build scale and volume and solid growth in our school
curriculum business, which benefited from Common
Coi e curriculum purchasing Market conditions
remaned tough, with ongoing state budget pressures
and the transition to the Common Core affecting our
School assessment business Lower enrolments
affected Higher Educanon with the career college
enrolments, where we have a strong market position,
being parucularly weak In addition to these market
pressures, our North American margins were further
affected by £49m of net restructuring charges, reduced
demand in gur assessment business as states prepared
for new Comimon Core testing and curriculum related
investment and amortisauaen, the faunch costs related
1o major multi-year service-based contracts mn higher
education, and ncreased returns provisions

Higher Education fughlights in 2013 include

In Higher Education, total enrolments fell | 9%, with
career enrolments in two-year public (community)
and four-year for-profit declining 4 4%, affected by
rising employment rates, state budget pressures
and regulatory change affecung the for-profit and
developmental learning sectors The pubfishing
market was broadly level with 2012 on a gross basis,
accordmg to the Assoctation of American Publishers,
while our higher educauon revenues grew 5% wath
an underlying decline more than offset by the
contribuuon from Embanet

We partnered with West Virginia University
Parkersburg Online to redesign its Developmental
Education curniculum using Competency-Based
Education (CBE) modules Our CourseConnect CBE
products will enhance up te 220 existing courses and
wilf be delivered through OpenClass where we will
also prowide access to eTextbooks, tutoring and media
resources Other CBE partnerships include Texas
A&M Unwersity-Commerce South Texas College
Kentucky Community & Techrical College System
and Northern Arizona University

School highlights in 2013 include

» For our School businesses, state funding pressures,

-

~

the Federal sequester and the transition to Common
Core assessments continued to make market
conditions tough Revenues grew modestly in 2083
with dechines in state assessment contracts and
learning assessments more than offset by gamns in
nauonal assessment contracts for the PARCC
consortium and the federal government’s NAEP
programime, as well as demand for Connections
Education’s virtual charter schools and Common
Core reading/language arts and math programmes

Actionable data 15 critical o personalising learning and
boosung achievement Our Schoolnet business ahgns
assessrment, curriculum and other services to help
indwvidualise instruction and improve teacher
effectiveness PowerSchool helps teachers automate
and manage student attendance records, gradebooks
and timetables

Schoolnet won significant contracts including two
new Race to the Top State Instructional tmprovement
System contracts tn New York and New Jersey, which
takes the total number of state system contracts to
seven, and new district contracts for Schoolnet
assessment, educator development and learning
management soluttons i Dallas, Texas, Patm Beach,
Florida, Philadelptia, Pennsylvania, and New York
City PowerSchool won new contracts in Charlotte-
Mecklenberg. North Carolina, Grand Ene DSB.
Ontanio, and San Diego Califormia its mobile app
connecting teachers, students and parents was
downloaded by almost 3 4 mullion users PowerSchool
now supports almost |3 millon students (in 70
counttries), up more than 5% on 2012 while Schoclnet
supports more than nine milbon students up 7%

on 2012




CASESTUDY
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Image removed

[ Online learning

programmes

Enterpnse-wide partnerships with Arizona State
Unwersity Onine, Ocean Community College,
Indiana Wesleyan University and Rutgers, where
we run fully online learming programmes and earn
revenues based on the success of the students and
the institution gained more than 64,000 student
registrations, up 45% on 2012 In January 2014,

we extended our partnerstup with the University
of Florida to include both its graduate and under
graduate programmes providing technology,
e-Textbaoks, recruitment marketing, enrolment
management, student support and retention services

Pearson Embanet increased new student enrolments
by 8% to almost {2 000 and rotal student enroiment
by 6 5% to more than 27,000, adding [6 new
programmes, launching three new key academic
partners with Adelpti University, Villanova University
and University of Maryland, and expanding
partnerships with exisung customers such as
Marywille and Northeastern More than 200 colleges
are working with Pearson to build online learmng
programmes that improve access to high quahity
undergraduate and graduate degree programmes
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North American Education
continued

The Partnership for Assessment of Readiness for
College and Careers (PARCC), a consortium of

{8 states, awarded Pearson several contracts to delver
test item tryouts, develop field tests and to provide
the online delivery pfatform using our cloud-based,
mobile-ready TestNav B systern for new Enghsh and
mathemaucs assessments The assessments will be
based on what students need 1o be ready for college
and careers, and will measure and track their progress
along the way We helped Kentucky and New York
dehver the first Common Core aligned state
assessments, and we won new online assessment
programmes in Colorado, Minnesota and Mississippt
We continued to produce strong growth in secure
online testing We delivered almost {2 milhion secure
online tests, up 33% on 2012 Legislative changes i
Texas and California reduced the scope of assessments
ahead of Common Core implementation

We renewed our contract with the US Department
of Education to administer the National Assessment
of Educational Progress (NAEP) for the 2013-2017
assessment cycles and won a number of state contract
extensions in Georgia, Puerto Rico, Tennessee,
Maryland, Arizona, South Dakota and Oklahoma
We were selected by the Navional Board of
Professional Teaching Standards {NBPTS) as their
partner 10 develop ther next-generauon
programmes, and deliver and support NBPTS
through 2025

CASESTUDY

Mental health
administration

Pearson Climcal Assessment launched Q-interactive,
a portable digital tool that enables mental health
professionals to automatically manage the
admuinistraton of chrucal assessments, digical sumul,
response recording through stylus notes and audio

It serves 1,500 users within hospitals, private
pracuce, and schools in five countries (US, UK,
Australia, Canada and Netherlands) Pard test
adrrunistrations have increased ten-fold since launch

» ACT Aspire, a college and career readiness assessment
aligned to the Common Core State Standards,
successfully launched s first field test on the new
TestNav 8 assessment system ACT Aspires a joint
venture between Pearson and ACT, Inc Alabamais
the first state to adopt the ACT Aspire system for
measuring the Common Core State Standards

~

Connections Education, which operates K-12 managed
virtual public schools, managed blended public schools,
and a private school, served almost 51,000 students in
December 2013, up more than 20% from 2002, and
now operates 33 managed public schools in 23 states
and an international private virual school
Coennections Education also provides virtual and
blended sarvices to school districts and other schools
seeking to ncorporate virtug! learning into their
programmes Connections Academy Schools have
consistently high performance ratings, particutarly in
states focused on measuring growth tn student learning

Image rernoved
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Image removed

Learning

Services

In Learning Services, we performed well in new
adoptions, taking a market leading 33% of the total
new adopuon market ($390m), with #1 positons in
maths, science and social studies and a #2 posttion in
Reading/Language Arts We were selected by the
two largest school districts in the US, Los Angeles
Unified School Dustrict and New York City, to
implement Common Core mstructional
programmes New York City adopted our new K-5
Common Core English Language Arts programme,
Ready Gen, and our middle school math offering,
Connected Math In Los Angeles Unified School
District, we partnered with Apple to deliver our

innovative next generaton digital learning Common
Core System of Courses across K-12 Mathematrcs
and Enghsh Language Arts, intially to 30,000
students In both districts, we are providing
professional development to thousands of

teachers Learners using our OnRamp to Algebra
supplemental programme, which targets strugghng
maths students, significantly out-ganed peers using
other supplemental maths programmes, achieving
20% increase in thew percentle rank while thew
peers increased by only 3% In addition, students of
all ability levels using OnRamp to Algebra exceeded
the gains of their peers
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International Education

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Our International Education

business achieved
another strong underlying
performance in emerging

markets, particularly in
South Africa and China.

CASE STUDY

China

In China, student enrolments at VWall Street Enghsh
increased 7% to 65,000, boosted by good underlying
demand Cur students rapidly acquire high-level
English skills with average grade levels achieved rising
by 14% during 2013 Enrolments at Global Educauion,
our test preparation services for Enghsh language
and vocauonai qualificauons, increased 24% to more
than t 3 mullton, through 82 owned and 426

Wall Street English student enrolments in China

Image removed

Sales Adjusted operating profit
2013 £153%m 1203 £140m
2012 £1 568m 2012 £214m
Headling g owth {2)%  Headlinegrowth (35)%
CER growth 0% CERgrowth 29%
Underlying growth %  Underlymggrowth  (30)%

franchised learning centres with investment m
fearning centres and digital learning platforms
enabling us to better meet learner demands and be
a premier brand n test preparatton Around 70%
of the hugh-end course students achieve IELTS 70
which demonstrates a hugh level of proficency in
Enghish and a key grade when studying abroad.

61,000

2012

65,000

2043
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Our Internationat education business achieved another
strong underlying performance in emerging markets,
partcularly in South Africa and China Thus growth was
offset by weak textbook sales in developed markets,
currency weakness aganst sterfing. the exit from
certain pubhshing businesses primarily m Austraba,
Japan, Germany, France and the UK, increased
customisation resulting from the Kirtsaeng ruling in

the US, and policy changes affecting qualifications

and textbook publishing in the UK Although margins
before restructuring charges were similar to 2012,
reported margins fell due to £69m of net restructuring
charges expensed during the year More than

I 3 mithon students registered for our MylLab digital
learning, homewaerk and assessment programrmes,

an increase of 17%, with good growth in school,

ELT and institutional selling in higher educatuon

Key highlights in 2013 include

Our Growth market revenues expanded strongly,
boosted by curriculum change in South Africa, strong
enrolment growth at CTI/MGI, and conunued good
growth n China, partly offset by weaker currencies
aganst sterling, particularly in South Africa and
enrolment declines mn our public sistemas in Brazi

in Mexico. our fully accredited online university
partnership, UTEL, reached 6,000 active students in
20 undergraduate and two graduate programmes and
through 1ts services arm, Scala, signed its first three
agreements to help campus-based uriversities male
the transtion to onhne 5400 students have
completed short duration courses in programmes
developed to address corporate and government
workforce training needs

in the Middle East we won a five-year contract with
the UAE's Miustry of Educavon to provide leadership
tratning and professional development far 700 current
and future Emirat school principals, in partnership
with the UK's Nauonal Caollege for Teaching and
Leadership We partnered with Taibah University in
Saudh Arabra to implement Foundation Level

Myt absPlus across four subjects for 16,000 students,
Riyadh's Princess Noura University in Saud Arabia,
the worid’s largest female untversity, to provide
i2,000 new students with |T course content (through
our Mylabs e-learning technology) for tablets, and
Qatar University to implement MylabsPlus for

5,000 students
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CASE STUDY

Image removed

[ South I
Africa

In South Africa our market leading school
publishing brands Maskew Miller Longman and
Hememann, performed strongly in a year of
significant curriculum reform Student enrolments
grew strongly at CTI/MGI, our unwersities, up 15%
to 11,700 across 13 campuses

» Our Core market revenues declined significantly,
affected by curniculum change in the UK and the exit
{rom publishing operauons 10 Australia, Japan and
Contnental Europe

» In the UK, revenues dechined due to a softer school
curniculum and vocatonal qualificanions (BTEC)
market anoigpaung curriculum change This was partly
offset by a strong performance in the GCSE and A/AS
level qualificavons market In higher education, we
partnered with Leeds Metropolitan University to
develop a suite of online learning business education
courses |n assessment, we marked almost six million
GCSE. A/AS Level and other examinations with more
than 93% using onscreen technology We marked
2 7 mihon test scripts for over half a million pupils
taking Nauonal Curniculum Tests at Key Stage Two
in 2013 and were selected to admunister the tesc unul
2016 2013 also saw the first delivery of the Next
generauon BTEC qualifications to over 100,000
students, with a further 365.000 students 1o date
enrolled for 2014/15 delivery
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International Educatuon
continued

tn lraly, revenues declined, with market conditions
tough due to a one-year government mandated pause
in new adoptions

tn Japan, GlobalEnglish and the FT partinered with
Nildeer Inc on a "GlobalEnglish Nildeet ediion’, an
Enghsh language learning service to serve English
students in the Japanese business commuruty We sold
our school textbook publishing business, Kirhara
Shoten, to management

In Australia, market conditions were very tough,
particutarly in higher education where we exited the
vocational publishing market We continue to make
good progress developing our digital and services
business including significant sales of Secondary School
Australian Curriculum ebooks in higher education,
we partnered with Monash University with an
enterprise implementation of the Mylab suite of
products for 6,500 students induding faculty training,
and to provide learning services and solutions for
online graduate programimes including course
development, markeung, student recruitment and
retention, and faculty tramming

CASESTUDY

Brazil

I Brazil, we ended 2013 wath 497,000 students
(533,000 in 20§2) in our public and private sistemas
{or learring systerns) In 2013, we added 24,000 nex
students in our three private sistemas, COC, Dom
Bosco and Puert Domus, up 7% on 2012 Tough
market conditions for public sistemas resuited in
fower enrolments in this post-election year but our
NAME sistema includes the #1 performing lower
secondary school in Brazi based on the 2011 IDEB
{nauonal public test) scores of 3,067 munpalites
90% of cur mumicipal customers tested 20% above
the navonal standard and 70% of the municipalives
that adopted NAME showed impt ovement in thewr
{DEB scores On 11 February 2014 we completed
the acquisiton of Grupo Mult, the largest provider
of pnivate language schools in Brazif serving over
800,000 students across more than 2,600
franchised schools

> In Enghish Language Learning, Walf Street English
{WSE), Pearson’s woridwide chain of English fanguage
centres for professionals, opened a new centre in
Ho Chi Minh City 1in Vietnam {and 1s now present in
28 countries), and has 107 owned and 338 franchised
centres Our students rapidly acquire high-level
English skills with average grade levels achieved rising
by 8% during 2013 Student numbers grew slightly to
192,000 Regstered usersfor ELL digital products
grew 45% to 610,000 with MyEnghishLabs registrations
up 51% to 400,000 and Our Discovery lsland
registrations, an onhne adventure aimed at Primary
education, up almost 77% to 104,000

Image removed
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Professional Education

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Our Professional Education
business is focused on
publishing, training,

testing and certification

for professionals.

Qur Professional Education business s focused on
publishing, training, testing and certification for
professtonals The Professional division performed
well, with good revenue and profit growth in tesung
and training partly offset by declines in publishing

Key highlights in 2013 include

Professional pubbishing revenues and profits declined,
with good profit growth in the US, underpinned by a
strong performance n our direct ecommerce sales and
at Safar Books Online, our joint-venture with O'Reilly
Media, offset by exiting some of our professional
publishing bustnesses i Continental Europe

Professional testing conunued to see good revenue
and profit growth test volumes at Pearson VUE up 25%
on 2012 to almost [2 millkon Key contract renewals
included tests for the American Board of Internal
Medicine, the Association of Socral Work Boards and
the Pharmacy Technictan Certficanon Board We will
conunue to deliver our UK contract to administer the
Driving Theory test for the DVSA untd September
2016 We won a number of new contracts for
computer-based testing induding the Charter of
Financial Analysts, Saudi Commusston of Health
Specialues and the Korean Productivity Centre

Section 2 Our performance 31

Sales Adjusted operating profit

2013 £410m 2013 £57m
2012 £390m 2002 £37m
L;adiusme growth 5% —f:eadhne growth 54%
CER growth 4% EER growth 5%
Underiying growth B%  Underlyingg owth {7)%

CASE STUDY

Image removed

Vocational training in

Saudi Arabia

In Professional training, TQ grew strongly and was
awarded a five-year contract by Saudi Arabia’s
Colieges of Excellence to develop and operate
three vocatonal coileges in Saudi Arabia, providing
hugh quality vocational skills and qualificattons

The three colleges opened in the second half of 2013
with an expected mueual (ntake of | 100 students,
rising to 8 000 students over ume

|
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Financial Trmes Group

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The Financial Times Group

achieved profits of £55m,
an underlying increase of
17% year-on-year.

CASESTUDY

Growth in digitat readership

The FT's total aircilauion grew 8% year-on-year to
652,000 across print and online, the highest paying
readership in1ts 125-year hustory FT com digital
subscriptons grew 31% to 415,000, more than
offsetung planned reducuons m print arculation

Dugital subscribers now represent almost two-thirds

Financial Trimes digital subscriprions

Sales Adjusted aperaung profit
2043 £449m 2013 £55m
012 £443m 2002 £47m
Headline growth I-éé- Headline growt 17%
CER growth 0% _C—ER growth o 17%
Underlying growth 0%  Underlying growth 17%

of the FT's total paying audience and corporate
users grew nearly 60% to more than 260,000

We continue to invest to shift resources from
analogue to dignal and have further reduced leased
printing capacity globally since 31 December 2012
from 20 to 16 sites

415,000

2013

316,000

2012

Image removed
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The Financial Times Group achueved profits of £55m an
underlying increase of 7% year-on-year This was driven
by strong growth in digital and content businesses and
wproved print arculation margms whitch more than
offset wealk adverusing Digital and services revenues
accounted for 55% of FT Group revenues (31%in 2008)
Content revenues compnised 63% of revenues {48% in
2008), while adverusing accounted for 37% of FT Group
revenues {52% in 2008)

Key highlights tn 2013 include

Adverusing conunued to be short term and generally
weak, but the FT increased s market share with
luxury and financial sectars showing good growth

in digital

Mcbile is an increasingly important channel for the

FT, driving 62% of subscnber consumpuion, 45%

of total trafiic and almost a quarter of new digital
subscripuions The FT's flagship web app now has
more than 5 nullion users and new FT apps on Google
Newsstand and Flipboard have sirengthened our
mobile offering Other imnovanions, including launching
24-hour news service fastFT, redesigns to mobile apps
and improvements to FT com, have helped
significantly increase overall digiral engagement

The Ecanomist Group, in which Pearson owns a
50% stake. had a record operating profit after tax,
up 3% on 2012 Content revenues accounted for
60% of total revenues (44% in 2008) and digitat and
services revenues cornprised 39% of 1otal revenues
{(29% 10 2010} Global print and digiial circulation at
The Econorist reached a record high of | 6 mithon

On 4 February 20{4 we completed the disposal of
Mergermarket to BC Partners for £382m, payable in
cash In 2013, Mergermarket contributed £108m of
revenue and £28m of adjusted operatng profit before
central costs

Section 2 Our performance 33

CASESTUDY
Image removed
Executive
education

The FT continues to expand Its executive
educaton business FT in Education products,
tncluding annotaton tool FT Newslines, are
now used by almost 300 education insututions,
including 37 of the world's top 50 business
schoals The FT launched 1ts Non-Executive
Director (NED) Diploma in Hong Kong

More than a third of NED enrolments are

now cutside the UK
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Penguin Random House

The merger of Penguin and Random

House was completed on | July 2013,
Bertelsmann owns 53% and Pearson owns
47% of Penguin Random House, the first
truly global consumer publishing company.

Penguin Random House traded well in the second
half of the year, with a strong besiseller performance
in all major territories Penguin Random House was
reported post-tax following comptetion of the merger
on | July 2013 and resulted in a £23m reducuon 1n the
contribution 1o our operating mcome with an equal
benefit to our tax charge Market share normalised,
following the unprecedented success of E L James’

50 Shades of Grey trilogy for Random House in 2012

The integration of the two companies has commenced
in each of its territories Divisional structures are
being combimned, systems mntegration 1s underway,

and the US business has announced a plan to
consolidate distribution operations

Key highlights in 2013 include

In Austraha. where market conditions reman
challenging, we had four out of the top five bestsellers
for the year Jeff Kinney's Hard Luck Diary of a Wimpy
fGd, Jarmie Ohver's fame’s 15 Minute Meals and Save
with famie, and Dan Brown's Inferno

In Brazl Companiwa das Letras (45% stake) posted
strong revenue growth doiven by an expanded
publishing program In a challenging market, Penguin
Random House India had more than 40 titles pro
forma on the 2013 Hindustan Times Neelsen top ten in
combined categories in Chuna, our local-publisfung
programme contnued to grow, with notable
bestsellers, including My Life by Li Na DK achueved
signticant growth through 1ts co-edition model with
Chinese pubiishers In South Africa, Penguin Random
House completed the purchase of the Times Media
Group’s majority stake in Random House Struik,
cementng our market {eading positton, but lost a
significant agency contract during the year

image removed

» DK performed well, boosted by the exceptional
performance of Brady Games® GTA V Strategy
Guide™, which sold over 800,000 copies, and the
ongotng success of the DK LEGO® properties, which
sold almost 10 mulion units in 2013

o

The pro forma ebook share of Penguin Random House
global revenue 1s 20% Ebook growth for Penguin
conunued but at a slower rate, while Random House
ebook sales dechned significantly year-on-year due

to much lower sales for the Fifty Shades tnlogy

Digital mnovations included the {aunch of Bookscout,

a dedicated app created for and with Facebook which
enables shanng personalised reading recommendations
among friends and online communiies

By

Penguin Random House's authors won numerous
major iterary prizes around the world, including the
2013 Nobel Prize for Literature (Alice Munro), The
Nauonal Book Award for Fiction in the US (James
McBride's The Good Lord Bird), and an unprecedented
four US Pulizzer Prizes

In self-publishing, Author Solutions performed well,
growng sigrificantly over 2012, and conunuing to
launch and plan for setf-publishing imprints in
conjunction with Pengum in such territortes as India
and South Africa

~

For 2014, Penguin Random House has a strong
publishing list with major new boaks fi o authors such
as Isabel Allende, Marun Amis, Lee Child, John
Cleese, Harlan Coben, Steve Coogan, Lena Dunham,
Janet Evanovich Ken Follett, Stephen Fry, Robert
QGates, Ina Garten, jJohn Grisham, Deborah Harkness,
Carl Hiaasen, Jan Karon, Sue Monl Kidd, jeff Kinney,
Michael Lewis David Mitchell, Harula Murakam, Jame
Olwver, James Patterson, Jodr Picoult, Nora Roberts,
Danielle Steel, Colm Taibin, Jacqueline Wilson, and
movie te-in paperbacks of john Green's The Fault in
Our Stars, Giliari Flynin's Gone Girl, and Laura
Hillenbrand’s Unbroken

w



CASE STUDY

Bestselters in 2013

in the US, on a pro forma basis, Pengun and Random
House published 480 New York Times bestsellers,
including three out of the top five Booliscan adult
fiction bestsellers for the year Dan Brown's Infemo,
John Grisham's Sycamore Row and Khaled Hossenr's
And The Mountamns Echoed Other New York Times
besrsellers inciuded, 1n adult nonficuon Shery!
Sandberg's Lean in, Charles Krauthammer's Things
That Matter, and i children s fiction John Green's

#1 bestselling The Fault in Our Stars

Secuon 2 Our performance 35

in the UK, on a pro forma basis, Penguin and Random
House published 102 Bookscan bestsellers including
Dan Brown's Inferns, Dawid Jason's My Life, Jarmie
Ohver’s Save with jamie, Rachel joyce’s The Unfikely
Pigrimage of Harold Fry, Helen Fielding’s Bndget jones
Mad About the Boy, and a strong ongoing overall
performance from Jeff Kinney’s Diary of @ Wimpy Kid
series, and from its newest volume Hard Luck
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More and more people want

a better education

and new ways of learning
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Other financial information

2003 2012
im im

Net finance costs

Metimerest payable {72) {65)

Fivance income in respect

of employee benefit plans (3) {2)

Other net finance costs )] (29)

Total net finance costs (76) (%6)

Netinterest payable in 2013 was £72m, up from £65m
in 2012 Although our fixed rate policy reduces the
impact of changes in marleet interest raies, we were
sull able to benefit from low average US dollar and
sterling interest rates durmng the year Year-on-year,
average three month LIBOR (weighted for the
Group's net borrowings in US dollars and sterhing at
each year end) feli by 0 2% to 0 3% This decrease in
floating market interest rates was offset by an increase
in the Group’s average net debt which was the main
driver behind the Group’s higher interest charge
These factors combined with fower levels of cash and
deposits and the impact of new notes issued 1n 2013
created a decrease in the Group's average net interest
payable from 7.0% to 4 8% The Group s average net
debt rose by £561m, largely reflecting acquisiuen
activity, cash costs relating to the formation of Penguin
Random House (PRH} and cash paid in respect of the
closure of Pearson in Practice in 2012 together with an
increase in tax and dividend payments which more
than offset cash generated from operations

Cash generated from operations was lowern 2013
partly as a result of restructuring acuvity in the year

Net finance casts relating to post-retirement plans
have been restated to reflect the adoption of IAS 19
(revised) and under the new standard was £3m in
2013 compared to £2m in 2012 Finance costs relating
to rettrement benefits have been excluded from our
adjusted earnings as we believe the new presentation
does not reflect the economic substance of the
underlying assets and liabilies

Also included in the statutory defimnon of net finance
costs are finance costs on put options and deferred
consideration associated with acquisitions, foreign
exchange and other gains and losses Finance costs
for put options and deferred consideration are
excluded from adjusted earnings as they relate to
future earn outs and simifar payrnents on acquisinons
and therefore do not reflect cash expended

Foreign exchange and other gains and losses are

Secuon 2 Our performance 37

excluded from adjusted earrungs as they represent
short-term fluctuations i market value and are
subject to significant volathity These other gains and
losses may not be realised in due course as it is
normally the intention to hold the related instruments
to maturty In 2013, the total of these iterns excluded
from adjusted earnings was a loss of £1m compared to
aloss of £29m i 2012 The majority of the lass in 2012
relates to movements in the valuation of put opuons
associated with acquisttions In 2013 losses refating to
put options were largely offset by foreign exchange
gamns on a proporuen of unhedged US dollar assets

Funding position and hiqud resources

The Group finances its operattons by a mixture of
cash flows from operauons, short-term borrowings
from banks and commercial paper markezts, and
longer-term loans from banks and capizal markets
Qur objective 1s to secure continuity of funding ata
reasonable cost from diverse sources and with varying
maturitres The Group does not use off-balance sheet
special purpose enuties as a source of iquidity or for
any other financing purposes The net debt posiuon

of the Group is set out betow

“t "
Cash and cash eqinvalents 729 1,062
Marketable securimes 6 6
Net derivative assets 76 (78
Bonds (2168} {22000
Bank loans and overdrafts (47} (55)
Frnance leases () (17}
Net debt — continuing (1.415)  (1.026)
Net cash classified as held for sale 36 108
Total net debt (1.379) (518}

Acguisioon actvity, cash costs relating to the
formauon of PRH and cash pard in respect of the
closure of Pearson in Practice in 2012 together with an
increase i tax and dividend payments and fower than
expected cash generation in 2013 are the largest
contributors to the increase in the Group's net debt
Reflecting the geographical and currency sphit of our
business, a farge proportion of our debt s
denominated in US dollars {see note 19 for our policy)
The strengtheming of stering against the US dollar
during 2012 (from 1 63 to $I 66 LI} decreases the
sterling equivalent value of our reported net debt
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Other financial information
continued

The Group's credit ratings remained unchanged during
the year The long-term raungs are Baal from Moody's
and BBB+ from Standard & Poor's, and the shori-term
ratings are P2 and A2 respectively In January 2014,
Moody's changed the cutlock on their short-term and
long-term raungs from ‘Stable’ to ‘Negative’ in May
2013, the Group accessed the capital markets, rarsing
$500m through the sale of notes maturing in May 2023
and bearing interest at 3 25% The notes were
swapped to floatng rate to conform with the policy
described in note 19 The Group has a $1,750m
commutted revolving credit faaility which matures m
November 2015 At 31 December 2013 this facility was
undrawn The facility 1s used for short-term drawings
and providing refinancing capabihties, including actng
as a back-up for our US commercial paper programme
This programme 1s primarily used to finance our US
working capital requirements, in parucular our US
educauonal businesses which have a peak borrowing
requirement in june At 31 December 2013, no
commercial paper was outstanding The Group also
maintains other committed and uncommutted facilities
to finance short-term working capital requirements mn
the ordtnary course of business Further detalls of the
Group's approach to the management of financal risks
are set out in note 19 to the financial statements

Taxation

The effective tax rate on adjusted earntngs in 2013
was [4 6% as compared o an effective rate of 23 1%
in 2012, The reduction in the rate 1s partly explained
by the assocrate accounting treatment of our
investment 1in PRH — tax on the profits of PRH are
netted agatnst profits in the presentation of the
associate interest and is not included in the tax fine
Our overseas profits, which arise mainly in the US, are
largely subject to tax at higher rates than thatin the
UK (which had an effective statutory rate of 23 25% 1
2013 and 24 5% 1in 2012} These higher tax rates were
largely offset by amortisauon-related tax deducuons
and by adjustments arising from settlements with tax
authorities The reported tax charge on a statutory
basis was £87m (22 8%) compared to a charge of
£138m (35 3%} 1n 2012 The decrease in the statutory
rate 1s due to the factors affecung the adjusted rate as
described above but 1s also exacerbated by the fack of
tax rehefin 2012 on the loss on closure of Pearson in
Practice Tax paid in 2013 was £246m compared to
£65m i 2012 Tax pasd in 2012 was unusually low as

a result of the permitted deferral of US tax payments
following Hurricane Sandy These payments were
subsequently made in 2013 and were accompanied

by addinional payments arising from settlements
with tax authorities including £55m relating to prior
year disposals

Discontunued operations

In October 2012, Pearson and Bertelsmann
announced an agreement LO create a new consumer
publishing business by combining Penguin and Random
House The transaction completed on | July 2013 and
resulted in a gain on the disposal of the Penguin assets
of £202m The gain arises as Pearson no longer has
control of the Penguin Group of companies The 47%
mterest in the new Penguin Random House (PRH)
venture has been accounted for as an equity
investment from | july 2013

The loss of cantrol resulted in the Pengum business
bemng classified as held for sale on the Pearson balance
sheet at 31 December 2012 and the results for both
2012 and the first six months of 2013 have been
included in discontinued operatons The share of profit
from associate interest in the PRH venture arising i the
second half of the year has been included in operating
profitin continuing operatons net of tax of £23m

Addonally on 29 November 2013 we announced

the safe on the Mergermarket Group 1o BC Partners
The sale was completed on 4 February 2014 and the
Mergermarket business has been classified as held for
sale on the balance sheet at 31 December 2013

The results for both 2012 and 2013 have been included
in discontinued operations

Non-controlling interest

There are non-controlling interests in the Groups
busimnesses in the US, South Africa and China although
none of these are materal to the Group numbers
Some of the minoriues in South Africa and the
minorities in India were bought out in the year

Other comprehensive income

fncluded in other comprehensive income are the

net exchange differences on transiauon of foreign
operatans The net loss on translation of £2{7m

1n 2013 compares to a loss in 2012 of £238m and

is principally due to movements in the US dollar

A significart proportion of the Group s operatons

ts based in the LS and the US dollar weakened slighdy
n 2013 from an opening rate of £1 $1 63 to a closing
rate at the end of 2013 of £1 ! 66 Atrthe end of 2012
the US dollar had also weakened in comparison to the
opening rate moving from £1 $1 55 to £1 $1 63




Also included in other comprehensive income in 201315
an actuarial gain of £79m in relation to post retirement
plans This gain arises from changes in the assumptions
used to value the habilines and from returns on plan
assets that are in excess of the discountrate The gain
compares to an actuarial loss for 2012 of £103m

Dividends

The dividend accounted for in our 2013 financial
statements totalling £372m represerns the final dividend
in respect of 2012 (30 Op) and the interim dividend for
2013 (16 Op) We are proposing a final dividend for 2013
of 32 Op, bringing the total paid and payable in respect
of 2013 to 48 Op a 7% increase on 2012 Thus final 2013
dividend which was approved by the board in February
20i4, 1s subject 1o approval at the forthcoming AGM
and will be charged against 2044 profits For 2013, the
dvidend is covered | 5 uimes by adjusted earmngs

We seek to maintan a balance between the
requirements of our shareholders for a nising stream
of dwvidend income and the reinvestment opportunities
which we identify around the Group and through
acquisitions The board expects to raise the dividend
above inflation, more in line with earnings growth,
thereby maintaining dividend cover at around two
umes earmngs in the long term

Pensions

Pearson operates a variety of pension plans Our UK
group plan has by far the largest defined benefit secuon.
We have some smaller defined benefit sections in the
US and Canada but, outside the UK, most of our
compantes operate defined contribution plans

The charge to profitin respect of worldwide pensions
and reurement benefits after restating 2012 figures for
IAS 19 (revised) and including discontinued operations
amounted to £104m i 2013 (2012 £114m) of wiuch

a charge of £I0Im (2012 £112m) was reported i
adjusted operaung profitand £3m (2012 £2m) was
reported against other net finance costs

The overall deficit on the UK group plan of £19m at the
end of 2012 has become a surplus of £86m at the end
of 2013 The movement has ansen principally due to
favourable asset returns and deficit funding In total, our
worldwide deficitin respect of pensions and other post
retrement benefits fell from a deficit of £172m at the
end of 2012 to a net defiat of £56m at the end of 2013
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Acquisiions and disposals

During the year the Group purchased a 5% interest

in NOOK Media for $89 5m The Nook investment
was made as part of the strategy to accelerate our
move into digital content and personalised learning
and was made at the same ume as entering Into a
commercial arrangement to work together on device-
agnostic platforms

Also 1n the year we have completed the purchase
of remaining minorities interests i some of our
South African and Indian businesses

The acquisiion of Grupo Mulu for £492m announced
in December 2013, completed in February 2014 and
has not been reflected n the financial statements at

31 December 2013

In the first half of the year the FT Group disposed
of s assocate interest (n BDFM, the South African
Business Media Group reahsing a small Joss and in
July 2013 the international business disposed of its
Japanese school and local publishing assets via a
management buy-out for 2 nemmnal sum The sale
of Mergermarket wili be accounted for in 2014

Net cash consideraton for all acquisittons made In
the year ended 3| December 2013 was £198m
mcluding the investment 1n NOOK and provisional
goodwill recognised was £19m In total, acquisitions
completed in the year contributed an additionaf £15m
of sales but did not contribute a material amount to
operating profit

Return on invested capitat (ROIC)

Qur ROIC 15 calculated as total adjusted operating
profit less cash tax, expressed as a percentage of
average gross wested capttat ROIC fell in 2013 to

5 4% from 9 1% 1n 2012 Reduced profitand increased
tax payments are the main reasons for the movement

Related party transactions

Transactions with related parues are shown in note 37
of the financial statements

Post-balance sheet events

On 4 February 204 the Group completed the sale

of Mergermarket for £382m On I February 2014, we
acquired 100% of Grupo Muln, the leading adult English
language training company 1n Brazit for approximately
£435m in cash plus the assumption of £57m of debt
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Applying and working with the best

technology, innovation

and expertise

from around the world




Principal risks and uncertainties

Qur principal risks and uncertainties are outlined
below These are the most significant risks that may
adversely affect our business strategy, financial position
or future performance The risk assessment process
evaluates the probability of the risk materialising and
the financial or strategic impact of the risk. Those nisks
which have a hugher probability and sigruficant impact
on strategy, reputation or operations or a financial
impact greater than £40 million are identified as
principal risks The risk assessment and reporting
¢rteria are designed to provide the board with a
consistent, Group-wide perspective of the key risks
The reports to the board, which are submitted twice
per year include an assessment of the probability and
impact of risks materiahsing, as well as risk mitigaton
inimatives and ther effectiveness

PRINCIPAL RISKS = IMPACT AND PROBARILITY

~

IMPACT

BRAND/
REPUTATION
MANAGEMENT

DATA PRIVACY
BREACH

BUSINESS
TRANSFORMATION

INTELLECTUAL
PROPERTY
RIGHTS
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VWe conduct regular risk reviews to dentify risk
factors which may affect our bustness and financial
performance and to assist ManagementIn prioritising
their response to those risks Qur Group internal audit
and compliance funcuon faciitates risk reviews with
each business, shared service operations and
corporate functions, identfying measures and controls
to mitigate these risks These reviews are designed

so that the different businesses are able to tallor and
adapt thew risk management processes to suit their
specific circumstances Management s responsible

for considering and executing the appropriate action
to rmitigate these risks whenever possible [tis not
possible to identfy every risk that could affect our
businesses, and the actions taken to minigate the risks
described below cannot provide absolute assurance
that a risk will not materialise and/or adversely affect
our business or financial performance

EDUCATION
REGULATION

TECHNOLOGY
CHANGES

ECONOMIC
UNCERTAINTIES

EMERGING
MARKETS

ACQUISITIONS
AND MERGERS

>

PROBABILITY
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Princtpal risks and uncertainties
continued

Principal risks
TECHNOLOGY CHANGES

Our businesses will be impacted by the
rate of and state of technological change,
inctuding the digital revolution and other
disruptive technologies

We operate in markets which are dependent
on Information Technelogy (IT) systems and
technological change The transition of our
products and services to digital increases the
potenual exposure to cyber threats

EDUCATION REGULATEHON AND FUNDING

Cur US and UK educatonal solutions

and assessment businesses may be
affected by changes in government funding
resulung from either general economic
conditions, changes in government
educational funding, programmaes, policy
deasions, legislauon and/or changes in
the procurement processes

ECONOMIC UNCERTAINTIES

Global economic conditions may adversely
impact our financial performance

A significant deterioraton in Group
profitability and/or cash flow caused by
prolonged economic instability could reduce
our hquidity and/or impair our financal
ratios, and trigger a need to raise additional
funds from the capttal markets and/or
renegaotiate our banking covenants

We generate a substantal proportion of

our revenue in foreign currencies, particularly
the US dollar, and foreign exchange rate
fluctuauon could adversely affect our earnings
and the strength of our balance sheet

Miugaung factors

Our globa! education strategy will drive a faster move

to digital and services, recognising that this s a sigrificant
opportunity for Pearson, as weli as a potenual risk We
are transforming our products and services for the digital
environment along with managing our print mventories
Our content 15 being adapted to new technologies across
our businesses and is priced to drive demand We develop
new distribution channels by adapting our product offering
and invesung 1n new formats

We seek to mitigate IT risks by establishing strong IT pohaies
and operational controls, employing protect management
techniques to manage new software developments and/or
systems implementations and have implemented an array
of security measures to protect our T assets frorm attacks
or fadures that could impact the confidentiahty, avalabiliy

or integrity of our systems

fn the US we actively monitor changes through parucipation
th advisory boards and representaton on standard setting
committees Cur customer relationship teams have detalled
knowledge of each state market We are investing in new
and innovative ways to expand and combine our products
and services to provide a superior customer offering when
compared to our competitors, thereby reducing our reliance
on any particular funding stream in the US market. We work
through our own corporate affairs team and our industry
trade assocations including the Association of American
Publishers We are also momitoring municipal funding and
the impact on our education receivables

In the UK we mamntan relattonships with those government
departments and agencies that are responsible for policy and
funding We work proactively with them to ensture our
programmes meet existing and new gavernment objectives
at the nght quality

The Group's approach to funding s described on page 37
and the Group’s approach to the management of financial
risks 1s set out in note {9 to the financial statements




Principal nisks
BUSINESS TRAMSFORMATION

The pace and scope of our business
transformation wtatives increase the
execution risk that benefits may not be
fully realised, costs of these changes may
increase, or that our business as usual
acuvities do not perform in fine

with expectations

If we fail to attract and retamn appropriately
skilled employees, our business may
be harmed

BRAND/MIPUTATION MANAGEMENT

Our business depends on a strong brand
and any fallure to maintam, protect and
enhance our brand would hurt ouir abidity
to retain or expand our business
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Miugating factors

A chief transformation officer was appointed in 2013, to
oversee the development and implementation of a sigrficant
change programme Some of the key mitigations for potenual
execution risk include change management workshops for
senior leaders, addional support for people moving to new
roles, and reguiar commurucation from the CEO and his
leadership team in person and by online videos To clarfy
deasion-making authority and accountability in the new
global matrix organisatton, worked examples of day-to-day
activities have been developed mcluding customer-facing
acuvities such as developing and delivering online

education services

QOur trading update m January 2014 noted the importance

of our transformation and our decisions on tming of changes
such as deferring sales-related restructuring to avond key
selling periods

Through the changes during 2013, we have been successful
in promoting our best internal talent and recruiting
individuals who are glebal leaders in thew specific field

Further details of how we are managing the risks associated
with transformational change are set out under Responsible
business’ from page 47

Ve seel to mitigate this risk through the development of
comprehenstive processes to enable our business units
to effectively manage relauionships with stakeholders,
customers, communities and employees Ve have an
ongeing process to understand and evaluate potenual brand
threats and monitor and evaluate informatton about our
brand across media sources This process and associated
governance ncludes the reputation and responsibifity
committee The committee met durning 2013 and has
considered a number of topics including Pearson's
non-financial targets, brand and reputation metrics and
reputational risk and mitigations associated with testing
faillures in the US

We take very seriously the health, safety, wellbeing and
protectton of our emnployees, learners and customers and
implement appropriate policies, standards and procedures

|
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Principal risks and uncertainues
continued

Principal risks
EMERGING MARKETS

Ournvestment into inherently riskier
ernerging markets is growing and the returns
may be lower than anucipated

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS

if we do not adequately protect our
inteflectual property and proprietary rights
our competitive postion and results may be
adversely affected and hmit our abilicy

to grow

ACQUISITIONS AND MERGERS

Fallure to generate antuctpated revenue
growth, synergies and/or cost savings from
acquisiuons, mergers and other business
combinations could lead to goodwilf and
intangtble asset impairments

Miuigaung factors

We draw on our experience of developing businesses
internationally to manage specific country risks We have
designed and adopted an operanng model for a globally-
connected education campany and we contnue to strengthen
our financial control and manageral resources in emerging
markets to manage expansion The diversification of our
wcernattonal portfolio, and refative size of emerging markets
in relation to the Group, further minimises the effect any one
territory could have on the overalt Group results

We seel to miugate this type of rnisk through general
vigilance, co-operauon with other publishers and trade
assocratons, advances in technology as well as recourse to
law as necessary Digital rights management standards and
monitaring programmes have been developed We have

a piracy task force to wdenufy weaknesses and remediate
breaches We monitor acuvities and regulanons i each
market for developments in copyright/intellectual property
law and enforcement and take legal action where necessary

We perform pre-transaction due diligence and closely
monitor actual performance to ensure we are meeting
operational and finanaal targets Any divergence from
these plans will result in management action to improve
performance and minimise the rnisk of any imparments
Executive managernent and the board recewve regufar
reports on the status of acquisitions and mergers




Principal risks

OATA PRIVACY BREACH

Failure to comply with data privacy
regutations and standards or weakness i
information security, mcluding a fadure to

prevent or detect a malicious attack on our
systems, could result n a major data privacy
breach causing reputarronal damage to our

brands and financal loss

TESTING FAILURES

A control breakdown or service falure in
our schoo! assessment and qualifications
businesses could result in financial loss
and reputational damage

Our professional services and schoal
assessment businesses involve complex
contractual relationships with both
government agenctes and commercial
customers for the provision of vanous
tesung services Our financial results,
growth prospects and/or reputation may
be adversely affected if these contracts
and refationships are poorly managed
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Miuigatng factors

Through our global enterprise information security and
comphance programme, we have established a governance
model, security and privacy framework and polcies, a global
securtty and privacy organisational model, and standard-based
formation security and privacy controls and pracuces

We constantly test and re-evaluate our data security
procedures and controls across all our businesses with the
aim of ensuring personal data 1s secured and we comply with
relevant legislation and contractual requirements We pursue
appropriate privacy accreduauons, e g, TRUSTe Privacy and
Safe Harbor Seal We regularly monitor regulation changes
to assess the iImpact on exisung processes and programmes
We have established a global security operations centre that
provides ongong monitoring of potenual mahcious attacks on
our infrastructure and systems

We seek to mimimise the risk of a breakdown in our student
marking with the use of robust quahty assurance procedures
and controls and oversight of contract performance,
combrmed with our investment in technology, project
management and skills development of cur people

In addition to the internal business procedures and congrols
implemented to ensure we successfully deliver on our
contractual commitments, we also seek to develop and
maintam good relationships with our customers 1 fmururmise
associated risks

We also look to diversify our portfolio to minmise rehiance
on any single contract
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Improving

learner outcomes

atscale, and at lower cost

Image removed




Responsible business

Section 3 Responsible business 47

Our purpose as a company is
to help people all over the world
make progress in their lives

through learning.

in 2010, we idenufied three key tssues as the focus

of the responsibility strategy for our company raising
hteracy levels, improving fearning outcomes and
contributing to compettiveness

Last year, we signalied that 2013 would be a year of
significant change for Pearson as we developed our
global educattonal strategy and looked forward to the
creation of Penguin Random House We also made a
commitment to look at our responsibility framework
using four questions to guide us

» Are the three key issues suli the nght ones for us?

» How should we measure and report the educational
impact of our products and services’

» What commutments and targets should we
set ourseives!

» What are the big unmet educattonal needs that
we can help tackie?

As our work on the global education strategy
progressed, so a clear priority emerged — to
deliver for the learner is the single most important
contribution that Pearson can make to social and
economic weltbeing The tools and means by which
we will deliver for the learner has become the
efficacy agenda and this 1s central to aur global
education strategy

To reflect the importance of learning outcomes, we
have introduced a new efficacy secuion 1n our annual
report (page i4) ln that section we describe our
commitments and targets on measurement and
reporting as we go down the path towards efficacy
Qur wision 1s that by 2018, we will report on learning
outcomes alongside our financial results

This sectton will now report on our wider responsible
business agenda

We welcome feedback on this aspect of the company
as we do on any other Please email our director of
corporate responsibiiity at peter hughes@pearson com
with any quastions or comments you may have

Together with sections one and two of this document,
this section forms our strategic report, which was
approved forissue by the board of directors on

[0 March 2014 and signed on its behalf by

/K

Robin Fregstone Chuef financial officer
(and board member responsible for
corporate responsibility)
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Responsible business
continued

Overview

Helping learners to learn and progress i1s both the
focus of our business strategy and the single most
significant sooal contribution we can male

The section on efficacy {page [4) describes the
approach we are taking to cur responsibikites towards
the fearner

In addition, Pearson has adopted a broad definiuon
of responsibie business reflecting priorimes we share
with many industry sectors and indvidual businesses
These include commitments across a broad range of
social, community and human rights 1ssues relevant to
Pearson to

Ensure that our products and services are inclusive,
appropriate in content to the age and location of the
learner and are safe to use and access

inform, support and equip colleagues to embrace and
respond to new prioriues and ways of working

Provide a safe, healthy workplace where our employees
and increasingly the learners we directly serve are able
to realise thewr individual potenual and there 15 respect
for privacy, dignity and Iife outside work

Extend our principles on labour standards, human
rights and environmental responsibility to include
supphers and business partners

Prowvide opportumties for Pearson people to be good
atzens and to get involved in their local communities

Deliver against stakeholder expectanions ona
response to cimate change and in making betrer,
more efficient use of resources

Be open and transparent in how we share and engage
with those with an interest and passion for education
and learning

We consider our policies relating to these matters to
be effective

Transforming our company — supporung our people
through change

Last year, we announced our plans to transform
Pearson into a simgle company driven by a focus on
helping learners make measurable progress in their
lives through learning

-

~

~

~

~

~

~

~

~

~

A priority for 2013 was to design and put in place a
new organisational structure that shifted the company
from being a portfolio of businesses towards a single
operating model with standard systems, clear
accountability and quicker decision-making

We recogrised that change can be both inspiring and
empowering but can also bring operational risks
To mitigate this, we

Were clear about the purpose of the change to better
focus on a shared single purpose of delivering for
the learner

Held change management workshops for senior
leadership teams to preparce for the new orgamnsauonal
structure and operaung model supported by videos,
blogs, emails and interactive materials

Introduced the new leadership team and ther
priorues for 2014, both wirtually and in-person

Explained how the new operaung model would work,
focusing on better use of informaton, improved
efficiency and cohesiveness 1n collaboravng on
strategic priorities

Supported the people that left the organisation as
a result of the restructure

Conunually tracked morale and reaction to change
to inform and shape how we commurnicated and
supported our people

At the same tme, we contnued to focus on our
broader responsibilities as an employer During the
year, Pearson

Launched Milo. a single global platform for all aur
people to access learming and development resources

Adopted a new consistent global health and safety
pohcy and mrroduced a new set of common
management and reporung procedures for our
busmesses globally

Reviewed and refreshed our code of conduct including
emphasising our commitment to learners of all ages
and types

Conunued to focus on how to meet our commitments
o attract, receut and retan the bestpeople We
know that creating and sustaining an nclusive work
environment 15 crivcafly important. offering equal
opportunity from the boardroom down regardless

of race, gender, gender identity or reassignment, age,
disability, religion or sexual orientation




CASE STUDY

Gender diversity

During 2013, we conunued with the development of
the gender diversity strategy at Pearson Pearsonis
a supporter of the 30% Club which brings together
chairs and CEQs to work to encourage better
gender balance across their companies There was
contnued progress in advancing women and people
from diverse backgrounds An example of our work
15 the diversity toolkit introduced in the UK i 2012,
and launched in the United States and made
avallable globally in 2013 Designed for managers
and business leaders across Pearson, it1s made up
of guides, ups, advice and employment law, to
enable our leaders to successfully buitd, manage
and develop their diversity management skills

We introduced a single global data collection
process based on our new operating structure to
help inform people management This includes our
first global view on the gender balance within the
company More work remans, in parucular to
incorporate gender data from countries with
recent acquisittons The gender balance based on
the introduction of our new organisational
Structure was

MEN WOMEN
Board of directors 7 78% 2 2%
Senior managers
(excluding executive
board directors)* 6l  69% 28 U%
All empioyees™ I7190 43% 22774 57%

* For the purposes of thus report semor managers at Pezrson are defined
as the senor leadership team namely those up to and including twe
reportng ines from the CEQ We believe this 1s the most meanungful
way 1o liustrate tie semo leadersand draision-makers at Pearson

** Daty for over 2 000 employees pi « demmantly from Civna 1nd
Indonesia 5 not ngluded in the all employees numbers ahave
Tmployee mformaon cau be fouad on page 142

» In the United States, Pearson recewed a perfect score
of 100% in the 2014 Corporate Equality Index (CEl,
a benchmarking survey and report on corporate
polictes and practices refated to LGBT workplace
equality, admmustered by the Human Rights Campaign
(HRC) Foundation We were also named as one of
the 100 Best Adopuion Friendly Workplaces by the
Dave Thomas Foundaton for Adoption

e

~

~
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Disabulity forms a part of our wider commitment

to equal opportunity We work to ensure that
appropriate policies, procedures, trainng and
support are available for disabled colleagues and
their managers A recent example is a guide on how
to develop corporate videos, so that all our people,
cluding those with disabilities, can access and
benefit from these films

Partnering and investing to extend access to learning

Extending access to quality education 1s a big
challenge, particularly in the poorest countries

i the warld Meeting the challenge requires a
sustained commitment to partnership - mternauona
organisations like the UN and the Waorld Bank,
national governments, donor agenctes and charities,
busmnesses such as Pearson, education prowviders and
suppliers ali working together

We are committed to playing our part We do this
through being active i helptng shape and inform the
giabal debate arcund education and learning policy
as well as nvesting in projects that expiore possible
solutions to the most intractable learning needs

In 2013, we-

Joined the board of the Global Partnership for
Educanon (GPE) representing the private sector

and private foundatons GPE brings together
representatives from nearly 60 developing countries,
donor governments, charitable foundations and
private businesses to work together 1o help
developing countries strengthen their education
systems www globalpartnership org/

Championed the role of the private sector in
education and learning in developing countries as a
founding member of the Global Business Coalition
for Education www ghc-education org/

Made a series of commitments during the UN General
Assembly including to mnvest $30m n mnovatve
education solutions. establish a mutu-year flagship
partnership to help overcoma barrers to learnung for
marginalised children, work with the GPE 1o develop

a private sector strategy that meets the goals of its
strategic focus on fragile states, and by 2018, to help
20,000 new graduates from across sub-Saharan Africa
to transition into employment
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Responsible business
continued

Conunued to investin models that provide access to
affordable education through low-cost private
schools The $15m Pearson Affordable Learring Fund
has invested in projects it Ghana, Kenya and India.
www affordable-learung com/

Conunued to support the Education Zone on the
Business Fights Poverty network The zoneisa
platform for debate on the role of business in global
education www businessfightspoverty org/page/
education-zone

Launched Pearson Catalyst, a new incubator
programme to identfy and back the most promising
education start-up comparntes Pearson provides
mentors, seedcorn funding and access to resources
and insight

Qur communities

Not-for-profit partners help us extend our reach
and impact in ways that have a real impact on
tearning — especrally for the most disadvantaged —
and are complementary to our business objectives
Ve also believe that our stakeholders expect and
value our efforts to work in partnership with
charitable organisatons

We therefore partner and fund a number of charitable
organisations with the Pearson Foundation being the
largest of these In 2013, our worldwide charitable
gving was £H 8m or | 5% of pre-tax profits

Highlights this year include

Bookume gave its ten milbonth book Bookume sees
every child starting scheol in England and Wales
receive a book pack containing two free books to
take home and keep

We were the largest book donor to Book Aid
International in 2013 We have given | 2 milhon
books to the charity to support the development
of libraries in schools and communities across sub-
Saharan Africa

The Financial Times seasonal appeal rarsed £1 4m for
World Child Cancer, a charity helping treat sick
children in some of the poorest countnes Since 2006,
FT appeals have raised £14m for chanty partners

For 2014, we will look more broadly at our approach to
comrmunity partnerships including the metrics we use

CASE STUDY

Pearson Foundation

The Pearson Foundation 1s an independent chanty
that aims to make a ddference by promoting
Iiteracy, learning and great teaching {ts programmes
in 2013 included

» Helping Jumpstart’s Read for the Record to seta
new world record for reading the same book on
one day as 2,462,850 adults and children read
Qus, by Loren Long, in classrooms, libraries, and
community centres across the United States

b

Strong Performers and Successful Reformers in
Education, developed in partnership with the
Organisation for Economic Co-operation and
Devetopment (OECD) helps inform what works
in education globally

BridgelT has reached over one mition children
and their teachers using mobile technology to
dehver professional development marerials and
educational resources to remote and underserved
classrooms In ten countries around the world

~

In 201t, the Pearson Foundauon faced cricism on
some of its programmes and the New York State
Attorney General announced an investigation into
the Foundation's governance administration, and
relanonstup with Pearson We co-operated fully
with the investigation A settlement agreement
with the Pearson Foundauon and Pearson, inc
has been concluded

Pearson and the Foundanon mantan we have
always acted with the best intentions and complied
with the law Howaever, we recogrise there were
uwmes when the povernance of the Foundation could
have been clearer and more transparent Over the
past two years, the Foundation has taken several
steps to strengthen 1ts governance, beginning with
the addiuon of independent directors to the board
and the adoption of stronger operational systems
Under the settlement, these efforts will be further
enhanced by the creauon of a three-person

audit committee

The Foundation has also agreed ta pay $7 5m

into a fund managed by the Attorney General

that will support the work of 100Kinl0, an
organisation committed to plaang 100,000 saence
and mathemaucs teachers into US schools in the
next ten years




COMMUNITY

Challenges

Our commitment

How we measure
progress

Section 3 Responsible business 54

Access to learning,
hteracy and great teaching

To mamtam our tatal community Investment
at 1% or more of operaung profit

One way we extend out reach is through
partnerships with hteracy and learning
charties We report on our community

Raising literacy levals

Ustng 2010 as our base, to expand our
book gifung acuvines

Number of bools donated 1o schools,
libraises and leracy charities

investment spend

Community investrment spend

Number of books donated

Graph removed

Graph removed

Environment climate change and avording deforestation

Extreme weather events continued n 2013, most
notably Typhoon Haiyan in the Philippines which

was one of the worst storms on record Pearson

has around 350 peopte in Mania with the majority
working for the FT Although our employees are all
safe and our operations were not directly affected,
many had anxious moments tracking family members

Pearson matches contributions made by Pearson
employees in countries and communities where we
operate Over 1,000 Pearson people around the
world contributed to a special fund set up in the wake
of Haryan, which together with matching from Pearson
meant that over $150,000 was raised for chariues
working in the Philippines, prnimanly to help children
get back into school and to rebuild ther lives

Typhoon Haiyan was a stark remunder on the
importance of mmimising environmental impact
Pearson conunues to be chmate neutral, a
commitment we first achueved in 2009 and have
mamtamead ever since

This commitment was designed to encourage the
company to focus on carbon reduction Pearson was
included in the media category as a Decoupling Leader
i the Natural Capital index developed by Trucost,

a research firm focusing on sustamability metrics
Trucost looked at the environmental impact of 4,600
publicly traded compantes and 34 were recognised

as Decoupling Leaders having successfully separated
growth from resource use over a sustained period

Qur second focus area s forests As a purchaser of
paper and newsprint for our books, magazines and
newspapers security and sustainabiiity of supply
are very importam to us We have focused on
sustainability sourcing and being more efficientin
how we use paper Also as our transition towards
being an educational technology and solutions
provider gathers pace, so this will change our
environmental footprint
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Responsible business
continued

Highlights of our acuvities include ‘

» Pearson received a 2013 Green Power Leadership
Award from the US Environmental Protection Agency
(EPA) for its green power purchase 100% of the
electricity pui chased by Pearson globaliy — over
215 MWHh i 2013 - comes from green power

» We have invested in renewable energy generation at
four srces and have 2 3 Megawatts of wind and solar
assets installed

> Pearson was the second ever organisation to be
certfred globally against the Carbon Trust Standard
This recognises leadership in measurning, managing
and reducing year-on-year carbon emissions

» Facihiwes in the Uruted States also seelc to secure
LEED, an internationally-recognised mark of excellence
by the US Green Building Counal Over 800,000
square feet across six of our bulkdings are LEED
cerufied Pearson s also certified against 1ISO14001,
the environmental management standard in the UK
and Awstralia

Pearson invests in forest-based carbon offsets for
any part of our climate footprint that we cannot
reduce or avoid through othar means Since 2009,
this programme has seen over 700 hectares of forest
protected in Colombia, Costa Rica, the United States
and the UK

ENVIRONMENT

Challenges Clmate change

To maintamn our
COMMtment to
chmate neutrality

Qur commitment

How we Through carbon reducuon,
measure Pprogress purchase of renewable
energy, renewable
energy generaton at our
sites and the purchase
of carbon offsets

GLOBAL GHG EMISSIOMNS DATA FOR CALENDAR YEAR 2013

Metric tonnes
Emissions from of COr
Combustion of fuel and operauon
of facihues (GHG Protocol Scope 1)
natural gas, company owned/
leased vehicles, 1 efrigerant gas Joss
and fuel ol 30170
Electricity, heat, steam and cooling
purchased for own use
(GHG Protocel Scope 2) 115,548
Total 145,718
Intensity metrtc (tonnes COne/full ime
employee for scope | and 2} 319

We have reported on all of the emtssion sources
required under the Companies Act 2006 (Strategic
Report and Directors’ Reports) Regulations 2013
These sources fall within our consolidated financial
statement We do not have responsibility for any
emission sources that are not cluded in our
consoldated statement

The method we have used to calculate GHG
emissions 1s the GHG Protacol Corporate Accounting
and Reporuing Standard (revised edition), together
with the latest emussion factors from recognised public
sources including, but not krited to, Defra, the
international Energy Agency, the US Energy
informauon Admiristration, the US Environmental
Protection Agency and the Intergovernmental panel
on Chmate Change

We publish a separate report providing more
wiformaton on our environmental impact and this
mncludes some corporate value chain emisstons dasa
{GHG Protocol Scope 3)



External benchmarks
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One way we assess how we are downg as a respansible business 1s to maintam our position i key indices and

benchmarks of social respansibility

i3 612

Dow jones Silver class
Sustamnabilivy

Indexes*

Gold class

201 010

Global sector leader

BITC Corporate Platinum
Responsibility
Index

Platunum (retained)

Platium Platinum {retained}

Incluston in
FTSE4Good

Yes

~Gold chass 1s within 1% of the sectar leader silver class 1s wathen 2% of the sector [eader

Our values, principles and behaviour

Although the structure and culture of the company 15

changing, values are what define us Our values to be

brave, imaginative and decent in everything we do are
the foundation of the company

Our values are underpinned by our Code of Conduct
that covers, among other things. ndmdual conduct,
{earners, employees, community, the environment
and society

YWe make sure everyone 1s aware of and understands
the code and this forms part of cur induction for new
employees Once a year, everyone working for
Pearson gets a copy either electronically or on paper,
and 1s asked to read it, to confirm to the Pearson CEO
that they have read it and understood it, and in doing
50, to provide a check that the company complies with
it If anyone has concerns, these can be raised with a
line manager or through a free. confidential telephone
ine/website

Pearson has a zero tolerance policy towards bribery
and corruption Our policy introduced in 2011 sets out
our standards, we carry out risk assessments and have
a network of designated managers across the business
responsible for compliance with our poiicy

We are committed to makmg sure our people
understand how we are doing as a company, including
how world trends might affect them and the business
We provide comprehensive, relevant inforrauon in

a variety of ways ncluding regular presentations from
senior executives and consulting where appropriate
so that we can fearn and take account of the views of
our people
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We have a passion

for the life changing impact of learning

around the world
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Board of directors

Secuon 4 Governance

Company Number: 53723

Pearson’s board brings a
wide range of experience,
skills and backgrounds.

CHAIRMAN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

55

Image removed

irnage removed

Image removed

Glen Moreno Chairman
aged 70 appointed | Ocrober 2005

Chan man of the nominauon
commuttee and member of the
remuneration commit{ee

Glen has mare than four decades of
experience in busmess and finance

and 15 currently deputy chairman of

The Rnanual Reparung Councll Limited
in the UK and non-executive director
of Fidelity Internanonal Limued Previously
Glen was deputy charrman and senior
independent director 31 Lioyds Banking
Group ple semor independent drector
of Man Group plc and acung charman
of UK Financial Investmencs Limited

the company set up by HM Treasury 1o
manage the government s shareholdings
mn LHC banks

John Faflon Chief executive
aped 5t, appointed 3 October 2012

Member of the norunabion comumaittee

john pecame Pearsen s chief executive

on | January 2013 Since 2008 he had been
respansible for the company s education
businesses outside North America and

a member of the Pearson management
committee He jomned Pearson in 1997

25 director of communicatuons and was
appointed president of Pearson Ine a role
he combmed with his communicauons
responsibihites, n 2006 In 2003 he was
appomnted {EO of Pearson s educanonal
publishing businesses for Europe,

Middia Easi & Afrca (EMA) and gradually
ool on 3 broader mternauonal educavon
bref Prior 1o joiming Pearson fohn was
director of co1 porate affars at Powergen
plc where ho was also a member of

the company's executive commitiee
Earlier in bus career John held semor
public policy and communications roles

in UK {ocal government

Rabin Freestone Cheef financial officer
aged 55 apponted 12 June 2006

Robin § experence in manzgement and
accounting includes a previous role as
group financial controller of Amersham plc
{now part of General Electnic) and senror
financial positions wirh iCl ple, Zeneca and
Henke! UK He joined Pearseon 1 2004 as
deputy cheef finanaial officer and became
chief financial officer in june 2006

Robin quahfied as a chartered accountant
with Touche Ross (now Deloitte) and is
currently a non-executive director and
founder shai cholder of eChemn Limited
Rotin uts onthe Advisory Group of the
ICAEW s Fmancial Reporung Faculty and
is tharrman of The Hundred Group of
Fmnance Directors He also sits on the

CBl s Econommie Growth Board
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NON LXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Image removed

image removed

image removed

David Arculus Non-executive du ector
aged 67 appotnted 28 February 2006

Chairman of the remunerauon
committee and member of the audit
and nommauon commitiees

Dawvid has experience in banking
telecommurications and publishing in along
carcer in business Currently he 1s charman
of Numis Corporation pic and the Advisory
Board of the Briish Library and s a member
of counat of Cranfield University Dawd s
previous rofes indude the chairmanslup of
Aldermare Bank ple O2 plc, Severn Trent
plc and IPC Group as well as chief operating
cfficer of United Business Media plc group
managmg drrector of EMAP ple and a non-
executive directer of Telefonica S A

Dawid served from 2002 to 2006 as
chairman of the UK government § Better
Regutauon Task Force which worked on
reducing burdens on business

Vivienne Cox Seniar independent director
aged 54, appointed { January 2012

Member of the audit, remuneraton
and nomination commitiees

Vivienne has wide experience in energy
matural resources and business innovation
She worked for BP plc for 28 years, in Britarn
and Continental Europe 1n posts including
executive vice president and chief executive
of BP s Gas, Power & Renewables business
and is Alternative Energy umt She s non-
execunve director of nining company Rio
Twnro plc and energy company BG Group
ple, and charsnan of the supervisory board
of Vallourec, which supplies tubular systems
for the energy industry She is also lead
independent dirgctor at the UK Diepartment
fon Internauonal Development Viviennes a
commisstoner of the Airports Comimission
which was set up by the UK government

to exarmine any requirements for additional
UK arpart capacity

Linda Lorimer Non-executive director
aged 61, apponted ¢ July 2013

Member of the audn and
nomMIRation commiitees

Linda has a deep background in educauion
strategy, admunistranion and public affairs
She s vice president for Global & Stz avegic
Inmauves at Yate Universiy in New Haven
Connecucut, where her duues mclude
oversight of Yale's Office of Internavonal
Affarrs and Office of Digieal Dissenvnauon
Over a 30-year career in higher educauon,
she has been responsible for many of Yale s
admimistrative services including the
umiversity's public commumeations alummn
relations and Office of Sustainabihty
Previously Linda served as president of
Randoiph-Macon Woman's College in
Virgivia and had earlier worked at Yalen
several semor roles including assocrate
provest She is a non-executive director of
Save the Children (US} and was charr of the
board of the Assocanon of American
Colleges and Unwverssties
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Ken Hydon Non-execuuve direcLor
aged 69 appointed 28 February 2006

Chatrman of the audit committee
and member of the remuneration
2nd noMINAIIoN Committees

Ken s experience In finance and business
includes working i the glectronics rewaf
consumer products and healthcare
sectors MHe is a non-executive director

of Reclatt Benckiser Group plc one of the
world s 1eading branded consumer goods
companies in health, hygiene and home

IHe 15 also a non-executive do ecter of

Met iin Entertainments ple, the world's
second [argest viSItor attracton operator
From 2004 o 2013 he was a non-executive
director of Tesco plc Previously Ken was
chief financial officer of Vodafone Group ple
the multmaticnal telecommurications
company and financial directot of
subsidianes of Racal Electromies

Josh Lewis Non-executive director
aged 3 appomnted | March 2011

Member of the remuner ation and
nominauon committees

Josh s experience spans finance educavon
and the development of digizal enterprises
He 15 the founder of Saimon River Capital
LLC a New York-based private aquity/
venture capical firm focused on technology-
enabled businesses in educauon financial
services and other sectars Over a 25-year
career in actve principal investing, he has
beeninvolved in a broad range of successful
companies intluding several pioneening
enterprises in the educauon sector

in addition, he has tong been active in

the non profit education sector with
assocratons including New Leaders New
Classrooms, and the Bill & Mehnda Gates
foundauon He 15 also a non-execunve
director of eVestmant and Axtoma, both
financial data/technology compames, and
Parchment, an educaucn credentals
management company

Harish Manwan Non-executive director
aged 60 appointed | October 2013

Member of the nomination comrmittee

Harsh has an extensive background in
emerging markets and semor experience

11 a successful global organisauion

He 1s chief operaung officer of consumer
products company Unifever, and serves

on the company's executtve board

Harish jomned Unilever a 1976 as a
markeung management Lramee in India, and
has held senior management roles around
the world ncluding North America Laun
America Europe Africa and Asta Hers
non-executive charman of Hindustan
Uniever Limired in India, and serves on the
boar d of Whirlpool Corporanon in the US
He 15 also on the board of the Indan Schoot
of Business, the Economic Development
Board (EDB} of Singapore and The Human
Capial Leadership Institute «n Singapore
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Chairman’s letter

Dear shareholders

This year, we are reporting for the first ume against the
2012 ediwon of the UK Corporate Governance Code
(the Code)

As has been highlighted elsewhere within this report,
2013 was a peniod of great change in our organisation,
following the appointment of John Fallon as chuef
executive at the start of the year | would like to take
this opportunity to share with you some insights as to
how our board and governance operations have
adapted throughout the year to take account of
Pearson's focus on becoming one global educanon
company

The Pearson board consists of serior executive
management alongside a strong group of non-executive
directors drawn from successful international
businesses and educavion insututions with experience
of corporate strategy, education, emerging markets,
technology and consumer marketing We conunually
assess and refresh the board to ensure we maintain

an appropriate balance and diversity of skills and
experience

2013 saw a number of changes in Pearson’s
boardroom, reflecting both the new strategic direction
of the business and our desire to maxirmise the valuable
external experience which non-execuuve directors
bring to the table Executive directors Rona Farhead
and John Makinson stepped down from the board in
April and July respecuvely, although john remains part
of the Pearson family 1n s new role as chairman of
Penguin Random House in Aupust we said goodbye to
Susan Fuhrman, a non-executive director for nine years
and, at the end of December, Will Ethndge stepped
down from his executve position on the board and
from hus role as CEQ of Pearson North American
Educavon, although he will remain a valued adviser

to the company during 2014

During the yeat we also welcomed Linda Lorimer
and Harish Manwani to the board, as non-executive
directors Linda and Harish bring 2 wealth of
experience in the areas of educauon, diginal nuatives
and emerging markets, which reflect precisely those
areas on which Pearson is now focused

With these changes the board now predominantly
comprises independent non-executive directors We
believe this re-balancing enables Pearson to benefit
from our board's wide range of perspectives and
backgrounds, and allows the board to fock at the
bigger prcture of the Group's strategy, performance
and value, whilst allowing the executtive management
o focus on what wt does best — driving our company
forward

May 2013 saw the announcement of the new Pearson
Executive team You will have read elsewhere in this
report about the new Geographies and Lines of Business
along which Pearson 1s now orgamsed The presidents
of these Geographies and Lines of Business now sit on
the Pearson Executive, together with colleagues leading
the key enabling functions The board and ! had the
pleasure of spending two days discussing strategy with
the Pearson Executive in October 2013, of which a

hittle more later in the governance report

As a board we organise our work around four major
themes where we believe we can add value
governance, strategy, business performance and
peaple Our board calendar and agenda provide ample
ume to focus on these themes and we have set out
some examples of the business considered by the
board, as well as the governance practuces o which
we adhere, on the pages that follow

We hope this report clearly sets out how your
company is run, and how we align govermance

and our board agenda with the strategic direcuon
of Pearson. We always welcome questions or
comments from shareholders, either via our website
{www pearson com) or In person at our annual
shareholders’ meeting

Gien Moreno Chairman
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Board governance

Corporate governance

fntroducuion

The board beheves that during 2013 the company was
in full compliance with the UK Corporate Governance
Code (the Code) A detailed account of the provisions
of the Code can be found on the FRC's website at
www fre org uk and we encourage readers to view
our compliance schedule on the company website at
www pearson com/mnvestors/sharehalder-
informauon/governance

Composition of the board

The board currently consists of the chairman,

Glen Moreno, two executive directors including the
chief executive, jJohn Fallon, and six independent
non-executive directors

Chairman and chief executive

There 15 a defined split of responsibilities between the
chairman and the chief executive The chatrman 1s
primardy responsible for the leadership of the board
and ensuring its effecuveness, the chief executive 1s
responsible for the operatonal management of the
business and for the development and implementation
of the company s strategy as agreed by the board and
the Pearson Executive The roles and responsibilices of
the chairman and chief executve are clearly defined,
set out In wriing and reviewed and agreed by the
board annually

Chairman
There were no changes to the chairman’s significant
commitments during the course of 2013

Senior independent director

Vivienne Cox 1s the company's senior independent
director, having been appointed to the role on

! January 2013

Vivienne s role includes meetng regularly with the
chairman and chief execunve to discuss speaic ssues,
as well as being available to shareholders generally if
they should have concerns that have not been
addressed through the normal channels

Following Patrick Cescau’s departure in December
2012 he was invited back in February 2013 — in hus
former role as senior independent director — to
conduct a sesston with the other non-executive
directors and the cluef executive to appraise the
performance of the chairman, inctuding in relation to
the effecuveness of the nomination committee as part
of the annual board evaluation process

Viviernne, as incumbent senior independent director,
has responsibility for appraising the chairman'’s
performance during 2013 and beyond

The senior independent director would be expected
to charr the nomination comrmictee n the event that
it was considering succession to the rofe of chairman
of the board

Independence of directors

All of the non-execuuve directors were considered by
the board to be independent for the purposes of the
Code during the year ended 31 December 2013

The beard reviews the independence of each of

the non-executive directors annually This includes
reviewing their external appointments and any
potential conflicts of interest as well as assessing their
individual circumstances i order to ensure that there
are no refanonships or circumstances hkely to affect
their character or judgement n addiion to this review,
each of the non-executiva directors 1s asked annually 1o
compiete an mdependence questionnaire to sausfy
requirements anising from Pearson’s US hisuing

Dawvid Arculus and Ken Hydon have each now served
on the board for eight years and it 1s their intention 10
retire from the board at the 2¢15 AGM As chawmen
of the remuneration and audit commuttees respecuvely,
the nomunation comimittee is actively considering
options for their successors both in therr capactty as
non-executive directors and for thewr chairmanships

Graph removed
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Conflicts of interest

Under the Companies Act 2006 (the Act), directors
have a statutory duty to avord conflicts of interest with
the company The company's Arucles of Association
(Aruclesy allow the dwectors to authonise conflicts of
interest The company has established a procedure o
dentify actual and potenual confhcts of mterest,
including alt directorships or other appointments to, or
relationships with, companies which are not part of the
Pearson group and which could give rise to actual or
potential conflicts of interest Once notified to the
chairman or company secretary, such potential
conflicts are considered for authorisation by the board
at its next scheduled meeung The relevant director
cannot vote on an authartsation resolution, or be
counted in the quorum, in relation to the resolution
relaung to his/her conflict or potential conflict

The board reviews any authornisanons granted on

an annual basis

Board meetings

The board held six scheduled meetings in 2013, with
some meetings taking place aver two or more days

In recent years, we have developed our board meeting
agenda to ensure that board discussion and debate s
centred on the key strategic issues facing the company
Over the course of 2013, the board mamntained a
warching brief over the transformation project and
received regular formal updates from the chuef
executive and the transformanion teamn, headed by
the director of communicavons Other major items
covered by the board in the year included

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE FEBRUARY 2013, LONDON

» 2012 report and accounts and dividend
recommendation

» 2013 operaung plan

» Risk assessrment and review of mitigaung acuons

» Annual review of authonsed conflicts

y Review of division of responstbilities between
chawrman and chief executive

» Plans for board effectiveness review

» Duscussion of accounung exemption for UK subsidianes

-

-
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GOVERNANCE AND SHAREHOLDER MATTERS
APRIL 2013 LONDON

Focus on fortheorning AGM and review of
shareholder issues

Review of investor relations strategy and share price
performance

Review of corporate social responsibility

Status update on Penguin Random House transacuon
and ebook settlement proposal

Risk assessment and review of mitigating actions
Governance update

STRATEGY JUNE 2013 JOHANNESBURG

Review of Southern African education business
inciuding site visits, panel sessions and debates — see
case study on page 62 for further information

BLISINESS PERFORMAMCE JULY 2013 LONDON

interim results and dwidend approval

Penguin Random House — post-complenon update
Inial review of proposed Muit acquisition
Consideration of Mergermarket sale

STRATEGY QCTOEER 2013 LONDON

Launch of efficacy strategy

Discussion of New Yorlk Attorney General's review
of the Pearson Foundation

Review of standing commuttee terms of reference
Workshop with Pearson Executive — see case study
on page &1 for further information

STRATEGIC PLAN DECEMBER 2013, NEW YORK

Preliminary view of 2014

Overview of changes to the 2013 year end reportng
requirements

Risk assessment and review of mitigating actions
Approval of schedule of authority s

In additien to the six scheduled meeungs, the board
held one further full meeung in November 2013 to
approve the Mergermarket sale and Grupo Mulu
acquisiion and undertook discussions throughout the
year, both n formal meeungs and as otherwise
required, to consider the progress and terms of these
and other corporate transactions
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Board governance continued

The foilowng table sets out the attendance of the
company’s directors at scheduled board meeungs
during 2013

Board

mecuUngs
o attended Naotes
Chatrman
Glen Moreno 6/6
Executive directors
John Falon 6/6
Will Ethridge 5/6 absent for medical reasons
Rona Fairhead - steod down 26 April 2013
Robin Freestone 6/6
John Makmson 3/3 stood down | July 2013
Non-executive directors
Dawvid Arculus 4/6  unable to travel due to njury
Vivienne Cox 6/6
Susan Fuhrman 3/4  siood down 7 August 2013
Ken Hydon 6/6
fosh Lewss 6/6
Linda Lorimer 3/3 appointed | July 2013

Hansh Manwan 2/2 appointed | Qcrober 2013

The role and business of the board

The board s deeply engaged n developing and
measuring the company’s long-term strategy.
performance and value We believe that it adds

a valuable and diverse set of external perspectves
and that robust. open debate about significant
business ssues brings 2 valuable addwonal disciphine
to majar decisions.

A schedule of formal matters reserved for the board's
decision and approval 1s available on our website,

at www pearson com/mvestors/shareholder-
informauion/governance

A standing committee of the board has been
established 1o approve certain ordinary course of
businass wtems such as banking matters, guarantees,
Intra-group transactions and routine matters relatng
to employee share plans The commuttee has written
terms of reference. reviewed and approved each year,
which clearly set out its authonty and dutes These can
be found on the company website at

www pearson com/investors/shareholder-
informauon/ governance

The board recewes umely regular and necessary
financial, management and other information to fulfil its
dutes Comprehensive board papers are circulated to
the board and committee members at least one week
n advance of each meeung and the board recewves
regular reports from the chief execuuve In addivon

to meeung papers, a ibrary of current and historic
corporate infformation 1s made availabie to directors
electromcally to support the board's decision-making
process Directors can obtain independent professional
advice, at the company’s expense, in the performance
of their duties as directars All directors have access to
the advice and services of the company secretary

Non-executive directors meet with local serior
management every time board and committee
reetings are held at the locations of operating
companies, such as during the board's 2013 trp to
South Africa Thus allows the non-executve directors
ta share thew expenence and experuse with seruor
managers as well as allowing them to better
understand the abilities of semior management, which
in turn will help them assess the company's prospects
and plans for succession

Culture and values of the board

During a nme of widespread organisatonal and
stratepic change at Pearson, the board has had
oversight of the plans to embed efficacy firmly into
the company’s culture

Since 2012, the board has been kept abreast of the
company's intentions through a number of sessions
with the chief education advisor At the most recent
such session, n October 2013, the board had the
opportunity to discuss building efficacy into all aspects
of Pearson’s operanons, and noted their strong
support for Pearson s involvernent in the global public
dialogue on efficacy and education
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Succession planming

The board considers oversight of successton planning ~
not only at board and executive management level but
for all key positans throughout the business — as one
of its prime responsibilities

2013 has seen a large scale reorganisation of both the
company and the structure of its semor management
team Throughout the year, the board recewved regular
updates from the chief executive and the
transformation team on the organisational redesign
project This mcluded oversight of the key
appomntments made to the Pearson Executive and that
team’s direct reports, the senior leadership group

CASE STUDY

Board and Pearson Executive

As part of the board's regular programme

of updates on the education strategy and
organisational design initiatives, a section of the
October 2013 board meeting was dedicated to

a workshop involving members of the Pearson
Execunive Each member of the Pearson Executive
discussed with the board ther new roles, strategic
prorities, and the challenges and opportunites
facing thewr partcular business area as they
moved towards the new operaung structure

on | January 2014

The session had benefits for all parties nvolved -
the board was able to learn more about the
recently appointed executive team, and to
explore with them key issues relating to the
geographies hnes of business, products and
technologies, whilst demonstraning to the
executive its Involvement and support during

a period of great change

Dunng the year the board aiso approved formal
conungency plans for temporary absence of the chief
executive for health or other reasons

Board evaluaton

The board’s review of its effecuveness in 2012 rogk
place during early 2013 A pnmary focus for the board
in 2012 was chief executive successton On review,
the board concluded that the process was structured,
detailed and effecuve

For 2013, the board dentfied two key priorises

» To restructure and strengthen the board through

-

~

~

~

o

a higher proporton of mdependent directors with
experience and skills relevant to Pearson's strategy,
particularly in educavon and emerging markets The
appointments of Linda Lonmer and Hansh Manwan
were n line with this objecuve,

To keep the board closely nformed and involved in
Pearson’s strategic transformation during the year,
including regular detailed bnefings on strategy, planned
organisauonal changes and key leadership
appomtments The board reviewed plans and actions in
considerable detait on six different occasions in 20173,
including at the strategy workshop held in October
with the Pearson Executive

The board has also given consideragon to the
information it recewves and how this 1s reported Asa
result, an improved board information system is being
designed which will enable the board to more
effectvely track performance and developments in the
business model As part of this review, i january 2014,
we mstituted a revised monthly chief executive s letter
to the board

The board also wished to give consideraton as to ways
in which to maximise the effectiveness of its overseas
meetings In June 2013, the board held a meeting in
South Afnca, more information on which 1s set out I
the case study on page 62 Following the tnp, a short
questuonnaire was distributed to board members
Parucufar learning points ansing from the board's input
related to

Continutng to ensure sie VISIts are representative
of Pearson's operauons in the region,

The hugh value placed on meeting the end users

of Pearson's products - students and teachers,
Logistical arrangements both before and during the
trip, and

Ensuring that board presentations are pitched to
impart a sufficient fevel of knowledge for directors
0 perform their roles
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It 1s intended that these learning points will be used to
shape future overseas agendas. including potenual visits
by the board to the US and an emerging market
territory during 2014

Duning the course of the year the executive directors
were also evaluated on their performance against
personal objectives Up to 20% of the executives’ total
annual incentive opportunity for 2013 was based on
funcuional, operational, strategic and non-financial
objecuives relevant to thew speafic area of
responsibiity The chairman leads the assessment of
the chief executve, and the non-executive directors,
led by the senior independent director, conduct a
review of the charman’s performance

In accordance with the Code, the board anticipates
undertaking an external evaluation during 2014 The
board is currently discussing focus and uring for the
process to gain the maximum benefit from the review

In addition to the review of the board and indvidual
directors, the audit and remuneration comnuttees each
undergo an annual evaluation process to review thew
performance and effectiveness The pirocess covers
areas such as roles and responsitiliues, quality and
umeliness of meeung materials, opportunity for
discussion and debate, dralogue with management

and access 1o independent advice

CASE STUDY

South Africa

In June 2013, the board visited South Africa fora
three-day meeting to understand the economic
and politrcal environment, the education landscape
and Pearson's South African business, ane of the
Group's most consistently successful businesses
over the last decade

The board met with a number of Pearson’s senior
leaders in the region and also took the opportunity
to meet with the leader of Pearson’s Nigeria
business as it learned more about scope for growth
in that country and more widely across Africa

The board spent nme visiting local schools as well
as reviewing higher education ininiatives on the
matn campus of CT1, Pearson’s huigher education
business in South Africa

The board alsc met with Cyril Ramaphosa, the
recently elected deputy president of the ANC,

at a session involving a range of business leaders,
journalists, authors and key opinton leaders in
educanion, exploring how Pearson could do more
to tackie problems in education and training in
the region

Finally, outside of the core educauanal focus of the
trip, the board received an update on Penguin in
South Africa to learn more about how the merger
with Random House 1s enhancing publishing
opportunities
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Directors” training and induction

Directors receive a significant bespoke mducton
programme and a range of informaton about Pearson
when they join the board This includes background
information on Pearson and detads of board procedures
directors’ responsibiiiies and various govermance-refated
1ssues, including procedures for dealing in Pearson shares
and their legal obligauons as directors The mducten also
includes a senes of meetngs with members of the board,
presentauons regarding the business from senior
executves and a brnefing on Pearson’s investor

relatons programme The inducuon programme for
Linda Lormer and Harnsh Manwani 1s ongoing and is
being tallored to best introduce them to Pearsonin a
penod of organisauonal change

The directors’ traiming s supplemented with
presentations about the company's operauons, by
holding board meetings at the locations of operatng
compantes and by encouraging the directors to visit
operaung compantes and local managerment as and when
their schedule allows The company secretary and general
counsel, n conjuncoon with the Group's adwisers,
monitor fegal and governance developments and update
the board on such matters as agreed with the charman
Directors can also make use of external courses

Dhrectors' indemnities

In accordance with section 232 of the Act, the company
grants an ndemnuty to all of its directors The indemnity
refates to costs incurred by them in defending any cvil
or criminal proceedings and in connection with an
application for rehef under secuons 661 (3) and (4) or
sections | 157(1}-(3) of the Act, so long as momes are
repaid not later than when the outcome becomes final if
(1) they are convicted in the proceedings, (i} judgment 15
given aganst them. or () the court refuses to grant the
relief sought

The company has purchased and mamtams directors’
and officers’ insurance cover agamst certan legal habihues
and costs for clatms in connection with any act or
omisston by such directors and officers in the execution
of their dunes

Shareholder engagement

Pearson has an extensive programme of communication
with alf of its shareholders ~ large and small nsututional
and priate

in 2013, we conunued with our shareholder outreach
programme. seeing approxmately 780 insututonal and
private investors at more than 450 different insututions
in Australia, Brazl, Canada, China, Continental Europe,
india. japan, Malaysia, Singapore, South Africa, South
Korea, the UK and the US

There are five trading updates each year and the chief
executive and chef financial officer present our
preliminary and mtenm results updates They also attend
regular meetings throughout the year with investors in
the UK and around the world, tadored 1o investor
requirements, to discuss the performance of the
company, the company's strategy, Our restructunng
programme, structural changes in our markets and rsks
and oppartuniues for the future

The chairman meets regularly with significant
shareholders to understand any ssues and concerns they
may have This s in accordance with both the Code and
the UK Stewardship Code The non-executve directors
meet informally with shareholders both before and after
the AGM and respond 1o shareholder quenes and
requests as necessary The chairman ensures that the
board is kept informed of prnapal investors’ and
adwisers’ views on strategy, and corporate govemance

We also have an established programme of educational
serminars for our institunonal shareholders focusing

on indmdual parts of Pearson These seminars are
avaifable o all shareholders via webcast on

WWW pearson com

Private investors represent over 80% of the sharehelders
on our register and we make a concerted efiort to
engage with them regularly Shareholders who cannot
attend the AGM are invited to email questions to the
chairman in advance at glenmorenoc-agmi@pearson com

We encourage our pnvate shareholders 1o become
more informed investors and have provided a wealth

of nforrmation on our website about managing Pearson
shareholdings, see

www pearson com/investors/shareholder-informanon
for further informaton or wirn to page 210 of this report
Woe also encourage all shareholders, who have not
already done so, to register therr email addresses through
our website and with our registrar This epables them to
receive emal alerts when trading updates and other
important announcements are added to our website
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We post all company announcements on our website,
WWw DEarson com, as soon as they are released, and
major shareholder presentations are made accessible
via webcast or conference call Qur website contains

a dedicated investar relatons secuon with an extensive
archive of past announcerents and presentatons,
historical financial performance, share price data and

a calendar of events It also includes information about
all of our bustnesses, links to thew websites and detalls
of our corporate responsibility polictes and actvities

We are commutted to ensuring that ail our
shareholders receive ther dividends and encourage the
use of our dividend mandate service which enables UK
and many overseas shareholders to receve dividends
directy into thetr nominated bank account

Due to its continued populanty we again provided
shareholders with smaller holdings the opportunity to
use our registrar’s low-cost share dealing service, giving
themn the chance to add to or reduce thenr stake in
Pearson at signuficantly reduced dealing rates, or to
donate shares to chanty with ease This service proved
very popular with shareholders, and consequently we
intend ta offer this service again at a future date

We believe it 15 important that our empioyees have
a shared nterest in the direction and achievements
of Pearson and are pleased to say that a large number
of our employees are shareholders in the company

Qur AGM — which will be held on 25 Apnil this year
—1s an opportunity for alt shareholders to meet the
board and to hear presentanons about Pearson’s
businesses and results

Board committees

The board has established three formal commuttees
the nomination committee, the remuneraucn
commuttee and the audit commuttee The chairmen
and members of these committees are appointed
by the board on the recommendauon (where
appropnate) of the nomination commuttee and m
consultatnon with each relevant committee chairman

in addiion to these board commuttees, two further
committees operate with board inpue the standing
committee and the reputauon and responsibility
committee which primarily focuses on reputational nsk
Mare detail on the work of this cormmtes can be
found withun the princapal msks and uncertainties
section on pages 41 10 45

Buring 2013, the balance of work considered by the
board and its formal commuttees has shifted, so that
more time Is spent by the comivittees discussing therr
areas of experuse, enabling the board meeungs to
focus on strategy and performance Reports to the
board by each of the committee chairmen continue to
form a standing item on each board agenda, ensuring a
good communication flow between the bodies

The following table shows attendance by directors at
committee meetings throughout 2013

Audit  Remuneration Nomination

committes committed commiteee

meeangs macungs mectings

Glen Moreno - 5/5 5/5
John Fallon —- - 5/5
Dawvid Arculus® 4/5 5/5 3/5
Vivienne Cox 4/5 3/5 5/5
Susan Fuhrman™ 3/3 - 3/4
Ken Hydon 5/5 5/5 5/5
Josh Lewis®** 5/5 4/4 5/5
Linda Lorimer - - 2/2
Harish Manwan - — /1

* Lnable to travel due 1o injury
¥ Stood down on 7 August 2013
*** loined remuneration comimittee on 23 Apnl 2013

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Chairman Glen Moreno

Members Dawnd Arculus, Vivienne Cox, john Fallon, Ken Hydon
Josh Lews Linda Lortmer, Harish Manwan and Glen Moreno

The nominauon commuttee meets at least once a year
and at other umes as and when required The
comimittee primaitly monitors the compasition and
balance of the board and its committees, and idenufies
and recommends to the board the appointment of
new directors and/or committee members
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During 2013, the commuttee met five times with its
primary focus being to consider suitable candidates
for non-executive positions. culminating in the
appotntment of Linda Lonmer and Harish Manwanu
to the board An external search consultancy, £gon
Zehnder, was used during the recruitment process
Egon Zehnder daes not have any other connection to
Pearson apart from as a search consultancy Pearson
uses a number of leading firms i 1ts board and
executive search activities

During the year, the committee also discussed and
approved the appoimtments of Josh Lewis to the
remuneration committee and of Linda Lorimer to the
audit commuttee, in place of Jash Lewts who stepped
down at the end of 2013 Linda Lorimer and Harish
Manwani also jotned the nommaton committee
following their appointments to the board dunng

the year

Although the chairman of the board chairs the
nominaton committee, he 1s not permitted to char
meetings when the appointment of his successor 1s
being considered or during a discussion regarding his
performance At such umes, the senior independent
director will chair the meetings

The commuttee has writien termss of reference
which clearly set out its authonty and duties
These can be found on the company website
at www pearson com/mvestors/shareholder-
information/governance

Diversity

The board embraces the Code’s underlying principles
with regard to board balance and diversity, including
gender diversity The nominauon commuttee, fed by
the chairman, ensures that the directors of Pearson
demonstrate a broad balance of skills, experience and
natonality, to support Pearson s strategic development
and reflect the glabal nature of the Group’™s business

The commuttee and the board always take account of
diversity In its broadest sense when considering board
appointments whilst ensuring that appointments are
made based on ment and relevant experience

Lord Davies’ review published in 201 | called for
companies to target 25% female representation an
boards of FTSE 100 companies by 2015. Pearson 15
commutted to having at least 30% female directors
within Lord Dawvies’ 2015 umeframe and currently has
two female directors on s board of mine (represenung
229) With the retirement of three female directors
over the last year, the committee 15 actively seeking to
recruit at least one addinonal female board member

Immediately below board level, the Pearson Executive,
not including the chief executive and chief financial
officer who are man board directors, has four female
members out of a total of 13 (represenung 3 %)

Pearson considers diversity as an important 1ssue
across the Group, not just at board level One of the
key aimns of Pearson’s diversity policy 15 to increase the
number of leaders coming from a diverse background,
including advancing more women into leadership
posions The Responstble business section of this
report on pages 47 to 53 contains further information
and stzusucs on diversity throughout the Group

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Chatrman Dawnd Arculus

Members David Arculus, Vivienne Cox, Ken Hydon, josh Lewis
and Glen Moreno

The remuneraton commuttee reports to the full board
and the directors’ remunerauon report, which has
been considered and adopted by the board, 15 set out
on pages 78 to | I4

The commuttee met five tmes durng the year, and has
a written charter and terms of reference which clearly
set out its authonty and duues These can be found

on the company website at www pearsaon com/
investors/ shareholder-information/ governance
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Chairman iKen Hydon

Members David Acculus, Vivienne Cox, Ken Hydono and
Linda Lormer

As a committee we welcome the new govel nance
requirements for the financial statements, enshrined
in the changes to the Code introduced in 2013, and
in particular that the report and accounts need o be
far, balanced and understandable The producuon,
co-ordinavon and review of the annual report and
accounts 15 a substanual exercise which needs to be
undertaken within a relatvely short tmeframe,
running alongside the formal audit process
undertaken by our external auditors In order to
artive at a position where the audit committee and
the board are sausfied with the overall fairness,
balance and clarity of the document we discussed the
new reguirements and agreed with management a
robust process of review and approval

The committee Is aware of the recommendations of
the Compeuton Commssion and the EU on audit
tender and rotation, and currently expects that the
tender process will begin no later than 2017 for the
2018 financal year end. The committee reviews the
auditor’s independence on an annual basis and also
monitors on a quarterly basis the nature and level of
non-audit fees payable to them As described later in
this report, duning 2013 Pearson spent a considerable
amount of non-audit fees with PwC In the main, this
expenditure related to specific assurance and tax
advisory services associated with the planned
creaton of the venture between Penguin and
Random House, and both management and the audit
committee believe that using PwC for these services
was the most practical and economical soluton for
the company We anucipate that this level of
non-audit fee 15 unusual, and that the balance of audi
to non-audit fee pad to PwC will return to more
normal levels in 2014

As | have said In previous years, 2 key part of the

role of the committee 15 in providing oversight and
reassurance to the board with regard to the integnity
of the company’s financial reporting, internal controt
policies, and procedures for the denufication,
assessment and reporting of msk The latter two

have been a parucufar focus for the Pearson audit
commitiee throughout 2013 as the company
embarked on such 2 wide ranging and significart
transformational and orgamisational change through
the launch of its global education strategy Agamn,
committee meetings are always attended by the chief
financial officer and SVP mternal audit and comphance
and our external auditors and others often attend by
nvitatton, including the chief executve and chairman

Duning the year the audit committee contnued

to mteract with tocal and busimess management,
and in parucular spent time wath focal management
duning ther visit 1o South Afinca, discussing the
implementatron of the company's anti-bribery and
corruption policy, data protection, disaster recovery
planning, nsk registers and the Pearson code of
conduct. The committee also added an additional
fifth meeting to 1ts annual calendar, both 1o allow an
appropriate amount of ume be set aside for
constderanon of all relevant matters, as well as to
alfow us to focus on a number of nsk deep-dives, In
parucutar on data security and privacy, treasury risk
and ant-bribery and corruption

tn August 2013, Susan Fuhrman steod down from the
board and audit committee, and at the end of 2013,
josh Lewts stood down from the commitiee and has
been replaced by Linda Lorimer We thank Susan and
Josh for their wise counsel over the fast few years and
welcome Linda

Ken Hydaon
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Members

All of the audit committee members are independent
non-executive directors and have financial and/or
related business experience due to the senior posiuons
they hold or have held in other listed or publicly traded
comparies and/or similar public orgarssations

Ken Hydon, chairman of the commuttee, 1s the
company's designated financial expert He s a Fellow
of the Chartered Insutute of Management
Accountants, the Assaciation of Chartered Cerufied
Accountants and the Association of Corporate
Treasurers He also serves as audit commuittee
chanman for Reclatt Benckiser Group plc and Merhin
Entertamments plc, and untl 2012 for Tesco plc and
Royal Berkshire NHS Foundauon Trust

The gualfications and relevant experience of the other
commitiee members are detalled on page 56

Role and responsibtiities

The comnuttee has written terms of reference which
clearly set out its authonty and duties These are
reviewed annually and can be found on the company
website at www pearson com/investors/ shareholder-
information/governance

The comimittee has been estabhshed by the

board primanily for the purpose of overseeing the
accounung, financial reporung, internal control and nsk
management processes of the company and the audit
of the financial statements of the company

The commuttee 1s responsible for assisting the board’s
oversight of the quality and integnty of the company’s
external financial reporung and statements and the
company's accounung policies and pracuces

The group’s internal auditor has a dual reporting line
to the chief financial officer and chair of the commuttee
and external auditors have direct access to the
committee to raise any matter of concern and o
report on the results of work directed by the
commitiee The cormmuttee reports to the full board
at every board meeung immedately following a
commuttee meeting It also reviews the ndependence
of the external auditors, including the provision of
non-audit services (further details of which can be
found on page 73 and note 4 to the financial
statements), and ensures that there is an appropriate
audit refatonship and that auditor objectivity and
independence s upheld

External audit

Based on management’s recommendations, the
committee reviews the proposal on the appointment
of the external auditors The commtiee reviewed the
effecuveness and independence of the external
audivors during 2043 and remains sausfied that the
auditors provide effective independent challenge

to management

The review was conducted by distrbutng a
questcnnaire to key audit stakeholders mcluding
members of the audit committee, the chief executive,
chief financial officer, SVP company secretanal, SVP
internal audit and compliance, operating cornpany
CFOs and heads of corporate functions In relation to
specfic comments recesved, the lead audit partner
explained to the committee how PwC were
monitoring and reviewing each highlighted area and
confirmed that they would consider how to adapt therr
approach in ight of feedback

In addiwon, in accordance with our external auditor
policy, Group internal audit performs an annual
assessment of audit fees, services and independence
This review takes into account internat and external
iformavon and benchmarks and forms the basis for
a recommendauon by the commuttee to the board in
respect of the appointment and compensation of our
external auditor

Recognising the importance of maintaming auditor
independence and objectivity, the comsmuttee paid
partcular artention to this matter during 2013 PwC
were appointed 1o provide assurance procedures over
the completion balance sheet and tax advice on the
Pengumn Random House transacuon This decision was
made only after careful consideration of the
alternauves, as well as ensuring that appropriate
safeguards were put in place to mantain independence
As a resuft of this decision, non-audit fees pad to PwC
exceeded Pearson’s target propartion of audit fees
during the year
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The commttee will continue 1o review the
performance of the external audiors on an annual
basis and will consider their independence and
objecuvity, taking account of alf appropriate guidelines
There are no contractual obligations restnicong the
committee’s choice of external audrors In any event,
the external auditors are required to rotate the audit
partner responsible for the Group audit every five
years The current lead audit partner rotated onto the
Group's audit in 2013

Pearson’s last audit tender was in respect of the 1996
year end resulting in the appointment of Price

Waterhouse as auditors Given the recent rotation of
lead audtt partner ahead of the 2013 reportng period

and giving careful consideration to the uming and other

practcalities of undertalking a formal audit tendering
process, the committee agreed that a tender process
would commence no later than 2017 to ensure

auditors have been appointed in tme for the 2018 year

end audit, following the end of the current lead

SIGMIFICANT ISSUES

Pengwin Random House transaction

A number of complex accounung and business
model changes including disposal accounung,
valuauon of the new business and mtangibles
assooiate accountung including harmonisazon of

partner’s term The committee 15 also monitoring
developments from the Competuon Commission on
audi tendering and at EU leve! regarding mandatory
audit rotation for listed compames, and will factor
any legislauve requirements tnto 1ts future plans for
audit tender

Stgnificant issues

During the year, the committee discussed the plannmg,
conduct and conclusions of the external audit as

it proceeded

At the july 2013 audit committee meeting, the
committee discussed and approved the auditors’
Group audrt plan and reviewed the key risks of
misstatement of the Group's financial statements,
which were updated at the December 2013
committee meeting The table below sets out the
significant 1ssues considered by the audit committee
together with details of how these items have been
addressed

HOW (SSLIES WERE ADDRESSED

The commuttee discussed this sssue at 2 number of meetings including
reviewing management’s discussion of the sigmificant accounting judgements
and esumates and monitoring the views of the external audors The
commuttee and management have vistbidity of Penguin Random House s
accounung to ensure that all accounting policies, valuauons and adjustments

accounung policies, changes to existing operaung a'e considered in Pearson s accounts The committee moritors and, where

model of shared services, infrastructure and
corporate costs such as pensions

appropnate challenges mingaung acoons by management These actions
inciude key Sarbanes-Oxley controls over acquisitton and disposal accounting

including review by the technical accounting team, use of external valuation
experts and use of local management to ensure that policies and operating
modef are communicated and adjusted as required

Revenue recognition

Thus 15 considered signdficant in fight of a number
of products and services sold by Pearson where
revenue recognicen pracuces are complex and
management assumpuons and esnmates are
necessary

The commuttee recewves a regular presentaton from management on revenue
recogmuion and routnely monitors the views of the external auditors on this
issue The commuttee has vistbility to mternal audit findings refating to revenue
recognition controls and processes, the related management acuon plans

and omely dosure of open issues The commttee monitors and, where
appropriate challenges muigating acuons by management. These actions
include key Sarbanes-Oxley controls and 1denuficauon of significant contracts
through the ‘large and unusual process such thal accounuing treagment can
be agreed by specialists
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SIGNIFICANT ISSUES

US tax acuvity

Changes to processes, structure and strategy m
2012 and 2013, and IRS audit acuwity

Imparment of goodwilf and incangibles

The Group carries significant goodwill and
acquired intangible asset balances There s
judgement in the «denufication and aggregation
of cash generating units (CGUs) and in the
assumptuions used in the annual goodwill

Section 4 Governance £9
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HOW ISSUES WERE ADDRESSED

The committee met with the SVP Tax twice duting 2013 discussed the tax
strategy and held a nsk deep dive into the tax process in October Key tax
accounting matters nduding judgements and estimates were reported 1o the
committee by management, and the committee monmored the views of the
external auditors on the company's tax accounting The committeg montors
and, where appropriate challenges miugatung actions by management These
acuons nclude key Sarbanes-Oxley controls in place in the US, and improved
UK central aversight to ensure criucal judgements are appropnately reviewed
and understood

The commuttee considered the results of the Group's annual goodwil
impairment review and management's judgements and assumpuons used m
arrving at a valuaton for each of the Group's CGUs The key assumptions are
cash flows dertved from strategic plans, long-term growth rates and weighted
average cost of capital The commuttee also considered sensttiviies to changes
in assumptions and related disclosures as required by |AS 36 ‘Impawrment of

IMmpairment review

Assets” The annual imparrment review in 2013 showed that there was

sufficient headroom i each of the Group's CGUs and based on the sensiovity
analysis a reasonably possible change n any of the assumptions s unlikely to
cause an impairment in any of the CGUs

The committee discussed these issues with the
auditors at the time of thew review of the half year
interim financial statements in july 2013 and again at
the conclusion of thewr audit of the financial statements
for the year in February 2014 All the significant issues
were areas of focus for the auditors, as detatled in their
report on pages [ 16 to 122

In December 2013, the commuttee discussed with the
auditors the status of their worle, focusing in particular
on internal controls and covenng the signtficant issues
outlined above

As the auditors concluded therr audit, they explamed
to the committee

The work they had conducted over revenue, which
included targeted procedures and testing of products
and services which were considered to have more
complex revenue recognition, such as muluple element
arrangements (e g the provision of supplementary
print or digital materials or traming with textboolks)
and certamn long-term contracts in the education
businesses,

Thewr evaluation of the directors’ assessment of the
Penguin Random House transacoon and assessment
of valuations of that business and associate accounung,
The work they had done to understand the Group s
tax strategy and idenufy business and legislative risks,
to challenge key underying assumptions and assess
the recoverability of deferred tax assets,

T

» Their assessment and evaluauon of returns provisions
and controls in the shipment and returns processes,
partucularty in fight of the ongoing business transion
from print to digital,

Therr evaluation of the recoverability of pre-publication
assets and nventortes These are considered to be
marenal and judgement 1s required to evaluate thewr
valuation plus esttmating recoverability may be more
complex during the transitton to digital,

Their focus on goodwill impairment due to the
Group's signtficant goodwill and intangible asset
balances, and the work they had done to test
management’s impairment analys:s, underiying
assumptions, calculaton of discount and growth

rates and integrity of the valuation model,

The results of thewr controls testing to date for
Sarbanes-Oxley Act section 404 reporting purposes
and in support of therr financral statements audit, and
The review of the company's ‘going concern’ reports

-

~

r

The auditors also reported to the committee the
musstatements that they had found in the course
of their work, which were insignificant, and the
comimittee confirmed that there were no
material items remamning unadjusted in these
financial statements
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Traimng

The commuttee recewves regular technical updates

as well as speafic or personal traiming as appropriate
Duning 2013, the committee discussed with PwC at an
audrit commutiee meeting the new Code requirement
for the annual report and accounts to be '{ar, balanced
and understandable’, and the disclosure committee
undertook a training session on the subject

Committee members also meet with local
mdanagement on an ongoing basis in order to gain
a better understanding of how Group policies are
embedded m operauons

Meetings

The committee met five umes during the year with
the following in attendance the chief financial officer,
SVP internal audit and compliance, members of the
senior management team, and the external auditors
Additionally, the chief executive and chatrman
periodically attended commuttee meetings The
comrmutiee also met regularly in private with the
externat auditars and the SVYP internal audit and
compliance

At every meeting, the committee considered reports
on the acuvities of the Group internal audsit funcuon,
including the results of internal audits, rsk reviews,
project assurance reviews and fraud and
whistleblowing reports The commuittee alse moniored
the company's financial reporung, internal controls

and risk management procedures, reviewed the
non-audet services provided by PwC and considered
any significant legal claims and regulatory issues in the
context of their impact on financral reporting

Specificaily, the committee considered the following
matters during the course of the year

The 2012 annual report and accounts prelminary
announcement finanaal starements and income
statement,

The Group accountng policies,

Compliance with the Code,

Form 20-F and related disclosures including the annual
Sarbanes-Oxiey Act secuon 404 attestation of financial
reporung internal controls,

Recespt of the external auditors’ report on the Form
20-F and on the year end audi,

Penguin Random House transaction — accounting
matters,

» Assessment of the effectiveness of the Group s internal

control environment,

Reappointment, remuneration and engagement letter

of the external auditors,

Prowiston of non-audit services by PwC,

Review of the intenm financial statements and

announcement,

Review of key findings of over 100 Group internal

audits and special projects,

Annual reapproval of the Group internal audit

mandate,

Compliance with SEC and NYSE requirements

mcluding Sarbanes-Oxley Act,

Reviews of the effectiveness of the audit committee, '
the external auditors and the Group internal audit

funcuon,

External auditor benchmarking,

Review of the commuttee’s terms of reference,

Annual internal audit plan,

Review of company risk maps and mitgaung actions for

top risks,

Risk deep dives — anu-biibery and corruption, dara

securtty and privacy, and treasury nsk,

Implementauon of new health and safety strategy,

policy and reporung of any significant incidents, |
Fraud, whistleblowing and code of conduct marters
Review of Group tax strategy, tax risks and tax
departmental structure, and

Annual review of treasury policy and suategy
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At its December meeung, the committee considered
the Group's business continuity planning, the fatest |
internal report on which indicated that readingss to
withstand significant business interruption does not
currently meet Pearson’s own stringent standards

it was noted thar workable plans generally existed but
that, i bght of the scale of bustness transformation,
these plans had not been updarted or tested within
the past year The commuittee reported this nsk to the
board at s December meeting where it was noted
that management had w principle accepted the level
of nsk on the basis that the restructured orgamisation
would change the focus of business canunuity plans
which would consequently require updatng

in February 2014, the commuttee also considered
the 2013 annual report and accounts, including the
prelimmary announcement, financal staterments,
strategic report, directors’ report and corporate
governance compliance statement
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Internal control and risk management

The directors confirm they have conducted a review
of the effectiveness of the Group's systems of nsk
management and internal controls, including strategic,
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management systems, m accordance with the Code
and Turnbull guidance These systems have been
operating throughout the year and to the date

of this report

During 2013, the semi-annual reporung of top risks
was reviewed by executive management as well as the
board and audit committee The principal risks are set
out on pages 41 to 45, together with mitigaung factors
During the year, the audit committee considered the
oversight of specific selected principal risks, through a
series of risk 'deep dives” This 1s covered in more
detail in the separate report on the audit commitiee

The key elements and procedures that have been
estabhshed to provide effective risk management
and internal control systems are described below We
recognise that during 2014, we will need to algn these
exisung procedures to the new organisation structure

Control environment

The board of directors has overall responsibility for
Pearson s system of internal control, which is designed
to manage, and where possible miugate, the risles facing
the Group. safeguard assets and provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance aganst matenal financial
misstatement or loss

Responstbility for monitoring financial management and
reporting and nsk management and intermnal control
systems has been delegated to the audit commuttee

by the board At each meeting, the audst committee
considers reports from management, Group internal
audit and the external auditors, with the am of
reviewing the effectiveness of the internal financial

and aperating control environment of the Group

The identficauon and mingauon of significant business
risks s the responsiblity of Group semor management
and the management team for each business area -
being the heads of the Lines of Business, Geographies
and enabling functions Each business area, including
the corporate centre, maintains internal controls and
procedures appropriate to Its structure, business
environment and nsk assessment, whilst complying
with Group policies, standards and guidelines

Financial management and reporting

There 1s a comprehensive strategic planning, budgening
and faorecasting system with an annual operating plan
approved by the board of directors Monthly financial
informauon, including trading results, bafance sheets,
cash flow statements, capital expenditures and
indebtedness is reported aganst the corresponding
figures for the plan and prior years, with corrective
action outlined by the appropriate senior executive
Group sentor management meet penodically with
business area management to review their business
and financial performance against plan and forecast
Major risks relevant to each business area as well as
performance against the stated financial and strategic
objecuves are reviewed n these meetings

We have an ongoing process to monitor the risks and
effectveness of controls in refation to the financral
reporung and consolidation process ncluding the
related nformauon systems Ths includes up-to-date
Group finanoal policies, formal requirements for
finance functions, Group consolidation reviews and
analysis of matertal vanances, Group finance rechnical
reviews, including the use of technical specialists, and
review and sign-off by senior finance managers These
processes are subject to reviews based on Group
internal aud’s risk based audit programme The
Group finance funcuon also monitors and assesses
these processes, through a finance comphance
funcuon

These controls include those over extemnal finanaal
reportng which are documented and rested in
accordance with the requirements of sectton 404

of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, which is relevant to

our US listng One key control in this area 1s the
disclosure committee, whtch reports directly to the
audit committee This commiteee 1s chaired by the SVP
internal audit and comphance and members include the
chief finanaal officer, general counsel, SVP financial
communicatrons, SVP company secretanal as well as
senior members of financial management The primary
responsibility of this commuttee is to review Pearson’s
public reportung and disclosures to ensure that
mformauon provided to shareholders 1s complete,
accurate and compliant with afl applicable legislation
and iisung regulations

The effectiveness of key financial controls 1s subject
to management review and self-certfication and
independent evaluauon by Group internal audnt
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An enterprise risk management (ERM) framework 15 in
place to identfy, evaluate and manage risks, including
key financial reporung risks Business areas undertake
semi-annual risk reviews to identify new or potentally
under-managed nisks Throughout the year, rsk
discusstons are lacilizated by the nisk assurance team
with Group and business area management to identfy
the key risks the company faces in achieving its
objecuves, to assess the probabihity and impact of
those risks and to document the actions being taken to
manage those nisks The Pearson Execuuve reviews the
output of these sessions, focusing on the key nsks
facing the business Management has the responsibihty
to consider and execute appropriate action to mitigate
these risks whenever possible The resuits of these
reviews are reporied to the audit comnmuttee and the
board in detail

Group internal audit

The Group internal audit funcoon ts responsble for
providing independent assurance to management and
the audit comnuttee on the design and effecuveness of
internal controls to miuigate strategic, financial,
operauonal and comphance risks The risk-based
annual internal audit plan s approved by the audit
committee Management acuon plans to emprove
internal controls and to mitigate nsks, or both, are
agreed with each business area after each audit Formal
follow-up procedures allow Group tnternal audit to
monitor bustness areas’ progress in amplemenung its
recornmendauons and to resolve any control
deficiencies Group internal audit has a formal
collaboration process in place with the external
auditors to ensure efficient coverage of internal
controls Regular reports on the work of Group
internal audit are provided to executive management
and, via the audit committee, to the board

The SVP internal audk and comphance oversees
compliance with our code of conduct and works with
senior legal and human resources personnel to
investigate any reported ncidents including ethical,
corruption and fraud allegations The Pearson anu-
bribery and corruption programime provides the
framework to support our comphiance with various
ant-bribery and corrupuon regulations such as the
UK Bribery Act 2010 and the US Foreign Corrupt
Pracuces Act

Treasury management

The treasury department operates within policies
approved by the board and its procedures are
reviewed regularly by the audit commuttee Major
wransactions are authorised ouvtside the department
at the requisite level, and there s an appropriate
segregation of duties Frequent reports are made
to the chief financial officer and regular reports are
prepared for the audit commuttee and the beard

insurance

Pearson purchases comprehensive insurance coverage
where this 1s avalable on a cost-effective basis
Pearson’s insurance subsidiary, Spear Insurance
Company Lirmited, 15 used to leverage the risk
retentton capability of the Group and to achieve a
balance between retaiming insurance risk and
wransferring it 1o external insurers

Going concern

Having reviewed the Group's hquid resources and
borrowing facilities and the Group's 2014 and 2015
cash flow forecasts, the directors believe that the
Group has adequate resources to conunue as a going
concern For this reason, the financial statements have,
as usual, been prepared on that basis Information
regarding the Group's borrowing liabiltties and financial
sk management can be found n notes {8 and 19 on
pages 164 o 172

Share capital

Details of share 1ssues are given in note 27 ro the
accounts on page 185 The company has a single class
of shares which s divided into ordinary shares of 25p
each The ordinary shares are in registered form

As at 31 December 2013, 818.580,447 ordinary shares
were in 1ssue At the AGM held on 26 Apnil 2013, the
company was authonsed, subject to certain condiuions,
to acquire up to 81,746 807 ordinary shares by market
purchase Shareholders will be asked to renew this
authonty at the AGM an 25 Apnl 2014

Informatton prowided to the company pursuant to

the Financial Conduct Authenty’s Disclosure and
Transparency Rules (DTR) s published on a Regulatory
Information Service and on the company’s website
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As at 4 March 2014, being the latest pracucable date
before the publication of this report, the company had
been nowfied under DTRS of the following signdicant
votng rnights n its shares

Percentige

Mumber of as at date of
voimg nzhts nmlﬁ:nnu_n—

Harbor Internatonal Fund 24,598,034 301%
Libyan Investment Authonty 24,431,000 301%

Annual General Meeung (AGM)

The nouice convening the AGM, to be held at 12 noon
on Friday. 25 Aprd 2014 at 8 Northumberland Avenue,
London WC2N 5BY, i1s contained in a cireutar to
shareholders to be dated 24 March 2014

Registered auditors

In accordance with sectian 489 of the Act,

a resolution proposing the reappomtment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (PwC) as auditors to
the company will be proposed at the AGM, at a {evel
of remuneration to be agreed by the directors

Auditors’ independence

fn line with best pracuce. our refanonstup with PwC

1s governed by our external auditors policy, which 5
reviewed and approved annually by the audrt
commuttee The policy establishes procedures to
ensure the auditors’ ndependence 1s not
compromused, as well as defining those non-audit
services that Pw(C may or may not provide to Pearson
These allowable services are in accordance with
relevant UK and US legstation

The audit committee approves all audit and non-audn
services provided by PwC Certain categonies

of allowable non-audit services have been pre-
approved by the audit committee subject to the
authorites below

» Pre-approved non-audit services can be authorsed by
the chief financial officer up to £100,000 per project,
subject to & cumutatve kit of £500,000 per annum

» Acquisitton or disposal transactions and due diligence
up to £100,000 per project may be performed by our
external auditors, in light of the need for confidentiality
Any project/transaction generatng fees in excess of
£100,000 must be specifically approved by the audit
committee,

» Tax comphance and related activities up to the greater
of £1,000.000 per annum or 50% of the external audi
{fee, and

For forward-looking tax advisory services we use the
mest appropriate adviser, vsually after a tender
process Where we decide to use our independent
auditors, authority, up to £100,000 per project subject
to a cumutative hot of £500,000 per annum, has been
delegated by the audit committee to management

~

Services provided by PwC above these limits and all
other allowable non-audit services, irrespective of
value, must be approved by the audit committee
Where appropriate, services will be tendered prior to
a decision being made as to whether to award work to
the auditors

The audit committee receives regular reports
summartsing the amount of fees paid to the auditors
During 2013, Pearson spent a constderable amount of
non-audit fees with PwC In the main, this expenditure
related to specific assurance and tax advisory services
associated with the planned creation of the venture
between Penguin and Random House PwC were
selected only after consideration that it was most
practical and economucal to utilise PwC for these
services We anucipate that this level of non-audi fee
1s unusual, and that the balance of audit to non-audit
fee pad to PwC will return to more normal levels in
2014 Orther significant non-audit worle performed by
PwC duning 2043 was

o

Tax compliance services related to a routine audit by
the US Internal Revenue Service;

Assurance services on a corporate bond sssued in
May 2013, and

QOrher assurance services which were mndividually less
than £100 000 per project

~

[y

in each case, PwC was selected as they were best able

to provide the services we required at a reasonable fee
and within the terms of our external auditors policy

To assist 1 ensuring that independence and objectvity

is maintamed for forward-loolung tax advisory and due
diligence work PwC assign a different partner from the

one leading the external audit

A full statement of the fees for audit and services is
provided in note 4 1o the accounts on page |41
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Fair, balanced and understandable reporting

Pearson 1s mindful of the Code's revised principle C | |
relating to farr, balanced and understandable reporting
and has accordingly built in addiuonal steps to its
annual report tmetable to ensure that the directors
are given sufficient opportunity to review, consider and
comment on the report

The disclosure commttee and the board each held an
addivonal meeung as part of their review process, and
members of the disclosure commuttee also attended a
vraining session provided by PwC to better understand
the requirements In addition, the audit commutiee

15 avadable to advise the board on certain aspects of
the report, to enable the directors to fulfil thew
responstbibty m this regard

Statement of directors’ responsibilities

The directors are responsible for prepaning the annual
report, the report on directors’ remuneration and the
financial statements in accordance with applicable taw
and regulatons

Company law requires the directors to prepare
financial statements for each financial year Under that
law the directors have prepared the Group and parent
company financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reportng Standards {IFRSs)

as adopted by the European Union Under company
law the directors must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that they give a
true and fair view of the state of affans of the company
and the Group and of the profit or foss of the Group
for that penod

In prepaning these financial statements, the directors
are required to

Select suttable accounting policies and then apply
them consistently,

Make judgements and accounting estumates that
are reasonable and prudent,

State whether applicable iFRSs as adopted by the
European Union have been followed, subject to any
matenal departures disclased and explained in the
financial statements, and

Prepare the financial statements on a going concern
basts unless it s inappropnate to presume that the
company and/or the Group will conunue 1 business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate
accounung records that are sufficient to show and
explam the company's transactions and disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any ume the financial posmion

Lo

of the company and the Group and enable them to
ensure that the financial staternents and the report on
directors’ remuneration comply with the Act and, as
regards the Group financial statements, Artide 4 of

the IAS Regulauon They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the company and the Group
and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregulanues

The directors are responsible for the mantenance and
ntegrity of the company's website Legislauon in the
UK governing the preparation and dissernation

of financial statements may differ from legislation

in other jurisdictions

Each of the directors, whose names and functions are
listed on pages 55 and 56, confirm that to the best of
their knowledge

s The Group financial statements, which have been

prepared n accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union, give a true and far view of the assets,
habilivies, financial posimon and profic of the Group and
company, and

The directors’ report contained in the annual report
includes a fair review of the development and
performance of the business and the positon of the
company and Group, together with a description

of the pnnapal nsks and uncertainties that they face

The directors also confirm that, for all directors
tn office at the date of this report

a) so far as the directors are aware, there 1s no
relevant audit snformauon of which the company's
auditors are unaware, and

b} they have taken all the steps that they ought to have
taken as directors 1 order to make themselves aware
of any relevant audit informauon and to establish that
the company's auditors are aware of that information

In addiwan, the directors as at the date of this repart
consider that the annual report, taken as a whole, 15
fair, balanced and understandable and provides the
information necessary for shareholders to assess the
company’s performance, business model and strategy

Sections one to four of this document contain the
informauon required to be disclosed in the directors’
report and were approved by the board on 10 March
2014 and signed on 1ts behalf by

<X EAL

Phitlip Hoffman ry
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Additional information for shareholders

Set out below 1s other statutory and regulatory
information that Pearson is required to disclose
in its directors’ report

Amendment to Articles of Association

Any amendmerts to the Articles of Association of the
company (the Artcles) may be made in accordance
with the provisions of the Compames Act 2006

{the Act) by way of a special resolution

Rughts attaching to shares

The nghts attaching to the ordinary shares are defined
i the Arucles A shareholder whose name appeats
on the company's register of members can choose
whether his/her shares are enidenced by share
certificates (1 e 1n certificated form) or held
electromically {i e uncertdicated form) in CREST

(the electronic setilement system in the UK)

Subject o any restrictions below, shareholders may
attend any general meetng of the company and,

on a show of hands, every shareholder (or his/her
representative} who 15 present at a general meeung has
one vote on each resolution for every ordinary share
of which they are the registered haolder A resolution
put to the vote at a general meeung is decded on

a show of hands unless before, or on the declarauon
of the result of, a vote on a show of hands, a poll ts
demanded A poli can be demanded by the chairman
of the meeung, or by at least three shareholders

{or ther representatives) present in persen and having
the right to vote, or by any shareholders (or their
representautves) present in person having at feast 0%
of the total voung rights of all shareholders, or by any
shareholders (or their representatives) present in
person holding ordinary shares on which an aggregate
sum has been paid up of atleast | 0% of the total sum
paid up on all ordinary shares Ar ths year's AGM
voung will again be conducted on a poll, consistent
with best practice

Shareholders can declare 2 final dividend by passing
an ordinary resolution but the amount of the dividend
cannot exceed the amount recommended by the
board The board can pay intenm dividends on any
class of shares of the amounts and on the dates and
for the periods they decide In all cases the
distributable profits of the company must be sufficient
to justfy the payment of the refevant dividend

The board may, if authorised by an ordinary resolution
of the shareholders, offer any shareholder the nght to
elect to receive new ordinary shares, which will be
credited as fully paid, instead of thewr cash dividend

Any dividend which has not been claimed for 12 years
after it becarme due for payment will be forfeired and
will then belong 1o the company., unless the directors
decide otherwise

If the company is wound up, the liquidator can, with
the sanction of a special resolution passed by the
shareholders, divide among the shareholders alf or
any part of the assets of the company and he/she can
value assets and determine how the dwvision shall be
carned out as between the shareholders or different
classes of shareholders The hquidator can also, with
the same sancuon, transfer the whole or any part of
the assets ro trustees upon such truses for the benefit
of the shareholders

Voung at general meetings

Any form of proxy sent by the shareholders to the
company In relation o any general meeting must be
delivered to the company (via its registrars), whether
i wrtten or electromc form, not less than 48 hours
before the time appointed for holding the meeting
or adjourned meeting at which the person named

in the appointment proposes to vote

No shareholder is, unless the board decides otherwise,
enutied to attend or vote erther personally or by proxy
at a general meetng or to exercise any other right
conferred by being a shareholder if he/she or any
person with an interest in shares has been sent a notice
under section 793 of the Act {which confers upon
public companies the power to require informaton
with respect to nterests in thew voung shares) and
he/she or any nterested person falled to supply the
company with the informauon requested within

14 days after delivery of that notice The board may
also decide, where the relevant shareholding comprises
at least 0 25% of the nominai value of the issued shares
of that class, that no dwvidend is payable in respect of
those default shares and that no transfer of any default
shares shall be registered

Pearson operates two employee benefit trusts to
hold shares, pending employees becoming entitied
to them under the company's employee share plans
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There were 9,282,365 shares so held as at

31 December 2013 Each trust has an tndependent
trustee which has full discretion in relation to the
voting of such shares A dividend waiver operates
on the shares held in these trusts

Pearson also operates a nominee shareholding
arrangement known as Sharestore which holds shares
on behalf of employees There were 4,564,039 shares
so held as at 3| December 2013 The beneficial
owners of shares held through Sharestore are

invited to submit voting instructions online at

www shareview co uk If no instructions are given

by the beneficial owner, the trustees holding these
shares will not exercise the voung rights

Transfer of shares

The board may refuse to register a transfer of a
cervficated share which 1s not fully paid, prowvided that
the refusal does not prevent deahngs in shares in the
company from talkung place on an open and proper
basis The board may also refuse to register a transfer
of a certificated share unless (i) the instrument of
transfer is lodged, duly stamped (if stampable), at the
registered office of the company or any other place
decided by the board, and s accompanied by the
ceruficate for the share to which it refates and such
other evidence as the board may reasonably require
to show the nght of the transferor to make the
transfer; (i) it &5 1n respect of only one class of

shares, and {m) st 1s i favour of not more than

four transferees

Transfers of uncertficated shares must be carnad out
using CREST and the board can refuse to register a
transfer of an uncertficated share in accordance with
the regulanons governing the operation of CREST

Variauon of rights

i at any nme the capial of the company is divided into
different classes of shares, the special rights atraching
to any class may be varted or revoked erther

{1} with the written consent of the hoiders of at least
75% in nominal value of the 1ssued shares of the
relevant class, or

{1} with the sanction of a2 special resolutton passed at
a separate general meeung of the holders of the shares
of the relevant class

Without prejudice to any special nghts previously
conferred on the holders of any existing shares or class
of shares, any share may be 1ssued with such preferred,
deferred, or other special nights, or such restriciions,
whether in regard to dwidend, voung, return of capital
or otherwise as the company may from time to time
by ordinary resolution determune,

Appaointment and replacement of directors

The Arucles contain the following provisions in refation
to directors

Directors shall number no less than two Directors
may be appointed by the company by ordinary
resolution or by the board A director appointed by
the board shall hold office only until the next AGM and
shall then be eligible for reappointment, but shalf not
be taken into account in determining the directors or
the number of directors who are to reure by rotauon
at that meeung The board may from time to ume
appoint one or maore directors ta hold executive office
with the company for such period (subject to the
provisions of the Act) and upon such terms as the
board may decide and may revoke or terminate any
appoinument so made.

The Arucles provide that, at every AGM of the
company, at least one-third of the directors shall retire
by rotation (or, ff thewr number is not a muluple of
three, the number nearest to one-third) The first
directors to retire by rotation shall be those who wish
to retire and not offer themselves for re-election Any
further directors 50 to retre shall be those of the other
directors subject to rettrement by rotauon who have
been longest n office since they were last re-elected
but, as betweer persons who became or were last
re-elected on the same day, those o retire shall
{unless they otherwise agree among themselves)

be determined by lot In addivon, any director who
wouild not otherwrse be required to reure shall

reure by rotaton at the third AGM after they were
last re-elected

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Arucles, the
board has rescived that all directors should offer
themselves for re-elecuon annually, in accordance
with the Code

The comparny may by ordinary resolution remove any
director before the expiration of tus/her term of office
in addiwion, the board may terminate an agreement or
arrangement with any director for the provision of
his/her services to the company
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Powers of the directors

Subject to the company’s Arucles, the Act and any
directions given by speaial resolution, the business of
the company will be managed by the board who may
exercise all the powers of the company, including
powers relatng to the ssue and/or buying back of
shares by the company (subject to any statutory
restrictions or restrictions imposed by shareholders
in general meetmg)

Significant agreements

The following significant agreements contain provisions
enutling the counterparties (o exercise termmnaton

or other nghts in the event of a change of control

of the company

Under the $1,750,000,000 revolving credit faciity
agreement dated November 2010 which matures

in November 2015 between, amongst others, the
company, HSBC Bank pic (as facsity agent) and the
banks and financial institutions named therew as
tenders (the Facllity) any such bank may, upon a
change of control of the company, require 1its
outstanding advances, together with accrued interest
and any other amounts payable in respect of such
Facility, and ns commitments, to be cancelled, each
within 60 days of notfication to the banks by the facility
agent For these purposes, a ‘change of control’ occurs
if the company becomes a subsidiary of any other
company or one or more persons acting either
ndividually or in concert, obtains control (as defined

in section | 124 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010)

of the company

Shares acquired through the company’s employee
share plans rank pan passu with shares i ssue and
have no specral nghts For legal and practical reasons,
the rules of these plans set out the consequences of
a change of control of the company
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Report on directors’ remuneration

Dear shareholders

{ am pleased to present our report on directors’
remuneration for 2013

The report and related resolutons will be put forward
for your consideration and approval at the annual
generat meeting on 25 April 2014

| should ltke to start by summarising the decisions on,
and the changes to, directors remuneration made
during the year and importantly the context in which
those changes occurred and decisions have been taken

Pearson has a unique set of advantages with which to
help meet the global demands for better educauon and
skills And, by being better able to meet some of the
biggest challenges in global educauon, we can builld a
stronger, more profitable and faster growing company

To get there Pearson has fundamentally changed the way
the company 15 organised From January this year,
Pearson is being run as one globally-connected educaton
company, worlang to an operating model designed
specificafly to support a global education strategy, and a
new executive team has been appointed to lead it The
new model ensures that the company will be organised
around a smaller number of global products and
platforms built around a single, world-class infrastructure
and common systems and processes

Over ume this will help Pearson to grow more quickly,
as it will free up resources to invest mn digital
transformauon, and the new, more service onented,
products that are vital 1o future growth 1t should enable
the company to mncrease the rate of mnovauon and
invenuon, by focusing on the research and development
of the next generauon of global products that will have
the data to demonstrate their posinve impact on
learrung outcomes

Pearson’s executive remuneration arrangements have
been reviewed to ahgn with and better support this
strategy Executive remuneration decisions have been
made after careful consideraton of the needs of the
business, the transformaton and reorgamsacon of the
busmess and the impact on roles and responsibilities,
the pay markets in which Pearson operates and
changes i pay elsewhere within the company

This strategy also informs our remuneration philosaphy
and policy and complements cur more traditional
financral measures In financial terms, Pearson’s goal is to
achieve sustainable growth on three key financial goals
(earmings, cash and return on invested capital) and reliable
cash returns to our mvestors through healthy and
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growing dividends We believe those are, in concert,
good indicators that we are bulding the long-term
value of Pearson So those measures (or others that
contribute to them) form the basis of our annual
budgets and strategic plans and the bass for annual
and long-term incentives

The remuneration committee 1s conunually sensitive
to the current social and economic environment
surrounding executve compensanon

We welcome the UK government's action to improve
the clarty and transparency of remuneration
disclosure We welcome the introduction of the new
executive FemuNeraton reporting requirements
including a new binding vote on policy

We hope that these changes will continue to
demonstrate the link between our remuneration
policy and pracuce and the company’s strategy and
performance, as well as our commutment to
shareholder engagement

Performance in 2013
In 2013, trading was rough in many of our biggest
and most established markets Overall, we saw

sales up 2% on 2012 at constant exchange rates

adjusted operating profit 6% lower before net
restructuning charges

our dividend raised 7% which was Pearson’s 22nd
surarght year of increasing our dwvidend above the
rate of inflaton

Over the past ten years we have increased our
dividend at a compound annual rate of 7%. returning
£2 9bn to shareholders Restructuring is on wack to
deliver benefits in 2014 and beyond.

Princtples of remuneration policy

The remuneration committee believes that the
purpose of its remuneraton policy is to support the
company's strategy and to help deliver sustained
performance and consistent long-term value creatien
i the interests of all stakeholders

Our reward policy 1s aligned with the interests of all
stakeholders in providing

competitive base salares that reflect the marker and
tindividual roles and contnbuuon

a high proporuon of total remuneration being delvered
i vanable forms that are directly tinked o the annual
and fong-term performance of the company

annual incentves that reward achievement of
strategic goals




» long-term incentives that drive long-term earmings and
share price growth and encourage participants in these
plans to acquire and hold Pearson shares in line with
shareholders’ interests

s the oppartumity for many people at Pearson to share
in the company's success through cash-based annual
incentives and bonuses and worldwide participation In
share ownership plans, conunuing practices first started
m {998

We continue to keep our remuneration policy under
review In hght of the prevailing economic condiiions
and the mpact of these on the company's objectives
and strategy

What we did in 2013
Looking back to some specific aspects of policy and
practice in 2013

y we reviewed and established an approprate starting
remuneraton package for john Faflon comprising base
salary. annual and long-term ncentives, allowances
and benefits

» we reviewed and amended the service agreements for
those executive directors including the CEO, who
continued to serve throughout 2013 The consequence
of this review was to remove any enutlement to annuat
incentve from the cafculavon of any compensation that
might be payable on termunation of employment by the
company without notice or cause

» we undertook a regular penodic review of base salanes
for 2013 taking into account general economic and
market condions, the level of increases made across
the company as a whole, the remuneration of
executives in sumilar posirons in comparable
companies and individual performance

» appointments were made to the new Pearson
Executve

» annual iIncentives paid 1o executives for 2013 were
below tat get as they were in 2012, reflecung
performance tn a tough trading environment

» there was a nil pay-out on long-term incentives based
oh 2013 performance reflecung below threshold
performance agamst the company's three-year targets
for earmings per share growth, return on invested
capital and relative total shareholder return

What we've planned for 2014
Looling forward, for 2014

s we have undertalen a full review of the company's
executive remuneranon policy and either confirmed or,
where necessary, established maximum opportunities
for each of the different elements of remuneranon to
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ensure that this policy fully supports the needs of the
business

we have aligned executive remunerauon policy with
the new global educauon strategy and ‘one Pearson’
organisation

we have listened to, and sought to address,
shareholders' concerns and wishes regarding simphcity
and alignment of wnterests

we actively consuited with our major shareholders and
their representative bodies on the directors’
remuneration policy set out in this report

As a consequence

while we have established maximum opportunities for
each of the different elements of remuneratton, in all
cases these represent maximum hmits or caps to cover
afl likely eventualities for the Iife of the policy and
should not be deemed to be a target or an entitlement
For example, for 2014 there will be no increase in
maximum annual ncentive opportunities and award
levels under the long-term incentive plan will be
consistent with those seen in recent years and below
the policy maximum

starting n 2014 and onwards. the size of the global
annual incentive pool and the funding of all annual
incentives across the company will be linked to overall
Pearson results

for performance-related long-term incentive awards
for 2014 for members of the Pearson Execuuve, to
emphasise the importance of earnings growth and

to reward the delivery of the desired outcomes from
the sirategic effart, the weighting of the performance
metrics within the Pearson long-term incentive plan will
be changed from one-third on each measure to half on
earnings per share growth, one-third {no change) on
rewwrn on invested capital and one-sixth on relauve
total shareholder retum

for performance-related long-term incentive awards
for 2015 and onwards, the averaging penod for the
calculauon of refative total shareholder return wall be
moved to the period running up to the year end and
the length of the averaging penod will be increased to
three months This 1s understood to be more in line
with institutional investors’ preferences

to promote simplicity, the previous annual bonus share
matching plan has ceased to operate with the last
awards made m 2013 in respect of annual bonus for
2012 We have not made any compensatory
adjustmerits to annual or long-term incentive
opportunities to take this nto account
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for performance-related long-term incentive awards
for members of the Pearson Execuuve, performance
will continue to be tested over three years and 75% of
the vested shares will conunue to be released at that
pont However, starung with awards for 2014, there
will be a mandatory restriction on parucipants’ ability
to dispose of the 75% of the vested shares (other than
1o meet personal tax habihues) for a further two years
Furthermore particpants’ rights to the release of the
25% of the vested shares will be subject to conunued
employment over the same period

we have affirmed our commitment to share ownership
and increased our mandatory shareholding guidelines
to 300% of salary for the CEOQ and 200% of salary for
other executive directors {compared to 200% and
125% respectively) We will contnue to set
performance targets for our annual and long-term
incentive arrangements that are appropriately
stretching

on ncentive pay-outs, we have clanfied our
arrangements for adiusting for malus and strengthened
our prowvisions for clawback

We are confident that these changed remuneration
arrangements will better suit the needs of Pearseon
going farward

Qur policy and unplementation 1s summarised i more
detail in the remainder of this report

| look forward to the ongoing support of Pearson
shareholders on both the adwisory vote on the
execunve remuneration arrangements as they were
operated in the year as well as the forward-looking
remunerauon policy wihich 1s the subject of the
binding vote

{ am personally committed to an ongoing dialogue with
shareholders regarding executive remuneration and
would therefore welcome any observavons or
questions that mdividual shareholders may wish to put
forward to me | can be contacted at

dawvid arculus@nzegral2 com

Finalty, { would ke 1o thank my fellow members of the
committee and the people who have assisted us for
ther contnbution over the past year

Yours sincerely,

David Arculus
Chasrman, remuneration comimitiee

Introduction

The rest of this report on diectors’ remuner ation
comprises

» the directors’ remuneraton policy report — a forward-
looking statement on renwneraton policy for 2014 and
beyond. and

» the annual remuneration report — a report on
remuneration practice in 2013

Together, this report was compiled in accordance with
Schedule 8 of the Large and Medium-sized Companies
and Groups (Accounts and Reports) {Amendment)
Regulatons 2008 and was approved by the board of
directors on 10 March 2014

The committee believes that the company has
complied with the provisions regarding remuneration
matters contamed withm the UK Corporate
Governance Code

Where required under current regulauons, the
following tables have been subject to audnt

> single total figure of remuneravon and prior year
comparison {page 37)

» remuneration paid to the chairman and non-executive
directors {page 98)

» retirement benefits (page 101)

» details of long-term share interests including awards
made in 2013 {pages 102 to {05}

» payments to former directors (pages (05 and 106)
» payments for loss of office (page [07)

y interests of directors and value of shareholdmngs
{page 108)
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Directors’ remunerauon policy report

This report outlines the company's policy on directors’
remuneration that apphes to executive directors, the
chairman and non-executive directors Reference is also
made 10 the remunerauon pohcy for other members of
the Pearson Executive (currendy |3 in number) who are
not directors but who fall within the commuittee’s remit

The policy 5 intended to last three years and will take
effect, subject to shareholder approval, at the AGM on
25 Apni 2014

The policy report ts comprised of the following parts

future policy table
selection of performance measures and 1arget setting

legacy arrangements under the annual bonus share
matching plan

remuneraton policy for ather employees
pay and performance scenario analysis

other policies relating to directors such as recruitment,
service Contracts and termination provisions, executive
directors’ non-executive directorships

considerauons taken nto account when determining
remuneration policy for directors

chairman’s and non-executive directors' remuneration

The committee considers that a successful
remuneraton policy needs to be suffictently flexible
to take account of future changes in the company’s
business environment and In remuneraton practice
Our starting point continues to be that total
remuneration should reward both short- and long-
term resuits, delivening competitive rewards for
target performance but outstanding rewards for
exceptional performance

Section 4 Governance 81

The commuttee has avoided, where possible, including
generdl discretions in the poiicy table However,
excepuional or genwnely unforeseen circumstances
may arse i the future and i those circumstances it
may be in shareholders’ interests for Pearson to putin
place remuneration arrangements that are outside the
terms of the policy set out i this report [f this
happens, the commuittee will be permutted to
nmplement remuneration arrangements that it
considers appropriate in the circumstances n these
crcumstances, Pearson would consult in advance with
major sharehoclders before 1t does so and would
explain the exercise of this discretion in the following
year's directors’ remunerzuon repori

Given the long-term nature of some of Pearson's
rermuneration structures — including obhgauons under
service contracts, incentive plans and pension
arrangements — a number of pre-existing obligauons
witl remain at the ume that the new policy becomes
effective, including obligations that are ‘grandfathered’
by wirtue of being in force at 27 fjune 2012 Pearson's
policy 15 to honour all pre-exisung obligations,
commitments or other enutlements that were entered
into before the effective date of thus policy
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Future pohcy table for executive directors

Total remuneration 1s made up of fixed and performance-linked elements, with each element supporting different
strategic objectives Total remuneration s normally reviewed annually and benchmarked against total
rernuneration for similar positons in comparable companies

Base salary

PURPQSE AND LINK TO STRATEGY
> Helps to recruit, reward and retain

» Reflects competitive market level, role, slulls,
experience and individual contribution

OPERATION

Base salaries are set to provide the appropriate rate
of remuneration for the job, taking nto account
relevant recruitment markets, business sectors and
geographic regions Base salaries may be setn
sterling or the local currency of the country in which
the director s based

Base salaries are normally reviewed annually for the
following year taking into account general econonuc
and market conditons, the level of increases made
across the company as a whole, particular
ctrcumstances such as changes in role, responsibilities
or organisauon, the remuneration and level of
increases for executives in Similar postuons n
comparable compantes, and indmdual performance

For benchmarking purposes, we review
remuneration by reference to different comparator
groups We look at survey data from FTSE 10Q
companies with significant international exposure,
excluding financial services, the FTSE 20-50.
excluding financial services, a broad media industry
group of US companies, select UK human capral-
intensive businesses, and UK and US so-called media
convergence companies with a focus on media,
informaton services and technology These
companies are of a range of sizes relative to Pearson,
but the method our independent advisers Towers
Warson, use to make comparisons on remuneration

takes this variation in size into account We also look
at publicly disclosed and proxy data for global media
convergence comparators with a focus on media and
technology We use these companies because they
represent the wider execunive talent pool from
which we might expect ro recruit externally and the
pay market Lo which we nmight be vulnerable if our
remunNeraton was not compettive

Base salaries are paid in cash via the regular empioyee
payralt {monthly in the UK and every two weeks in
the US) and are subject to all necessary withholdings

No malus or clawback provisions apply to base
salary

OPPORTUNITY

Base salary increases for executive directors will
not ordinarly exceed 0% per annum and will take
account of the base salary increases elsewhere
within the company

The committee will 1 etain the discretion to deliver
base salary mcreases in excess of 10% per annum
in specific ndividual situations including internal
promotions and material changes to the business
or the role

PERFORMANCE CONDITIONS

None, although performance of both the company
and the individual are taken mto account when
determurung an appropriate level of base salary
increase each year

PERFORMANCE PERIOD

None




Allowances and benefits

PURPQSE AND LINK TQ STRATEGY

» Help to recruit and retam

» Reflect local competitive market
CPERATION

Allowances and benefits comprise cash allowances and
non-cash benefits and inter alig mclude travel-related
benefits (comprising company car, car aliowance and
private use of a driver), health-related benefits
(comprising health care, health assessment and gym
subsidy), and risk benefits (cornprising additional ife
cover and long-term disability insurance that are not
covered by the company’s retirement plans)
Allowances may also include, where appropriate,
locauon and market premium and housing allowance
although no continuing director s n receipt of such
allowances Aliowances and benefits recerved in 2043
are set outin the annual remuneraton report

Directors are also covered by the company's
directors’ and officers’ lability insurance and an
indemmity in respect of certain third-party liabilities

Other benefits may be offered on the same terms
as to other employees

Allowances and benefits do not form part of
pensionable earmngs

Mo malus or clawback prowvisions apply to
allowances and benefits

Retirement benefits

PURPOSE AND LINK TO STRATEGY

» Help to recrutt and retain

» Recognise long-term commitment to the company
OPERATION

New employees in the UK are ehigible to jon the
Money Purchase 2003 secuon of the Pearson Group
Pension Plan New employees in the US are eligible
to join the 401()) plan

Under the Money Purchase 2003 secuon of the
Pearson Group Pension Plan in the UK, normal
reurement age s 62, but, subject to company
consent, reurement s currently possible from age 35
or earlier in the event of H-health During service, the
company and the employee make contributtons o
a pension fund Account balances are used to provide
benefits at retrement Pensions for 2 member's
spouse, dependent children and/or nominated
financial dependants are payable on death

Secuion 4 Governance

OPPORTUNITY

The provision and level of cash allowances and non-
cash benefits are compeutive and appropriate in the
context of the local market

The total vatue of cash allowances and non-cash
benefits for executive directors will not ordinanty
exceed 15% of base salary in any year The
committee will retain the discretion to deliver a total
value of benefits in excess of 15% of base salary in
specific indvidual situations including changes in
individual arcumstances such as health status,
changes in the role such as relocation, increases in
the cost of current benefits that are outside
company control, and changes in benefits’ providers

Executive directors are also eligible to participate n
savings-related share acquisituon programmes in the
UK, US and rest of world, which are not subject to
any performance condittons, on the same terms as
other employees

PERFORMANCE CONDITIHONS
None
PERFORMANCE PERIOD

None

Under the 401(k) plan i the US, which is a defined
contribution plan, account balances will be used to
provide benefits at reurement In the event of death
before reurement, the account balances will be used
to provide benefits for designated beneficiaries

Depending on when they joined the company,
directors may participate in the Final Pay section of
the Pearson Group Pension Planin the UK or the
defined benefit Pearson lnc Pension Plan in the US,
both of which are ciosed to new members

Under the Final Pay section of the Pearson Group
Pension Plan in the UK, notmal reurement age 1s 62,
but, subject to company consent, retiremeant is
currenty possible from age 55 or earlier in the event
of lll-health During service, the employee makes a
contribution of 5% of pensionable salary and the
pension fund builds up based on final pensionable
salary and pensionable service The accrued pension
ts reduced on reurement prior to age 60. Pensions for
a member's spouse, dependent children and/or
nominated financial dependants are payable on death
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Retirement benefits contnued

In the US, the defined benefit Pearson Inc Pension
Plan provides a lump sum benefit thatis converuble
o an annuity on retirement 1he lump sum benefi
accrued at an age dependent percentage of capped
compensation unul 3|1 December 200! when further
benefit accruals ceased for most employees

Employees who sausfied criteria of age and service
as of 30 November 1998 continue to earn benefits
under an alternative formula that provides for | 5%
of final average eairnings, adjusted for US Social
Securtty The benefit paid 10 these employees is the
maximum of the lump sum benefit converted to an
annuity and the benefit earned under the alternative
final average earnings formula

Executive directors and other executives across the
company may be entitled to additional pension
benefits 1o take account of the cap on the amount of
benefits that can be provided from the all-employee
pension arrangements i the US and the UK

Members of the Pearson Group Pension Plan who
joined after May 198% are subject to an upper imit
of earmings that can be used for pension purposes,
known as the earnings cap This lirmit, £108,600 as at
6 April 2006 was abolished by the Finance Act 2004
However the Pearson Group Pension Plan has
retained its own ‘cap’, which will increase annualiy (n
hne with the UK Government's Index of Retail Prices
{All ltemns) The cap was £137.400 as ac 6 Apri 2042
As a result of the UK Government's A-Day changes
effective from April 2006, UK executive directors
and other members of the Pearson Group Pension
Plan who are, or become, affected by the ifetime
allowance or new hires who opt out of membership
of the Plan may be provided with a cash supplement
of normally up to 26% of salary as an alternative to
further accrual of pension benefits

No malus or clawback provisions apply to
reurement benefits

Note Eficcuve from £ Aprif 200t the anoyal allowance (¢ the mamum
arnour of pension saving thar benefits from tax rehef ach vear) reduced
from £255 000 1o £50 000 and wifl further reduce to £40 GO0 from 6 Aptd
2014 Effecuve 6 Apri 2012 thelfenme allowince (1 e the maximuom amoum
of pension and/or lump sum that can benefit i om tax rehef) reduced from
£1 Bmto £1 5mand will further reduce wo £1 25m from 6 April 2014

OPPORTUNITY

In the UK. company contributions for eligible
employees ta the Money Purchase 2003 secuon of
the Pearson Group Pension Plan amount up to 16%
of pensionable salary {double the amount of the
employee contribution, which 1s imited according
to certaimn age bands)

In the US, company contributions to the 401 (k} plan
amount to 100% of the first 3% of eligible
compensation contributed by the employee and 50%
of the next 3%, plus a basic annual company
contribution of | 25% of ehgible compensation
Pearson inc Pension Plan parucipants who were at
least age 40 at 31 December 2001 can recetve an
addiional 0 5% to | 5% of pay

John Falion 1s a member of the Final Pay secuon of
the Pearson Group Pension Plan His pension accrual
rate s 1/30th of pensionable salary per annum,
restricted to the plan earnings cap Untl April 2006,
the company also contributed 1o a Funded
Unapproved Returement Benefits Scheme (FURBS)
on his behalf Since April 2006, he has receved a
taxable and non-pensionable cash supplement in
replacement of the FURBS

Robin Freestone 15 a member of the Money Purchase
2003 secuon of the Pearson Group Pension Plan
Company contributions are 16% of pensionable
salary per annum, restricted to the plan earnings

cap Until April 2006, the company also contnibuted
to a Funded Unapproved Retrement Benefits
Scheme (FURBS) on his behalf Since April 2006,

he has received a taxable and non-pensionable

cash supplement in replacement of the FURBS

The company has no ongoing financial liabihites in
respect of FURBS

Mo continung director ts currently a member of
the defined benefit Pearson Inc Pension Plan

PERFOPMAMNCE CONDITIONS
None
PEAFORMANCE PERIOD

None




Annual incentives

PUFPPOSE AND LINK TO STRATFGY

» Motvate the achievement of annual strategic goals
and personal objectives

» Provide a focus on key financial metrics

» Reward indwidual contribution to the success of
the company

OPERATION

Annual incentuve 1s delivered entirely in cash and
does nat form part of pensionable earnings

Measures and performance targets are set by the
commiitee at the start of the year with payment
made after year end following the committee’s
assessment of performance relative to targets

The plans are designed to incenuvise and reward
underlying performance and actual results are
adjusted for the effect of foreign exchange and for
portfolio changes (acquisitions and disposals) and
other factors that the committee considers relevant
n the performance year

Annual incentive plans are discreuonary The
committee reserves the right to adjust payments
up or down before they are made If it believes
exceptional factors warrant doing s The
committee may i exceptional circurmnstances make
a special award where it s sausfied that the normal
operation of the annual incenuve does not provide
an appropriate incentive or reward to partcipants

The commuttee also reserves the right as a form

of malus to adjust payments before they are made
if special circumstances exist that warrant this, such
as finanaial misstatement, indwidual musconduct

or reputational damage to the company

The committee also reserves, in the same special
arcumstances a right to reclaim or claw back
payments or awards that have already been made.

OPPORTUMITY
Annual incentives wall not exceed 200% of base salary

For the chief executive the indvidual maximum

incentive opportunity that will apply for 201415 180%
of base salary (which 1s the same as applied for 2013)

For other executive directors and other members
of the Pearsan Executve, indwidual maximum
incentive opporeunities vary by individual but will be
no more than 170% of base salary

Section 4 Governance 85

For the chief executive, other executive directors
and other members of the Pearson Executive, there
1s normally no pay-out for performance at threshold

No adjustment has been made 1o annual incentive
opporturites for the cessation of the annual bonus
share matching plan under which the fast condmonal
awards were made in 2013 in respect of 2012 annual
incentive

PERFORMANCE CONDITIONS

The commuttee has the discretion to select the
performance measures, targets and relative
werghtings from year to year to ensure continuing
alignment with strategy and to ensure targets are
sufficiently stretchung

The commuttee establishes a threshold below which
no pay-out is achieved and a maximum at or above
which the annual incentive pays out in full

For 2014 and enwards, the funding of annual
ncenuves will normally be related to the
performance against targets for Pearson’s adjusted
earnings per share (or operaung profit), sales, and
operating cash flow For 2014, the weightings will be
60% on adjusted earnings per share, 20% on sales
and 20% on operating cash flow

Individual annual incentive pay-outs will also tale
nto account individual performance against personal
objecuves Personal objectives are agreed with the
chief executive {er 1in the case of the chief execunve,
the chairman) and may be functional, operational,
strategic and non-financial and include inter ala
objecuves refaung to environmental, soctal and
governance Issues

Details of performance measures, wetghtings and
targets will be disclosed in the 2nnual remuneration
report for the relevant financial year if and to the
extent that the committee deems them to be no
longer cormeraaily sensitive

PFRFORMANCE PERIGD

One year
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

Long-term incentives

PURPOSE AND LINK TO STRATEGY
» Help 1o recruit, reward and retain

> Drive long-term earnings, share price growth and
value creation

» Align the interests of executives and shareholders

» Encourage long-term shareholding and
commitment to the company

» Link management's long-term reward and wealth
to corporate performance in a flexible way

OPERATION

Awards of restricted shares are made on an
annual basis

Awards of restricted shares for executive directors
and other members of the Pearson Executive vest
on a shding scale based on performance against
stretching corporate performance targets measured
at the end of the three-year performance period

For performance-related awards for members of
the Pearson Executive, performance will contunue
to be tested over three years and 75% of the vested
shares will continue to be released at that point
However, startng with awards rade n 2014, there
will be a mandatory restriction on participants’
ability ro dispose of the 75% of the vested shares
{other than to meet personal tax liabiwes) for

a further two years. Furthermore, parvapants’
rights to the release of the 25% of the vested shares
will be subject to conunued employment over the
same period

Where shares vest, participants also receive
additional shares represenung the gross value of
dividends that would have been paid on these shares
during the performance period and reinvested

The plan permits awards of restricted shares to be
made that are not subject to performance conditions
to sausfy reward and retention objectives Howaever,
other than i exceptional arcumstances on
recruitment, it s the company’s normai policy not to
award restricted shares 1o executive directors and
other members of the Pearson Executive without
performance conditions

The long-term incentuve plan also provides for the
grant of stack opuons Whlst ttis nat the
committee's Intention t¢ grant stock opuions in 2014
or the foreseeable future, the committee beheves
that it should retain the flexibility of granung stock
options in addition 1o, or instead of, restricted stock
awards in the rnight arcumstances Any deaston by
the committee to grant stock opuons in the future

would take account of best pracuce prevailing at
the time The commiites would consult with
shareholders before granting stock options to
executive directors

An option granted under the stock option element
may not generally be exerased unti a tme specified
when the opuon ts granted The date onwhich
opuons would become exercisable would be set by
the committee Options may not be exerased later
than the tenth anmversary of grant Any opuions
granted to executive directors would vest only if
stretching performance conditions are achieved over
a three-year minimum vestng period Any options
would vest on a sliding scale based on performance
over the period There will be no re-testing

Pearson's reported financial results for the refevant
periods are used to measure performance

The commuttee reserves the right to adjust pay-outs
up or down before they are released taking into
account exceptional factors that distort underlying
business performance orif it believes exceptional
factors warrant doing so In making such
adjustments, the committee I1s guided by the
principle of aligning shareholder and management
interests

The committee also reserves the nght as a form

of malus to adjust pay-outs belore they are released
if exceprional circumstances exist that warrant this,
such as financal misstatement, individual misconduct
or reputational damage to the company.

The commuttee also reserves, in the same special
crcumstances, a right to reclaim or claw back pay-
outs or awards that have already been released

OPPORTUMITY

We set the level of individual awards by taking into
account

» the face value of individual awards at the ume of grant,
assurming that performance targets are met in full,

» market practice for comparable companies and
market assessments of total remunerauvon from
our mdependent advisers,

> indwvidual roles and responsibiliues, and
» company and individual performance

Restricted share awards to execuuve directors may
normally be made up to a maximum face value of
400% of base salary Awards in excess of 400%

of base salary may be made in excepuonal
arcumstances, for example, for retenvon purposes
or to reflect partcular business situanrons




The reasons for any such excepuonal awards will be
disclosed n the annual report for the year in which
they are made

The value of awards at pay-out 1s subject to the
extent to which performance and any other
conditions are met and the share price at the time
of vesting The proportion of the award that vests
at threshold level of performance may vary by
performance condition

Whilst 1t 1s not the committee’s intenuon to grant
stock options in 2014 or the {oreseeable future, the
rmaximum value of stock opuen awards would be
the equivalent expected value of the maximum
restricted share awards set out above, based on an
independent assessment of thetr net present value
taking into account all the conditions

For 2014, we will set the level of individual restricted
share awards consistent with those seenin recent
years and within the policy maximurmn taking into
account the factors set out above

MNo adjustment has been made to long-term
incentive opportunities for the cessation of the
anaual bonus share matching plan under which the
last condinonal awards were made 1n 2013 in respect
of 2012 annual mcenuve

PERFORMANCE CONDITIONS

The commuttee will determmne the performance
measures, weightings and targets govermng an
award of restricted shares prior to grant to ensure
continung alignment with strategy and to ensure
that targets are sufficiently stretching

The committee estabhshes a threshold below which
no pay-out Is achieved and a maximum at or above
which the award pays out mn full

For 2014 and onwards, awards will normally be
subject to the achievement of targets for growth in
earnings per share, return on invested capital and
relative total shareholder return For 2014, to
emphasise the importance of earnings growth and to
reward the delivery of the desired outcomes from
the strategic effort, the weighting of the performance
metrics within the Pearson long-term incenuve plan
will be changed from one-third on each measure to
half on earmings per shar e growth, one-third on
return on invested caprtal (no change) and one-sixth
on relative total shareholder return
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We will set targets for the 2014 awards that are
consistent with the company’s strategic objectives
over the period to 2016 Full details of the
performance measures, weighungs and targets for
2014 and the proporuon of the award payable at
threshold will be set out i the annual remuneration
repartfor 2014

As with restricted shares, the committee will
determine the performance condiuons that apply
to any awards of stock options prior to grant

The mntention would be that these condiuons would
be the same as apply to restricted shares

Total shareholder return (TSR} s the return to
shareholders frorm any growth in Pearson’s share
price and reinvested dividends over the performance
period Forlong-term incentive awards, TSR is
measured relative to the constituents of the FTSE
World Medsa index over a three-year period
Cormpanies that drop out of the index are normally
excluded 1 e only companies in the index for the
entire period are counted Share price s averaged
over three months at the start and end of the
performance pertad Dividends are treated as
remnvested on the ex-dmvidend date, (in ine with the
Datastrearm methodology The vesting of shares
based on relative TSR 1s subject to the committee
satisfying ttself that the recorded TSR 15 a genume
reflection of the underlying financial performance
of the business

Return on invested capital (ROIC) 1s adjusted
operating profitless cash tax expressed as a
percentage of gross invested capital {net operaung
assets plus gross goodwili)

Adjusted earmings per share (EPS) is calculated by
dividing the adjusted earnings attributable to equity
shareholders of the company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the
year, excluding any ordmary shares purchased by the
company and held in trust (see note 8 of the finanaal
statements for a detalled description of adjusted
earnings per share} EPS growth is calculated using
the pont-to-point method This method compares
the adjusted EPS in the company's accounts for the
financial year ended prior to the grant date with the
adjusted EPS for the financial year ending three years
fater and calculates the imphait compound annual
growth rate over the period

PERFORMANCE PERIOD

Three years
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

Selecuion of performance measures and target setting

In the setecuon and weighuing of performance measures
for the annual and long-term incentive awards the
commitiee takes nto account Pearson’s strategic
objecttves and short- and long-term business priorives

fn the case of annual incentives the commuittee chose
sales, earnings per share or operating profit, and
aperatng cash flow as being relevant measures of
Pearson's performance against its short-term strategic
objecuves and business priorities

In the case of fong-term incentives, the committee
chose earnings per share growth in order to reward
the delivery of the desired cutcomes from the
strategic effort and because strong bottom-hne
growth is imperative if we are to improve our total
shareholder return and our return on invested capital
We chose return on invested capital because, aver the
past few years, the transformation of Pearson has
significantly increased the capital invested in the
business (mostly in the form of goodwill associated
with acquisitions) and required substanual cash
investment to ntegrate those acquisinons We chose
total shareholder return relative to the constituents
of the FTSE World Media index because, in line with
many of our shareholders, we felt that part of
execunve diwrectors’ rewards should be linked to
performance refative to the company s peers

The performance ranges chosen set a careful balance
between upside opportunty and downside risk and
are normally based on targets in accordance wath the
company s operating and strategic plans

Legacy arrangements under the annual bonus share
matching plan

Up to and mcluding 2013 in respect of annual incentives
for 2012, awards were made under the annual bonus
share marching plan This plan encouraged executive
directors and other semior managers to acquire and
hold Pearson shares and aligned the interests of
executtves and shareholders Senior managers across
the company were invited to invest up to 50% of theur
after-tax annual mcentive in Pearson shares purchased
in the market and hold these shares for three years,

in return for the opporturnity to earn addinonal free
matching shares and dividend shares, depending on
performance aganst a real growth in earnings per
share performance condiion Where matching shares
vest, parucipants also receive additional shares
representing the gross value of dvidends that would
have been pard on the matching shares during the
performance period and reinvested The maximum
matching award 1s equal to the number of shares that

could have been acquired with the amount of pre-tax
annual bonus mvested m Pearson shares (1 e one
matching share for every one imvested share, grossed
up for tax)

Remuneration policy for other employees

The approach to remunerauon for the broader
ermployee population varies by level and geography,
but i1s broadly consistent with that of directors

» The approach to setung base salary increases
elsewhere in the company takes into account
economic factors, competitive market rates, roles,
skills, experience and mndividual performance

~

Allowances and benefits for employees reflect the
local labour market in which they are based

~

As part of their overall reurement arrangements,
execuuve directors parucipate in the same
underlying pension arrangements that have been
set up for Pearson employees in the US and the UK

Many employees participate in some form of cash-
based annual incentive, bonus, profit-share or sales
commission plan Annual incenuve plans for the
Pearson Executive form the basis of the annual
incentrve plans below the level of the principal
operating compantes and establish performance
measures and standards and setthe ceilling for
mdividual incenuve opporiunities

~

-

Approximately 5% of the company's employees
below the Pearson Executive - sefected on the basis
of their role, performance and potential — currently
hold ume-vestung shares under the long-term
incentive plan

~

All employees (including executive directors) are
also eligible to parucipate in savings-related share
acquisttion programmes in the UK, US and the
rest of the world, which are not subject to any
performance condimons

Pay and performance scenario analysis

Consistent with its policy, the commuittee places
considerable emphasis an the performance-linked
elementsi e annual and long-term incentives

The chart overleaf shows what each director
could expect to receive in 2014 under different
performance scenarios, based on the following
definitions of performance




ELEMENTS OF REMUNERATION
AHD ASSUMPTIONS

PERFQORMANCE
SCENARIC
2014 base salary, allowances,
benefits, and reurement benefits at
the same percentage of base salary
as m 2013, maximum mdividual
annual incentive as per pohcy
maximum value of 2013 long-term
incenuive awatrd

Target 2014 base salary. aliowances,
benefits, and reurement benefits at
the same percentage of base salary
as n 2013, rarget individual annual
incenuve as per policy, target value
of 2013 long-ter m iIncentive award
(Towers Watson's independent
assessment of the expected value of
the award 1 e the net present value
taking into account all the conditions)

Maxaimum

Minimum 2014 base salary, allowances,
benefits, and reurement benefits at
the same percentage of base salary
as in 2013, no annual or fong-

term incentives

Note The vatue of long term mcantves does not take into account dividend
awards that are payable an thezelease of restricted shares nor any changes
mn share price

On this basis, the refative weighting of fixed and
performance-related remuneratson and the absolute
size of the remunerauon packages for the chief
executive and the chief finanaial officer are as follows

Graph removed

We will continue to review the mix of fixed and
performance-hnked remuneration on an annual basts,
consistent with our overall policy
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Recruitment

The committee expects any new exacutive directors
to be engaged on terms that are consistent with the
general remunerauon principles outiined in this policy
In particular, the company’s policy is that regular
variable remuneraton would normally be awarded
within the same parameters and subject to the same
performance conditions as for the current executive
directors outhned in the policy, save that the
committee may provide thatin exceptional
circumstances an annual or long-term incentive award
may be subject to a requirement of continued service
over a specified period or some other speafied
requirement, rather than a corporate performance
condimon The terms of any such exceptional award
will be disclosed in the relevant subsequent annual
remuneration report

The commuttee recognises that it cannot always
predict accurately the circumstances in which any
new directors may be recruted The committee may
determme that it Is In the interests of the company
and shareholders to secure the services of a
particular indwidual which may require the committee
to take account of the terms of that individual’s existing
employment and/or their personal arcumistances
Examples of circumstances in which the commuttee
expects it might need to do this are

» where an existing employee of the comipany is
promoted to the board, in which case the company
will honour all existing contractual commitments
including any outstanding share awards, benefit and
pension entitlements,

» where an individual s relocating in order to take up
the role in which case the company may provide
certain benefits such as reasonabie refocation
expenses, accommodavion for a short period
following appomtment and assistance with visa
applicauions or other immigrauen issues and ongoing
arrangements such as tax equalisation, annual flights
home, and housing allowance,

w

where an individual would be forfeiung valuable
vamable remuneration in order to jomn the campany,
in which case the commrtee may award appropriate
compensation The committee would require
reasonable evidence of the nature and value of any
forfeited award and would, to the extent pracucable,
ensure any campensation was provided on a hike-
for-like basis and was no more valuable than the
forfeited award

in light of the vaiious legacy pension arrangements
enjoyed by the incumbent executive directors, in
determiring the pension arrangements for any new
recruit, the commitiee expects to offer a defined
contribution arrangement with company contribuuans
not exceeding those set out on page 84 but would
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have regard to the recrutt’s exisung arrangements the
market norms in the home country and the existing
pension vehicles available within the company

In malung any decision on any aspect of the
remuneration package for a new recruit, the comnuttee
would balance shareholder expectations, current best
practice and the requirements of any new recruic and
would strive not to pay more than is necessary to
achieve the recruitment The committee would give full
details of the terms of the package of any new recruit in
the next annual remuneration report

Pearson expects any new chairman or non-executtve
director to be engaged on terms that are consistent with
the general remuneration principles outhned n the
relevant sections of this policy However, in the case of
the chairman, the committee may consider it
appropriate to offer a remuneration package that differs
from that of the existng incumbent if that 1s necessary to
attract the most capabie candidate or to reflect the
ndividual's expected duties

Service contracts and termination provisions

in accordance with long established policy, all
executive directors have service agreements under
whnch, other than by termination in accordance with
the terms of these agreements, employment
continues tndefirtely

There are no special provisions for notice or
compensation in the event of a change of control
of Pearson

it1s the company's policy that the company may
terminate the chairman'’s and executive directors’ service
agreements by giving no more than |2 months’ notice

As an alternative, for executive directors the company
may at its discretion pay i lieu of that notice
Payment-in-heu of notice may be made in equal
monthly mstalments from the date of termination to
the end of any unexpired nouce period In the case of
the CEO, paymeni-in-lieu of notice 10 instaiments may
also be subject to mugation and reduced taking into
account earnings from alternative employment

For executive directors, pay in lieu of notice comprises
100% of the annual salary at the date of termination
and the annual cost to the company of providing
penswon and all other benefits For the chairman,

pay in leu of nouce comprises 100% of the annual

fees at the date of termuination in brmited
circumstances, in addion to making 3 full payment

in lieu of notice, the company may permit an executive
director to stay employed after the announcement of
his or her departure for a hmited perod 1o ensure an
effective hand-over and/or ailow ume for a successor
te be appomnted

The company may, depending on the aircumstances
of the termination, determine that it will not pay the
director in lieu of notice and may instead terminate
a director’s contract in breach and make a damages
payment, taking nto account as appropriate the
director's abiity to mutigate his or her ioss

On cessation of employment, save as otherwise
provided for under the rules of Pearson's discretionary
share plans, executive directors’ entitlements to any
unvesied awards lapse automaucally In the case of inury,
disability, li-health or redundancy (as determined by
the committee), where a parucipant’s employing
company ceases to be part of Pearson, or any other
reason if the committee so decides in s absolute
discrenon

» awards that are subject to performance conditions
will stay tn force as ff the parucipant had not ceased
employment and shall vest on the original
vesting date,

» awards that are not subject to a performance
condition wiil be released as soon as practicable
following cessation of employment,

» the number of shares that are released shall be
prorated for the period of the participant’s service in
the restricted period (although the committee may
i its absolute discretion waive or vary the prorating)

In determining whether and how to exercise its
discreuon under Pearson's discretionary share plans
the commuttee will have regard to all relevant
crcumstances disunguishing between different types
of leaver, the circumstances at the time the award was
originally made, the director’s performance and the
arrcumstances in which the director left employment

On cessanon of employment, executve directors,
having been noufied of participauon in an annual
incenuve plan for the relevant financial year, may, at
the committee's discretion, retan entilement to a
pto rata annual incenuve for therr period of service
the financial year prior to ther leaving date. Such pay-
out will normally be calculated in good faith on the
same terms and paid at the same ume as for
conunuing executive directors

Ehgibdrty for allowances and benefits including
retrement benefits normally ceases on retirement
or on the termination of emptoyment for any
other reason

Detals of each indvidual’s service agreement are

outhned in the table overleaf Employment agreements
for other employees are determined according to
tocal labour faw and market pracuce



Individual service agreements

DATE OF AGREEMENT

29 july 2005

POSITION

Chatrman

NOTICE PERIODS

{2 maonths from
the director,
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COMPENSATION ON TERMINATION
OF EMPLOYMENT 8Y THL COMPANY
WITHOUT NOTICE OR CAUSE

Payment-in-lieu of nouce of |00% of
annual fees at the date of terminauon

12 months from
the company

31 December 2012
{John Failon)

17 December 2012
(Robin Freestone)

Execuntive directors

Six months from
the director,
12 months from
the company

Payment-in-heu of notice of 100%
of annual salary at the date of
termination and the annual cost
of penston and all other benefits

Note Under pay in lieu of notice the annuat cosy of pension lor #xecutve directors 1s normally caleulated as the sum where appleable, of anamount equal 1o
the company 5 cost of providing the exocubive s pension ender the pension plan based on the fFuture Service Company Contribution R e for the rolevam secuon
of ihe peasion plan as stated w the most reeent actwanal valuauon [1s at te date of terminavion of emplayment) as imaed by the earmings cap and any <ash
allowance in hew of pensian or 1o take account of fact thatpension benefits nd iife assurance cover are restricred by the earmings cap

Executive directors’ non-executive directorships

The committee’s policy is that executive directors
may, by agreement with the board, serve as non-
executives of other comparues and retam any fees
payable for their services

Employment conditions

{n accordance with the committee’s charter and terms
of reference, the committee’s remst does not include
remuneration matiers below that of the chiefl
executive, the other executve directors and other
mermnbers of the Pearson Executive Hawever, before
the remuneration packages for the Pearson Executive
are set for the year ahead, the commuttee considers

a report from the chief executive and chref human
resources officer on general pay trends in the market
and the level of pay mcreases across the company

as awhole This helps to ensure that executive
remuneration packages are reviewed in the context
of the wider organisation

The company consuits with various employee
representative bodies — including trade unions and
worlks councails in some jurnisdictions — about the
company’s strategy competitiveness and performance
of the business and other matters affecting employees
The company also conducts an employee engagement
survey to find out how people feel about working for
Pearson, what they think about the work they do,

the opportunities they have and the rewards they get
{including a section on pay and benefits) The company
uses all of this feedback to inform deasions on people-
related activities, resources and investrment, local
management action plans and wider business unit and
arganisational strategies

It 1s the company's intention to conunue to engage
with employees and employee representatives m this
way In the future

The committee has not consulted directly with
employees on the setting of the directors’
remunerauon policy

Shareholder views

The company consults regularty with shareholders
on all matters affecting 1ts strategy and business
operations As part of that process, we also engage
with shareholders on matters refating to executive
remuneraton

The committee continues to be aware of and respond
to best practice guidelines of sharehclders and their
representative bodies

The commuttee actuively consulted with the company's
major shareholders and thewr representative bodies
on the drectors’ remuneravon policy set out in this
report The consultaton provided some vaiuable
feedback relating to remunerauon pohicy, company
performance and business strategy Specifically,
shareholders commented on the operation of the
long-term incentuive plan, the use of fiexibility and
discreton, and the policy on recruitment They
supported the committee s proposals on deferral/
hotding periods for vested shares and shareholding
gutdehines And. on incentive pay-outs, they requested
clarificatron of our arrangements for adjustments for
malus and the strengthening of our clawback
prowvisions

These matters have been addressed in this policy report
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

Future pohcy table for chairman’s and non-executve directors’ remuneration

The table below summarises policy with respect to the remuneration of the chairman and non-executive directors

PURFOSE AND LINK TQ STRATEGY

To attract and retan high calibre mdnaduals, with
appropriate expertence or industry refevant skills,
by offering market compettive fee levels

QPERATION

The chairman is paid a single fee for all of bus
responsibilities

The chairman’s fee 1s set at a level that 1s competitive
with those of chairmen wn simidar positions
comparable companies The chairman 1s not enutled
to any annual or fong-term incentive, retirement or
other employee benefits

The non-executive directors are pard a basic fee
The chairmen and members of the main board
committees and the senior independent director
are paid an additonal fee to reflect their extra
responsibilities

The chairman and the non-executive directors are
covered by the company’s normal arrangements for
directors’ and officers’ liability insurance and an
indemnity in respect of certain third-party labiliies

The company reimburses the chairman’s and non-
executive directors’ travel and other business
expenses and any tax incurred thereon, if applicable

A mirsmum of 25% of the basic non-executive
directors’ fee 15 paid in Pearson shares that the non-
executive directors have committed to retam for the
period of thesr directorships Shares are acquired
quarterly at the prevailing market price with the
ndividual after-tax fee payments

Fees for non-executive directors are determined

by the full board having regard to market practce
and within the restrictions contained in the
company’s Artcies of Assocation MNon-executive
directors receve no other pay or benefits (other
than reimbursement for expenses incurred in
connection with their directorship of the company)
and do not parucipate in the company's equity-based
incentive plans

Non-executive directors serve Pearson under
lecters of appointment which are renewed annually
and do not have service contracts For non-
executive directors, there is no notice perod or
entitlement to compensation on the terrmination of
thew directorships

OPPORTUNITY

The chairman’s fees were last reviewed in 2010
and increased with effect from | April 2011 with a
comrmtment to review againin 2014 Fees for the
non-execurive directors were last increased with
effect from 1 July 2010

The structure of non-executve directors’ fees with
effect from | May 201415 as follows

PIRECTOR FE
Non-executive director £70,000
Chairmanship of audit committee £27 500
Chairmanship of remuneration commitiee £22.000
Chan manship of reputauon and

responsibihty committee £10 000
Membership of audit committee £15 000
Membership of remuneration comrmittee £10.000
Membership of reputation and

responstbility commttee £5 000
Senior independent director £22 000

The maximum opportunity per director depends
on individual duties or combinauion of duties in
accordance with this structure The total fees
payable to the non-executive directors are subject
to the limit set out in the Arucles of Association of
the company (currently £750,000) and as increased
by ordinary resolution from time to tume

The fees for the chairman remains unchanged at
£500.000 per year

PERFOPHMANCE CONDITIONS

None
PERFORMANCE PERIOD

None




Annual remuneration report

The remuneration commuittee presents the annual
remuneration report, which will be put to shareholders
as an advisory (non-binding) vote at the Annual
General Meeung ta be held on 25 Apri 2014

This report comprises of a number of sections

» The remuneration committee and ItS acuvities
» Voung outcome at 2013 AGM

» Single figure of total remuneration and prior
year comparison

y Detail of executive remuneration for 2013

y Detall of long-term share interests including awards
made in 2013

> Payments to former directors

» Payments for loss of office

» Interests of directors and value of shareholdings
» Executive directors’ non-execuuve directorships
» Histarical performance and remuneration

» Comparauve information

» Information on changes to remuneratton for 2014

Section 4 Governance
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The remuneraton committee and Its activities

Composition

Dawvid Arculus chaired the remuneration committee far
the year 2013, the other members were Vivienne Cox,
Ken Hydon, Joshua Lewts and Glen Moreno Dawd
Arculus, Vivienne Cox, Ken Hydon and Joshua Lews
are independent non-executive directors Glen
Moreno, chairman of the board, 1s a member of the
committee as permitted under the UK Corperate
Gavernance Code

Internal advisers to the committee

ichn Falion, chief execuuve, Robin Freastone, chief
financial officer, Robin Baliszewsla, formerly director
for people, Melinda Wolfe, chief human rescurces
officer from October 2013, Robert Head, director for
executive reward, and Stephen Jones, SVP company
secretanal, provided material assistance to the
commuttee during the year They attended meetings of
the commuttee, although none of them was involved in
any deaisions relatng to his or her own remuneration

External advisers to the commuttee

To ensure that the committee receves independent
advice, Towers Watson supplies survey data and
advises on market trends, long-term incentives and
cther general remuneration matters Towers Watson
was selected and appointed by the commuttee through
a formal tendering process Towers Watson also
advised the company on health and welfare benefits m
the US and provided consulung advice directly to
certain Pearson operating companies owers Watson
15 a member of the Remuneration Consuttants’ Group,
the body which oversees the code of conduct in
refacion to executive remuneration consulung in the
UK During the year, Towers Watson was paid fees for
advice to the commuttee, which were charged ona
ume spent basis, of £89.129 As part of «ts annual
review of its performance and effectiveness, the
comnuttee remains sausfied tnat Towers Watson s
advice was objecuve and independent and that Towers
Watson's provision of other services in no way
compromises its independence

Responsibility
The commuttee’s principal duues are 1o

determine and regularly review the remuneration
policy for the executive directors, the presidents of the
prncipal geographtc markets and lines of business and
other members of the Pearson Executive who report
directly to the CEO (Executve Management)

-

~

~

N

~

o

~

This policy includes base safary, annual and long-term
mcentives, pension arrangements, any other benefits
and terminaton of employment

repularly review the implementation and operation of
the remunerauon policy for Executive Management
and approve the mdmtdual remuneration and benefits
packages of the executive directors

The commuttee’s duties are also to

approve the design of and determine targets for,

any performance-related pay plans operated by the
company and approve the total payments to be made
under such plans

review the design of the company's long-term incentive
and other share plans for approval by the board and
shareholders

advise and decide on general and specific arrangements
in connection with the termination of employment of
executive directors

review and approve corporate goals and objectives
retevant to CEO remuneration and evaluate the CEOQ's
performance in hight of those goais and objectives

have delegated responsibility for determining the
remuneration and benefits package of the chairman

of the board

appoint and set the terms of engagement for any
remuneration consultants who adwise the commuttee
and montor the cost of such adwice

The cormnnuttee's full charter and terms of reference
are avatlable on the company’s website

Annually, the committee reviews s own performance,
consutution and charter and rerms of reference to
ensure It s operaung at maxinum effecuveness and
recommends any changes it considers necessary to the
board for approval

The committee participated in a survey to review its
performance and effectveness i July 2013 looking at
areas such as the clarty of roles and responsibilities,
the composiuon of the commitiee, the use of ume,
the quality and umeliness of meeting matenals, the
opporwunity for discussion and debate, dialogue with
management and access to independent advice

The committee concluded that it 1s operating
effectively and noted the challenges for the year ahead



Meeungs in 2013
The committee met five mes during 2013 The
matters discussed and actions taken were as follows

20 FEBRUARY 2013

» Confirmed the leaving arrangements for Rona Farhead

» Noted the acuvity of the standing committee of the
board in relation to the operation of the company’s
equity-based reward programmes

» Noted company's use of equity for employee share
plans

» Noted Towers Watson's overview of the current
remuneration environment

y Reviewed and approved 2012 annual incentive plan
pay-outs

» Reviewed and approved provisional 2010 long-term
incentive plan pay-outs

y Approved vesting of 2010 annual bonus share matching
awards and release of shares

> Reviewed and approved increases in base salaries for
2013 for the Pearson management commitiee (now
called the Pearson Executive)

» Reviewed 2013 Pearson and operating company annual
incentve plan targets

» Reviewed and approved 2013 individual annual
mcenuve opportuniues for the Pearson management
committee

» Reviewed 2013 long-term incentive awards and
associated performance condiaons for the Pearson
management committee

» Reviewed and noted total remuneratien for members
of the Pearson management committee for 2012
and 2013

» Reviewed and approved the 2012 report on directors’
remuneration

» Reviewed and approved the 2012 annual incenuve
pay-out for Marjorie Scardino

» Reviewed and approved the 2012 annual incentive
pay-out and 2013 remuneration package for
John Fallon
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24 APRIL 2013

-

Noted the activity of the standing committee of the
board in relation to the operation of the company’s
equity-based reward programmes

~

Confirmed 2010 long-term mcentive plan pay-outs
including element refating to relative shareholder
return performance and release of shares

Confirmed 2013 Pearsen and operating company
annual ncenuve plan targets

~

Confirmed 2013 long-term incentive awards and
associated performance condstions for the Pearson
management committee

~

Noted feedback on the 2012 report on directors’
remuneraucn

~

Discussed new executive remunerauon reportng
requirements

~

24 JULY 2013

Reviewed the commutiee’s charter and terms of
reference

~

~

Discussed 2013 AGM season and shareholder voung

~

Noted remuneration packages for a number of internal
appointments and one new hire to the Fearson
Executive

Noted John Makinson's remuneravon package and

cantract an secondment to, and appomument as
chatrman of, Penguin Random House

-

» Noted Wi Ethnidge’s intenton to stand down from
the Pearson board and the arrangements for his 2014
employment and reurement

» Noted implicatuons of new exacutive remuneration
reportng requirements and commenced review of
executive remuneration pohcy
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2 OCTORER 20i3

Noted the activity of the standing commuttee of the
board in relation to the operation of the company’s
equity-based reward programmes

Reviewed the committee s charter and terms of
reference

Reviewed the committee’s performance and
effecuveness

Reviewed the status of outstanding long-term incentive
awards

Ratified 2013 long-term incentive awards and
associated performance conditons for new appointees
to the Pearson Executive

Considered the approach to 2013 annual incentives in
light of company's restructuring plans

Noted the company’s strategy for 2013 long-term
incentive awards for executives and managers below
the Pearson Executive

Considered the approach to annual tncentives in the
light of the company's global educauon strategy and
new organisaton

Conunued the review of executive remuneratton policy

Noted the remuneration packages for two new hires
to the Pearson Executive

Voting outcome at 2013 AGM

5 DECEMBER 2043

» Noted the acuvity of the standing commuittee of the
board w1 relavon to the operanion of the company's
equity-based reward programmes

» Reviewed and approved the committee's charter and
terms of reference

» Discussed Towers Watson's overview of the current
remunerauion environment and approach 1o executwe
pay benchmarlang for 2013/2014

> Reviewed the status of outstanding long-term incenuive
awards

» Considered the approach to annual incentives in the
light of the company’s global educauon strategy and
new organisation

> Reviewed long-term incenuve plan design and
operation

» Reviewed the programmes and policies related to
equity partictpation of exacutives

» Noted the draft format for the 2013 directors’
remuneranon report

The foliowing table summartses the details of votes cast in respect of the resolution 1o approve the directors’

remuneration report at the 2013 AGM

Votes for Vores aganst

Total vores cast

Votes withheld (abstenucns)

523.204,046
93 64% of votes cast

35 545,800
6 36% of vores cast

558,749,846
68 35% of issued share capal

14,082 005

While the committee was pleased with the fevel of support shown by shareholders in respect of this resolunon
considerauon was given to those shareholders that did not vote i favour of the directors’ remuneranon report
Through consultation, the committee received feedback from three mstwutionat shareholders who berween them
accounted for one-third of the votes agamnst to understand better why these shareholders voted aganst the
resolution The commuttee subsequently discussed this at their July 2013 meetng tn the hght of the feedback, the
commttee concluded at that time that, notwithstanding any 1ssues artsing out of its regular review of executive
remuneration policy, there was nothing fundamental or structural within out existing arrangements to cause

particular concern to shareholders

As in previous years and required by faw, detaids of the voung on all resofutions at the 2014 AGM wilf be
announced via the RNS and posted on the Pearson website following the AGM

htp //www pearson com/ content/dam/pearson-cot porate/ files/ press-

releases/2013/20130426_AGM_Poli_Results pdf
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Single total figure of remuneration and prior year comparison

Executive directors

The remuneration receved by executive directors in respect of the financial years ending 3| December 2043 and

3t December 2012 was as follows

97

Exccutive Allowances
direceor Base and Anruat Reurement Long-term
£000s salary benehics INCeRLIVE benefics meentives Toeal
Current directors
John Eallon 2013 750 43 463 330 {41 1,727
2012 146 7 63 6l 221 498
Robin Freestone 2013 545 4 341 163 I8l 1,244
2012 500 22 252 | 44 1121 2,039
Former directors
2013 681 7 227 247 177 i,339
Wil Ethridge 2012 658 2 293 30 1,135 2388
Rona Farrhead 2013 {76 4 - o 47 347
{stepped down
26 Aprit 2013) 2012 529 S0 192 242 769 1,782
john Makinson 2013 274 122 301 258 69 t,064
{stepped down
I July 2013) 2012 545 244 238 - 74| §.772
Total 2013 2,426 200 (,332 1,148 615 5,721
2012 2,382 325 1,038 747 3987 8,479

Mote | John Fallon was appointed Lo the board on 3 Octaber 2012 For the full year for 2012, john Fallon s remunerauon
reflected nine months in his role as CEO, Pearson Internatonal and three months as Pearson CEQ designate and was
safary/fees - £506 allowances and benefits £29, annual incenuve — £259 reurement benefits — £249 long-term mncentives
— £90%, total - £1,952 (all figures in £000s)

Note 2 In accordance with the regufanons we show a single total figure of remunerauon, which includes renrement benefits
and long-term incentives i addition to the other elements of remuneration that have been shown in previous reports

Note 3 Where necessary the figures for allowances and benefits, long-term incenuves and retirement benefits for 2012 have
been restated to reflect the revised requirements and valuarion methodology

Note 41n 2012 the accrued pension over the penod for John Malanson decreased because of a transfer made as a result of
a pension sharing order

Note S The single figure of remuneraton for 2013 includes ali awards that were subject to 2 performance condition where
the performance penod ended, or was substantially (but not fully) completed, at 3F December 2013 and awards where the
performance condiuon has been sausfied but where the release of shares s subject to a further holding penod The same
methodology has been apphed for ezrlier periods and the singie figure for earfler reporting penods has been restated
where necessary

Further explanatory details/notes are included m the tables that follow
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Report on directors’ remuneraton continued

Chairman and non-executive directors

The remuneration paid to the chairman and non-executive directors in respect of the financial years ending
31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012 was as follows

Senior
Diwector Salaryf Commitien Comnutee indepe:dcnt
Eﬂ?is_ basicfee  charmanshipy membership diractors hip Total
2013 500 - - - 500
™M
Glen Moreno 2012 500 - - - 500
2013 65 20 I} - 95
d A
David Arculus 2012 65 20 10 - 55
2013 65 - I5 20 100
V
wvienne Cox 2012 65 _ (s - 80
2013 65 25 5 - 95
Hyd
Ken Hydon 2012 £5 2% 5 - 95
2013 65 - i3 78
h L
Josh Lewns 2012 65 - 10 - 75
Linda Lorimer 2013 33 - - 33
(appointed | july 2013) 2012 - - - - -
Harish Manwani 2043 6 - - - T4
{appointed | October 2013) 2012 - - - - -
Susan Fuhrman 2003 39 - 6 - 45
(stepped down 7 August 2013) 2012 65 - 10 -~ 75
Toral 2013 B48 45 49 20 962
2012 825 45 50 920

Toral aggregate ermnoluments for executive and non-execuuve directors were £5 3mm 2013 These emoluments
are included with total employee benefit expense in note 5 to the financial staternents (page 142)
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Detall of executive remuneracion for 2013

In this sub-secuon, we summanse or provide details of each element of remunerauvion set out in the single figure
table as required (page 97)

Bace salaries

In accordance with policy, the commuttee considered a report from the chief executive and chief human resources
officer on general pay trends in the market and the level of pay increases across the company as a whole For 20143,
the company had reiterated its startng principles that base compensation provides the appropriate rate of
remuneration for the job, taking into account relevant recruitment markets, business sectors and geographic
regions and that total remuneration should reward both short- and long-term results, delivering compeutive
rewards for target performance, but higher rewards for exceptional company performance For the US and UK,
the budget guideline 1ssued at the end of September 2012 for adjustments to base pay for 2013 was 2% aithough
business units were given the flexibility to take into account factors such as thewr own performance, where they are
in the business cycle, and specific market factors As the year closed and pay budgets for 2013 were confirmed,
maost businesses remained on an overall 2% salary increase pool Local inflation rates were taken into accountin
partcular markets

The increases for the executive directors who served during all or part of 2013 were as follows

Rona john

Fairhead Makingon

John Robin Wil (seepped down  {stepped down

Fallon Fraestone Ethdge 26 Aprll 20§3) [ Juty 2013)

Base salary at 3] December 2012 £600,000 £500,000 $1,045500 £529.100 £548,900
Increase £150,000  £45000  $%20,900 - -
neress 25% 9% 2% - -
Base salary at | January 2013 £750000 £545,000 $1.066400 £529,100 £548,900

Note john Fallon was appomted o the board on 3 Ocober 2012 and his base salary was reviewed on his appaintment to CEO
on | January 2013

Allowances and benefits
Duning the year the executive directors recerved a number of benefits as summarnised below

Rona John

fairhead Makinson

Allowanceibenefic John Robin Wil (stepped down  (stepped down
|4 . Fallon Freestone Echridge 26 Aprli 2043} { huly 20£3}
Location and market premium - - - ~ 105469
Travel {5,387 12,037 - 5530 6.865
Health 2,405 i 988 5720 663 {132
Risk 24 765 253 1.673 6,074 8,605
Total 42557 14278 7393 14267 122071

Note t Travel benefits compnse company car car allowance and pnvate use of a driver Health beneiits compnse heaithcare
health assessment and gym subsidy Rusk benefits comprise addiional ife cover and long-term disability msurance

Note 2 Allowance and benefits for Will Ethndge include US health benefits Such benefits are self-insured and the value shown
here 1s the fully insured equivalent There 1s no employee wax on this value

MNote 3 In addiuon to the above benefits and allowances that are included in the single figure, the executive directors may also
parucipate 1h company benefit or pohey arrangements that have no taxable value

Note 4 Addinonal Ife cover and long-term disability insurance not covered by the resrement plans were previously repor red
as ‘other pension-related benefit costs’ and mcluded n retirement benefits in the 2012 directors remunerauon report
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Report on directors' remuneration continued

Annual incenuve
For 2013, annual incentive opportunittes were based on the following performance measures and performance

aganst these measures {designated as — below threshold, < between threshold and targer,

and maximum and * above maximum) was as follows

> between target

Maxgresm Weghting ul
appurimiy perforay ce measre Pay out for
{mofsblary) (% of muxrrenn opporruniy} Podornunce in 2013 2013
(% of
Pearsen Operaving company safary} (£000}
Undertying  Underipng  Averags Average
growth growthm  working Weiphied warking Wesghted
adjsted EPS  adjusted [PS caprral o pay-ou Operawing  Operaung  capual pAP-om
(pre- {post salex Operating (ol profit (pre  proflc (post-  to sales Operanng (%of
Sakss restructuning) nestructisnng) oo wshflow  naien)  Sales restrucrurang) rescrueoiringd rane cash flow masermam)
Operumg —— -
Nanx Pearion  company Personal 10% 5% W% 10% 20% 0% 20% 0% 0% 0%
john 180% 0% - 0% < > < - - FLREA - - - - - 61 B% 46l
Fallon
Rabin F70%  BO% - W% < - < - - 26 0% - - - - - - 635k 34
Freesione
Wil 175%  30% 60% s < > < - - 260% < - - - - 105% 334% 227
Ethridge Pearson
North
Amerca
John [60%  30% Ps  I0% < > < - - 260% » > > + 31 4% 105 8% 30!
Makmson Pengutm
(stepped Group
down
I july
2013

Note | Forall plans Pearson s reported financial results for the relevant period were used to measure performance In order
1o ncenuvise and reward unaerlying performance, actual results are adjusted for the effect of foregn exchange and for
portfolio changes (acquisitons and dispesals) and other factors that the committee considers relevant in the performance year
No discrenton has been exercised to adjust the resulung underlying pay-outs

MNote 2 Rona Fairhead, who left the company on 30 Apnf 2013, was not eligible for an annual incentive m respect of her service

in 2013

Note 3 Detals of performance targets and performance agamnst those targets are not disclosed as the committee deems them

to be commercally sensitve
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Retirement benefits
Details of the directors’ pension enutlements and pension-reiated benefits during the year are as follows

Value of  Other pension Other
Acerued  defined bunefir costs to the allowances Totat
Notmal  pension 2t PCNSION GVEr  COMpany over wmlevc!  anmal value
reurement 3t Oec (1 the pertod the period pensan n 2013
Chrectors pensions Plans age £000" 000 £000 £000™ £000™
john Fallon Pearson Group Pension Plan 62 740 1348 - 1947 330

Accrual rate of 1/30th of
pensionable salary per annum
Taxable and non-pensionable
cash supplement
Robin Freestone Money Purchase 2003 section 62 - - 220 141 4 163
of the Pearson Group Pension
Plan Taxable and non-
penstonable cash supplement
Wili Ethndge  Pearson inc Pension Plan and 65 2275 2152 316 - 247
the approved 401 (k) plan
Non-qualified Excess Plan
Rona Fairhead  Pearson Group Pension Plan 62 531 654 - 44 6 o
Accruat rate of 1/30th of
pensionable salary per annum
Taxable and non-pensionable
cash supplement
John Makinson  Pearson Group Pension Plan 62 2411 298 - - 298
Unfunded Unapproved
Returement Benefits Scheme

MNote 1 The accrued pension at 31 December 2013 is the deferred pension to which the member would be enttded on ceasing
pensionable service on 31 December 2013 For Wil Ethndge this 1s fus pension from the US plan and the US SERP For John
Fallon and Rona Farhead it relates to the pension payable from the UK plan For John Malanson 1t relates to the penston from
the UK Plan and huis unapproved arrangements in aggregate Robin Freestone does not accrue defined benefits

Note 2 This column compnises the increase in the directors’ accrued pension ever the penod {net of inflation) mutuphed by 20
and from which the directors’ contnbutions are deducted

Note 3 This column compnses contrbutions to defined contribution arrangements for UK benefits For US benefits. it iciudes
company contributions to funded defined contnbution plans

Note 4 This column represents the cash allowances paid in lieu of the previous FURBS arrangements for John Fallon,
Robin Freestone and Rona Fairhead johin Malanson’s deferred FIURBS enutlement is referred to i note | above

Note 5 Total annual value 1s the sum of the previous three columns

Note 6 Addinonal ife cover and long-term disability insurance not covered by the renrement plans wet e previously reported as
other pension-related benefit costs’ and included in reurement benefits i the 2042 directors remuncration report and are now
included as ‘allowances and benefits’

Note 7 There are no addional benefits or spewal arrangements under the retirement plans for directors who retire before ther
normal reurement date
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

Details of long-term share interests including awards made 1n 2013

Long-term incentives
Details of awards made, outstanding, held or released under the annual bonus share matching plan are as follows

Real compound

Date of award  Share price on date of award  Vestng anncal EPS growth  Scarus of award

15/05/13 1,206 0p 15/05/16 ~ Qustanding subject to 2012 to 2015 performance

15/05/12 1,152 0p 15/05/15 -~ Qutstanding subject to 201 | to 2014 performance

20/704/11 1,129 0p 20/04/14 -6 6% Performance condition not met Matching share
award lapsed

21/04/10 1,024 ip 21/04/13 4 4% Target met for release of 84 5% of matching share

award as reported In repott on directors’
remuneration for 2012 Shares released on
21 Apnl 2013

The pay-out 1o performance vesting scale for all awards 1s as follows

Performance condiuon ) Pay-out (% of Match)
< 3% real compound annual £EPS growth NIl
3% real compound annual EPS growth 50%
3% to 5% real compound annual EPS growth 50% to 100% shding scale
5% real compound annual EPS growth 100%
> real 5% compound annual EPS growth 100%

Note For all awards Pearson's reported financial results for the (elevant period were used 1o measure performance and no
discretion has been exercised

The following directors invested part of thewr after-tax annual incentive in Pearson shares and recerved conditional
matching awards under the annual bonus share matching plan on 15 May 2013 which will vest, subject to
performance, on |5 May 2016 as follows

Name Marchmg shares awarded Share pnce on date of award Face vafue on date of award

John Fallon 6.083 1.206 Op £73,361
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Details of awards made, outstanding, vested and held or released under the long-term incenuve plan are
as follows

Performance
Share measures
price on {award spht % of
Daie date of Yesung equally 2cross Performance Pay-pur at Pay-out at Actual award  Stacws of
of award  awoard dacg dhree measures)  period threshold maximuny performnce vested  award
01/05/13 1,183 0p 01 /05/ (6 Relauve TSR 2013 to  30% at median 100% atupper — - Qutstanding
2016 quartle
ROIC 2045 0% for ROIC  100% for ROIC ~ -
of B 5% of 10 5%
EPSgrowth 2015 30% forEFS  100% for EPS - -
compared growth of growth of [20%
02012 60%
02/05/12 1 {61 0p02/05/15 Relauve TSR 201210 30% atmedian 100% at upper - - Outstanding
2015 quartile
ROIC 2014 0% for ROIC  100% for ROIC - -
of 8 5% of 105%
EPSgrowth 2014 30% forEPS  100% for EPS - -
compared growth of growth of {2 0%
w20l 60%
030511 1,149 0p03/05/14 Refauve TSR 20 to  30% atmedian 100% at upper  44% N Esumated but sull
2014 quartle percentle onrstanding
ROIC 2013 25% for ROIC 100% for ROIC 5 4% Nl Lapsed
of 90% of 105%
EPS growth 2013 30%forEPS Q0% forEPS  -33% Nt
compared growth of growth of 12 0%
to 20I0  60%
03/03/10962 0p 03/03/13 Relarve TSR 201010 30% at median 100% at upper 48 Nt 36 7% of shares vested
2013 quarule percentile Three-quarters relfeased
ROIC 2012 25%forROIC I00%for ROIC 91%  475% on3March 2013 Ifafier
of B 5% of 10 5% tay, number of shares are

EPSgrowth 2012 30%forEPS 100%forEPS 88%  625% rewned forafurther

compared growth of growth of 120% two years, the remamning
w2009 60% quarter will be released

on 3 March 2015

Note For alf awards, Pearson s reported financial results for the relevant pernod were used to measure performance and no
discretion has been exercised

The followng directors received conditional restricted share awards under the long-term incentive plan on

I May 2013 which will vest, subject to performance, on | May 2016 as follows

Face value on daie of award

Restricted  Share prce on % of 2013

Name shares awarded  date of award £ base salary
johr Faflon 250,000 1,183 Op £2,957,500 394%
Robin Freestone 150,000 1183 0p £1 774,500 326%
Will Ethnidge 150,000 1,183 Op £1,774,500 260%

Summary of share plan interests

The following t@bles summarise vested, released, lapsed, held, and outstanding share interests under the share-based
incentve plans for executive directors who served throughout 2013 Awards are designated as ABSMP annual bonus
share matching plan, subject to performance condinions, LTIP long-term ncentive plan, subject to performance
conditions, Diidends where dividend-equivalent shares are added without performance conditions to vested shares
under the ABSMP and LTIP and released immediately on award
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

Plan Award date Vesung date Status John Fallon Fre::::: Wil Echndge
ABSMP 2170472010 21/04/2043  Released 6,991 26,287 6,658
ABSMP 20/04/2011 20/04/2014 Vested 0 0 ]
Value £000 £Q £0 £0
Lapsed 4,539 29049 4517
Held ¢ 0 0
ABSMP [5/05/2012 15/05/2015 OQutstanding 8917 17,833 4,485
ABSMP 15/05/2043 15/05/2016 Outstanding 6,083 - -
LTIP 04/03/2008 ©04/03/2011 Released 24,375 30,468 36,562
LTiP 0370372009 03/03/2012 Held 29,887 25617 29,887
LTiP 03/03/72010 03/03/2013 Released 41,257 34,381 41,257
Lapsed 50,000 41,667 50,000
Held 13,752 11,460 13.752
LTIP 0370572001 03/05/2014 Vested 0 0 0
Value £000 £0 £0 £0
Lapsed 150,000 125000 150,000
Held 0 0 0
LTIP 02/05/2012 02/05/2015  OQutstanding }00.000 100,000 100,000
LTIP 0170572013 01/05/2016 Outstanding 250,000 150,000 150,000
Dividends 0470372013 0470372013  Released (price |,168 Op) 6,094 7617 g.14|
LTiP) Value £000 £71 £89 £107
Dwvidends 03/04/2013 03/04/2013 Released (price |,+43 Op) 5.199 4333 5,199
(LTIP) Value £000 £59 £50 £59
Dridends 21/05/2013  21/05/2043  Released (price 1,262 Op) 895 3,366 853
(ABSMP) Value £000 £11 £42 £1
Toral Released B4.8l1 106,452 99.670
Vested 0 0 0
Held 43639 37,077 43,639
Ouistanding 365000 267,833 254,485
2013 single figure of remuneration Value £000 £141 £i8!¢ £177

Note | Vested means where awards are no longer subject to performance conditions Released means where shares have been
transferred to parucipants Held means where awards have vested but are held pending release on the relavant anniversary of
the award date Qurstanding means awards that have been granted but are soll subject to the aclwevement of performance

condinons

Note 2 No varatons to terms and condinons of plan nierests were rmade during the year

Note 3 Performance condiuons and vesung for awards under the bonus share matching and long-term incentive plans are
described on pages {02 and 103

Note 4 The single figure of remunerauon for 2013 wicludes all awards that were subjeci to a performance conditton where
the performance period ended or was substantally (but not fully) completed, at 31 December 2013 and awards where the
performance condition has been sausfied but where the release of shares 15 subject to a further holding pertod The same

methadology has been applied for earlier pertods and the single figure for earlier reporuing periods has been restated
where necessary

Note 5 The value of shares inciuded i the single figure of remunerauon is the number of shares muluplied by the share price
on release (or if the shares have not yet been released the average share price over the final quarter of the year which for
2013 was 1 310 45p)




Movements In directors’ interests in share oprions
john Fallon and Robin Freestone also hold oprions under the worldwide save for shares plan as follows
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Value m 2043

Cpuons held as Earliest exerose single figure

Name Dare of granc at 31 Dec 13 Dprion prce date Expiry date £000
john Fallon 7/5/10 1,930 805 6p 1/8/15 172/16 0
Robin Freestone 4/5/712 990 909 Op 1/8/15 {/2/16 0

Note | No share option awards were made, vested or exercised in the year

MNote 2 All share options that become exerasable during a year are included 1n the single figure of total remuneration for that
year The value included in the single figure of total remunerauon is the number of cptions muluplied by the difference between
the value on grant and the market value on the earliest exercise date

Note 3 No variations to telms and conditions of share options were made during the year

Note 4 Acquisition of shares under the worldwide save for shares plan s not subject to a performance condition

MNote 5 The market price on 3| Decemnber 2013 was i,341 Op per share and the range during the year was 1,119 0p 1o 1,365 Op

Payrnents to former directors

It 1s the committee’s intention to disclose any payments to past directors, including the release of share-based
awards post departure

The number of shares retained from the number of shares onginally awarded takes into account fapses due to
performance, releases prior to ceasing to be a director and, where applicable, pro-rating for service in the
performance period

Marjorie Scardmo
Marjone Scardino stepped down from the Pearson board on 3| December 2012

in accordance with her employment agreement, stx months after reurement Marjone Scardino received
the distnbution of the account cash and share balances of her unfunded unapproved defined contrbution
retirement plan

Marjorie also retained certamn enutlements on retrement and received the following share releases duning 2013

Mumber of
Number of Number of Number of shares
Plan Datc. of award shares recamed shares lapsed  shares released Date of release ourscanding
ABSMP 21 Apnil 2010 63,497 0 63497 4 March 2013 4
20 Apnil 2011 47,630 47,630 0 - 0
LTIP 4 March 2008 97.500 0 97,500 4 March 2013 0
3 March 2009 76,852 0 76852 4 March 2013 0
3 March 2010 280,024 subject to 133,333 146 691 3 March 2013 0

2012 performance
3 May 201 | 266,666 subject to 266,666 0 - it

2013 performance
2 May 2012 83,333 subject to 0 0 - 83333

2014 performance
Dividends 4 March 2013 - - 6.160 4 March 2013 0

(ABSMP)

Dridends 4 March 2013 - - 38593 4 March 2013 0
(LTIF) 3 April 2013 - — 18.484 3 Apni 2013 0

MNote In the case of the 21 Apnl 2040 annual bonus share matching award the number of shares retaned and released comprises
the total number of shares ongmnalty awarded
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

Rona Farrhead
Rona Farrhead stepped down from the Pearsen board on 26 Apnl 2013 and ieft the company on 30 April 2013

Rona retained certain enutlements on leaving the company and received the following share releases dunng 2013

Mumbe: of Number 2043 single figure Number of
Number of shares of shares of remuneradan  Number of shares
PEn_-n_ Date of award ) sharci ffmned IEEE ~ Le_leased Date of reie:sc L0000 shates h'etd__ _ .T_J,BETI"E_
LTIP 4 March 2008 30,468 0 30,468 4 March 2013 - 0 0
3 March 2009 25,617 0 25617 t0May 2013 - 0 0
3 March 2010 87,508 414,667 34,381 3 March 2013 - 0 0
subject to 2012 11,460 10May 2013 - 0 0
performance
3 May 20141 97,222 97,222 0 - - 40,000 ¢
subject to 2013
performance +
40,000 shares
2 May 2012 44,444 0 0 - - 0  44.444
subject to 2014
performance
Dwidends 4 March 2013 - 0 7617 4March 2013 £30 - -
3 April 2013 - 0 4333 3 Apnl 2013 £17 - -

Note | tn the case of the 3 May 201 1 long-term incentive award, the committee agreed in December 2012 that, in recogniion
of the circumstances at the ume the award was made, 40,000 of the |65 000 shares orginally awarded should vest in full at the
normal vesung date The remaining shares would be retamed on her ledving pro rat for service and be released subject to
petrformance in the normal way

Note 2 The value of diwdends included in the 2013 single figure of remunerauen is calculated pro rata for service in the year
John Makison
On stepping down from the board on | July 2013, john Makinson’s then remuneraoon package (base salary,

annual incentive, allowances and benefits and returement benefits) conunued to apply for the remamnder of 2013
He did not receive a Pearson long-term incentive award for 2013

John's parmapauon in Pearson share plans conunues and he received the followsng share releases during 2013

Nomber 2013 single figure Number of
Number of  Number of of shares of remuneration  MNumbe: of shares
Plan Dace of award shares retamed  shares lapsed released Date of release £000 sharesheld  outstanding
Lmie 4 March 2008 30,468 ¢ 30468 4March 2013 - 0 0
3 March 2009 25617 0 - - - 25617 0
3 March 2010 87.508 41667 34381 3March 2013 - 11,460 0
subject to 2012
performance
3 May 2011 125.000 125,000 0 - - 0 0
subject to 2013
performance
2 May 2012 100,000 0 0 - - ¢ 100,000
subject to 2014
performance
Dwidends 4 March 2013 - 0 7.617 4March2013 f44 - -
3 April 2013 - 0 4333 3 Apni20(3 £15 - -

Note The value of dividends included m the 2013 single figure of remuneration is calculated pro rata for seivice in the year




Payments for loss of office

Ronz Fairhead

As announced on 27 November 2012 and set out in
the report on directors’ remuneration for 2012, Rona
Fairhead stepped down from the board at the Annual
General Meeting on 26 Apri 2013 and left the
company on 30 April 2013 Her service agreement
dated 24 January 2003 provided for nouce penods of
six months from the director and |2 months from the
company and compensation on terrmunation of
employment by the company without notice or cause
of 100% of annual salary at the date of terminauon, the
annual cost of pension and afl other benefits and 50%
of potenual annual sncentive

The committee and the board determined that her
leaving employment was a consequence of the planned
incorporation of the professianal educaton divisran
overseen by Rona into other parts of Pearson's
education business coupled with the smaller size

of the Financial Times Group owing to recent

major divestments The company therefore paid
compensatton amounting to £1,148,195 comprising
£529,100, an amount equal to her annual salary as of
her leaving date, £195,815, an amount equal to the
annual cost to the company of pension and other
benefits (but excluding hezlth care to which she
remained enutled for |2 months from her leaving
dare), and £423,280, an amount equal to half of her
maximurm annual incentive opportunity The company
also made a contnbution toward the cost of
outplacement counselling (£50,000) and patd legal
fees in connection with her leaving (£6,150)
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John Makinson

As first announced on 29 Ociober 2012 and confirmed
on i July 2013, john Makinson stepped down from the
Pearson board to assume his full-ume responstbidities
as chawrman of Pengun Random House on | July 2013
There was no payiment for loss of office

lohn's employment continues under service
agreements with Pearson Inc (for the US porton of his
duties) and with Pearson Management Services Limited
{for his duties in the rest, of the world outside the US)
These Pearson enuties are entering into secondment
agreements with Penguin Random House, pursuant o
which John s services as chairman are provided to, and
paid for by, Penguin Random House John s paid an
annual base salary, but1s no longer entitled to a
location and market premum or an annuai incentive
He wilt be eligible to receive a one-off performance-
related cash long-term incentive award, the terms

of which are being agreed by the remuneration
committee of Penguin Random House He wili no
longer receive awards under the Pearson long-term
incentive plan Pengumn Random House 15 also meeting
the cost of john's accrual of Pearson pension benefits
while he 15 seconded to Penguin Random House

Wll Ethridge

As announced on 23 May 2013, Wil Ethnidge stepped
down from the board on 31 December 2013 There
was no payment for loss of office Will's employment
with Pearson Education Inc cononues on the same
terms and condiions as previously pending his
retrement on 31 December 2014 No compensation
for loss of office or severance will be payable on his
reurement On reurement, he will retain entitlement to
tus 2012 long-term incentive award in full and to two-
thirds and one-third respectively of his 2013 and any
2014 [ong-term mncentve awards with shares released
subject wo performance in 2015, 2016 and 2017
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

Interests of diwectors and value of shareholdings

Directors’ interests
The share iterests of the continuing directors and their connected persons are as follows

Toml number of ardinary

Ordinary shates  Conditonal shares  and conditional shares at Vilwe Guideline

e at 3 Dec 13 _ardlDecis 31 Dec 13 (xsalary) {xsalay)  Guideline mec
—Chalrman

Glen Moreno 150,000 - - - - -
Executive directors -

John Fallon 262,569 43,639 306,208 45 200 v
Robin Freestone 478,507 37,077 515,584 105 | 25 v
Will Ethndge 397,017 43,639 440,656 72 | 25 v
MNon-executive directors

Dawvid Arculus 16,301 - - - - -
Vivienne Cox 1,351 - - — - _
Ken Hydon i7.818 - - - - -
josh Lewis 5,681 - - — - _
Linda Lonmer (appointed 637 - - - - -
| July 2013)

Harish Manwani (appomnted 180 - - - - -

{ Ocrober 2013)

Note | Conditonal shares means shares which have vested but remain held subject to continumg employment for a pre-defined
holding penod

Note 2 The currant value of the execuuve directors’ holdings of ordmary and condimonal shares 1s based on the middle market
value of Pearson shares of | 113 0p on 21 February 2014 against base salaries in 2013 All execuuve directors comfortably
exceeded the shareholding gudelines The shareholding guidelines do not apply to the charman and non-executive directors

Note 3 Ordinary shares include both ordinary shares hsted on the London Stock Exchange and Amencan Depositary Receipts
(ADRs) iisted on the New York Stock Exchange The figures include both shares and ADRs acquired by individuals invesung part
of their own after-tax annual bonus i Pearson shares under the annual bonus annual bonus share matching plan

Note 4 The register of directors” interests (which is open o inspecuon dunng normal office hours) contams full detadls of
directors’ shareholdings and opuons to subscribe for shares The market price on 31 December 2013 was 1,341 Op per share
and the range dunng the year was [,119 Op to 1,365 Op

Note 5 There were no movements in ordinary shares between | January 2014 and a month prior to the sign-off of this report.

Note 6 Ordinary shares do not mclude any shares vested but held pending release under a restricted shasre plan.

Graph removed




Shareholding gutdehnes for executive directors
Executive directors are expected to buld up a
substanual shareholding in the company i line with the
policy of encouraging widespread employee ownership
and to align further the inzer ests of executives and
shareholders With effect from 2014, target holding is
300% of salary for the chief executve and 200% of
salary for the other executive directors

Shares that count towards these gwdelines include any
shares held unencumbered by the executve, ther
spouse and/or dependent children plus any shares
vested but held pending release under a restricted
share plan Executive directors have five years from the
date of appointment to reach the guideline

There are currently no mandatory share ownership
guidelines below executive director level, although
employees are encouraged to become shareholders in
the company by retaining shares acguired through the
company’s discretionary and all-employee stock
programmes The shareholding guidelines do not apply
to the chairman and non-executive directors

Dilution and use of equity

We can use existing shares bought in the market,
treasury shares or newly-tssued shares to sausfy
awards under the company’s vanous stock plans

For restricted stocl awards under the long-term
incenuve plan and matching share awards under the
annual bonus share matching plan, we would normally
expect to use existing shares

There are imits on the amount of new-issue equity we
can use In any roiling ten-year period, no more than
10% of Pearson equity will be issued, or be capable of
beng issued under all Pearson's share plans, and no
movre than 5% of Pearson equity will be 1ssued, or be
capable of being 1ssued under executive or
discretonary ptans

Secuon 4 Governmance 109

At 3| December 2013, stock awards to be satsfied
by new-issue equity granted in the last ten years
under all Pearson share plans amounted to | 6%

of the company’s 1ssued share capital No stock
awards granted in the last ten years under executive
or discretionary share plans will be sausfied by
new-issue equity

In addition, for existng shares no more than 5% of
Pearson equity may be held in trust at any ume
Against this limut, shares held in trust at 3t December
2013 amounted to | 1% of the company's issued
share capsal

The headroom avadable for all Pearson plans,
executive or discretionary plans and shares held in
trust 15 as {ollows

Heardroom 2013 w12 20
All Pearson plans B4% B83% 83%
Executive or discretionary plans  50% 50% 50%
Shares held in trust 39% 38% 32%

Executive directors’ nan-executive directorships

In accordance wath policy the following executve
directors served as non-executive directors elsewhere
and retained fees or other benefits for the penod
covered by this report as foflows

Mame Company Feesfbenchis

Rona Farhead HSBC Holdings plc £83.333

Orther executive directors served as non-executive
directors elsewhere but erther waived or did not
recewve fees

!
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

Histonical performance and remuneration

Total shareholder return performance

We set out below Pearson's total shareholder return
(TSR} perfornmance relative to the FTSE All-Share
index on an annual basis over the five-year period
2008 to 2013 This companson has been chosen
because the FTSE Ali-Share represents the broad
market index wathin which Pearson shares are traded
TSR 15 the measure of the returns that a company has
provided for its shareholders, reflectng share price
movements and assuming reinvestrnent of dividends
{source DataStream)

Graph removed

In accordance with the new regulations, this secuon
also presents Pearson’s TSR performance alengside
the single figure of total remuneraton for the CEO

over the last five years and a summary of the variable
pay outcomes relative to the prevailing maximurm at
the ume The table below summanses the total
remuneration for the CEQ over the last five years, and
the outcomes of annual and long-term incentive plans
as a proporuon of maximum

(wnancial year ending 200% 2016 2001 2012 013

Tortal remuneration — john Fallon

(single figure, 000s) - - - 1,727

Total remuneraton — Manorie Scardino

{single figure, 000s) 6,370 8466 8340 5330 -
Annual incentive — incumbent

{% of maximum) 9L 3% 921% 757% 242% 343%
Long-term incentive — incumbent

(% of maximum) 800% 975% 683% 367% Nl

Note | Marjone Scardino stepped down from the board on 31 December 2012 and John Fallon was appointed CEQ wath effect
from | January 2013

Note 2 The annual mcenuve s the actual annual incentive received by the incumbent as a percentage of maximum opportunity

Note 3 The long-term mcentive s the pay-cut of performance-related restncted shares under the fong-term incenuve plan where
tne year shown is the final year of the performance penod for the purposes of calculaung the single total figure of remuneraton




Comparative information

The following mformation 1s ntended to prowvide
addisonal context regarding the total remuneraton
for executive directors

Refative percentage change in remuneration for CEO
The following table sets out the change between 20{2
and 2013 n three elements of remuneration for the

* CEQ, in comparison to the average for all employees

However, while the committee considers the increase
in base pay for the CEQ relavve to the broader
employee population, benefits are driven by local
pracuces and eligibility 1s determined by level and
tndividual circumstances which do not lend itself to
companson Similarly, annual incentives are driven by
different factors throughout the organisavon and so are
typically not compared

Alftowances
Base and Annuzl
salary benefits  incencve Total
CEO -24%  -7TT% 7% -12%
All employees 5% W% 31% 8%

Note | The figures for the CEO are based on the
remuneraton of Majore Scardine for 201 2 and of John Falion
for 2013

Note 2 The figures for aff employees reflect average salanes
and average employee numbers each year Annual ncentves
include all plans including sales incenuves

Relative importance of pay spend

The commitiee consider directors remuneraton in the
context of the company’s allocation and disbursement
of resources to different stakeholders

In parucular, we chose operating profit because this 1s
a measure of our ability to remvest in the company
We include dividends because these constitute an
important element of our return to shareholders

Year-on-year change

FT__ 2013 212 £m e ?E“
Operaung profit 736 932 .196 -21%
Dividends 372 348 26 +8%
Total wages and

salaries i836 [610 226 +14%

Note Wages and salares include conunuing operations only
and nclude directors 2012 1s restated on the same basis
Average employee numbers for continuing operations for
2013 were 42,115 (2012 42 135) Further detaids are set out
in note 5 to the financial statements on page 142

Section 4 Governance I

Information on changes to remuneration for 2014

Executive directors’ base salaries

We have undertaken a regular periodic review of base
salares for 2014 waking into account general ecenomic
and market conditions, the level of increases made
across the company as a whole, the remuneration

of execunves in similar postuons in comparable
companies and individual performance

As aresult of tus review, the 2014 base salames for the
CEQ and CFO are as follows

John Robin
Fallon Freestone

Base salary at

31 December 2013 £750,000 £545.000
£15,000 £11,000

|
nerease 2 0% 2 0%

Base salary at

| April 2014 £765,000 £556,000

Full details will be set out in the annual remuneration
report and included wn the single figure of total
remuneration for 2014

Annual incentive
The leey design prninciples underlying the company's
approach to annual mcentves for 2014 are

full aignment of annual incentves with the global
educanon strategy 1o reinforce 2 “one Pearson’ focus,

~

a clear, transparent, coherent, consistent, organisagton-
wide approach to incentives and performance
management with a common incentive framework for
Lines of Business, Geographies and Enabling funcuons.

~

» the size of the overall annual incentive pay-out will be
hnked to overall Pearson performance

!
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

The principles that underhe the 'one Pearson’
approach to funding are that

there will be a single annual incentive pool for Pearson
which will vary according to the performance of the
whole company;

for 2014, the overall Pearson performance measures
and weighungs will be adjusted earnings per share
{60% weightng), sates (20%). cash flow (20%),

there will be a theoreucal ‘on target’ size for the annual
incentive pool which 1s the sum of all employees’
annual thcentive opportunities,

there will be scope to flex the size of the pool upwards
if performance exceeds target (up to a cap} and
downwards If performance falls short of target (down
to a threshold below which no annual incentive would
be paird) This flex wilt be sufficiently sensitive to
demonstrate a clear hrk between overall performance
and the annual incenuve pay-out, but not so sensitive
that there 1§ significant uncertainty in the total pay-out
The committee will set a range around which the
annual incentive pay-out can flex,

the Pearson financial targets walt be set each year as
part of the normal operating plan process The CEO
and CFO will recommend the overall Pearson mcentive
funding metrics (including performance measures
targets and weighungs) to the committee for approval
in the normal way,

the Pearson-derived pay-out may be informed and
modified (up or down) reflecung the arcumstances
at the tme consistent with the committee s normal
adjustment powers

In relavon to the operatian of the annual incentive
framework for the executive directors and the
Pearson Executive

there will be no change 10 indivtdual annual incentive
opportunities,

for 2014, there would be one mechanism for
determining annuat incentive for an indtvidual, namely
a combination of Pearson-wide performance and
ndrvidual goals,

» the sum of the CEQO's and the Pearson Executives’ ‘on
target’ annual ncentive consututes the incentive pool
for this group which flexes up or down based on
overall Pearson performance,

~

indimdual performance s assessed against goals set at
the start of the year,

~

individual pay-outs up to indwidual maximum
opportunities and within the total poot are
recommended by the CEO (or by the chairman in the
case of the CEQ himself) for review and, in the case of
the executive directors, approval by the committee

The committee considers the performance targets
for 2014 to be commergially sensinve Details of
performance measures, weighungs and targets will be
disclosed in the annual remunerauon report for 2014
if and to the extent that the committee deems them
to be no longer commercially sensitive




[

-

Long-term incentives

The comumittee reviewed the design and operation

of the long-term incenuves plan with the following
changes for performance-refated awards wo be granted
to members of the Pearson Executive wy 2014

the weighting of the performance metrics will be
50% on earnings per share growth, 33 3% on return

oninvested capital and t6 7% on relative total -

shareholder return

perfarmance will continue to be tested over three
years and 75% of the vested shares will conunue to

be released at that point Howaever, there will be a
mandatory restriction on participants ability to dispose
of the 75% of the vested shares (other than to meet
personal tax liabihties} for a further two years
Furthermore, parucipants’ rights to the release of

the 25% of the vested shares will be subject to
contnued employment over the same peniod

We have set targets for the 2014 awards that are
consistent with the company’s strategic objectives
over the period to 2016

Subject to approval of the company's remuneration
policy, the performance measures and targets for the
2014 long-term incentive awards to the executive
directors and other members of the Pearson Execunve
that will be made as soon as practicable after the AGM
will be as follows

w~

~

-

~

Sectron 4 Governance tE3

Pay-out Pay-gut

Performance Performance at Pay-qut at
measure Weighung period chreshold progression  maximum
100%

30% for EPS

2016 for EPS growth

EPS comparred growth Straight- of
growth 50% to 2013 of 60% line 120%
30% [ 00%

for 50% for for

ROIC ROIC ROIC

ROIC 333% 2016 of 65% of 70% of 75%
F00%

at

Relative 2014 to 30% at Straight-  upper
TSR 16 7% 2017 median line quartife

We will set the level of individual awards consistent
with those seen in recent years and below the policy
maximum taking iNto account

the face value of ndivdual awards at the ume of grant,
assuming that performance targets are met in full,

market practice for comparable companies and marker
assessments of total remuneratton from our
independent adwvisers,

individual roles and responsibiliues, and
company and indmividual performance.

At the ume of wnting, the committee has yet to
approve the 2014 long-term incentive awards for
the executive directors and other members of
the Pearson Executive
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Report on directors’ remuneratton continued

Full details of indwidual awards and of the performance
measures, weightngs and targets for 2014 will be set
outin the annual remuneration report for 2014

For 2015 and onwards, the averaging perod for the
calculauon of relavve total shareholder retwrn will be
moved to the perod running up to the year end and
the fength of the averaging period will be mcreased to
three months more in ine with insututional investors’
preferences

Annual bonus share matching

The previous annual bonus share matching plan will
cease to operate with the last awards made in 2013
i respect of annual incenuve for 2012 We have
not made any compensatory adjustrnents to annual
or long-term ncentive opportunities to take this
INto account

Fees for the charrman and non-executive directors
The chairman's and non-executive directars’ fees were
reviewed for 2014

As a consequence of that review, the basic non-
executive directors’ fee, and the fees for commuttee
chawmanstup and commurtee membership were
mcreased Fees for the chairmanship and membership
of the reputation and responsibility committee were
also introduced for the first ime The salary for the
charrman remains unchanged

The policy and future arrangements are set out
on page 92 in the directors remuneratton pobcy
report.

Approved by the board and signed on its behalf by

David Arculus Director
10 March 2014
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Pearson plc

Report on the financial statements

Qur opinion
In our opinion

The financal statements defined below, give a true
and fair view of the state of the Group's and company s
affairs as at 31 December 2013 and of the Group's
profit and of the Group's and company’s cash flows

for the year then ended,

The consolidated financial statements have been
properly prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporung Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by
the European Umon,

The company financal statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union and as applied in accordance with the
provisions of the Compartes Act 2006, and

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the requirements of the Companies
Act 2006 and, as regards the conschdated financial
statements, Arucle 4 of the IAS Regulauon

This opinion 15 to be read in the context of what we
say in the remainder of this report

Separate opiuon in relauon to IFRSs as issued by

the [ASB

As explained in note | to the financial statements, the
Group, n addiuon to applying IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union, has also applied IFRSs as issued by
the Internanonal Accounung Standards Board (IASB)

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements
comply with IFRSs as issued by the 1ASB

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements and company
financial statements (the “financial statements’), which
are prepared by Pearson ple, comprise

the consolidated and caompany balance sheet as at
31 December 2013,

the consohdated income statement and statement of
comprehensive income for the year then ended,

the consolidated and company statermnents of changes
in equity and cash flow statements for the year then
ended, and

» the notes to the financial statements, which include a
summary of significant accounting pohaies and other
explanatory information

The financial reporting framework that has been
apphed in their preparation comprises apphicable law
and IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and, as
regards the company, as applied i accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2006

Certain disclosures required by the financial reporting
framework have been presented elsewhere in the
annual report and accounts (the ‘annual report’),
rather than in the notes to the financial statements
These are cross-referenced from the financial
statements and are identfied as audited

What an audit of financial statements involves

We conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing (UK and [retand)
{I5As (UK &lreland)) An audit involves obtaining
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
finangial statements sufficient Lo give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from
material risstatement, whether caused by fraud or
error This includes an assessment of

st

whether the accounung policies are appropriate to the
Group's and company s circumstances and have been
consistently applied and adequately disclosed,

-

the reasonableness of significant accounting esumates
made by the directors. and

~

the overall presentauon of the financial statements

I addiwon, we read al the financial and non-financial
informauon i the annual report to 1dentify material
inconsistencies with the audited financal statements
and to Wdenufy any infformauoen that s apparently
materially incorrect based on, or materially tnconsistent
with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of
performing the audit If we become aware of any
apparent materidl missLatements oF INCONSIStencies

we consider the implications for our report



Overview of our audit approach

Matenality

We set certamn thresholds for matenality These helped
us to determine the nature uming and extent of our
audit procedures and to evaluate the effect of
misstatements, both indwvidually and on the financial
statements as a whole

Using our professional judgement, we deter mined
materiality for the consolidated financial statements as
a whole to be £32m Thus 1s based on 5% of profit
before tax, after adjusting for non-recurnng tems such
as gain on disposal of subsidiares, this being an
appropniate measure of the group’s underlying
performance

We agreed with the audit commuttee that we would
report to them misstatements idenufied durmng our
audit above £2m as well as rrusstatements below that
amount that, in our view, warranted reporting for
qualitative reasons

Overview of the scape of our qudrt

The Group 1s organised into four business segments,
being North Amencan Education, International
Education, Professional and FT Group, plus the
investment in associate Penguin Random House Each
segment comprises a number of reporung uruts The
consolidated financial statements comprise these
reparung units plus the Group's centralised funcrions

In establishing the overall approach to the Group audr,
we determined the type of work that needed to be
performed at the reporting units by us as the Group
engagement team, or component auditors within PwC
UK and from other PwC netwotl firms operating
under our nstruction Where the work was performed
by component auditors, we determined the level of
involvemnent we needed to have in the audit wot at
those reporting units to be able to conclude whether
sufficient appropriate audit evidence had been obtaned
as a basts for our opinion on the consolidated financal
statements as a2 whole

Secuion 5 Fmancial statements H7

Across these segments, we identified two reporung
units in the US and UK that required an audic of their
complete financial information due to size alone, plus a
further nine reporung untts in the US, UK, Brazd, China
and South Africa that required speafied procedures
on certain transactions and balances We aiso obtained
an audit optnion on the financial information of the
associate Penguin Random House QOur audit worl

at these reporting units and at head office gave us
coverage of approximately 80% of the Group's profit
before tax This, together with pracedures at the
consohdated Group level and at the Group's shared
service centres, provided the ewdence we needed for
out opinten on the consohdated financial statements
taken as a whole

Areas of borticular audit focus

in preparing the financial statements, the directors
made a number of subjective judgements, for example
in respect of sigrificant accounting estimates that
involved making assumptions and considening future
events that are inherently uncertain We primariy
focused our work in these areas by assessing the
directors’ judgements against available evidence
formng our own judgements, and evaluating the
disclosures n the financial statements

In our audrt, we tested and exarmined informaton,
using sampling and other auditing techriigues, to
the extent we considered necessary to provide

a reasonable basis for us to draw conclusions

We obtained audrt ewidence through testung the
effectiveness of controls, substanuve procedures
or a combinauon of both

We considered the following areas to be those that
required particular focus i the current year. This (s not
a complete hst of all risks or areas of focus identfied by
our audit We discussed these areas of focus with the
audit commuttee Their report on those matters that
they considered o be significant issues in relation o
the financial statements 15 set out on pages 68 and 69
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Pearson plc conunued

Area of focus

How the scope of our audic addrassed the area of focus

Risk of fraud in revenue recognition

Auditing standards require us to consider the nisk of
fraud i revenue recognition

We focused on materal products and services where
revenue recogmuon pracuces are partcularly complex
and subject to esumates, being

»  muluple element arrangements, such as the provision
of supplementary (print or digital) materals or
training with textbooks, where revenue is recognised
for each element as if it were an individual
contractual arrangement requinng the estumation of
its farr value, and

> certan long-term contracts i the Education
segments, where revenue s recognised using
esumated percentage of completion based on costs

Risk of management override of internal controls

Audiing standards require us to consider the nsk of
management override of internal controls

We evaluated the relevant systems and tested the
internal controls over the accurate and complete
recording of revenue

Woe assessed the accounting treatment of new
contracts at mception, including examinaton of
evidence supporung key assumptions and estmates
We assessed the profitabihity and percentage of
completion estimates made for material long-term
revenue contracts and assessed multiple-element
arrangements and the related fair value allocauons
We performed substantive tesung of revenue
recorded during the year and evaluated any changes
i estmates to determine f they were indicators of
management bias

We also tested manual journals posted to revenue to
determine their appropriateness and compliance with
Group revenue recogmition policies

We assessed the overall control environment of

the Group, mcluding the arrangements for staff to
‘whistleblow’ nappropitate acuons, and interviewed
senior management and the Group’s interal audit
funcuon We examined the significant accounting
esumates and judgements relevant to the financal
statements for evidence of bias by the directors that
may represent a nsk of material misstatement due to
fraud We also tested manual journal entries, including
conschdation entries, and incorporated elements of
unpredictabihity 1n the nature, uming and extent of our
audit procedures

Pengun Random House transacuon

On | July 2013, management announced the completion
of the Penguin Random House combination which
resulted in 2 number of complex accounung and
business model changes as follows

» disposal accounting, ncluding the gan on the sale,

y wvaluauon of the new business and intangible
assets, and

> assocate accounung, including alignment of
accounting polictes and presentanion of results
in the consoldated financial statements
We focused on thus area because it was a complex
transaction which required the directors to exercise
a sigmificant {evel of judgement

Ve evaluated the directors’ assessment of this
transaction as a disposal of a2 business segment and

an acquisition

We evaluated the valuauon of the business and
assoclated gamn on disposal We also assessed the
resultng associate accountng including the fair value
acquisitson adjustments such as recognition of intangible
assets and alignment of accounting policies and thew
application For the valuation exercises we assessed the
directors’ cash flow forecasts, companing them to board
approved plans and chailenged the undertying
assumpuons
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Arca of focus

Provision for uncertain tax habilives

The Group 15 subject to several tax regimes due to the
geographical diversity of its businesses

The directors are required to exercise significant
judgement 1 determining the appropriate amount to
provide in respect of potential tax exposures and
uncertain tax provisions The most significant of these
relate 1o US tax

We focused on this area-because of the inherent
jdgements required i estimating the amount of any
provision required Changes in assumptions can
materially impact the leve! of provisions recorded m the
financial statements

Returns provisions

We focused on this area because there are matenal
judgemental provisions for anticipated book returns
within the Education segments parucularly as the
Group transitions from print to digital

How the scope of our audit addressed the area of focus

We obtained an understanding of the Group's tax
strategy to identfy tax nisks relaung to business and
legislative developments We recalculated the directors’
valuation of tax provisions and determined whether the
calculations were in ne with the Group's tax policies
and had been applied consistently

We evaluated key underlying assumpuons, partcularly
n the US and i terntonies with new croass border

tax structures, having due regard to ongoing
correspondence between the Group and local

tax authorites

We tested the calculzanon of the provisions, assessing
judgements for reasonableness against histoncal
expenience and the impact on returns of the

ongoing business transiion from print to digtal

We also tested controls in the shipment and returns
Provisioning processes

Valuaton of pre-publicavon assets and inventones

We focused on this area because there are material pre-
publication assets and inventortes within the Educanon
segments Judgement 1s required to evaluate the valvauon
of these assets which may be more complex dunng the
transiuon from pnnt to digital

Goodwill impairment reviews

We focused on this area because the Group carnes
significant goodwill and acquired intangible asser balances
There 15 judgement in the idennfication and aggregation
of cash generating units (CGUs) and n the assumptions
used in the annual goodwill iImpairment review

We evaluated the recoverability of the pre-publicauon
assets and inventories held, by assessing actual
expenence aganst historical estimates and in fight

of business transiwon from print to digital

We also tested controls in the pre-publication assets
and mventones processes

We tested management’s impairment analysis by
examining their identfication and aggregation of

CGUs and by evaluaung the underlying assumpuions
through assessment of forecasts. market condions

and sensiuvity analysis and through assessing the
hustoncal accuracy of forecasts and budgets

We assessed management s calculation of discount rates
and perpetuity growth rates and we tested the integnity
of the valuauon model
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Pearson plc continued

Going concern

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the
directors’ statement, set out on page 72, in refation to
going concern We have nothing te report having
performed our review

As noted in the directors’ statement, the directors
have concluded that it 1s appropnate to prepare the
consoitdated and company financial statements using
the going concern basis of accounting The going
concern basis presumes that the Group and company
have adequate resources to remain in operaton, and
that the directors intend them to do so, for at least
one year from the date the financial statements were
signed As part of our audit we have concluded that the
directors’ use of the going concern basis i1s appropriate

However, because not all future events or condiuions
can be predicted, these statements are not a guarantee
as to the Group's and the company's ability to
continue as a going concern

Opintons on other matters prescribed by the
Companies Act 2006

In our opinion

the informanion given in the strategic report and the
directors’ report for the finanoal year for which the
financial statements are prepared 15 consistent with

the financial statements; and

the part of the directors’ remuneration report to be
audired has been properly prepared m accordance with
the Companies Act 2006

~

~

r

Other matters on which we are required to report by
excepuon

Adequacy of accounting records and information and
explanauions received

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required

0 report to you If, 1n our cpinion

we have not recewved all the information and
explanations we require for our audit or

adequate accounting records have not been kept by
the company, or retuns adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not visited by us, or

the company financial statements and the part of the
directors’ remuneration report to be audited are not n
agreement with the accounting records and returns

We have no exceptons to report ansing from this
responsibiicy

Directors’ remuneration

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required

to report to you if, sn our opinion, certan disclosures
of directors’ remuneratien specified by law have not
been made We have no exceptions to report arising
from this responsibihity




~
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Corporate Governance Statement

Under the Listng Rudes we are required to review the
part of the Corporate Governance Statement relating
to the Company's comphance with nune provistons of

the UK Corporate Governance Code {the Code) We
have nothing to report having performed our review

On page 74 of the annual report, as required by the
Code Provision C { 1, the directors state that they
consider the annual report taken as a whole to be
fair, balanced and understandable and provides the
mformauon necessary for members 1o assess the
Group's performance, business model and strategy
On pages 68 and 69, as required by C 3 8 of the
Code, the audit commuttee has set out the significant
issues that it considered in relation 1o the financial
statements, and how they were addressed Under [SAs
{UK & trefand) we are required to report to you if, m
our opINIon

the statement given by the directors i1s materially
nconsistent with our knowledge of the Group
acquired it the course of performing cur audit, or

the section of the annual report deseribing the work
of the audit committee does not approprately address
matters communicated by us to the audit commuttee

We have no excepuons to report ansing from this
responsibility

Section 5 Financial statemenis 12q

Other mformation in the annual report

Under ISAs (UK & Ireland), we are required to report
to you ff, in our opinion, information in the annual
report 1s

» raterially nconsistent with the informaton n the
audized financial statements, or

» apparently materially ncorrect based on, or matertally
inconsistent with our knowledge of the Group and
company acquired in the course of performing our
audtt, or

» 1s otherwise nusleading

We have no exceptions to report ansing from this
responstbliy

MIAYIAD

FINYWYOIUId ¥NO

SSANISNE 319ISNOJSIY

|
|

JINYNYIAQD

f
|

SANIHILYLS IVIDOMNY NI




122 Pearson plc Annual report and accounts 2013

Independent auditors’ report to the members of Pearson plc conunued

Responsibilities for the financial statements and
the audit

Our responsibilities and those of the directors

As explained more fully in the statement of directors’
responsibihues set out on page 74, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the consolidated and
company financal statements and for being sausfied
that they give a true and fair view

Our responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinicn on
the consolidated and company financial statements In
accordance with applicable law and 15As (UK &
Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with
the Audiung Pracuces Board's Ettucal Standards for
Auditors

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared
for and only for the company’s members as a body

in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Compames Act 2006 and for no other purpose

We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume
responstbility for any other purpose or to any other
person 1o whom this report is shown or mto whose
hands it may come save where expressly agreed by

ouLprior conls\e}?t 1N witing
Werr L IPACA
Stugrt Newman (Sentor Statutory Audrtor )

For and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London, United Kingdom

10 March 2014

Notes

{a} The mantenance and integrity of the Pearson
plc website 13 the responsibility of the directors,
the work carmed out by the auditors does not
mvolve considerauon of these matters and,
accordingly, the auditors accept no responsibility
for any changes that may have occurred to the
financial statements since they were imually
presented on the website

{b) Legislauon m the United Kingdom governing
the preparavon and disserminauon of financial
statements may differ from legislation in other
junsdictions
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Consolidated income statement
Year ended 3| December 2013

Notes 2013 2012

Adi figures n £ millians Restated
Sales 2 5,069 4,959
Cost of goods sold 4 (2312) (2187
Gross profit 2,757 2772
Operaung expenses 4 (2.353) (2.181)
Loss on closure of subsidiary - (113)
Share of results of joint ventures and assoclates 12 >4 9
Operatng profit - 2 458 487
Finance costs 6 (1) {115}
Finance income 6 35 19
Profit before tax 382 391
Income tax 7 {87) (138)
Profit for the year from conunuing operations 295 253
Profit for the year from discontinued operations 1 244 6l
Profit for the year 539 34
Areributable ro
Equity holders of the company 538 311
Non-conerolling interest | 3
Eariwngs per share for profit from continuing and discontinued operations
ateributable to equity holders of the company during the year
{expressed in pence per share)
— basic B 66 6p 387p
— diluted 8 66 5p 386p
Earntngs per share for profit from continuing operations ateributable
to equity holders of the company during the year
{expressed in pence per share)
— basic 8 364p 3t tp
— diluted 8 363p 3 0p

M3IIAYIAD

ADINVYHYOSH3d BNO

SSANISOY 319ISNOJETY

TONVNUIAOD

SINIW2LYLS T9IaNYNI |




124 Pearson pic Annual report and accounts 2013

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
Year ended 3t December 2013

Notes 2013 012
Al figures i £ milfions Restated
Profit for the year 539 314
ltems that may be reclassified to the income statement

MNet exchange differences on transfauon of foreign operatons — Group (206) {238)
Net exchange differences on transfation of foreign operauons — associates (i) -
Currency translanon adjustment disposed ~ Group (18) -
Autributable tax 7 6 [

ltems that are not reclassified to the income statement

Remeasurement of returement benefit obligattons ~ Group 28 79 (100)
Remeasurement of retirement benefit obligations — associates - 3
Attmbutable tax 7 (23) 50
Other comprehensive expense for the year (173) (290}
Total comprehensive income for the year 366 24

Attributable to

Equity holders of the company 369 23

Nan-controlling interest

(3)




Secoion 5 Financial statements

Consolidated balance sheet
As at 31 December 2013

125

Al figures n £ miflions Nates 2013 2012
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment i 342 327
Intangible assets i 5,801 6,218
Investments in joInt ventures and associates i2 1,092 15
Deferred income tax assets (3 250 229
Financial assets — Derwvatve financial instruments 16 PEl 174
Retirement benefit assets b B6 -
Other financial assets 5 94 31
Trade and other recewvables 22 70 79
7.846 7,073
Current assets
Intangible assets - Pre-publicaton 20 717 666
Inventones 21 224 261
Trade and other recetvables n 1.173 i.104
Financial assets — Derwvauve financial instruments i 13 4
Financial assets — Marketable securives 14 ] 6
Cash and cash equvalents (excluding overdrafts) (7 729 1.062
2,862 3103
Assets classified as held for sale L7) 223 1172
Total assets _ 10931 11,348
Liabilities
Non-current habilities
financial habdiues - Borrowings @ (1,693) (2.010)
Financial labikties — Dervative financial instruments t6 (48) -
Deferred income tax labihties 13 (612) (601)
Retirement benefit obligatons » (142} (172)
Prowisions for other habidites and charges px {77} (110}
Other labilues 2 (257) (282)
{2829 {3,175}
Current habilues
Trade and other liabilines i {1.505) (1.556)
Financial habiliues - Borrowings 18 (533) (262)
Current income tax liabtlities {164) (2%1)
Provisions for other liabiliues and charges B {112) (38)
{2.314) (2.147)
Liabihues directly associated with assets classified as held for sale 2 (82) (316)
Total hiabtliuies (5.225)  (5.638)
Net assets 5,706 5,710
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Consolidated balance sheet continued
As at 3| December 2013

Al figures 1n £ rilhans Notes 2003 Wiz
Equity

Share capital 27 205 204
Share premium 7 21568 2,555
Treasury shares 2 (98) (103}
Translauon reserve (103) 128
Retained earnings 3,128 2,902
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the company 5700 5,686
Nen-controlling mterest 6 24
Total equity 5,706 5710

These financial statements have been approved for issue by the board of directors on 10 March 2014 and signed

on its behalf by

Robin Freestone Chief financial officer
/ e

/2,__*
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
Year ended 31 December 2013

127

Equity atinbutable to equuty holders of the company

Share Share Treasury  Translaton Retained conrr::ﬁ:é Total
Al figures in £ millons capital premium shares reserve earnngs Tanl nteresc equity
At January 2013 204 2,555 (103) 128 2902 5686 24 5710
Profit for the year -~ - - - 538 538 | 539
Other comprehensive expense - - - (231) 62 (169) 4 (173)
Equity-settled transactions - - - - 37 37 - 37
Tax on equity-settled transacuons - - - - - - - -
tssue of ordmary shares under share
option schemes | i3 - - - 14 - i4
Purchase of treasury shares - ~ (47} - - 47 - (47}
Retease of treasury shares - - 52 - (52) - - -
Put options over non-controlling
interest - - - - - - - -
Changes in non-controlling interest - - - - 13 i3 (15) (2)
Dividends - - - - (372)  (372) - {(372)
At 31 December 2013 205 2,568 {98) (103) 3.128 5,700 6 5706

Lauity 2unburable 1o equiy bolders of the company Restatrd
bén

Share Share Treasury  Translauon Rerared conroliing Toral
Al lipures i £ milhons. capital prenwum shares reserve carmungs Toral ineress quul
At 1 January 2012 204 2544 (149) 364 2980 5943 19 58962
Profit for the year - - - - I 311 3 314
Other comprehensive expense - - - (236) (52) (288) {2} (250)
Equity-settied transactions - - - - 32 32 - 32
Tax on equity-settled transactions - - - - (6) (6) - (6)
Issue of ordinary shares under share
opuon schemes - H - - - i - M
Purchase of treasury shares - - - - - - - -
Release of weasury shares - - 46 - (46) - - -
Put opuons over non-controlling
interest - - - - 39 39 - 39
Changes n non-contralling interest - - - - (10 {10) 6 4)
Dvidends . - - - - (346)  (346) (2)  (348)
At 3| December 2012 204 2555 {103) 128 2902 5686 24 5710

The translauon reserve ncludes exchange differences ansing from the translauon of the net wvestment in foreign
operauons and of borrow:ngs and other currency mstrurnents designated as hedges of such investments

1
i
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Consolidated cash flow statement

Year ended 31 December 2013

Al figures in £ miflrans Nors 013 2012
Cash flows from operating activities

Net cash generated from operations 34 684 916
tnterest paid (82) (75)
Tax pad . . (246) (65)
Net cash generated from operaung activicies 356 776
Cash flows from mvesting acuvities

Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired 30 (48) (716)
Acquisition of jomt ventures and associates (10} (39
Purchase of investments (64) (10}
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (118) (78)
Purchase of intangible assets (64) (73)
Dusposal of subsidiartes, net of cash disposed ] (132) (It)
Proceeds from sale of associates 2 -
Proceeds from sale of investments 2 -
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 34 28 [
Proceeds from sale of ntangible assets 2 3
Proceeds from sale of hquid resources 13 23
fnvestment n hquid resources (14) (19
fnterest received 9 9
Dividends received from joint ventures and associates . 64 27
Net cash used in investing activities {330} (88€3)
Cash flows from financing acuvities

Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares 27 {4 b
Purchase of treasury shares 8 (47) -
Proceeds from borrowings 319 327
Loans to related parues (44) -
Loans advanced (5) -
biquid resources acquired - n
Repayment of borrowings (225) -
Finance lease principal payments {8) (8)
Dividends paid to company's shareholders ) (372) (346}
Dividends paid to non-controlling interest - (2}
Transactions with non-controlling interest 3 (76) (4)
Net cash used in financing activinies {444) (23
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 2! (24)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents {397) (154)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 137 1 291
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 17 740 1,137

The consolidated cash flow statement incudes discontinued operations (see note 3)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

General information

Pearson plc {the company} its subsidiaries and
assocrates (together the Group) are mnternational
media businesses covering education, business
information and consumer publishing

The company 15 a public limited company mncorporated
and dormiciled in England The address of its registered
office 15 80 Strand, London WC2R ORL

The company has its primary listing on the London
Stock Exchange and s also listed on the New York
Stock Exchange

These consolidated financial statements were
approved for issue by the board of directors
on {0 March 2014

I Accountng pohcies

The principal accounting policies apphed in the
preparaton of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below

2 Basis of preparation

These consohdated financial statements have been
prepared on the going concern basis and in accordance
with Internanonal Financial Reporung Standards (IFRS)
and {FRS Interpretavons Committee nterpretations as
adopted by the European Union (EU} and with those
parts of the Companies Act 2006 apphcable to comparves
reporting under IFRS In respect of the accounting
standards applicable to the Group there 1s no difference
between EU-adopted and JASB-adopted IFRS

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention as
modtfied by the revaluation of financial assets and
habidites (including dervative financial instruments}
to far value through profit or loss

! Interpretations and amendments to published standards
effectve 20/ 3

The following amendments and intet pretations were
adopted in 2013

Amendments to 1AS {9 ‘Employee Benefits (201 1),
effecuve for annual reporting perrods beginning on

or after | January 2013 The amendments include the
ehmination of the corrdor approach changes to the
calculanon of the net interest and service cost
components and changes to disclosure The 2012
results have been restated for IAS 19 (201 {) with
the results as follows

~

N

"

~

Operating profit reduced by £4m
{Net finance costs increased by £15m
[ncome tax charge reduced by £4m

The remeasurement of retrement benefit obligatons
charge i the statement of other comprehensive
wmcome reduced by £15m

if the results for 2013 had been prepared under [AS 19
(rev 2008) the service cost would have been £4m
lower and the net interest income would have been
£28m higher

Amendments to 1AS | ‘Presentauen of Financial
Statements’ —~ Presentauon of kems and Other
Comprehensive Income, effective for annual
reportng periods beginning on or after | july 2012
The amendments require the grouping of items m
other comprehensive Income into those that may

be reclassified 1o the ncome statement 1n subsequent
periods, and those that will not The statement of
other comprehensive ncome has been updated to
present this information

The IASB ssued a ‘package of five' new and amended
standards together (FRS 10 ‘Consolidated Financial
Statements’, IFRS [ | ‘Joint Arrangements’ and IFRS |2
‘Disclosures of Invelvement with Other Entties” have
been issued |AS 27 'Separate Financial Statements’
(Rewised 20! 1) has been amended following the ssuance
of IFRS 10 and retains the guidance for separate
financial statements 1AS 28 'investments in Associates
and Jomt Ventures' (Revised 201 {) has been amended
following the issuance of IFRS 10 and [FRS |1 All three
new standards and two amended standards are not
mandatory for the Group untl | January 2014
However, the Group has early adopted these
standards and amendments as of | January 2013

IFRS [3 Fair Value Measurement’, effecuve for annual
reporting perods beginning on or after | january 2013
The standard defines far value, prowdes guidance on
its determination, and introduces disclosure
requirements on far value measurements

Amendments to IFRS 7, 'Finanaal Instruments -
Drisclosures’ regarding asset and liability offsetting

Amendments to IAS 36, 'Imparment of assets’, on
the recoverable amount disclosures for non-financial
assets This amendment removed certain disclosures
of the recoverable amount of CGUs which had been
ncluded in 1AS 36 by theissue of IFRS 13 The
amendment 1s not mandatory for the Group unti

I fanuary 2014 However, the Group has early
adopted the amendments as of | January 201 3
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

| Accounting policies continued

a Basis of preparation continued

With the excepuon of IAS |9 ‘Employee Benefits
(201 1Y, the adoption of these new pronouncements
from | January 2013, does not have a matenal impact
on the consohidated financial statements Disclosure
requirements have been updated as required

2 Standaids, nterpretations and emendments

to published standards that are not yet effective

The Group has not early adopted the following new
pronouncements that are not yet effective

IFRS 9 ‘Finanaial Instruments’, effectuve for annual
reporung periods beginning on or after | January 2018
The new standard details the requirements for the
classificanon, measurement and recognition of financial
assets and habiines The Group s yet to assess the full
impact of IFRS 9 and will do so once the remaiing
sections of the standard are completed

IFRIC 21, ‘Levtes’ detalls the accounting for an
obligation to pay a levy that is notincome tax As the
Group 1s not currently subjected to significant levies
the impact on the Group 15 not matenal

3 Crcal accounting assumptions and judgements

The preparanon of financial statements in confornuty
with IFRS requires the use of certain crcal accounting
assumpuons It also requires management to exercise
its judgement i the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies The areas requining a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumpuons
and estimates are significant to the consoldated
financial statements, are discussed in the relevant
accounung policies under the following headings

intangible assets Goodwill

Intangible assets Pre-publication assets
Taxation

Employee benefits Pension obligations
Revenue recognition

b Consohdation

| Business combinations The acquisiton method of
accounung is used to account for business combinanons
The consideration transferred for the acquisiion

of a subsidiary 1s the far value of the assets transferred,
the liabilities incurred and the equity interest ssued by
the Group The consideranon wransferred includes the
fair value of any asset or llabiity resulting from a
conungent consideration arrangement Acquisition
refated costs are expensed as ncurred in the operating
expenses hine of the income statement

Identifiable assets and conungent assets acquired and
identifiable labihites and conungent habilities assumed
in a business combtnation are measured wnitaily at
thew fair values at the acquisition date For material
acquisiions, the fair value of the acquired intangible
assets 1s determined by an ndependent valuer The
excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controiling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition date far value of any previous equity
mterest in the acquiree over the fair value of the
identifiable net assets acquired 1s recorded as goodwill

See note le(l) for the accounung policy on goodwill

If this 1s less than the faw value of the net asserts of the
subsidiary acquired, in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference 1s recognised directly in the Income statement

On an acquisiton-by-acquistuon basis, the Group
recognises any non-controlhing interest in the acquiree
erther at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proporuonate share of the acquiree’s net assets

2 Subsidianes Subsidiaries are entiiies over which the
Group has control The Group cantrols an entity when
the Group Is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvernent wath the enttty and has
the abiity to affect those returns through its power
over the entity Subsidiaries are fully consolidared from
the date on which control ts transferred to the Group
They are deconsohidated from the date that control
ceases

3 Tiansactions with non-controlling interests Transactions
with non-controlling interests that do not result in loss
of control are accounted for as equity transactions.
that 15 as transactions with the owners in their capacity
as owners Any surplus or defictt ansing from disposals
to a non-controlling interest 1s recorded in equity

For purchases from a non-controlling interest, the
difference between consideration paid and the relevant
share acquired of the carrying value of the subsidiary 15
recorded n equity

4 Jomt ventures and assocates JOINL ventut es are entiues in
which the Group holds an interest on a long-term basis
and has rights to the net assets through conuractually
agreed sharing of control Associates are entities over
which the Group has significant influence bur not the
power to control the financial and operaung policees,
generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20%
and 50% of the voting rights Investments in joint ventures
and assoaates are accounted for by the equity method
and are mitally recognised at the fair value of
consideration transferred




I Accounting policies contmued

b Consolidation continued

The Group's share of ts joint ventures' and associates’
post-acquisiton profits or losses 1s recognised i the
ncome statement and 1ts share of post-acquisiton
movements In reserves is recognised In reserves

The Group's share of its joint ventures' and associates’
results 1s recognised as a component of operating profit
as these operations form part of the core publishing
business of the Group and are an integral part of
existing wholly-owned businesses The cumulative
post-acquisiion movements are adjusted agamnst the
carrying amount of the investment When the Group's
share of losses in a joint venture or associate equals or
exceeds Its interest In the jont venture or associate the
Group does not recognise further losses unless the
Group has incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the joint verture or associate

¢ Foreign currency translation

I Funcuonal and presentation currency ltems included in
the financial statements of each of the Group's entiues
are measured using the currency of the primary
econoriuc environment in which the entity operates
(the ‘funcuonal currency’} The consolidated financial
statements are presented in sterhing, which is the
company’s funcuonal and presentation currency

2 Transactions and balances Foreign currency
ransacuons are transfated mto the funcoonal currency
using the exchange rates prevaling at the dates of the
wransacuons Foregn exchange gans and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translauon at year end exchange rates of
monetary assets and fabilines denominated in foreign
currencies are recogmised n the Income statemment,
except when deferred in equity as qualifying net
investment hedges

3 Group compantes The results and financal position
of all Group companies that have a functional currency
different from the presentation currency ate translated
into the presentation currency as follows

1} assets and habiliies are transiated at the closing rate
at the date of the balance sheet,

u} income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates,

) all resulting exchange differences are recognised
as a separate component of equity
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On consolidation, exchange differences ansing from
the translation of the net investment in foreign enuues,
and of borrowings and other currency instruments
designated as hedges of such investments, are taken
to shareholders’ equity The Group treats specific
ineer-company loan balances, which are not intended
to be repawd in the foreseeable future, as part of its net
mvestment YWhen a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are recogrised in the Income
statement as part of the gain or loss on sale

The principal overseas currency for the Group 1s the
US dollar The average rate for the year against sterling
was $| 57 (2012 $1 59) and the year end rate was
$166 (2012 $163)

d Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less deprecianon Costincludes the oniginal
purchase price of the asset and the costs attnbutable
to bringing the asset to its working conditron for
intended use Land 1s not depreciated Depreciaton
on other assets 15 calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their cost less thewr residual values
over thewr estumated useful lves as follows

Buddings (freehold) 20-50 years
Buildings (leasehold) over the perod of the lease
Plant and equipment.  3-i10years

The assets’ residual values and usefuf hves are
reviewed, and adjusted f appropriate, at each balance
sheet date

The carryng value of an asset s written down to its
recoverable amount if the carrying value of the asset
ts greater than «s estmnated recoverable amount.

e Intangible assets

I Goodwill For the acquisition of subsidiarnes made

on or after | January 2010 goodwill represents the
excess of the consideraton wansferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest i the acquiree and

the acquisitton date fawr value of any previous equity
witerest n the acquiree aver the far value of the
dentifiable net assets acquired For the acquisition of
subsidianes made from the date of transiton to [FRS
to 3| December 2009 goodwill represents the excess
of the cost of an acquisiion over the fair value of the
Group's share of the net idenufiable assets acquired
Goodwilt on acquisttions of subsidianies is included in
intangible assets Goodwll on acquisiuon of associates
and joint ventures reprasents the excess of the cost of
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

| Accounting polictes continued

e Intangible assets contunued

an acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share
of the net idenufiable assets acquired Goodwill on
acquisitions of associates and jomnt ventures s included
in INvestments n associates and joint ventures

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and

carried al cost less accumulated impairment losses

An imparrment loss 1s recognised to the extent

that the carrying value of goodwill exceeds the
recoverable amount The recoverable amount is the
tugher of fair value tess costs to sell and value in use
These calculauons require the use of estimates and
signficant management judgement A description of the
key assumptions and senstuvities s included in note 1|
Goodwill 1s allocated to aggregated cash-generating
units for the purpose of impairment testing The
allocation 1s made to those aggregated cash-generatng
urits that are expected to benefit from the business
combinanion in which the goodwill arose

Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include
the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the
entty sold

IFRS 3 ‘Business Combmations' has not been applied
retrospectively to business combinations before the
date of wansttion to [FRS

2 Acquired software Software separately acquired for
wternal use 15 capitalised at cost Software acquired in
material business combinations is capitahsed at s far
value as determined by an independent valuer
Acquired software s amorused on a straight-line basts
over tts esumated useful hfe of between three and
eight years

3 Internaily developed software Internal and external
costs incurred duning the prelimmnary stage of
developing computer sofeware for mternal use are
expensed as incurred internal and external costs
incurred to develop computer software for internal
use during the application development stage are
capitalised if the Group expects economic benefits
from the devetopment Capitalisauon in the apphcation
development stage begins once the Group can reliably
measure the expenditure attnbutable to the software
development and has demonstrated its ntention to
complete and use the software internally developed
software 1s amorused on a swraight-kine basts over its
astimated useful Iife of between three and eight years

4 Acquired intangible assets Acquired intangible assets
tinclude customer lists and relatonshups, trademarks
and brands, publishing nghts, content and technology
These assets are capitalised on acquisinon at cost and
ncluded in intangible assets fntangible assets acquired
tn material business combinations are capitalised at
thewr fair value as determined by an independent valuer
Intangible assets are amorused over their estimated
useful hves of between two and 20 years, using an
amorusation method that reflects the pattern of

therr consumption

5 Pre-publicatron assets Pre-publication assets
represent direct costs incurted in the development

of educanional programmes and utles prior to their
publication These costs are recognised as current
intangible assets where the utle will generate probable
future economic benefits and costs can be measured
refiably Pre-pubkcauon assets are amortised upon
publicanion of the utle over esumated economic lives
of five years or less, being an esumate of the expected
operatung hfe cycle of the title, with a higher proportion
of the amorusauon taken in the earher years

The investment in pre-publication assets has been
disclosed as part of cash generated from operatons
in the cash flow statement (see note 34)

The assessment of the recoverability of pre-pubhcaton
assets and the determination of the amortisanion
profile involve a significant degree of judgement based
on historical trends and management esumation of
future potential sales An incorrect amortisation profile
could result in excess amounts being carmed forward as
intangble assers that would otherwise have been written
off to the income statement in an earlier penod

Reviews are performed regularly to esumate
recoverabiity of pre-pubbcation assets The carrying
amount of pre-publication assets 15 set out in note 20

f Other financial assets

Other financial assets, designated as available for
sale investments, are non-dernvative financial assets
measured at esumated fair value Changes in the
fair value are recorded in equity in the fair value
reserve On the subsequent disposal of the asset,
the net fair value gains or losses are taken to the
Income statement




1 Accounting policies continued

g Inventortes

inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value Cost 1s determined using the first n
first out {FIFO) method The cost of finished goods
and work in progress comprises raw matenals, direct
labour, other direct cosis and related production
overheads Net realisable value 1s the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less esumated
costs necessary 10 make the sale Prowisions are made
for slow moving and obsolete stock

h Royalty advances

Advances of royalues to authors are included within
trade and other receivables when the advance is paid
less any provision required to adjust the advance to
1s net reahsable value The realisable value of royalty
advances relies on a degree of management judgement
i determining the profitability of indivdual author
contracts If the estimated reaitsable value of author
contracts 1s overstated, this will have an adverse effect
on aperating profits as these excess amounts will be
written off

The recoverability of royalty advances s based upon
an annua! detailed management review of the age of
the advance, the future sales projecuons for new
authors and prior sales history of repeat authors
The royalty advance is expensed at the contracted
or effective royalty rate as the related revenues are
earned Royalty advances which will be consumed
within one year are held in current assets Royalty
advances which will be consumed after one year are
held in non-current assets

t Cash and cash equivaients

Cash and cash equivafents in the cash flow statement
include cash in hand, deposits held on call with banks,
other short-term highly hquid investments with
orginal maturiues of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts Bank overdrafts are included in borrowings
in current kabriiwes in the balance sheet

Short-term deposits and marketable secunties with
maturties of greater than three months do not qualify
as cash and cash equivalents Movements on these
financial Instruments are classified as cash flows

from financing activivtes 1n the cash flow statement
where these amounts are used 1o offset the
borrowings of the Group or as cash flows from
mvesung acuvities where these amounts are held

10 generate an investment return

Section § Financial statements 133

}- Share capital
Ordmary shares are classified as equity

Incremental costs directly attibutable ro the 1ssue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as
a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds

Where any Group company purchases the company’s
equity share capnal (treasury shares) the consideration
paid, including any directly attributable imcremental
costs, net of Income taxes, is deducted from equity
attributable to the company’s equity holders untl the
shares are cancelled, reissued or disposed of Where
such shares are subsequently sold or reissued, any
constderaton received, net of any directly artributable
transaction costs and the related income tax effects,

15 included in equity attnbutable to the company's
equity holders

k Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at far value, which
1s proceeds received net of transacuion costs incurred
Borrowings are subseguently stated at amortised cost
with any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value being
recogrised in the income statement over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest method
Accrued interest 15 included as part of borrowings
Where 3 debtinstrument ss i a fair value hedging
relationship, an adjustment is made to s carrying value
in the income statement to reflect the hedged nsk
Interest on borrowtngs 1s expensed in the come
statement as mcurred

I Derwvative financral instruments

Derwvauves are recogiused at far value and remeasured
at each balance sheet date The farr value of derwvauves
s deternuned by using market data and the use of
estabhshed estimation techimques such as discounted
cash flow and option valuation models The Group
designates certan of the dernvative instruments within
1ts pordolio to be hedges of the fair value of 1ts bonds
{farr value hedges) or hedges of net investments m
Toreign operations (net investment hedges)

|
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

| Accounting policies continued

| Dervatwve financtal instruments contmued

Changes in the fair vaiue of denvatives that are
designated and qualfy as fair value hedges are recorded
in the income statement, together with any changes in
the fair value of the hedged asset or frabthty that are
attributable to the hedged nisk

The effecuve portion of changes in the fair value

of dervatives that are designated and qualify as net
investment hedges are recognised i other
comprehensive income Gans and losses accumulated
in equity are included in the income statement when
the corresponding foreign operation is disposed of
Gains or losses relating to the meffective portion are
recognised immediately in finznce income or finance
costs in the Income statement

Certain dervatives do not qualify or are not designated
as hedging instruments Such dervauves are classified
at fair value and any movement in thewr fair value 1s
recogrised immediately in finance income or finance
costs in the income statement

m Taxation

Current tax s recognised on the amounts expected to
be paid or recovered under the tax rates and laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date

Deferred income tax s provided, using the habihity
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and labilives and their carrying
amounts Deferred income tax s determined using tax
rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to
apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised
or the deferred income tax hability is sertded

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that 1t s probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be uuhsed

Deferred income tax ts prowvided in respect of the
undistributed earmings of subsidianes other than where
it 1s intended that those undistributed earmings will not
be remitted in the foreseeable future

Current and deferred tax are recognised in the income
statement, except when the tax relates to items
charged or credited directly to equity or other
comprehensive iIncome, m which case the tax i also
recognised in equity or other comprehensive income

The Group 15 subject to income taxes in nUMerous
junsdictions Significant judgement s required n
determining the esumates in relation to the worldwide
proviston for ncome taxes There are many
transacuons and calculations for which the ulomate tax
determination 1s uncertain during the ordinary course
of business The Group recognises liabiliies for
antcipated tax audit issues based on estimates of
whether addiuonal taxes will be due Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were imwally recorded, such differences
will impact the iIncome tax and deferred tax provisions
in the period in which such determinanion is made

Deferred tax assets and habiiues require management
judgement in deterrmining the amounts to be
recogimsed In parucular, significant judgement is used
when assessing the extent to which deferred tax assets
should be recogrnised with consideration given to the
wmung and level of future taxable income together with
any future tax planming strategies

n Employee benefits

I Pension obligatons The retirement benefit asset and
obligation recogmised in the balance sheet represents
the net of the present value of the defined benefit
obligation and the far value of plan assets at the
balance sheet date The defined benefit obligation ts
calculated annually by independent actuanes using the
projected unit credic method The present value of the
defined benefit obligation i1s determined by discounting
esumated future cash flows using yields on high quahty
corporate bonds which have terms to mawuny
approxamating the terms of the related liability

The determination of the pension cost and defined
benefit obliganon of the Group's defined benefit
pension schemes depends on the selection of certan
assumptions, which mclude the discount rate, inflation
rate, safary growth and longewvity

Actuarial gains and losses arising from expenence
adjustments and changes in aciuanal assumpuons are
charged or creditéd to equity iIn other comprehensive
mcome 1w the period in which they arse

The service cost represenung benefits accruing over
the year, 1s included i the ncome statement as an
operaung cost Net interest 1s calculated by applying
the discount rate to the net defined benefit obhgaton
and is presented as {inance costs or finance income




1 Accounting policies continued

n Employee benefits conunued

Oblhigations for contnbutions to defined contrnibuton
pension plans are recognised as an operating expense
in the income statement as thcurred

2 Other post-retrerment obligations The expected costs
of post-retirement healthcare and lfe assurance
benefits are accrued over the penod of employment,
using a sirnilar accounting methodology as for defined
benefit pension obligations The habiliues and costs
relaung to significant other post-retrement obligattons
are assessed annually by independent qualfied actuanes

3 Share-based payments The farr value of options or
shares granted under the Group's share and option
plans is recognised as an employee expense after taking
into account the Group’s best esumate of the number
of awards expected to vest Far value 15 measured at
the date of grant and 1s spread over the vesting period
of the option or share The fair value of the options
granted 15 measured using an option model that 1s most
appropriate to the award The fair value of shares
awarded 15 measured using the share price at the date
of grant unless another method 1s more appropriate
Any proceeds recewved are credited to share capital
and share premium when the options are exercised

o Provisions

Provisions are recognised if the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is more likely than not that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation
and the amount can be reliably estmated Prowsions
are discounted ro present value where the effect

1s material

The Group recogruses a provision for deferred
consideratton at fair value.

The Group recogmises a provision for onerous lease
contracts when the expected benefits to be denved
from a contract are less than the unavoidable costs
of meeung the obligations under the contract

The prowvision 1 based on the present vatue of future
payments for surplus leased properties under non-
cancellable operaung leases, net of estimated sub-
ieasing Income

Secuon 5 Financral statements 135

p Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the considerauon
received or receivable for the sale of goods and
services net of sales taxes, rebates and discounts,

and after elimmating sales within the Group

Ravenue from the sale of baoks 15 recognised when
utle passes A provision for anucipated returns 1s made
based primarily on histoncal return rates If these
esumates do not reflect actual returns in future periods
then revenues could be understated or overstated for
a parucular penod

Circudation and advertising revenue i1s recognised when
the newspaper or other publication 1s published
Subscription revenue is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the life of the subscripuon

Where a contractual arrangement consists of two

or mare separate elements that can be provided

to customers either on a stand-alone basis or as an
optional extra, such as the provision of supplementary
materials with textbooks, revenue is recognised for
each element as if it were an indivdual contractual
arrangement

Revenue from multi-year contractual arrangements,
such as contracts to process qualifying tests for
individual professions and government departments,

15 recogrised as performance occurs The assumpuons,
risks, and uncertainties wnherent in fong-term contract
accounung can affect the amounts and eming of
revenue and related expenses reported Certan of
these arrangements, either as a result of a single service
spanning mare than one reportng period or where the
contract requires the prowision of a number of services
that together constitute a single project, are treated as
long-term contracts with revenue recognised on a
percentage of completion basis Losses an contracts
are recognised in the period in which the loss first
becomes foreseeable Contractlosses sre deterrmined
to be the amount by which esumated total costs of the
contract exceed the estimated total revenues that will
be generated by the contract

On certain contracts, where the Group acts as agent,
only commussions and fees recewable for services
rendered are recognised as revenue Any third-party
costs meurred on behalf of the principal that are
rechargeable under the contractual arrangement

are not mcluded in revenue
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Notes to the consoldated financial statements continued

| Accounting pohicies continued

p Revenue recogniion continued

Income from recharges of freight and other acuvities
which are incidental to the normal revenue generaung
actwviues s included in other income

q Leases

Leases of property. plant and equipment where the
Group has substantially all the risks and rewards

of ownership are classified as finance leases

Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement

of the lease at the lower of the far value of the leased
property and the present value of the minimum lease
payments Each lease payment 1s allocated between the
labiity and finance charges to achieve a constant rate
on the finance baiance outstanding The corresponding
rental obligauons. net of finance charges, are included
in financial habilites — borrowings The inzerest element
aof the finance cost s charged to the income staterment
over the lease period to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaming balance of the habiiity
for each period The property, plant and equipment
acquired under finance leases are depreciated over the
shorter of the useful life of the asset or the lease term

Leases where a significant poruon of the nsks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases by the lessee Payments
made under operating leases (net of any incentives
recewed from the lessor) are charged to the ncome
statement on a straght-hne basis over the period of
the lease

¢ Dividends

Dwidends are recorded in the Group's financial
statements n the penod in which they are approved
by the company's shareholders

s Assets and habiliies held for sale

Assets and labilities are classified as held for safe and
stated at the fower of carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell i tt1s intended o recover their
carrying amount principally through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use No depreciation
15 charged in respect of non-current assets classified
as held for sale Amounts relaung to non-current
assets and habilities held for sale are classified as
discontinued operations in the yncome statement
where appropnate

t Trade receivabies

Trade recewvables are stated at fair value after prowviston
for bad and doubtfui debts and anucipated future sales
returns {see also note ip)

2 Segment information

The Group 1s organised into the following business
segments

Conunuing aperations

North Amenican Education Educauonal publishing,
assessment and testng for the school and higher
education market within the USA and Canada,

Internotional Educaton Educanonal publishing,
assessment and testing for the schoot and higher
educatton market outside of North Amenca,

Professional Business and technology publishing,
training, tesung and certificavon for professional
bodies,

FT Group Publisher of the Finonaal Times, business
magazines and specialist information

In addion the Group separately discloses the results
of the Penguin Random House (PRH) associate The
results of the Penguin segment to 30 june 2013 and the
Mergermarket business (previously included as part of
the FT Group) are shown as discontinued in both 20(2
and 2013




2 Segment nformation continued

Secuion 5 Finanaial statgemants
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For more detad on the services and products included in each business segment refer to the strategic report

2013
Morth
Amenean Iniernauional T Discantinued

Al figures i £ millions Motws  Edvcaon  Edvcamon  Professsanal Group PRH Corporate  operauons  Group
Continuing operatons
Sales (external) 2779 £.539 410 341 - - - 5069
Sales (inter-segment) 3 | 15 - - - - 9
Adjusted operating profit 406 140 57 29 50 - - 682
Intangible charges (92) {60) {12) (2) {30) - - (196)
Acquisition costs (2) 9 - {1 - - - (12)
Other net gains and losses — (16) - - ~ - - (16)
Operating profit 312 335 45 26 20 - — 458
Finance costs 6 (D)
Finance mcome 6 35
Profit before tax 382
income tax 7 {87)
Profit for the year from
continuing operations _ 295
Segment assets 5544 2310 609 293 - 859 223 9839
jomnt ventures 12 - 3 - - - - - 3
Associates 12 I 9 —- g L070 l - 1,089
Total assets 5545 2,323 609 301 1,070 860 223 10,931
Other segment temns
Share of results of jomnt
ventures and assaciates 2 ) (4 2 26 31 - - 54
Capital expenditure (01 R 37 23 22 - - | 175
Pre-publication investment 0 288 &9 7 - - - - 364
Deprecianon 10 43 21 8 9 - - | 82
Amortisation it 10 355 141 22 I5 - - 2 535
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

2 Segment informaton conunued

2062
Roxtated
North
American  inermavonal T Disconunued

All figures in £ ymalions Motes Educauon Fducauon  Professional Group Corporate  cperapons Group
Continuing operations
Sales {external) 2,658 i,568 390 343 - - 4959
Sales (inter-segment) 5 i 12 - - - 18
Adjusted operating profit 536 214 37 2 - - 809
Intangible charges {66) (73) (37) (3) - - {179}
Acquisition costs (7 (8) (N 4) - - (20}
Other net gains and losses - - {123) - - = ({123)
Operating profit 463 133 (124) 15 - - 487
Finance costs 6 (115)
Finance income 6 {9
Profit before tax 391
income tax 7 {138)
Profit for the year from
continuing operations 253
Segment assets 5449 2390 631 445 1,246 145 11,306
joint ventures 12 - 7 - i - - 8
Associates 12 I 4 - 2 - 27 34
Total assets . 5450  2,40! 631 448 | 246 1,172 11,348
Orther segment items
Share of results of joint ventures
and associates 12 - (3) (rn 23 - - 9
Capntal expenditure 101 66 33 6 26 - i 152
Pre-publicanion investment 20 250 76 7 - - 3i 364
Depreciation 10 41 6 8 7 - 8 80
Amorusation 1020 31 {42 45 13 - 42 553

In 201 3, sales from the provision of goods were £2,867m (2012 £2,946m) and safes from the provision of

services were £2,202m (2012- £2,013m} Sales from the Group's educanonal publishing, consumer publistung
and newspaper business are classified as being from the provision of goods and sales from its assessment and

esting and other service businesses are classified as beng from the provision of services

Included in other net gains and losses in conunuing operaucns n 2013 1s a loss on the disposat of the Japanese
school and {ocal publishing assers and in 2012 15 a toss on closure of Pearson in Pracuce (£113m) and an
impairment loss on a joint venture (£10m)




2 Segment information continued

Section 5 Financial statements

139

Corporate costs are allocated to busmess segments ncluding discontinued operatons on an appropriate basts
depending on the nature of the cost and therefore the segment result I1s equal to the Group operating profit
Inter-segment pricing 1s determined on an arm's-length basis Segment assets consist of property, plant and
equiprment, intangible assets, inventories. recevables, deferred taxation and other financial assets and exclude
cash and cash equvalents and derivative assets Corporate assets compnse cash and cash equivalents, marketable
securtties and derivative financral instruments Capital expenditure compnses additions to property, plant and

equipment and software {see notes [0 and 11}

Property, plant and equipment and mtangible assets acquired through business combination were £202m
(2012 £296m) (see note 30) Capital expenditure, depreciation and amortisaton include armounts relating
to discontinued operations

The Group operates i the followmg mam geographc areas

Sales Non-current assets
All figures i £ millions 2013 w2 2003 2012
Conunuing operations
UK 649 678 1,068 803
Other European countries 366 377 200 234
USA 2513 2,756 5.026 4496
Canada i28 144 301 307
Asta Pacific 624 633 495 524
Other countries 389 371 215 275
Total continuing 5,069 4959 7,305 6.639
Discontinued operations
UK 97 t87 - -
Other European countnes 49 92 - -
USA 369 647 ~ -
Canada 24 57 - -
Asiz Pacific 74 153 - -
Other countnes 8 17 -~ -
Toral discontinued 621 {1,153 - -
Total 5,690 6,112 7.305 6639

Sales are allocated based on the country in which the customer is focated This does not differ materally from
the location where the order is received The geographical sphit of non-current assets is based on the subsidiary s
country of domtale This 1s not matenally different 1o the locauon of the assets Non-current assets comprise
property, plant and equipment. intangible assets, investments in joint ventures and associates and trade and

other recervables
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

3 Discontinued operations

Discontnued operanons refate (o Pengun and Mergermarket

An analysis of the results and cash flows of disconunued operatons is as follows

2013 2012
Al§ figures i £ mufirons Penguin Moy germarker Tmil__ L -f’engu:n Mergarmarket Tonal
Sales 513 108 621 £.053 100 1,153
Operating profit 28 24 52 62 24 86
Finance income l - ] — - -
Profit before tax 29 24 53 62 24 86
Attributable tax expense )] (% (18) (19) {6) (25)
Profit after tax 20 15 35 43 I8 6l
Profit on disposal of Pengun before tax 202 - 202 - - -
Attributable tax benefit 15 - 15 - - -
Mergermarket transacuon costs - (8) (8) - — -
Profit for the year from discontinued
operations 237 7 244 43 I8 6l
Operaung cash flows 36 22 58 83 26 109
Investing cash flows (6) (2) (8) (84) {24) (105)
Financing cash flows (8) (29 (37} 0 (6) 4
Total cash flows 22 2 13 12 {4) 8
4 Operaung expenses

2013 2042

Al figures in £ millons Restaied
By funcuon
Cost of goods soid 2,312 2,187
Operating expenses
Distibuuon costs 90 82
Selling, markeung and product development costs 1,027 525
Administrative and other expenses .162 | 242
Restructuring costs 176 -
Other net gains and losses e 10
Other income (1ig) 78)
Total net operaung expenses 2 353 2,181
Total 4665 4368

Included in other mcome in 2013 15 service fee income from Penguin Random House of £28m




4 Operaung expenses continued

Section § Financial statements

14§

MNotes 2013 pitly
All figures i £ nutbons L E_emmd_
E; nature o o
Royaltes expensed 256 245
Other product costs 793 865
Employee benefit expense 5 2,100 1,866
Contract labour 94 137
Employee related expense {77 168
Promotional costs 67 155
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1o 8i 72
Amorusation of software 59 49
Amortisaton of mtangible assets - Cther |66 i79
Amorusation of intangible assets ~ Pre-publication 20 308 283
Property and facilities 229 188
Technology and communications 04 8O
Professional and outsourced services 25% 253
Other general and administrative costs 61 38
Capitalised costs (199) {162)
Acquisition costs 12 20
Other net gans and losses {6 0
Other income (1i8) {78)
Total 4,665 4368
During the year the Group obtained the following services from the Group's auditors:
;l.:i.gures i £ millions 2013 2012
The audit of parent company and consohdated financial statements 4 4
The audit of the company's subsidianies . pi 2
Total audit fees 6 6
Other assurance services | !
Total assurance services i [
Tax compliance services 2 [
Tax adwvisory services 2 {
Toral tax services _ 4 2
Total non-audit services 5 3
Toral {l 9
Reconciliation between audit and non-audit service fees 1s shown below
Eljégres n L mulhons . e R 2013 2012
Group audit fees including fees for attestation under section 404 of the Sarban;s»Ox!ey Act 6 6
Non-audifees . 5 3
Total ~ I 9

Fees for attestation under section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act are allocated between fees payable for the audits
of consolidated and subsidiary accounts Non-audit fees for 2013 includes £3m for assurance and tax services

related o the Penguin Random House transaction
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

5 Employee information

Notes 2013 2062
All figures in £ miliions L Restated
Employee benefit expense
Wages and salaries (including terminatian benefits and restructunng costs) t.836 1.6i0
Social securtty costs 136 129
Share-based payment costs 26 35 28
Retrement benefits — defined contribution plans 25 66 69
Reurement benefits — defined benefit plans 25 27 26
Other post-retirement benefits 25 - 4
Total 2,100 1.866

The detalls of the emoluments of the directors of Pearson plc are shown in the report on directors’ remuneration

Average number employed 2013 20i2
Employee numbers

North Amercan Education 19,670 {8552
international Education 16,113 16,751
Professional 3,357 3.706
FT Group 2216 2,243
Other 759 883
Continuing operations 42,115 42,135

The employee benefit expense relating to discontinued operations was £168m (2012 £265m) and the average

number employed was 3,592 (2012 5.387).
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6 Net finance costs
Nows 2013 2012

Al figures i £ mitions Feswted
Interest payable (82) (75)
Net finance costs in respect of reurement benefits 25 (3) va)
Finance cost of put opuons, deferred consideration associated with acquistions
and other nterest charges related to transactrons (%) 27
Net foreign exchange losses - (8)
Orther losses an financial instruments in a hedging relationship
- fair value hedges - (1)
Orther josses on financral instruments not in a hedging relavonship
~ derivatives {7 (2)
Finance costs (I {115)
Interest recetvable o 10
Net foreign exchange gains 20 9
Other gains on financial instruments 1n a hedging refationship
— far value hedges i -
Other gains on financial instruments not in a hedging relavonship
— dervatives 4 =
Finance income 35 9
Net finance costs (76) {96)
Analysed as
Net interest payabie reflected in adjusted earnings {72) {65)
Other net finance costs (4) (31)
Toral net finance costs (7€) (36)

The net gain of £1m on fair value hedges in 2013 (2012 net loss of £1m} comprises a gan of £95m (2012 gan
of £7m) on the underlying bonds, offset by a loss of £94m (2012 loss of £8m) on the related denvauve financial

nsTruments
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

7 Income tax

Notes 2013 w12
All figures in £ milfions Rozated
Current tax
Charge i respect of current year (129} (147)
Adjustments in respect of prior years (7) '8
Total current tax charge (136) (129
Deferred tax
In respect of temporary differences {4 (45)
Other adjustments n respect of prior years 35 36
Total deferred tax credit/{charge) 132 49 (9
Total tax charge (87) (138)

The adjustments in respect of prior years in 2013 manly relate to changes in esumates arising from uncertain tax

posiuions following settlements with tax authonties in the year

The tax on the Group's profit before tax differs from the theoreucal amount that would anse using the UK tax rate

as follows

- 2013 02
All figures wn £ millions Resated
Profit before tax 382 391
Tax calculated at UK rate (2013 23 25%, 2012 24 5%j (89) (96)
Effect of overseas tax rates (13) (51)
Joint venture and associate ncome reported net of tax 13 2
Net expense not subject to tax (14} (15)
Loss on sale of businesses not subect to tax (6) (28)
Uthsation of previously unrecognised tax losses and credits I 2
Unutilised tax losses {7) (6)
Adjustments in respect of prior years i8 54
Total tax charge {(87) (138)
UK (13) (14)
Overseas (74) {i24)
Total tax charge (&7) (138)
Tax rate reflected in earnings 22 8% 353%
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7 Income tax contnued

The tax rate reflected in adjusted earnings is calcufated as follows

145

2013 pLI]
A_II figures wn £ miffions i _ Restated
Profit before tax 382 3391
Adjustments
Other net gains and losses 16 123
Acquisition Costs i2 20
Armartisatton of acquired intangibles 196 179
Other net finance costs . 4 31
Adjusted profit before tax — contmuing operations 610 744
Adjusted profit before tax — disconunued operations 54 i23
Total adjusted profit before tax 664 867
Total tax charge {87) {138)
Adjustments
Tax charge on other net gains and losses 32 -
Tax benefit on acquisition costs (2) (5)
Tax benefit on amorusaton of acquired intangibles (51 (54)
Tax benefit on other net finance costs (1) 4}
Tax amortisauon benefit on goodwill and intangibles 30 36
Adjusted income tax charge — continuing operations {79 (162)
Adjusted income tax charge — discontinued aperations _ ({8) (38)
Total adjusted income tax charge (57} (200
Tax rate reflected in adjusted earnings 14 6% 23 1%
The tax (charge}/benefit recogrised in other comprehensive mncome s as follows

2013 2012
All figures an £ milhons Restated
Remeasurement of reurement benefit obligations (23) 50
Net exchange dfferences on translauon of foreign operatons 6 L

{17) 5l

A tax charge of £nil (2012 tax benefit £6m) relaung to share-based payments has been recognised directly

i equity
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

8 Earnings per share

Basic

Basic earnings per sihare s calcufated by dividing the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares n issue during the year, excluding ordinary shares purchased by
the company and held as treasury shares

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share s calculated by adjustng the weighted average number of ordinary shares to take
account of alt diutive potental ordinary shares and adjusung the profit attributable, if appltcable, to account for
any tax consequences that might anse from conversion of those shares

Notes 2013 042
All figures in £ millions Restated
Profit for the year from conunuing operations 295 253
Non-controlling interest (H {3)
Earnings from continuing operations 294 250
Profit for the year from disconunued operatons 1 244 6t
Non-controlling mterest — -
Earnings 538 311
Weighted average number of shares (milions) 807 8 804 3
Effect of dilutive share options {milhons) i f3
Wesghted average number of shares {millions) for diluted earnings 8089 8056
Earnings per share from contnuing and discontinued operatons
Basic 66 6p 387p
Diluted 66.5p 38 6p
Earmings per share from conunuing operattons
Basic 364p 3tIp
Diluted 363p 3i0p
Earntngs per share from disconunued operations
Basic 302p 76p
Diluted 302p 7 6p
Adjusted

In order to show results from operating acuvities on a consistent basts, an adpusted earnings per share 1s presented
The company’s defirsion of adjusted earnings per share may not be comparable to other similarly niled measures
reported by other companies

Adjusted earmings includes the results from continuing and discontinued operations
The foflowing items are excluded from adjusted earmings

Other net gains and losses represent profits and losses on the acquisiion and disposal of subsidiaries, joint ventures,
associates and other financial assets that are included wathin conunuing or discontnued operatons but which
distort the performance of the Group

Amortisation of acquired mtangibles, acquisition costs and movements i contingent acquisition consideration are aiso
exciuded from adjusted earnings as these items are not considered to be fully reflectve of the underlying
performance of the Group
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8 Earnings per share conunued

Other net finance income/costs include finance costs i respect of reurement benefits, finance costs of put opuons
and deferred consideration and foreign exchange and other gains and losses Finance costs relating to reurement
benefits are excluded as the Group's interpretation s that the new presentation under 1AS 19 (rewised) does not
reflect the economic substance of the underlying assets and liabilities Finance costs of put options and deferred
consideration are excluded as they relate to future earn outs and sirmilar payments on acquisitions and do not
reflect cash expended Foreign exchange and other gains and osses are exciuded as they represent short-term
fluctuations in market value and are subject to significant volatility Other gains and losses may not be realised in
due course as it 1s normally the intention to hold the related instruments to maturity Other net finance costs of
Group companies are included in finance costs or finance mcome as appropriate Other net finance costs of I
totnt ventures and associates are included within the share of resuits of joint ventures and associates within
operaung profit

Tax on the above items 1s excluded from adjusted earnings Where relevant the Group also excludes the benefit
from recogrising previously unrecognised pre-acquisition and capial losses The Group includes the benefit of tax
amortisation of goodwill and intangibles as this benefit more accurately algns the adjusted tax charge with the
expecred rate of cash tax payments

Non-controfing nterest for the above items 1s excluded from adjusted earnings

The following tables reconcile statutory earnings to adjusted earnings

2013
Orher nat,
Staturery GCther net finance Tax Adjusted
income Disconunued  gawns and Acquisimon Intangibte income/  amorusauon ncome
All tigures i £ mullons statement operatsns fosses casts charges casts bonefit  statement
Operatng profit 458 54 16 i2 196 - - 736
Net finance costs (76) ~ - - - 4 - (72)
Profic before tax 382 54 16 i2 96 4 - 664
Income tax (87) (18} 32 (2) {51 (1) 30 (97)
Profit for the year from
conunuing Cperations 295 36 48 10 145 3 30 567
Profit for the year from
discontinued operations 244 (36) (209 -~ 2 () - -
Profit for the year 539 - (16D 10 147 2 30 567
Non-contrefling interest (h - - - - - - (1)
Earnings 538 - {161 i0 147 2 30 566
Weighted average number
of shares {mullons) 807 8 8078
Adjusted earmings per share 66 6p e IO
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

8 Earmungs per share continued

2002
Restaed
Otteer nat e
Statutory Other net finnce Tax Adjusted
mncome  Disconunued uns znd Fegustion lnungible income/  amorusation wmeome
Al g o n £ nullons . e stitement opLrtions lussey . sty _f.harges costs bvm_!n_t_ _ imm._.'_‘.'.ﬂ
Operaung profit 487 123 123 20 179 - - 932
Net finance costs {96) - - - - 3l - (65)
Profit before tax 391 123 23 20 179 31 - 867
income tax (138) {(38) - (5) CL I 34 {200)
Profit for the year from
continuing operations 253 85 123 t5 125 30 36 667
Profit for the year from
discontinued operations 61 (85) 20 i 3 - - -
Profit for the year 314 - 143 16 |28 30 36 667
Non-controfling mterest (3) - = - ~ - = _B3)
Earrungs 31 - 143 16 128 30 36 664
Wesghted average number
of shares (milhons) 8043 8043
Adjusted earnings per share 387p 82 6p
9 Dividends
Al figures 10 £ millions 2013 2012
Final paid in respect of prior year 30 Op (2012 28 Op) 242 225
Interim pard in respect of current year 16 Op (2012 15 Op) 130 121
372 344

The directors are proposing a final dvidend in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2013 of 32 Op per
share which will absorb an estmated £25%m of shareholders’ funds It will be paid on 2 May 2014 to shareholders
who are on the register of members on 4 April 2014 These financial statements do not reflect this dvidend




10 Property, plant and equipment
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Assets n
Land and Flam and course of

All figures i £ mullions budings equipmcnt CONSTAILHON Totd

Cost

At | January 2012 363 704 i2 [.081

Exchange differences )] {23) - (32)
Additions 12 51 [5 78

Disposals (2) (20) - (22)
Acquisiion through business combination 4 K] - 17

Ensposal through business disposal {1} 4 - (5
Reclassifications 8 - (8) =
Transfer from/{to) software 9 (27) - (18)
Transfer from pre-publication - 3 - 3

Transfer to assets held for sale (32) (102) H (i35)
At 3| December 2012 352 597 18 967

Exchange differences {5) (14} - (1%
Additrons 33 58 22 13

Disposals (£3) (78} - (31)
Acquisition through business combinatton - 3 - 3

Disposal through business disposal (1) (2} - (3)
Reclassifications 9 (1) (8) -
Transfer from software ~ 3 - 3

Transfer from assets held for sale - 9 -~ 9

Transfer to assets held for sale — (7) - {7)
At 31 December 2013 375 568 32 975
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Notes to the consohdated financial statements continued

0 Property, plant and equipment conunued

Asicisin

Land and Plaot and tourse of
All figures in £ mullions buiidings equipment ConNsTrUCHen Total
Depreciation
At | january 2012 {187} (51 - (698)
Exchange differences 6 17 - 23
Charge for the year (21) (59 - (80)
Disposals 2 t9 - 21
Acquisinon through business combination h (6) - {7)
Disposal through business disposal - 2 - 2
Reclassificauons (8 8 ~ -
Transfer (from)/to software 3 7 - 4
Transfer to assets held for sale 7 78 - 95
At 3| December 2012 (195) (445) - (640)
Exchange differences 3 13 - 16
Charge for the year (25) (57) - (82)
Disposals 7 64 - 71
Acquisiion through business combinauon - (2} - (2}
Transfer from assets held for sale - (1) - {H
Transfer to assets held for sale - 5 - 5
At 31 December 2013 (210 {423) - {633)
Carrying amounts
At | January 2012 176 195 12 383
At 3t December 2012 }57 52 ig8 327
At 31 December 2013 165 145 32 342

Depreciation expense of £24m (2012 £23m) has been included in the Income statement in cost of goods sold and
£57m (2012 £49m) in operating expenses In 2013 £im (2012 £8m) relates to disconbnued operations

The Group leases certain equipment under a number of finance lease agreements The net carrying amount of
leased plant and equipment included within property, plant and equipment was £11m (2012 £17m})




Il Intangible assets
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Acquircd
(uiiomer
hists comrcts Acquired Avquired Other
and  wadimarks  publing  angangibles

Al figures wm £ milions Gondwall Sofreare rtlduunsh..ps and brﬁards nzhts z2cguired Tonal
Cost
At January 2012 5199 428 681 253 213 356 7,130
Exchange differences (213) (13) (26) {n % {18) (290)
Additions — internal development - 38 - -~ ~ - 38
Additons -- purchased - 36 - - - - 36
Dusposals - (It - - - - (i)
Acquisition through business combination 505 12 182 27 10 56 792
Dispasal through business disposal (50 - (8% (2 -~ - (141)
Transfer from PPE - 18 - - - - I8
Transfer to assets held for sale (364 {42) {19) (%) {7) - {(441)
At 31 December 2012 5,077 466 729 258 207 394 7,131
Exchange differences (122) (6) (25) {8) (12) (L (184)
Additons — internal development - 38 - - - - 38
Addittons — purchased - 24 - - - - 24
Disposals - (50} ~ - - - (50)
Acquisiton through business combmnation (133) - 190 - 3 7 67
Dusposal through business disposal (6) - - - - ¢)) @
Reclassificanons - - (10) )] - Ll -
Transfer to PPE - (3) - - - - 3)
Transfer to assets held for sale (150} - (29) {12) - (2) (193)
At 31 December 2613 4,666 469 855 237 198 398 6823
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11 Intangible assets continued

Acquired
Customer
hsts contract Acquired Advquired Other
and  wademnrks  publshing  ntangibles
All figures in £ millons Goodwall Software  refavonships  and brands nights acqunred Tenal
Amortsation
At January 2012 - (296) {168) {63) {128) (133) (788)
Exchange differences - 9 8 3 5 7 32
Charge for the year - (54) (30) (27} (20) (46) (237)
Disposals - B8 - - - - 8
Acquisition through business combination - 7 - - - - {7)
Disposal through business disposal - - 45 ! - - 46
Transfer from PPE - (4 - - - - (4)
Transfer to assets held for sale - 32 l - 4 — 37
At 31 December 2012 - (312) {204) (86) (139) (172) (%13)
Exchange differences - 6 10 4 6 7 33
Charge for the year - (5%9) {78} {zh {15) (54) {227)
Disposals - 49 - - - - 49
Dhsposal through business disposal - - - - - ! 1
Transfer to assets held for sale — - 23 0 - 2 35
At 3| December 2013 - (316) (249)  (93) {148} {216) (1.022)
Carrying amounts
At | January 2012 5,199 132 513 190 85 223 6,342
At 31 December 2012 5077 {54 525 172 6B 222 6,218
At 31 December 2013 4,666 153 606 144 50 182 5801

Goodwilt

The goodwill carrying value of £4,666m relates to acquisiions completed after | january 1998 Pror to | January

1998 all goodwill was written off to reserves on the date of acquisiuon For acquisiuons completed between

| fanuary 1998 and 3| December 2002 no value was ascribed to intangibles other than goodwill and the goodwll
on each acquisition was amarused over a period of up to 20 years On adoption of tFRS on I January 2003, the
Group chose not to restate the goodwill balance and at that date the balance was frozen (1 e amortisatron ceased)
If goodwill had been restated then a signdficant value would have been ascribed to other intangible assets, which
would be subject to amorusaton, and the carrying value of goodwill would be significantly lower For acquisitons
completed after ! fanuary 2003 value has been ascnbed to other intangible assets which are amorused

Other intangible assets

Other intangibles acguired include content, technology and software rights

intangible assets are valued separately for each acquisition and the primary method of valuation used is the

discounted cash flow method The majority of acquired intangibles are amorused using the unit of production
method which 1s based on the pattern of benefits embodied in the asset

Amorusaton of £15m (2012 £10m) ts included in the income statement in cost of goods sold and £210m

(2012 £218m including an impawrment of £21m relating to Pearson in Pracuice) in aperating expenses
In 2013 £2m (2012 £9m) of amoruisation relates to discontinued operauons
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The range of useful economic hives for each mayjor class of intangible asset {(excluding goodwill and software)

1s shown below

Class of intangible asset

2013

Useful econcmie ife

Acquired customer ists, contracts and relattonships 3-20 years
Acqutred trademarks and brands 2--20 years
Acquired publishing nghts 5-20 years
Other intangibles acquired 2--20 years
The expected amortisation profile of acquired intangible assets i1s shown below

2013

One to five Six to ren More than

All figures m £ mdlions years years &N years Total
Class of intangible asset
Acquired customer lists, contracts and relauonships 357 166 83 606
Acquired trademarks and brands 78 4] 25 44
Acguired publishing rights 46 4 - 50
Other intangibles acquired 148 33 | 182

Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing goodwill

impairment tests have been carmed out where appropnate as descnbed below The recoverable amount for each

unit tested exceeds its carrying value

Goodwill is allocated to, and momitored at the level of, nine aggregated cash-generaung units (CGUSs) within the

business segments as follows

AR figures im £ milfions 2013 002
US Educavon Publishing 2,225 2,384
US School Assessment and Informaton 750 773
Canada 173 183
international — Emerging Markets 423 463
International — UK 444 450
International — Rest of World 253 267
Professional Publishing 14 15
Professtonal Assessment and Traming 334 334
Pearson Education total 4,618 4,874
Financial Times L o 50 5bF
Continuing operations 4,666 4925
Mergermaricet - 152
Discontinued operations - 152
Toral 4,666 5,077
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il Intangible assets continued
Imparrment tests for cash-generating umits containing goodwill continued

The recoverable amount of each CGU 5 based on value in use calculatons Goodwilt 1s tested for imparment
annually Other than goodwill there are no intangible assets with indefinite bves. The goodwilt 1s generally
denominated 1n the currency of the relevant cash flows and therefore the impairment review is not matenally
sensitive to exchange rate fluctuatons

Key assumptions
The value in use calculations use cash flow projections based on financiat budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period The key assumptions used by management i the value i use calculations were

Discount 1ates The discount rate 1 based on the risk-free rate for government bonds, adjusted for a nisk premium
to refiect the ncreased rsk in iInvesting in equites  The nsk prenwum adjustment is assessed for each spectfic CGU

The average pre-tax discount rates used are In the range of 10 7% to {3 8% for the Pearson Education business
(2012 9 8% to 12 7%) and | | 3% for the Financial Times (2012 11 5%)

Perpeturty growth rates A perpetuity growth rate of 2 0% was used for cash flows subsequent to the approved
budget period for all CGUs in 2013 (2012 2 0%) This perpetuity growth rate ts a conservative rate and is
considered to be lower than the long-term historic growth rates of the underlymg territores m which the CGU
operates and the long-term growth rate prospects of the sectors in which the CGU operates

Cash flow growth rates The cash flow growth rates are denved from management’s latest forecast of sales taking
into considerauon expertence of operating margms achieved in the CGU Historically, such forecasts have been
reasonably accurate

Sensiuvities

es

The Group's impairment review is sensiive to a change in assumpuons used. most notably the discount rates, the

perpetuity growth rates and expected future cash flows Based on the Group's sensiuvity analysts, 2 reasonably
possible change 1n any of these assumpuons is unlikely to cause an imparment (i any of the CGUs

12 Investments i joint ventures and associates

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows

Al figures In £ millions 2013 082
Associates i.089 7
Joint ventures 3 8
Tozal 1.092 {5

The amounts recogrised in the income statement are as follows

Adl figures i £ milioas 2003 2012

Associates 56 23

joint ventures s (2) (14)
Total 54 9




12 Investments in joint ventures and associates continued

investment tn associates
The Group has the following matenal associates

Secuon 5 Financial staternents

155

Principat place % Ownershp MNature of

of business nerest refavonship

Penguin Random House Glabal 47 Note [
The Economust Newspaper Ltd UK 50 Note 2

tMeastromnong
meihod

Equity”
Equity’

“Neither associate has a quoted market price

Note | = On | July 2013 Penguin Random House was formed, upon the completion of an agreement between
Pearson and Bertelsmann to merge their respective trade publishing companies, Penguin and Random House, with
the parent companies owning 47% and 53% of the combined business respecuvely The shareholder agreement

ncludes protection rights for Pearson as the minornty shareholder including nghts to dividends

Note 2 - The Group has a 50% interest in The Economust Newspaper Ltd, publisher of one of the world's leading

weelkly business and current affairs magazines

The summanised financial informanon of the matenal associates 15 detailed below

2013 2012
Penguin

Al figures n £ milkons Random House Ecanonst Econaenist
Assets
Current assets 1,210 103 120
Non-current assets 1361 163 {60
Liabilities
Current habihties {905} (190} (202)
Non-current liabilives (455) {60) (78)
Net assets 1211 16 -
Sales - 1,315 340 348
Profit from conunuing operatuons 66 52 46
Other comprehensive {expense)/income (34) 9 {(6)
Total comprehensive income 32 6l 40
Dividends receved from associate 43 21 21

The informaton above reflects the amounts presented in the financial statements of the associates, adjusted for far

value and simitar adjustments
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12 Investments in joint ventures and associates continued

Investment in associates continued
A reconcailiation of the summarsed financial mformation to the carrying value of the matenal associates 1§
shown below

2013 2012
- m—;cngum o
All figures v £ mulbans Random Hause Econermist Fuonamist
Opening net assets - - -
Exchange differences (68) - N
Profit for the percd 66 52 46
Other comprehensive income (34) g (6)
Dwvidends o) 40 4h
Addons £,338 - -
Distributon from associate in excess of carrying value - - 2
Reversal of distribuon from associate in excess of carrying value - (4) -
Closing net assets 1214 {6 -
Share of net assets 569 8 -
Goodwill 501 - -
Carrying value of associate 1,070 8 -
Informauon on other individually immatersal associates 1s detatled below
All figures n £ mithons o . ;j 2011 2012
Loss from continuing operations (n -
QOther comprehensive income - -
Total comgrehensive expense ) (N —

Transactions with material associates

The Group has loans to Penguin Random House which are unsecured and interest 15 calculated based on market

rates The amount outstanding at 31 December 2013 was £44m

The Group also has a current asset recervable of £14m from Pengum Random House arising from the provision of

services Included in other income (note 4} 15 £28m of service fees

Investment i joint vencures
Information on jont ventures, all of which are indvidually immatenal 1s detaed below

Al fgures i £ nllons W3

Loss from continuing opetrations {2
Other comprehensive income -

Total compt ehensive expense 2 __
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13 Deferred income tax

Al figures m £ millions 2013 012
Deferred income tax assets 250 229
Deferred mcome tax liabilities L (612} (601)
Net deferred income tax (362) (372)

Substanually all of the deferred tax assets are expected to be recovered after more than one year

Deferred income tax assets and hablities may be offset when there 1s a legally enforceable right to offset current
iIncome tax assets against current income tax habilives and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal
authority At 31 December 2013 the Group has unrecognised deferred income tax assets of £4m (2012 £13m) in
respect of UK losses, £1 1m (2012 £14m) i respect of US fosses and approximately £36m (2012 £30m) in
respect of losses in other territories None of the unrecognised UK losses have expiry dates associated with them
The US losses relate to state taxes and therefore have expiry periods of between 5 and 20 years

The recogniion of the deferred incame tax assets is supported by management's forecasts of the future
profitability of the relevant business units

The movemeant on the net deferred income tax account i5 as foilows

phil}]
Al fipures n £ mullions Notes 2013 Restaied
At begintung of year (372) (333)
Exchange differences 9 14
Income statement benefit/{charge) 7 47 (13)
Acquisition through business combtnauon 30 (37) (67)
Disposal through business disposal 1 - {!
Tax charge to ather comprehensive income or equity (35) 34
Transfer to current tax 25 -
Transfer to assets held for sale | (18)
At end of year (362) (372)

Included in the income statement above for 2013 1s a £2m charge (2012 £4m charge) relanng to disconunued
operauons
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i3 Deferred income tax contunued

The movement in deferred iIncome tax assets and habilities duning the year is as follows

Reurement

Trading  Goodwill and Roturns benefit Toul
All figures i £ millkkons ineses wcangibles prosasions obligruens Other Restated
Deferred income tax assets
At | January 2012 14 - 89 i9 65 287
Exchange differences - - 3) (1) (5) (%)
Acquisition through business combination 19 - - - - 19
Income statement charge (13) - (16) {1 (33) {63}
Tax benefit/{charge) 1o other
comprehensive Income or equity - - - 39 {6) 33
Transfer to assets held for sale (2) - (25) (%) & (38)
At 31 December 2012 8 - 45 47 19 229
Exchange differences - - i N (4) (6)
Acquisition through business combinaton 21 - - - - 21
Income statement (charge)/benefit (24) - (5) 25 22 18
Tax charge to other comprehensive
INcome or equity - - - (36) - {36)
Transfer to current tax - - - - 25 25
Transfer from assets held for sale - - - 7 {7) -
Transfer to assets held for sale - - - - () f1)
At 31 December 2013 15 - 39 42 154 250
Orther deferred income tax assets include temporary differences on share-based payments. inventory and
other prowvisions

Goorwll and

All figures n £ millons Intanpioles Osher Towd
Deferred income tax labilinies
At | january 2012 (464) (156) (620)
Exchange differences 18 5 23
Acquisition through business combination (65) Zn {86)
Disposal through business disposal I - i
Income statement benefit 5 35 50
Tax benefit to otherr comprehensive mcome or equity - | {
Transfer to assets held for sale o .. . {0 20
At 31 December 2012 (475) (126) {601}
Exchange differences 13 pA t5
Acquisition through busmess combination (61) 3 (58)
Income statement {charge}/benefit (61) 90 29
Tax benefit to other comprehensive income or equity - I I
Transfer to assets held for sale - 2 2
At 31 December 2013 (584) (28) (612)

Orther deferred income tax liabiiwes mclude temporary differences in respect of depreciauion and royalty advances
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The accounung classificanon of each class of the Group's financial assets and financial habiliues, together with their

fair values, is as follows

2013
Fr value Amorused cost
Derwvanves  Derwatives Total Toral

Avallable deemed held n hedging Other  Loans and Crher carryng market
Al figures in £ mullons Notes for sale  for trading selamonshups  kabihities  receivables  babilieses value valfi.
Investments in unfisted securities
— CONTINUINE OPerations 15 94 - - - - - 94 94 -
Cash and cash equivalents —
continumg operations ¢ - - - - 729 - 729 729
Cash and cash equivalents
classified within assets held
for sate n - - - - 36 - 36 36
Marketable securities 6 - - - - - 6 6
Denwative finanaal instruments i6 - 4 120 - - - 124 124
Trade receivables — continuing
operations 2 - - - - 882 - 882 882
Trade receivables classified within
assets held for sale - - - - 25 - 25 25
Total financial assets 100 4 120 - 1,672 - |.,896 1,896
Dernvauve financial instruments 16 - {16) (32) - - - (48) (48)
Trade payables — conunuing
operations b2 - - - - - (316} (316) (316}
Trade payables classified within
liabiitres held for sale - ~ - - - {1 () {1
Bank loans and overdrafts —
continuing operations 8 - - - - - {47) (47) (47)
Borrowings due within one year 18 - - - - — {508y (508} (504)
Borrowings due after more than
one year 18 - ~ - - - ([.671) (1.671) (1,683}
Total financal habdties — (16) {32) - — {2,543) (2,591) (2.609)
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14 Classtfication of financial instruments continued

L 2012
Far value Amorused cost
Denvawves  Dlerwanves Toeaf Tutal
Available  decincd held m hedging Other  Loans and Other carrpng mari ey
£l fipures m £ mdhens L Motes for sale for trading rclauinmlps labiliues ﬁrecembles labilities value vilse
Investments in unlisted securmes —
CONUNUINE Operatons (5 31 ~ ~ - - - 31 31
investments m unlisted secunities
classified within assets held for sale 10 | - - - - - ! |
Cash and cash equivalents —
continuing operatons (7 - - - - 1,062 - 1,062 1062
Cash and cash equivalents classified
within assets held for sale 3 - - - - ) - il5 5
Marketable securiies 6 - - - - - 6 6
Derwvative financial instruments 16 - | 177 - - - 178 178
Trade receivables — contnuing
operations pa) - - - - 883 - 883 883
Trade recewvables classified within
assets held for sale - - - - 249 - 249 249
Total financial assets 38 | 177 ~ 2309 - 2,525 2,525
Trade payables — continuing
operauons 24 - - - - - (337) 337y (337)

Trade payables classified within
liabihues held for sale - - - -

Other financrat abikties — put
optians over non-controliing

(148) (148) (148)

ngerest 24 - - - (68) - - (68)  (68)
Bank loans and overdrafts —

continuing operations I8 - - - - - (55) (55) {(55)
Bank loans and overdrafts classified

within habilities held for sale 32 - - - - - {7) 7y )
Borrowings due within one year 18 - - - - -~ (229) (229) (228)
Borrowings due after more than

one year 18 - - - - - (1.988) (1,988) (2043)
Toral financeal habilities - - - (68) ~ (2.764) (2832) (2.886)
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14 Classification of financial instruments continued

|

o
e
=
Certarn of the Group's denivauve financral instruments are classified as held for trading either as they do not meet z
the hedge accounung criteria speciied in IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement’ or the E:
Group has chosen not 1o seek hedge accounung for these instruments None of these denvatives are held for
speculative trading purposes Transactions i dervative financial instruments are only undertaken to manage risks
anstng from underlying business acuwity, in accordance with the Group's wreasury policy as descnbed m note 19
The Group designates certain qualifying derivative financial instruments as hedges of the far value of its bonds
(fair value hedges) Changes in the far value of these dernvatve financal instruments are recorded in the income
statement, 1ogether with any change in the fair value of the hedged hability aterbutable to the hedged risk
The Group also designates certain of its borrowings and dertvauve financial instruments as hedges of its o
mnvestments n foreign operations (net investment hedges} Movements in the fair value of these financial =
instruments (to the extent they are effective) are recogrised in other cormprehensive iIncome ®
z
None of the Group's financral assets or labilities are designated at fair value through the mcome statement upon g
inttiat recognttion >
in}
More detail on the Group's accountng for financiat instruments 1s included in the Group's accounting policies ™
The Group’s approach to managing risks in refation to financial instruments 1s described in note {9
15 Other financial assets
All figures in £ milhions 2003 2012
At begiriung of year 31 26 =
Exchange differences - (2) o
-4
Acquisivon of investments 63 10 =
Disposal of investments - (2) ;3
Transfer to assets held for sale ~ (1) F
m
At end of year 94 3 a
Other financial assets comprise non-current unlisted securities
16 Derivauve financeal snstruments
The Group's approach to the management of financial risks 15 set out in note 19 The Group s outstanding g
dervative financal instruments are as follows 5
z
2003 2002 z
n
Gross natconal Gross novandl m
All figures m £ mullions amounts Asgzers Liabhiuies amaunts Assprs Luabihues
Interest rate derivatves —
in a farr value hedge relavonship 1 439 | {(32) 1465 143 -
Interest rate derivauves —
not in a hedge relationship 634 4 {16} 6l I -
Cross-currency rate derivauves — -
tn a net mvestment hedge relationship 220 39 - 220 34 - z
Total 2293 124 (48) 1,746 178 - &
- z
Analysed as expuing B
In less than one year 312 i3 - 215 4 - =
z
Later than one year and not later b
than five years {377 i - 701 69 -
Later than five years 604 - {48) 830 105 —

Total 2,293 124 (48) 746 (78 -
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16 Dervative financial inscruments continued

The carrying value of the above derivatve financial instruments equals their fair value Fair values are determined
by using marker data and the use of estabhshed esumation technigues such as discounted cash flow and option
valuaton models

At the end of 2013, the currency spht of the mark-to-market values of rate dervauves, including the exchange of
principal on cross-currency rate denvatives, was US dollar £(15 1)m, stering £243m and South African rand £(16)m
(2012 US dollar £(59)m, sterling £257m and South African rand £(20)m)

The fixed interest rates on outstanding rate dervatve contracts at the end of 2013 range from | 0% to 9 28%
{2012 3 65% 1o 9 28%) and the floating rates ai e based on LIBOR in US dollar and sterling

The Group's portfohio of rate derivatives is diversified by matunity, counterparty and type Natural offsets between
transactions within the portfolio and the designation of certain dervatives as hedges significantly reduce the nisk |
of mcome statement volatlity The sensitivity of the portfolio to changes in market rates 15 set out in note [9 |

Dervative financial assets and habiliwies subject to offsetting arrangements are as follows

2013 2012

Gross Gross  Ner dervanve Giass Gross  MNew denvatve

det ivaiive derivative asqers/ gdervative denvanve assars/

A5y et linbilsties labihues arsars habihue s Lahiitirs

AH figures = £ millions fm £m im im £m £m
Counterparties in an asset posiuon 122 (12) 110 178 - 178
Counterparties in a lability position 2 (36) (34) - - -
Tortal as presented n the balance sheet [24 {48) 76 i78 - t78

All of the Group's dervative financal instruments are subject 1o enforceable netung arrangements with individual
counterparties allowing net settlement in the event of default of ether party Offset arrangements in respect of
cash balances are shown in note |7

Counterparty exposure from all dertvauves 1s managed, together with that from deposits and bank account
balances, within credit mits that refiect published credu raungs and by reference to other market measures

(e g market prices for credit default swaps) to ensure that there 1s no significant nsk to any one counterparty

No single denvative transacuon had a market value {positive or negative) at the balance sheet date that exceeded
3% of the Group's consolidated total equity

In accordance with !AS 39 ‘Financial Instruments Recogmition and Measurement’ the Group has reviewed all of its
matenal contracts for embedded dervatives that are required to be separately accounted for if they do not meet
certain requirements, and has concluded that there are no material embedded dervatves




Secuon 5 Finanwial statements 163

7 Cash and cash equivalents (excluding overdrafts)

All figures in £ milkons 2013 1012
Cash at bank and in hand 521 372
Short-term bank deposits 208 690
Conunwing operations 729 1,062
Cash at, bank and in hand classified within assets held for sale 36 15

765 1,177

Short-term bank deposiis are invested with banks and earn interest at the prevalling short-term deposit rates

At the end of 2013 the currency spht of cash and cash equivalents was US dollar 28% (2012 47%). sterling 18%

(2012 25%), euro 5% (2012 3%) and other 49% (2012 25%)

Cash and cash equivalents have fair values that approximate to therr carrying value due to their short-term nature

Cash and cash equivalents include the following for the purpose of the cash flow statement

Al figures i £ milkens 2013 2012
Cash and cash equivalents - conunuing operattons 729 i 062
Cash at bank and i hand classified within assets held for sale 36 15
Bank overdrafts — continuing operations (25) (33)
Bank overdrafts classified within hiabilimes held for sale - (7}
740 [137

The Group has the following cash pooling arrangements in US dollars, sterfing and euro, where both the company

and the bank have a legal nglt of offset.

2013 12

Net offset Nev offsem

All figures in £ miliions Offsevasser Offsechabliy  asset/labiy Offsctasset  Offsethabibty  asset/labiley

US dollars 298 (299 ) 39 (37) 2

Sterfing {.018 {1,027) (%) 9832 (1 057) (75)

Euro 6 (5) I i (11} -
Total for continuing operauons as

presented in the balance sheet {9) (73)

In addivon to the above, the Group had offser US dollar, sterling and euro asset balances of £im, £16m and £nil
respectively in respect of discontinued operauons at the end of 2013 At the end of 2012, the Group had a sterling

offset asset of £74m in respect of discontinued operations

Offset arrangements 111 respect of dervauves are shown i note 16
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I8 Fmancial hiabilittes — Borrowings

The Group's current and non-current borrowings are as follows

All figures in £ midlions 2013 012

Non-curreng

5 7% US Dollar Bonds 2014 (nominal amount $400m) - 264
7 0% Sterhing Bonds 2014 (nominal amount £250m) - 256
6 0% Sterling Bonds 2015 {(nominal amount £300m) 299 258
4 0% US Dollar Notes 2016 {nominal amount $350m) 221 229
6 25% Global Dollar Bonds 2018 (nominal amount $550m) 375 402
4 625% S Dollar Notes 2018 (nominal amount $300m) 202 217
3 75% US Dollar Notes 2022 (nominal amount $500mm) 283 315
3 25% US Doltar Notes 2023 (nomnal amount $500m) 286 -
Bank loans and overdrafts 22 22
Finance lease habilines 5 7
| 693 2,010
Current
Due within one year or on-demand
5 5% Global Dollar Bonds 2013 (nominal amount $350m) - 219
5 7% US Dollar Bonds 2014 {nominal amount $400m) 248 -
7 0% Sterling Bonds 2014 (nominal amount £250m) 254 -
Bank ioans and overdrafts 25 33
Finance lease kabihues ) 10
533 262
Toral borrowings — continuing operations 2,226 2272
Bank overdrafts classified withun habdiues held for sale - 7
Total borrowings - 2,226 2279

Included w the non-current borrowings above 1s £9m of accrued interest (2012 £1 Im). Included i the current
borrowings above 15 £4m of accrued mnterest (2012 £2m)

The maturity of the Group s non-current borrowing s as follows

.:\IE figures n £ nullions - R B o __EEI ¥ 2012
Between one and two years T - T U303 54
Berween two and five years B2I 552
Over five years 569 934

1,693 2010
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18 Fnancial habihties — Borrowings continued

The carrying amounts and market values of borrowings are as follows

2013 2012
Eflecuve nterest Carrying o Market Carmng Marke:
All figures ur £ milhons rae vilue value value value
Bank loans and cverdrafis n/a 47 47 55 55
5 5% Global Dollar Bonds 2043 576% - - 219 218
5 7% US Dollar Bonds 2014 5 B8B% 248 246 264 260
7 0% Sterling Bonds 2014 7 20% 254 262 256 274
6 0% Sterling Bonds 2015 627% 299 325 298 337
4 0% US Dollar Notes 2016 4 26% 221 223 229 233
6 25% Global Dollar Bonds 2018 6 46% 375 376 402 410
4 625% US Dollar Notes 2018 4 69% 202 195 217 209
3 75% US Dollar Notes 2022 394% 283 286 3i5 313
3 25% US Dollar Notes 2023 336% 286 273 - -
Finance lease habiliues n/a i il 17 t7
Conunuing operattons 2,216 2,244 2272 2328
Bank overdrafts classified within lizbilities held

for sale n/a - - 7 S
2,226 2244 2279 2333

The market values stated above are based on clean market prices at the year end or, where these are not available,
on the quoted market pnces of comparable debt 1ssued by other companies The effective interest rates above
relate to the underlying debt mstruments

The carrying amounts of the Group's borrowings are denominated in the following currencies

All frgures n £ milions 20413 2012
US dollar [.645 {684
Sterting 559 573
Other 22 22

2.226 2,279

The Group has the following undrawn capacity on 1s committed bot rowing facilies as at 3! December

All figures n £ mifions 2013 012

Floating rate

— expiring within one year - -

- expirng beyond one year {057 1,077
1,057 1077

In addition to the above faciliies there are a number of short-term faciliies that ace utihised in the normal course
of business

Al of the Group's borrowings are unsecured In respect of finance lease obligations, the rights to the leased asset
revert to the lessor in the event of default
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18 Financial habilities — Borrowings continued

The maturity of the Group's finance lease obligations is as follows

All figures in £ millons 2013 2012

Finance Iease habilities ~ minimum lease payments

Not later than one year 6 10
Later than one year and not {ater than two years 4 4
Later than two years and not later than three years | 3

Later than three years and not later than four years - -
Later than four years and not later than five years - -
Later than five years - -
Fuwure finance charges on finance leases - -

Present value of finance lease fiabilimes 1 17

The present value of finance lease habdies s as follows

Al figures 1n £ mublions 013 2012
Not later than one year 6 10
Later than one year and not later than five years 5 7

Later than five years - =

The carrying amounts of the Group's lease obligations approximate thew far value |
19 Financial msk management |

The Group's approach to the management of financial nisks together with sensiavity analyses of its financial
NStruments 1s set out below

Treasury policy

The Group holds financial mstruments for two principal purposes to finance its operations and to manage the
interest rate and currency fisks ansing from its operavons and its sources of finance The Group finances its
operatons by a mncure of cash flows {rom operauons, short-term borrowings from banks and commercial paper
markets, and longer term [oans from banks and capital markets The Group borrows principally i US doliars and
sterling, at both floating and fixed rates of interest, using denvative financral instruments ('dervatves’), where
appropriate, to generate the desired effecuve currency profile and interest rate basis The dervauves used for
this purpose are pnncipally rate swaps, rate caps and collars, currency rate swaps and forward foregn exchange
contracts The mam nsks ansing from the Group's financial instruments are interest rate risic, iqudity and
refinancing risk, counterparty risk and foreign currency nisk. These nsks are managed by the cheef financial

officer under policies approved by the board, which are summarised overleaf All the reasury polictes remained
unchanged throughout, except for revisions to the Group's bank counterparty nsk hmics and refated approval
processes and a change to pernutted investment mstruments for some operating companies

The audit commuttee receves reports on the Group s treasury acuvities, policies and procedures The weasury
department is not a profit centre and s actvities are subject to regular internal audit
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19 Financial risk management conunued

Interest rate risic management

The Group's exposure to interest rate fluctuations on tts borrowings s managed by borrowing on a fixed rate
basis and by entering into rate swaps, rate caps and forward rate agreements The Graup's policy objective has
continued to be to set a target proporuon of its forecast borrowings (taken at the year end, with cash netted
against floating rate debt and before certan adjustments for IAS 39 "Financial Instruments Recogmnion and
Measurement’) 10 be hedged (1 e fixed or capped at the year end) over the next four years, subject to a maxirmum
of 65% and a minimum that starts at 40% and falls by 10% at each year end At the end of 2013 the fixed to floating
hedging ratio, on the above basis, was approximately 45% 55% A simultaneous 1% change on t January 2014 in
the Group's variable interest rates in US dollar and sterling, taking into account forecast seasonal debt, would have
a £1 1m effect on profit before rax

Use of interest rate dertvatives

The policy described i the section above creates a group of derwvatives, under which the Group 1s a payer of fixed
rates and a recerver of floating rates The Group also aims to avord undue exposure to a single interest rate seting
Reflecting this objective the Group has predominantty swapped 1ts fixed rate bond issues to floaung rate at their
launch This creates a second group of dervatives, under which the Group 1s a receiver of fixed rates and a payer
of floating rates The Group's accounting objective in its use of interest rate dervatives Is to mininuse the impact on
the iIncome statement of changes in the mark-to-market value of its detwvatve portfolio as a whole It uses duraton
calculations to estimate the sensinvity of the derivatives to movements in market rates The Group also idenufies
which dervatives are eligible for fair value hedge accounting (which reduces sharply the income statement impact
of changes in the market value of a dervative) The Group then balances the total portfolio between hedge-
accounted and pooled segments, so that the expected movement on the pooled segment 1s mintmal

Liquidity and refinancing nisk management

The Group's objective 1s to secure continuty of funding at a reasonable cost To do thus it seeks to arrange
commutted funding for a variety of maturies from a diversity of sources The Group's policy objective has been
that the weighted average maturity of its core gross borrowings (treating short-term advances as having the final
matunty of the faciues avalable to refinance them) should be between three and ten years At the end of 2013
the average matunty of gross borrowings was 4 2 years (2012 3 9 years) of which bonds represented 37%
(2012 97%) of these borrowings

The Group believes that ready access to different funding markets also helps to reduce its hquidity risk, and that
published credit raungs and pubhshed financial policies improve such access All of the Group's credit ratngs
remained unchanged dunng the year The long-term ratings are Baal from Moody's and 8BB+ from Standard &
Poor's, and the short-term raungs are P2 and A2 respecuvely in January 20£4 Moody's changed the outlook on
their short-term and long-term ratungs from ‘Stable to ‘Negauve’ The Group's policy is to strive to mamntam a
rating of Baal /BBB+ over the long term The Group will also continue to use internally a range of ratios to
monitor and manage 1ts finances These nclude interest cover, net debt to operaung profit and cash flow to debt
measures The Group also mamtains undrawn committed borrowing faciltres At the end of 2013 the committed
facthzies amounted to £1,.057m and therr weighted average maturity was | 9 years
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19 Financial nsk management conunued

Analysis of Group debt, including the impact of derivatives

The followng tables analyse the Group s sources of funding and the impact of dervatives on the Group’s debt

instruments

The Group's net debt posion s set out below

.ﬁil figures s £ mithons 2013 2042
Cash and cash equivalents 729 1,062
Marketable securiies 6 )
Dervative finaneral instruments 76 {78
Bank loans, overdrafts and loan notes (47) (55)
Bonds (2.168)  {2.200)
Finance lease habiliues {h (17)
Conunuing operations (1.415) {1.026)
Cash and cash equivalents classified within assets held for sale 36 15
Bank loans, overdrafts and loan notes classified within hiabilities held for sale — {7)
Net debt B . {1.37%9) {918)
The spht of net debt between fixed and floaung rate, stated after the impact of rate dervatives, is as follows
Al figures n £ millons 2013 2012
Fixed rate 612 499
Foating rate 767 419
Total t 379 918
Gross borrowings, after the impact of cross-currency rate denivatives, analysed by currency are as follows
All figures in £ wllions 2013 1z
US dollar 1,849 1,883
Sterling 339 353
Other . 38 43
Toral 2.226 2.279
As at 31 December 2013 the exposure of the borrowings of the Group to nterest rate changes when the
borrowings re-price s as follows

Less than Onetw More than
All figures in £ milbons o One yoar five years frve years Total
Re-pricing pt ofie of borrowings 533 I.124 569 2,226

Effect of rate dervatives 1,026 {422) (604)

Toral |59 702 (35) 222
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The maturtty of contracted cash flows assocrated with the Group's financial liabilities are as follows g

B T i ' ] - D

Al figures 1w £ milliens - usp Gap Osher Toul

Not later than one year 434 36 t3 863

Later than one year and not later than five years 1,000 {06 - 1,106

Later than five years 648 - - 648

Tortal 2,082 422 113 2,617

Analysed as —

Bonds 1918 604 - 2,522 g

Rate derivauves — inflows (350) (248) - (598) 2

Rate dervatives — outflows 359 i 16 376 S

Trade payables {55 65 97 317 :

Total B 2,082 42 113 2617 .
2012

All figures wn £ milt ors 15D - Other Toml

Mot later than one year 489 126 42 757 =

Later than one year and not later than five years 726 357 21 [,104 2

Later than five years 863 - - B&3 g

Total 2.078 483 63 2724 ®

Analysed as ‘%

Bonds 1,837 639 - 2.476 P

Rate dervanves — inflows (326) (264) - (590)

Rate derivatives — outflows 328 3 22 353

Trade payables 239 105 141 485

Toral 2078 483 {63 2.724 Q

All cash fiow progections shown above are on an undiscounted basis Any cash flows based on a floaung rare are 2

calculated using interest rates as set at the date of the last rate reset. Where this s not possible, floating rates are %

based on mterest rates prevaling at 31 December in the relevant year Al derivauve amounts are shown gross.
althaugh the Group net settles these amounts wherever possible

Any amounts drawn under revolving credit facthties and commercial paper are assumed to mature at the maturty
date of the relevant facility with nterest calculated as payable 1 each calendar year up to and ncluding the date of

maturity of the faciity

Financial counterparty 11sk management

Counterparty credit imits, which take published credit rating and other factors into account, are set to cover our
total aggregate exposure 10 a single financral tnsutution The hroits apphcable to pubbshed credit ratings bands are
approved by the cheef financial officer within guidelines approved by the board Exposures and hmits applicable to

each financral institution are reviewed on a regular basis
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19 Financial risle management continued

Foreign currency risk management

Although the Group 1s based in the UK, 1t has 1ts most significant investment in overseas operations The most
significant currency for the Group s the US dollar The Group’s policy on routine transactional conversions
berween currencies (for example the collecuon of recevables, and the settlement of payables or inter est} remains
that these should be transacted at the relevant spot exchange rate The majority of the Group's operations are
domesuc within their country of operatuon No unremutted profits are hedged with foreign exchange contracts,
as the company judges it inappropriate to hedge non-cash flow translational exposure with cash flow instruments
However, the Group does seek to create a natural hedge of this expasure through 1ts policy of aligning
approximately the currency compostucn of its core net borrowings (after the impact of cross-currency rate
derwvatives} with its forecast operaung profit before depreciation and amorusation This policy aims to soften the
impact of changes in foreign exchange rates on consolidated interest cover and earnings The policy above applies

only to currencies that account for more than 5% of Group operatng profit before depreciation and amorusanon,

which currently 1s only the US dollar The Group sull borrows small amounts in other currencies, typicaily for
seasonal working capiial needs Our policy does not require existing currency debt 1o be terminated to match
declines i that currency’s share of Group operating profit before deprecration and amorusauon In addivon
currencies that account for less than |5% of Group operating profit before depreciation and amortsation can be
included in the above hedging process at the request of the chief financial officer

included within year end net debt, the net borrowings/(cash) in the hedging currencies above {taking into account
the effect of cross-currency swaps) were US dollar £1,631m, sterling £202m and South Afrcan rand £{21)m

Use of currency debe and currency derivatives

The Group uses both currency denominated debt and derivative instruments to implement the above policy

its intention ts that gains/losses on the denvatives and debt offset the losses/gamns on the forergn currency assets
and ncome. Each guarter the valve of hedging instruments s monitored agamnst the assets in the refevant currency
and, where pracucal, a deasion is made whether to treat the debt or denvauve as a net investment hedge
(perrmutting foreign exchange movements on it to be taken to reserves) for the purposes of 1AS 39

Financial instruments — fair value measurement
The following table provides an analysis of those financial mnstruments that are measured subsequent to imwal
recogniion at far value, grouped into ievels | to 3. based on the degree to which the fair value 1s observable

Level | fair value measurements are those derved from unadjusted quoted prices in acuve markets for identical
assets or habilivies,

Level 2 fair value measurements are those denived from inputs, other than quoted prices included within level |,
that are observable for the asset or hability, either directly {as prices) or indirecty {derved from prces), and

Levei 3 far value measurements are those derved from valuauon technigues that include mputs for the asset or
liability that are not based on observable market data {unobservable inputs)
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19 Fiancial sk management conunued

Financial instruments — faw value measurement continued

17t

2013 2012
All figures n £ millions Leval | Level?  Level3 Toral tewdl  Lovell  Level3 Toral
Financial assets at faw valu—e
Derwative financial assets - |24 - 124 - {78 - 178
Marketable secunties - 6 - 6 - 6 - 6
Avallable for sale financial assets
investments in unhisted securities —
continuIng operations - - 94 94 - - 30 30
Investments in unkisted secunties classified
within assets held for sale - - - - - - I {
Financial abihties ac fair value
Dervauve financial habilines - (48) - (48) - - - -
Other finanaal hiablities — put options over
non-controlling nterest - - - - - - (68)  (68)
Total - 82 94 |76 - 184 (37) |47

The following table analyses the movements in level 3 fair value measurements

2013 12
investments Investnents an

unlisted  Other financeal unbsted  Other fnanciat

All figures in £ millions secuITues llabifives secunties hatrficeas
At beginnuing of year 31 {68) 26 (B6)
Exchange differences - 9 (2) 5
Addinons 63 - i0 -
Fair value movemenis - {(8) - (25)
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale - - (N -
Disposals - 67 {(2) 38
Az end of year 94 - 31 (68)

The farr value of the investments in unlisted securiuies 1s determined by reference to the financial performance
of the underlying asset and amounts reahsed on the sale of simiar assets In 2012 the fair value of other financial

liabilities represents the present value of the estimated future habihty
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19 Financial nsk management continued

Financial instruments — sensitivity analysis
As at 31 December 2013 the sensitivity of the carrying value of the Group s financial instruments to fluctuations
In interest rates and exchange rates is as follows

fmpact of [%  Impactof {X  Impact of [OX  [mpact of 10%

increase docrease i sirengtheningin weakemng in
All figures in £ smilkons Carrying value  nterescrates  interest rates _sffr.l_'f“ . sterbng
Investments i unlisted securities — continuing
operatons 94 - - (9 10
Cash and cash equivalents — continuing operations 729 - - (56) 68
Cash and cash equivalents classified within assets held
for sale 36 - - {2) 2
Marketable securtties 6 - - - -
Derwatwe financial mstruments 76 54 59 5 {18)
Bonds (2 168) 58 (62) 147 (179)
Other borrowings — continuing operattons (58) - - 5 (5)
Other net financial assets —~ continuing operatons 566 - - (43) 53
Other net financial assets classified within assets and
hiabihittes held for sale 24 — — (1) |
Toral financial instruments (695) 4 (3) 56 {68)

The table shows the sensiuvities of the fair values of each class of financial instruments to an 1solated change m
either interest rates or foreign exchange rates The class ‘Other net financial assets’ compnses trade assets less
trade liabilives

The sensitvities of denvative instruments are calculated using established estimation techneques such as discounted
cash flow and option valuauon models Where modeiiing an interest rate decrease of 1% led to negauve interest
rates, these points on the yield curve were adjusted to 0% A large proporuen of the movements shown above
would impact equity rather than the income staternent, due to the locaton and functional currency of the entities
i which they arise and the avaldability of net mvestment hedge treatment The changes i valuations are estunates
of the impact of changes in market variables and are not a prediction of future events or anticipated gains or losses
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20 Intangible assets — Pre-publication

Al figures i £ millons 2013 W12

Cost

At beginnuing of year i.876 1,965

Exchange differences (46} {74)
Additions 364 364

Disposal through business disposal (29 -

Disposals (234) (188)
Acquisition through business combination 2 i4

Transfer to property, plant and equipment - {3)
Transfer to assets classfied as held for sale - (202)
At end of year 1,933 }.874

Amorusation

At beginning of year (1.210) (1.315)
Exchange differences 46 55

Charge for the year (308) (316)
Disposal through busimess disposal 23 -

Disposals 234 188

Acquisiuon through business combsnation () (8)
Transfer 1o assets classified as held for sale - t86

At end of year o (L2le) (L2100}
Carrying amounts

At end of year 717 666

included in the above are pre-publication assets amounung to £480m (2012 £431m) which will be realised in more
than one year

Amornsanon is included in the income statement in cost of goods sold in 2013 £ml 2012 £33m) relates to
disconunued operations

21 Inventories

All figures in £ mallions 2013 w62
Raw matenals 15 13
Worlk i progress i3 I
Firushed goods L 196 237
224 261

The cost of inventories relating to contnuing operations recognised as an expense and mcluded in the income
statement In cost of goods sold amounted to £472m (2012 £512my) in 20(3 £53m (2012 £7Im) of inventory
provisions was charged in the income statement None of the inventory is pledged as securty
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22 Trade and other receiwvables

All figures £ milhons _ 2013 012
Current
Trade recevables 863 868
Royalty advances 23 {6
Prepayments and accrued income o1 8l
Other recewvables 186 132
_ _ (REE 1,104
Non-cutrent
Trade recetwvables i9 I5
Royalty advances 8 13
Prepayments and accrued income 33 33
Other recewables 10 18
70 79

Trade recewables are stated at fawr value, net of provisions for bad and doubtful debts and anucipated future sales
returns The movements on the prowvision for bad and doubtful debts are as follows

All figures m £ millions 013 2012
At beginning of year (55) (102)
Exchange differences 5 4
Income statement movements @n (zh)
Unlised 13 53
Acquisition through bustmess combination - {H
Transfer to assets dassiied as held for sale | 12
At end of year (58) (55)

Concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade recewvables are hmited due to the Group's large number of
customers, who are nternationally dispersed

The ageing of the Group's trade recewvables 1s as follows

All higures n £ maltions 2013 1012
Within due date 783 774
Up to three months past due date 194 231

Three to six months past due date 36 43
Six 1o nme maonths past due date 22 1¢
Nine to |12 months past due date S 7
More than 2 months past due date 0 5
Toral trade receivables 1,045 t.070
Less provision for sales returns o (163) (187)
Net trade recevables 882 883

The Group reviews its bad debt prowvision at feast twice a year following a detalled review of recewvable balances
and hustoric payment profiles Management beheve all the remaining recervable balances are fully recoverable




23 Provisions for other hiabilities and charges

Section b Fnanoial statements

I75

BDoferred

Ehsposals

Legal

Al figures in £ elons — oo Sonetrmven | Fropery  anddonres | andaer T
At | January 2013 64 26 {5 43 148
Exchange differences (N - - (h (2)
Charged to income statement - 6 67 55 (28
Released to incame statement - )] - (N {5}
Deferred consideration on acquisition 2 - - - 2
Unhised (4) (17 (15) (66) {102)
Transfer from habilities held for sale - - - 24 24
Tiansfer to habilities held for sale (3 - = (y @
At 31 December 2013 o 58 il 67 53 {89
Analysis of provisions
2013
Deferred Desposals Legal
Al figunes n £ mllons L . conuderition Propeity  and closurcs and othe Total
Current 5 i0 67 30 112
Non-current 53 | - 23 77
B 58 [ 67 53 189
o - S T an
Current ) 2 I5 5 38
Non-curert 8 4 - 38 ALY
64 26 15 43 148

Deferred consideration pnmanly relates to the formation of a venture i the US Professional business n 201 |
Disposals and closures mclude reurement benefit obligatuons and other habilities related to the disposal of Penguin
L egal and other inciudes itigation in relation to ebooks which was settled i full during 2013, as well as other
provisions in relaton to legal claims, contract disputes and potenual contract losses

24 Trade and other habihties

Ad figures n £ millions 2003 01z
Trade payables 316 337
Social securtty and other taxes 23 30
Accruals 478 440
Deferred income 698 714
[nterest payable 22 21
Put options over non-controlling interest - 68
Other labilites o o - _ 425 228
1,762 {.838
Less non-current porton
Accruals 25 '8
Deferred income {55 |47
Interest payable 21 13
Put options over non-controlhing interest - 25
Qther labiliwes e 5 79
L o o o 257 282
Current portion 1,505 1,556
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24 Trade and other labilities continued
The carrying value of the Group's trade and other labiities approximates its far value

The deferred income balance comprises principally mulu year obligations to deliver workbooles to adoption
customers in schoo! businesses, advance payments in assessment, tesung and training businesses, subscription
income tn school, coilege and newspaper busiicsses, and obligauons to deliver digital content in future years

The put options over non-controlling interest in 2012 are the fair value of options held by the non-controling
interests in the Group's Southern African and Indan businesses

25 Reurement benefit and other post-reurement obligations

Background
The Group operates a number of defined benefit and defined contnbution retirerment plans throughout the world

The largest plan 15 the Pearson Group Pension Plan {UK Group plan} n the UK, which s sectionalised to prowvide
both defined benefit and defined contribution pension benefits The defined benefit section was closed to new
members from | November 2006 The defined contributions section, opened n 2003, 1s open to new and existing
employees Finally, there 1s a separate secucn within the UK Group plan set up for auto-enrolment The defined
benefit section of the UK Group plan 1 a final salary pension plan which provides benefits to members in the form
of 2 puaranteed level of pension payzble for ife The level of benefits depends on the fength of service and final
pensionable pay The UK Group plan is funded with benefit payments from trustee administered funds The UK
Group plan s administered 1n accordance with the Trust Deed and Rules in the interests of its beneficianes by
Pearson Group Pension Trustee Limited

At 31 December 2013 the UK Group plan has approximately 26,500 mernbers, analysed m the following table

% o Acuve Dielerred Pensioners Toul
Defined benefit 3 25 32 60
Defined contnbuuon {7 23 - 40
Total 20 48 32 G0

The other major defined benefit plans are based in the US These are also final salary pension plans which provide
benefits to members in the form of a guaranteed pension payable for life, with the level of benefits dependent on
length of service and final penstonable pay The majority of the US plans are funded

The Group also has several post-retrement medical benefit plans (PRMBs). principally in the US PRMBs are
unfunded but are accounted for and valued simifarly to defined benefit pension plans

The defined benefit schemes expose the Group to actuanal risks such as ife expectancy, inflanon nisks, and
investment risk including asset volaulity and changes in bond yields The Group s not exposed to any unusual
entty specfic or plan specific risks
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25 Reurement benefit and other post-retirement obligations continued

Assumpuions
The principal assumpuions used for the UK Group plan and the US PRMB are shown below Weighted average
assumpuions have been shown for the other plans, which primanily relate to US pension plans

2013 012

UK Group Other UK. Group Othes

% plan plans PRMB plan plans PRIMB
Inflation 34 25 25 30 25 25
Rate used to discount plan habihiues 44 44 4 4 44 36 36
Expected rate of mcrease i salaries 39 39 40 35 39 -
Expected rare of increase for pensions in

payment and deferred pensions 23t05 1 - - 231051 - -
Il rate of increase in healthcare rate - ~ 75 - - 80
Ulumate rate of increase in healthcare rate - - 50 - - 50

The UK discount rate is based on corporate bond yields adjusted to reflect the duration of habines The US
discount rate 15 set by reference to a US bond portfolio matching mode!

The inflation rate for the UK Group plan of 3 4% reflects the RPl rate in line with changes to legislation in 2010,
certan benefits have been calculated with reference to CPi as the inflavonary measure and i these instances a rate
of 2 6% has been used

The expected rate of increase in salares has been set at 3 9% for 2013 with a short-term assumption of 3 0%
for three years

For the UK plan, the mortality base table assumpuons have been denived from the SAPS “all pensioners’ tables
for males and the SAPS ‘normal health pensioners’ tables for females, adjusted to reflect the observed experience
of the plan, with CMI model improvement factors A | 5% long term rate improvement on the CM| model 1s
apphed for males, and [.25% for females

For the US plans, the RP2000 table projected to 2020 is used, reflecung the mortality assumption mast prevalent
in the US

Using the above tables, the remaining average life expectancy in years of a pensioner retiring at age 65 on the
balance sheet date for the UK Group plan and US plans is as follows

UK us

2013 012 2013 2012

Male 243 230 192 192
Female 244 2472 20 21

The remaning average Iife expectancy in years of a pensioner retring at age 65, 20 years after the balance sheet
date, for the UK and US Group pfans is as follows

UK Us

o e 2013 2012 2013 ).013

Male 259 25 | 192 192
Female 259 261 21 2t i
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25 Renirement benefit and other post-retirement obligations contnued

Financial statement information

The amounts recognised in the ncome statement are as follows

2013
Defined
UK Group bonefit Defined

All igures m £ miltns L plan achar Subotal  contribution PRMB Toul

Current service cost 22 3 25 72 4 1]
Curtailments ) o - - - i & ) I . )
Administratton expenses 4 — 4 - - 4

Tortal operating expense 26 3 29 72 - fH
Interest on plan assets {95) {6} {1o1) - - {101)
Interest on plan habilives 94 7 101 - 3 104
Ner finance {income)/expense {1 I - - 3 3
Net income statement charge 25 4 29 72 3 04
o - T "

Restated

Defined B
UK Group benefit efiied

Al igures n £ enuflions plan other Sub-atsl  contibution PRMB Toual
Current service cost 23 3 26 __ 78 4 108
Adrmunistration expenses 4 - 4 — — 4
Total operating expense 27 3 30 78 4 112
Intercst on plan assets (98) (6) {104) - - {104)
Interest on plan habiliues 96 7 103 - 3 106
Net finance (iIncome)/expense (2) ! (1) - 3 2
Net income statement charge 25 4 29 78 7 i14

Included within the 2013 results are discontinued operations consisung of a £2m charge (2012 £4m charge)
relaung to defined benefit schemes and a £6m charge (2012 £9m charge) relaung to defined contribution schemes

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows

2013 202
Qrther Other Otner Other
UK Group funded  unfunded LK Group funded  unlunded
All figures 1n £ mAlans plan plans plans Toral pln phan plane Toral
Fair value of plan assets 2,353 i56 - 2509 2182 F65 - 2377
Present value of defined benefit
obligauon (2267) (I171) (20) (2.458) (2,181)  (196) (24} (2.401)
Net pension asset/(liability) Bé (15} {20) 51 (19) (31) (24) (74)
Other post-retirement
medical benefit obligavon (77) (89)
Other pension accruals ~ (30) (35
Net retirement benefit obligations {(56) {198)
Analysed as
Returement benefit assets B6 -
Retirement benefit cbligations (142) (198)
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25 Retwement benefit and other post-retirement obligations continued

Included within the 2012 retirement benefit obligaton s a habilny of £26m which relates to Penguin and 15 classified
as held for sale During 2013 this was transferred back from held for sale to pension habilives

The following gains/ (losses) have been recogiused it other comprehensive wicome-

2013 112
All higures in £ mlll:onws " L o . Reswated
Amounts recognised for defined benefit plans 70 (95)
Amounts recognised for post-reurement medical benefit plans ? ()
Total recognised in year B ) _79 (100}
The fair value of plan assets comprises the following
i i _"_ o 2013 012
Other B Other
UK Group funded UK Group funded
% e . plan plans Toral phin plan_s_ Toral
Equinies 28 2 30 32 2 34
Bonds 40 3 43 38 3 41
Property 9 - 9 9 ! 10
Other 17 ! (8 4 | I5

The plan assets do not include any of the Group’s own financial instruments, or any propeity occupled by
the Group

The table below further disaggregates the UK Group plan assets into additonal categories and those assets which
have a quoted market price in an actve market and those that do not

2013 2042

Quoted MNo guated Quoted M quored
% market prce marker price market price ket price
UK eguiues 6 i 6 |
Non-UK equities 20 3 25 3
Fixed-interest secunties 9 - 21 -
Index-linked securmies 24 - {9 -
Property - 9 — 0
Other ~ I8 | 4
Total o &9 31 72 28
The kquidity praofile of the UK Group plan assets is as follows
. - B 2013 200
Liquid — call <) month 72 73
Less liquid ~ cali 13 months pi 2
Hhquid ~ call > 3 menths . 26 25
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25 Regrement benefit and other post-retirement obhgations continued

Changes 1 the values of plan assets and liabiliies of the retrement benefit plans are as follows

2013 2012
Restated
UK Group Other UK r;m;: T oner
Af fgures in € mifions plan plans __Total v plans Tonl
Far value of plan assets
Opening farr value of plan assets 2,162 Fe5 2327 2,008 149 2,157
Exchange differences - (2) (2) - (5) (5)
Interest on plan assets 95 6 {0l 98 6 104
Return an plans assets excluding interest 103 6 109 48 g 57
Contribunons by employer 77 5 82 72 2 74
Contribunions by employee 2 - 2 2 - 2
Benefits pad (86) 24) (110) (78) {an (89)
Acquisiuon through business combination - - = 12 i5 27
Closing fair value of plan assets 2353 156 2,509 2,162 165 2327
Present value of defined benefit obhgation
Opening defined benefit obligation {2181 (220} {2401) (1.983) (197} {2.180)
Exchange differences - 4 4 - 7 7
Current service ¢ost (22) 3) (25) (23) 3) (26)
Adminustration expenses 4) - 14) {(4) - 4)
Interest cost {(94) (7) {1G10) (96) 7 {103)
Actuanal gains/ (losses) - experience S | 6 44 2 46
Actuanal gains/ (losses) — demographic - f ! {14} - (14)
Actuaral gans/ (losses) — financial (35) 9 (46) (170} (i4) (184)
Contributons by employee (2) - (2) {2) - 2)
Benefits pad 86 24 [0 78 [ 89
Acquisiuon through business combimauon - - - (In {19} (30)
Closing defined benefit obligation {2.267) (191)  {2.458) {(2181) (220) {2.401)

The weghted average duration of the defined benefit obligation ts 15 8 years for the UK and 9 4 years for the US
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25 Reurement benefit and other post-reurament obligations conunued

Changes n the value of the US PRMB are as follows

Al figures £ milions B L ~ ) L 2012
Opering defined benefit obligation o (89) (85)
Exchange differences | 4
Current service cost 4) 4
Curtallments 4 -
Interest cost (3 3)
Actuanal gains/(losses) — experience - 2
Actuarmal gans/ (losses) — financial ? (N
Benefits pard 5 4
Closing defined benefit obligation {77) (89)
Funding

The UK Group plan s self-administered with the plan's assets being held independently of the Group in trust The
trustee of the plan s required to act in the best interest of the plan’s beneficiaries Assets of the plan are divided
into two elements, marching assets, which are assers that produce cashflows that can be expecred 1o maich the
cashflows for a proporuon of the membership, and include UK and overseas bonds, inflaton knked property and
infrastructure, return seeking assets which are assets invested with a longer term honzon to generate the returns
needed to prowvide the remaining expected cashflows for the beneficaries, and include equities, property and
alternatve asset classes The benchmark allocanon s 60% matching and 40% return seelang assets

The most recent triennial actuanial valuauon for funding purposes was completed as at ! Janwary 2012 and this
valuauon revealed a funding shortfall The Group has agreed that the funding shortfall will be ehminated by fune
2017 in 2013 the Group contributed £56m (2012 £4Bm) towards the funding shortfall Following the complenon
of the tnennial funding valuation the Group has agreed to contnbute £41m per annum unul 2017 in excess of
regular contnbutons In addition, a mechanism has been agreed for the Group to make supplementary payments
up to a maximum of £15m per annum If certain conditions are met If such payments are made they are expected
to accelerate the end date for extunguishing the deficit Regular contributons to the plan in respect of the defined
benefit sections are esumated to be £18m for 2014

The Group expects to contnbute $12min 2014 and $12m i 2015 to 1ts US defined benefit pension plans.
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25 Retirement benefit and other post-retrement obligations continued

Sensitvities
The effect of a one percentage point increase and decrease in the discount rate on the defined benefit obligation
and the total pension expense s as follows

2013
All figures in £ nuthons 1% merease % dec;;;:
Effect
{Decrease)/increase in defined benefit obligation - UK Group plan (316 0) 3905
(Decrease)/ncrease in defined benefit obligation — US plan {16 1) 200
The effect of members [iving one year more or one year less on the defined benefit obligation 15 as follows
013
I year | year
All figures i £ milians ncrease decrease
Effect
Increase/(decrease} in defined benefit obligation — UK Group plan 7912 {76 2)
Increase/{decrease) in defined benefit obligation — US plan 42 {48)
The effect of a half percentage point increase and decrease in the inflavon rate 15 as follows
N o ) 201
All figures in £ mulhons L 05 merease  05% decrense
Effect
Increase/(decrease) in defined benefit obligation — UK Group plan 106 1 (99 5)
increase/{decrease) in defined benefit obiigation — US plan 02 {Q3)

The above sensiuvity analyses are based on a change in an assumpuion while holding all other assumptions constant,
although in pracuce ths 15 unhkely to occur and changes in some assumptions may be correlated When calculating
these sensitivities the sarme method has been apphied to calcufate the defined benefit obligation as has been appled
when calculating the hability recognised in the balance sheet This methodology 15 the same as prior periods
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26 Share-based payments

The Group recognised the following charges in the income statement in respect of its equity-setded share-based payment plans

All figures in £ mitlions W13 2012

Pearson plans 35 28

Share-based payment charges included in discontinued operauons amounted to £2m {2012+ £4m)
The Group opet ates the following equity-settled employee option and share plans

Worldwide Save for Shares Plan Since 1994, the Group has operated a Save-As-You-Earn plan for UK employees
in 1998 the Group introduced a Worldwide Save for Shares Plan Under these plans, employees can save a
portien of their monthly salary over periods of three, five or seven years At the end of this penod, the employee
has the option to purchase ardinary shares with the accumulated funds at a purchase price equal to 80% of

the market price prevaling at the tme of the commencement of the employee’s participauon 1n the plan
Options that are not exercised within six months of the end of the savings period lapse unconditionally

Employee Stack Purchase Pian [n 2000, the Group established an Employee Stock Purchase Plan which aliows alt
employees in the US to save a portton of therr monthly salary over six-month periods At the end of the period,
the employee has the option to purchase ADRs with ther accurnulated funds at a purchase prnice equal to 85%
of the lower of the marlet price prevailing at the beginning or end of the penod

Long-Term Incentive Plan This plan was first ntroduced in 2001, renewed in 2006 and agan in 201t The plan
consists of restricted shares

The vesting of restricted shares 15 normally dependent on continumg service over a three to five-year period., and
in the case of semor management upon the sausfaction of corporate performance targets over 2 three-year period
These targets may be based on market and/or non-marker performance criterna Restricted shares awarded

10 senior management in May and October 2013, and May 2012 vest dependent on relatve total shareholder
return, returmn on wnvested capiRl and earnings per share grawth The award was split equally across all three
measures Other restricted shares awarded in 2013 and 2012 vest depending on continuing service over a three-
year period

Annual Bonus Share Matching Plan This plan permits executive director's and sentor executives around the Group to
invest up to 50% of any after tax annual bonus In Pearson shares [f these shares are held and the Group meets an
earnings per share growth rarget, the company will match them on a gross basis of up to one marching share for
every invested share 1 e the maximum nurmber of matching shares 15 equal ro the number of shares that could
have been acquired with the amount of the pre-tax annual bonus taken in invested shares

The number and weighted average exerose prices of share options granted under the Group's plans are as follows

W Wiz

Weighted WMezgine d

Number aof average rlumber of average

share options  exaruse pLge share oprons  excruse poica

. L L we 4 ok £

Qurstanding at beginning of year 3373 824 3,203 715
Granted during the year 763 914 1.321 509
Exercised durng the year (820) 712 (840) 559
Forferted during the year (5316} B75 (2943 784
Expired during the year - e (8 575 ({7) 360
Qutstanding at end of year 2792 873 3373 824

Opuons exercisable at end of year 35 6 95 106 558
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26 Share-based payments continued

Options were exercised regularly throughout the year The weighted average share price during the year was
£12 42 (2012 £1201) Early exerases arising from redundancy, retirement or death are treated as an acceleration
of vesung and the Group therefore recognises in the income statement the amount that otherwise would have

been recognised for services received over the remainder of the original vesung period

The options outstanding at the end of the year have weighted average rermaining contractual lives and exercise

prices as follows

2013 2012
WWeghted Weighted
Number of averige Number of weragt
share conrracoual share enntracunl
Range of axel tise prices oprions Ide opuons Iife
i 000y Years 000< Years
0-5 - - - -
5-10 2,792 231 3.373 256
>10 - - ~ -
2,792 231 3,373 256
in 2013 and 2012 options were granted under the Worldwide Save for Shares Plan The werghted average
esumated fair value for the options granted was calcutated using a Black-Scholes option pricing model
The weighted average esumated far values and the inputs into the Black-Scholes modelf are as follows
) ) - T o w00
Weighred Weighted
average average
Far value £127 £238
Weghted average share price £11 71 £11 54
Weighted average exercise price £9 14 £9 09
Expected volaulity 2205%  2362%
Expected life 38years 3 Byears
Risk free rate 053% 074%
Expected dividend yield 3 84% 365%
Forferture rate 33% 33%

The expected volatility is based on the histonc volatility of the company’s share price over the previous three o

seven years depending on the vesung term of the options

The following shares were granted under restricted share arrangements

o 20%1 _ 012

Weghted Wesgnted

Number of average Numbe of average

shares far vahue shares fair value

000s £ 000 xf_

Long-Term [ncentive Plan 3,482 M52 4503 it56
Annual Bonus Share Matching Plan 39 f206 237 1152

The farr value of shares granted under the Long-Term Incentive Plan that vest unconditionally 1s detenmined using
the share price at the date of grant The number of shares expected to vest 15 adjusted, based on historical
expenence, to account for potental forfeires Restricted shares granted under the Annual Bonus Share Matching
Plan are valued using the share price at the date of grant Participants under both plans are enutted to dividends

during the vesting pertod and therefore the share price 1s not discounted
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26 Share-based payments continued

Restricted shares with a market performance condimon were valued by an independent actuary using a Monte
Carlo model Restnicted shares with a non-market performance condition were fair valued based on the share
price at the date of grant Non-market performance conditions are taken mto consideration by adjusting the
number of shares expected to vest based on the most bkely outcome of the relevamt performance criterta

27 Share capital and share premium

Number Qrdhnary Share

of shares shares premium

) _ o 000, m £m

At | January 2012 815626 204 2,544

Issue of ordinary shares — share option schemes . . 1417 - i
At 31 December 2012 817,043 204 2,555
Issue of ordinary shares — share opticn schemes 1,537 l _ 13
At 3| December 2013 818.580 205 2.568

The ordinary shares have a par value of 25p per share {2012 25p per share) Allissued shares are fully paid
All shares have the same rights

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the opumisation of the debt and equity balance

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt {see note 18), cash and cash equivalents {see note 17) and
equity attributable to equity holders of the parent, comprising 1ssued capital reserves and retaed earmings

The Group reviews its capital structure on a regufar basis and will balance 1ts overall capital structure through
payiments of dividends, new share issues as well as the 1ssue of new debt or the redempuion of exisung debt
i ine with the financral nisk policies outined in note 19

28 Treasury shares

Poarson ple
Number
of thares
000s tm

At | january 2012 14,665 149
Purchase of treasury shares - -
Release of treasury shares _ {4,563) {46)
At 31 December 2012 10,102 103
Purchase of treasury shares 4111 47
Release of treasury shares .. i SN . 10 N 2]
At 31 December 2013 L ) 9.282 98

The Group holds Pearson plc shares in trust to sausfy its obligations under its restricted share plans (see note 26)
These shares, represenung | 1% (2012 | 2%) of called-up share capial, are treated as treasury shares for
accounung purposes and have a par value of 25p per share

The nominal value of Pearson pic treasury shares amounts to £2 3m (2012 £2 5m)

At 31 December 2013 the market value of Pearson plc treasury shares was £124 4m (2012 £120 Om)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

29 Other comprehensive income

2013
Attmbutable to equity holders of the company T
) Mon-
Transtavon Retaned congrafing
A-IIJE:E m i_nl'!l‘ffs.,,.._.ﬁ.. e __ reserve earmings Towl  interest Total
frems that may be reclassified to the mcome statement
Net exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations — Group (202) - (202) {4y (208)
Net exchange differences on translaton of foreign
operatons — associate (1) - (hh - {(n
Currency vranslation adjustment disposed - substdiaries (18) - (18) - {18)
Attributable tax - 6 6 - 6
teemns that are not reclassified to the income statement
Remeasurement of retrement benefit obligattons — Group - 79 79 - 79
Remeasurement of retirement benefit obligatons — associate - - - - -
Atwrbutable tax - (23) (23) — {23)
Other comprehensive expense for the year (231) 62 {169) (4) (173)
T 012
Resiated
Arbutable ro equay holder of the compiny
Han
Tramlauon Remined conrofing
All hrurc - i £ illions, . reserve aarmningy Total Inersst Tord
{tems that may be reclassified to the income statement
Net exchange differences on translation of foreign
operatons — Group (236) - {(236) (2} (238)
Artrbutable tax - I l - !
ltems that are not reclassified to the income statement
Remeasurement of renrement benefit obhgatons — Group - {100 (100 - {100}
Rerneasurement of retrement benefit obligations — associate - (3) (3) - 3
Auributable tax - 50 30 - 50

Other comprehensive expense for the year

(236) (5  (288) () (290)

30 Business combinations

There were no significant acquisiwons i 2013 Adjustments have been made n respect of prior year acquisiions in
2013 and include the recognition of intangibles of £185m on the EmbanetCompass acquisition The acquisttion was
made in fate 2012 and was prawvisionally accounted for as at 3t December 2012
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30 Business combinations continued

Q
Provistonal values for the assets and liabilities ansing from acquisitions completed in the year together with é
adjustments to prior year acquisiaons are as follows P
2013 012
T Cument fror Towl | Toawl
All figures in £ miflions Notes year year  fae value fair valuc
Property, plant and equipment 0 i - I 10
intangible assets t 7 193 200 280
Intangible assets - Pre-publicauon 20 ! - ! 6
Inventories - I I I _é—-
Trade and othel recevables 8 i 9 34 ;
Cash and cash equivalents (excluding overdrafts) 2 - 2 34 3
Net deferred income tax assets/ (habibties) 13 2 {39) (37} (67} %
Retirement benefit obligauons - - - {2} 5
Provisions for other habihites and charges - - - (i)
Trade and other habithues {6) (1 7y
Current income tax habilives —— ) Qe S 1),
Net assets acquired at fair value i5 {55 170 183
Goodwill " 19 (152 (133) 505 m
Fair value of previously held interest arising on stepped acquisition {7} - {7) - §
Total B ) 27 3 30 688 B
Sausfied by é'
Cash (25) 6 (31) (682) Z
Deferred consideraton {2} - (2) (6} &
Net prior year adjustments e 3 3 —
Total consideration (27} (3) (30)  (688)
The goodwill ansing on these acquisiions results from cost and revenue synergies and from benefits that cannot be o
separately recognised g
A provisional value of £6m of goodwill ansing on 2013 acquisitions 1s expected to be deducuble for tax purposes g
(2012 £nil) il

Intangible assets acquired in 2012 and recogmised in 2013 have the following useful economic bives
EmbaneiCompass customer lists, contracts and relatuonships 317 years, trademarks and brands two years
Intangible assets acquired in 2013 are classified a5 other intangible assers and have useful hves of 310 years

E
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

30 Business combinations contmued

All figures i € mdtions 2013 2012
Cash flow on acquisttions

Cash - Current year acquisitions {25) {682)
Deferred payments for prior year acquistuons and other items (6) (30
Cash and cash equivalents acquired 2 34
Acqusition costs and other acquisiion habilies paid {19} (37)
Net cash outflow (48) (716)

in total, acquisitions of subsidiaries completed in the year contributed an additional £15m of sales but did not

contribute a materal amount to operaung profit There would not have been a matenal difference to either sales
or profits had these acquisitons completed on | January 2013

3| Disposals including business closures

2013 2012
Al figures n € milions Pengun Other Total -
Disposal of subsidiaries
Property, plant and equipment (39) 3) {42) (3)
Intangible assets (43) - {(43) (45)
Investment in joint ventures and associates (22) - (22) -
Other financial assers 3] - (i -
Intangible assets — Pre-publication (20) {6) (26) -
inventornes (91) €3] (34) -
Trade and other recetvables (447) {5 {(453) -
Cash and cash equvalents {excluding overdrafts) (34) 3) (37} -
Net deferred income tax {assets)/habilives {22) -~ (22) tl
Reurement benefit obligatons - 4 4 -
Provisions for other labdittes and charges 7 - 7 -
Trade and other habilities 224 3] 134 -
Non-controlling interest 3 - 3 -
Attributable goodwill (370) (6) (376) {50)
Cumulauve translaton adjustment 18 — 18 -
Net assets disposed (837) (3} (850) (87)
Cash received - 3 3 -
Fatr value of assoctate acquired 1160 - 1,160 -
Coss e (20 (4 _(38) Q8
Gain/(loss) on disposal 202 (24) 178 {113)

The gain on disposal of Penguin anses from the measurement at fair value of the associate investrent acquired in

Pengum Random House
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31 Dusposals including business closures continued

Al figures v £ mifhans 2013 2002

Cash flow from disposats

Cash — current year dispasals 3 -
Cash and cash equivalents disposed (37} -
Costs and other disposal fabthiues paid _ L o _£98) {(in
Net cash outflow ) (132) (H1)

The disposal in 2012 includes the write down of assets resulung from the closure of Pearson in Pracuce

32 Held for sale

Assets classified as held for sale in 2012 relate to Pengumn and in 2013 to Mergermarket

Al figures m € mifions Notes 2013 2012
Property, plant and equipment 1o 2 40
intangible assets t i58 404
Investments in joint ventures and associates - 27
Deferred income tax assets 12 { 38
Other financiaf assets s - |
Trade and other receivables 26 451
Intangible assets - Pre-publication 0 - I6
lnventores - 80
Cash and cash equivalents {excluding overdrafts) 07 36 li5
Assets classified as held for sale 223 {172
Financial iabihues — Borrowings 8 - (7}
Deferred income tax habihuies 3 (2} (20)
Retirement benefit obligatons pi3 - (26)
Prowisions for other liabllites and charges 23 %) (%)
Trade and other hi2bihues {71} (234)
Current income tax habilities (5) -
Liahilities directly associated with assets classified as held for sale {82) (316}
Net assets classified as held for sale 141 856

33 Transacuons with non-controlhng mterest

In 2013 the Group purchased non-controlling mterests in the Southern Afncan business for £65m, and in the Indian
business for £1 1 In 2012 the Group increased its investments in its subsidiaries i China at a cost of £4m

!
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Notes to the consohdated financial statements continued

34 Cash generated from operations

A figures i £ millians 3 Nows 2013 2012
Profit 539 314
Adjustments for

Income tax 90 163
Depreciaton 10 82 80
Intangibie charges 1t 168 {83
Amortisation of other intangible assets i 59 54
Net finance costs 75 96
Share of results of jomt ventures and associates 12 (54) %
(Profit)/loss on disposals {187) i3
Acquisition costs 12 21
Costs on formation of Penguin Random House - 32
Net foreign exchange adjustment from transactions (40) (21)
Share-based payment costs 26 37 32
Pre-publication {77} (55)
Inventories 18 49
Trade and other recervables (50) (94)
Trade and other habiites 72 -
Retrement benefit obligavons {57) (37)
Provisions for other liabihues and charges (3) (5)
Net cash generated from operations 684 214
Dwidends from joint ventures and assocrates 64 27
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {118} (78)
Purchase of intangible assets (64) (73)
Procecds from sale of property, plant and equipment 28 |
Proceeds from sale of intangible assets 2 3
Finance lease principal payments (8) (8)
Operating cash flow 588 788
Operaung ax pad {191 (65)
Net operatng finance costs paid {73) (66)
Operaung free cash flow 324 657
Non-operatng tax pad _ {55) —
Free cash flow 269 657
Dividends paid (including to non-controlling mterests) {372) (348)
Net movement of funds from operations (103) 309
Acquisitions and disposais {net of tax) (326) (780)
Loans advanced (including to related parues) {49) -
Purchase of treasury shares {47) -
New equity t4 H
Other movements on financial instruments S -
Net movement of funds (520) (460)
Exchange movements on net debt I . A1
Total movement in net debt (461) (419)
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34 Cash generated from operations conunued

Net cash generated from operations is translated at an exchange rate approximanng to the rate at the date of
cash flow The difference between this rate and the average rate used to translate profit gives nse to a currency
adustment in the reconcthiation between net profit and net cash generated from operatians This adyustment
reflects the uming difference between recognition of profit and the related cash recetpts or payments

Operzating cash flow, operating free cash flow and total free cash flow are non-GAAP measures and have been
disclosed as they are part of Pearson’s corporate and operanng measures

in the cash flow statement, proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment comprise

Al figures £ emilhions . 2013 2042
Net book amount 19 P
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment 9 —
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 28 |

35 Contngencies

There are contingent Group liabilities that arise 1n the normal course of business in respect of indemnitses,
warranties and guarantees In relation to former subsidiaries and in respect of guarantees In relation to subsidiares,
jont ventures and associates in addivon there are contingent habilities of the Group in respect of legal claims,
contract disputes, royalues capyright fees permussions and other rights None of these claims are expected to
result in a materiat gain or oss to the Group

36 Commitments
There were no commitments for capital expenditure contraczed for at the balance sheet date but not yet incurred

The Group leases vanous offices and warehouses under non-cancellable operatng lease agreements The leases have
varying terms and renewal nghts The Group also leases vanous plant and equipment under operating lease
agreements also with varying terms Lease expendiure charged to the income statement was £183m (2012 £16%m)

The future aggregate minimurmn lease payments in respect of operating leases are as follows

Al fizures 1in £ miflions 2013 2012
Not fater than cone year 6l (85
Later than one year and not later than two years 149 [74
Later than two years and not later than three years £33 158
Later than three years and not later than four years e 137
Later than four years and not later than five years 05 124
Later than five years L L 737 899
1403 1678
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

37 Related party wransactions

Jownt ventures and associates
Amounts advanced to joint ventures and associates dunng the year and at the balance sheet date are set out
in note 12 Apart from transactions with the Group's joint ventures and associates, there were no other materal

related party transactions

Key management personnel

Key management personnel are deemed to be the members of the board of dwectors of Pearson ple Itis this
board which had responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the acuvities of the Group in 2013 Key
management personnel compensauon is disclosed in the directors’ remunerauon report

There were no other material related party tansacuons
No guarantees have been provided to related parties
38 Events after the balance sheec date

On 4 February 2014, the Group completed the sale of Mergermarket for £382m On { | February 2014, the Group
acquired 100% of Grupo Mult, the leading Enghsh Language Traiming company in Brazil, for approximately £435m
in cash plus the assumpuon of £57m of debt
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The Pearson plc subsidiary compantes listed below are exempt from the requirements of the Comparnies Act 2006
relating to the audit of mdividual accounts by virtue of sectton 479A

Caumpany nuimtbwer

Aldwych Finance Lud

ASET Lud

ASET Group Ltd

ASET Management Ltd

ASET Solutions Ltd

Biue Wharf Lid

Burmedia Investments Lid

Edexcel Ltd

Educauon Development International plc
Embankment Finance Ltd

eNVQ Ltd

EQL Assessment Ltd

Escape Studros Lid

Financaal Times {(ASC) Lid

Financial Times Group Ltd

Fronter UK Lid

FT Business Informauen Ld

FT Labs Lid

FT Parsonal Finance Ltd

Goal L1d

Green Wharf Lid

lcadeon Ltd

jouat Examining Board Lid

Longman Group (Overseas Holdings) Ltd
Midlands Educauonal Technology Led
Pearson Affordable Learning Fund Ltd
Pearsan Amsterdam Finance Lrd
Pearson Australia Finance Unhd
Pearson Books Ltd

Pearson Canada Finance Unltd
Pearson College Ltd

Pearson Dollar Finance plc

Pearson Dollar Finance Twa plc
Pearson Education Holdings Lrd
Pearson Educauon Investments Lid

04720439
04231636
03964551
03139404
03849880
04344573
03060487
04496750
03914767
04460625
03985948
05224778
04399042
00519261
0087953
05737591
00758738
04701650
03855520
03566588
07009228
05068195
03278422
00690236
01448842
08038068
03041245
05578463
02512075
0557849
07967446
05111013
06507766
00210859

08444933

Company number

l;;:arson Education Ltd
Pearson Funding Four pic

Pearson Funding One pic

Pearson Funding Twao plc

Pearson Hemnemann Ltd

Pearson in Pracuce ATA Ltd
Pearson in Practice Holdings Ltd
Pearson in Practice Skills Based Leaming Lid
Pearson in Practuice Technology Lud
Pearson Internauonal Finance Lid
Pearson Loan Finance No 2 Unitd
Pearson Loan Finance No 3 Lid
Pearson Loan Finance No 4 Lid
Pearson Loan Finance Unlid
Pearson Management Services Lid
Pearson Overseas Holdings Ltd
Pearson PRH Holdings Led
Pearson Professional Holdings Lid
Pearson Services Lid

Pearson Shared Services Ltd
Peter Honey Publicauons Ltd
Sector Tramming Ltd

St Clernents Press (1988) Lid
Testchange Lid

The Coachung Space Lid

The financial Times (Benetux) Lid
The Financral Times (France) Lid
The Financial Times (Japan) Ltd
The Financal Times (M-M UK) Lxd
The Financial Times (Span) Ltd
The Financial Times Ld

TQ Catalis Ltd

TQ Clapham Ltd

TQ Global Ltd

TQ Holdings Ltd

00872828
07970304
02911143
07210654
03099304
07679091
06337129
03755464
03786989
02496206
0563202
05052661
02635107
05144467
00096263
00145205
08541316
00149375
01341060
04623186
03754757
05342448
02174119
02496240
05333023
01613899
00867316
01613900
01398449
01214411
00227590
07307943
07307925
07802458
06294307
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Notes to the consolidated financal statements continued

39 Accounts and audit exemptions continued

The Pearson plc substdiary compamies ksted below are exempt from the requirements of the Compantes Act 2006
to prepare individual accounts by virtue of section 394A

Companty nuiniber L Campany nurnbie
Exec-Appointments Lid 04010964 Medley Global Advisors Ltd 00931507
FDI Inteliigence Ltd N1040129 The Financial News Ltd 00607228
Finanaia! Tirmes Business Lid 00202281 The Financial Times (Switzerland) Lid 0161390}
Financial Tumes Electromic Publishing Led 02749250 The Finanaal Tirnes {(Zhongwen) Ltd 01900030
Financial Times [nvestor Ltd 04005565 Throgmorton Publications Ltd 00905696

_Mandatewu‘e Ltd 03855294
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Company balance sheet
As at 31 December 2013

All figures an £ millions Nrites 2003 012

Assets
Non-current assets

fnvestments i subsidiaries 2 8537 9.108
Amounts due from subsidianes 2,009 2,020
Financial assets — Derwanve financal inswruments T A Vil
10,657 f1 303
Current assets
Amounts due from subsidiaries 380 578
Amounts due from related partes 44 ~
Prepayments - 4
Current income tax assets 24 -
Financial assets — Derwvatve financial instruments 6 13 4
Cash and cash equivalents (excluding overdrafts) o o 4 354 643
N o e 85 1229
Total assets - L 11,512 (2,532
Liabthties
Non-current iablities
Amounts due to subsidiaries {3,553) (4227)
Financial habihties ~ Borrowings 5 (202) {473)
Fmancal abilues ~ Dervauve financial instruments 6 (48) -

(3,803 (4.700)
Current habilities

Amounts due to subsidiares (1.256) (1,953}
Current iIncome tax ltabthves - (13)
Financiat habilities — Borrowings 5 {766) {618)
Provisions for other habilites and charges 7 (42) -
L . o {2.064) (2 584)
Total habihtes L (5 867) (7 284)
Netassets o _ 5645 5248
Equity
Share capital g 205 204
Share premum 8 2,568 2,555
Treasury shares e (22) {27}
Speciat reserve 447 447
Retained earnings o ] ) o 2,447 2,669
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the company 5645 5,248

These financial statements have been approved for issue by the board of directors on 10 March 2014 and signed
on its behalf by

Robin Freestone Chref financial officer
{0 March 2014
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Company statement of changes in equity
Year ended 31 December 2013

Equity atrriburable to equity holders of the company

Share Share Treasury Specal Reained

All fgures m £ milkons _ premuurn shares reserve earnings Tl
At | January 2013 204 2,555 27 447 2,06% 5,248
Profit for the year - - - - 802 802
{ssue of ordinary shares under

share option schemes* ] 13 - - - i4
Purchase of treasury shares - - (47) - - (47)
Release of treasury shares - - 52 - (52) -
Dwadends - - - - (372) {372)
At 3| December 2013 205 2,568 (22) 447 2447 5,645

Equity atmibutabie 1o equity hofders of the company

Shue Share Treasury Speciad Retained
All igiies m £ pulions cipral __premlum shrues resene earngs Tortal
At | January 2012 204 2.544 {94) 447 1,450 4,551
Profit for the year - - - - 1,014 1,01
Issue of ordinary shares under
share option schemes® - il - - - I
Conmnbutons from subsidiaries
for treasury shares - - 21 - - 21
Release of wreasury shares - - 46 - (46} -
Dvidends - - - - {346) {346)
At 31 December 2012 204 2,555 (27) 447 2.069 52438

The special reserve represents the cumulative effect of cancellanon of the company’s share premium account

Included wittun retained earrungs 1s an amount of £131m (2012 £131m) refaung to profit on intra-group disposals

that s not distmbutable

*Full detarls of the share-based payment plans are disclosed in note 26 to the consokdated financial statements
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Company cash flow statement
Year ended 31 December 2013
:\;rflﬂum n £ milhons o B - Nntes 2013 012
Cash flows from operating activiges
Net profit 802 .04
Adpstments for
Income tax (5hH (39)
Net finance costs 167 103
Amounts due to subsidiaries L (1.053) {427)
Net cash (used in)/generated from operations (135) 648
Interest paid (82) {93)
Tax recewved |4 43
Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities (203) 598
Cash flows from investing activities
Disposal of subsidiaries, net of cash disposed 482 -
Interest recewed 0 I
Net cash received from mvesuing actvities 492 i
Cash flows from financing acuvites
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares 8 14 I
Net purchase of treasury shares (48) -
Loans to reflated parties (44) -
Repayment of borrowings - ()
Dwidends paid to company's shareholders ~ _ L {372) (346}
Net cash used in financing actvities (454) (336)
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 18 4
Net (decreaseMincrease in cash and cash equivalents {143} 259
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 25 (234)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 4 (118) 25

MIAAYIAC

FINVHEO4Y3d ¥10

SSINISNE I1BISNOJS3Y

FINYNYFAQD

SLNIWILYLS TVIDNVYMES



198 Pearson plc Annualreport and accounts 2013

Notes to the company financial statements

1 Accountng policies

The financial statements on pages 195 to 203 comprise the separate financial statements of Pearson plc
As permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, only the consolidated mcome statement and statement
of comprehensive income has been presented

The company has no employees

The accounting policies apphied in the preparation of these company financral statements are the same as those
set out in note | to the consolidated financial statements with the addition of the following

Investments
Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less prowvision for impawrment, with the exception of certan hedged
investments that are held in a foreign currency and revalued at each balance sheet date

2 investments 10 subsidiaries

Al figun es 0 £ mdlions ) 2013 212
At beginning of year 9,108 9,056
Subscription for share capital in subsidiaries 424 10
Disposals/bquidations {985) -
Currency revaluations (10) {58)
At end of year 8,537 2,108

3 Financial rsk management

The company s financial instruments comprise amounts due to/from subsidiary undertakings, cash and cash
equivalents, dervauve financial instruments and current and ron-current borrowngs Denvauve financial
instruments are eld at far value with afl other financial instruments held at amornised cost The company's
approach to the management of financial nsks s consistent with the Group's treasury policy, as discussed

in note |9 to the consolidated financial statements The company believes the value of its finanaal assets

to be fully recaverable

The company designates certam of its qualfying derwvaave financial instruments as hedges of the fair value of
its bonds (fair value hedges) Changes in the fanr value of these dervatve financal instruments are recorded
i the income statement, together with any change 1n the fair value of the hedged liability attmbutable o the
hedged nisk

The carrying vaiue of the company's financial mstruments 1s exposed to movements in interest rates and foreign
currency exchange rates (primarly US dollars) The company esumates that a 1% increase th interest rates would
result in a £47m decrease in the carrying value of its finanaal instruments, with a [% decrease in interest rates
resulting in a £50m mncrease in ther carrying value The company also estmates that a 10% strengthening i sterling
would decrease the carrying value of its financial instruments by £126m, while a 10% decrease i the value of
sterling would mcrease the carrying value by £129m These increases and decreases in carrying value would be
recorded through the income statement Sensiuvites are calculated using esumanon technigues such as discounted
cash flow and option valuation models Where modelling an interest rate decrease of {% led to negative interest
rates, these points on the yield curve were adjusted to 0%
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|

o]
The matunty of contracted cash flows on the company’s borrowings and all of its dervatve financial instruments %
are as follows P
2013
Al figures i £ muthons usD _Gep T oher Yo
Not later than one year (20) 233 [6 229
Later than one year and not later than five years 287 {212) - 75
Later than five years (3%) - - (39
Total 228 21 16 265
Analysed as g
Bonds 219 268 - 487 m
Rate dervatives — inflows (350} (248) - {598) é
Rate derivatives — outflows 359 1 16 376 E
Total 228 2 6 25 -
T T o - i
At figures ¢ ¢ millons LsD GRP Other Toudl
Not later than one year (26) 3 i 22) ‘::-:*
Later than one year and not later than five years 105 21 21 147 :
Later than five years {55 - - 55 &
Total 234 24 22 280 m
Analysed as '—cz’-‘
Bonds 232 285 - 517 g
Rate denvatves - inflows (326) (264) - {(590)
Rate derwatves — autflows 328 3 22 353
Toral 234 24 22 280
All cash flow projections shown above are on an undiscounted basis Any cash flows based on a floating rate are 2
calculated using interest rates as set at the date of the last rate reset Where this 1s not possible, floatng rates are 2
based on mnterest rates prevailing at 31 December in the relevant year All derivatve amounts are shown gross, %

although the company net settles these amounts wherever possible

Any amounts drawn under revolving credit facthues and commercial paper are assumed to mature at the matunty
cate of the relevant facility, with interest calculated as payable in each calendar year up to and including the date

of matunty of the facility

|
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Notes to the company financial statements continued

4 Cash and cash equwalents (excluding overdrafts)

All higures an £ muthons e o 29[3__ "____‘__2({2
Cash at bank and in hand 269 |
Short-term bank deposits L {25 642

394 643

Short-term bank deposits are invested with banks and earn interest at the prevailing short-term deposit rates

At the end of 2013 the currency split of cash and cash equwalents was US dollar 76% (2012 63%) and sterling 24%
{2012 37%)

Cash and cash equivalenis have fair values that approximate to their cairying amournts due to ther
short-term nature

Cash and cash equivalents include the following for the purpose of the cash flow statement

Al figu o5 1n £ millions N 2063 2012
Cash and cash equivalents ) 394 643
Bank overdrafis . (512) {618)
o (118) 25

5 Fancial kabilities — Berrowings

Al figures iy £ millrons 2043 2012

Non-current

7 0% Sterling Bonds 2014 (nomunal amount £250m) - 256
4 625% US Dollar Notes 2018 (nominal ameunt $300m) 202 7

202 473
Current

Due within one year or on-demand

7 0% Sterhng Bonds 2014 (nomunal amount £250m}) 254 -
Bank loans and overdrafts 512 618

. 766 618
Total borrowings 68 1.091

Included m non-current borrowings above s £nil of accrued interest (2012 £3m;j Included i current borrowings
above s £3m of accrued mterest (2012 £mii)
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5 Fmnancial habilities — Borrowings continued

The marurity of the company’s non-current borrowings is as follows

pig|

Al Sigores in £ midlions o _ o 013 10!'}_
Between ane and two years - 256
Between two and five years 202 -
Over five years L - 207

202 473

As at 31 December 2013 the exposure to interest rate changes of the borrowings and amounts due to subsidiaries

when the borrawings re-price 1s as follows

FONYWHEO4Y3d YNQ }

Less than Oneto More than
All figures i {ﬂons L _ o L L ane year five years five years X Toul
Re-priang profile of borrowings 766 202 - 968
Amaounts due to subsidiaries 1,256 2731 822 4,809
Effect of rate derwauves . 1.026 (422) (604) -
. _ L 3,048 2,501 218 5,777
The cairying amounts and market values of borrowings are as follows
B o S o3 012
Effective Carrying M;I;: Carrymg, Marker
All figures i £ milkans ncerest 1ate amaunt value amount vl
Banl foans and overdrafts n/a 512 512 618 618
7 0% Sterling Bonds 2014 7 20% 254 262 256 274
4 625% US dollar Notes 208 4 69% 202 195 217 209
L . 568 969 1,091 L1o1
The market values are based on clean market prices at the year end or, where these are not avaifable, on the
guoted market prices of comparable debt 1ssued by other compames The effective interest rates above relate
to the underlying debt instruments
The carrying amounts of the company s borrowings are denominated 1n the following currencies
Al figures i £ miirons 2013 002
US doltar 202 255
Sterling 762 826
Euro - 4 |0
%68 i.091

LY ERLs
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Notes to the company financial statements continued

6 Derwative financial instruments

The company’s outstanding dervauve finanaal instruments are as follows

2013 2012
Gross nouonat Gross nononak

Mbgores i Colers e 2O fesets | babdnes e | Awes | Dehn

Interest rate denvatives —

i a fair value hedge relationship 231 22 - 234 35 -

interest rate derivatives —

not in a hedge relationship 1.842 63 (48) 1,292 109 -

Cross-currency denvatives 220 39 - 220 34 -

Total ) 2,293 124 (48) {746 |78 =

Analysed as expiring

In less than one year 3t2 i3 - 215 4 -

Later than one year and not later

than five years 1,377 il -- 701 69 -

Later than five years ) 604 - {48) 830 105 -

Total 2,293 124 (48) |.746 178 -

The carrying value of the above derivauve financial instruments equals their fair value Fair values are determined
by using market dara and the use of established esttmation techniques such as discounted cash flow and option

valuation models

7 Prowvisions for other labilicres and charges

Prowisions m the year comprise llabiiwes assumed on the closure of the business of a group subsidiary
It s anucipated that the provision will be utlised in less than one year

8 Share capual and share premium

MNumber of Ordnary Share

shares sharcs premigm

L 0uls £m {m

At | January 2012 815626 204 2,544
{ssue of ordinary shares — share option schemes 1417 - i
At 31 December 2012 817043 204 2,555
tssue of ordinary shares - share option schemes | 537 | 13
At 31 December 2013 818,580 205 2568

The ordinary shares have a par value of 25p per share (2012
All shares have the same nghts

25p per share) Al issued shares are fully paid
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9 Treasury shares

Munier of
shares

B00s im
At | January 2042 t4.665 34
Purchase of wreasury shares - -
Contnibution from subsidiaries - 2n
Release of wreasury shares (4,563) {46)
At 31 December 2012 10,102 27
Purchase of treasury shares 4,111 47
Release of treasury shares (4.931) (52)
At 3| December 2013 9,282 22

The company holds its own shares in trust to sausfy its obligations under 1ts restricted share plans These shares
are treated as treasury shares for accounting purposes and have a par value of 25p per share The nominal value
of the company's treasury shares amounts to £2 3m (2012 £2 5m) At 31 December 2013 the market value of
the company's treasury shares was £124 4m (2012 £120 0m)

10 Contingencies

There are contingent liabilities that arise in the normal course of business in respect of mdemnities, warranties

and guarantees in relation to former subsidiaries and i respect of guarantees in relation to subsidiaries In additron
there are conungent habiliues in respect of legal clarms None of these claims are expected to result in a material
gan or loss to the company

i1 Audm fees
Statutory audit fees relating to the company were £35,000 (2012 £35,000)
12 Related party transactions

Subsidiaries
The company transacts and has outstanding balances with s subsidiares Amounts due from subsidiares
and amounts due to subsidiaries are disclosed on the face of the company balance sheet

These loans are generally unsecured and mnterest is calculated based on market rates The company has nterest
payable to subsidiaries for the year of £144m (2012 £171m) and interest recewvable from subsidiares for the
year of £59m (2012 £64m) Management fees payable to subsidianes in respect of centrally provided services
amounted to £55m (2012 £47m} Dividends received from subsidiaries were £1,363m (2012 £1,124m)

Associates

Amounts due from related parues, disclosed on the face of the company balance sheet, relate ta loans to Pengum
Random House, an assoiate of the Group These ioans are unsecured and mterest is calculated based on market
rates

Key management personnel

Key management personnel are deemed to be the members of the board of directors of the company

it 15 this board which has 1esponsibility for planming, direciing and contreling the activities of the company
Key management personnel compensation s disclosed i the report on directors' remuneration in the
consolidated financial statements

There were no other rmatenal related party transacuons
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Principal subsidianies

The principal operaung subsidiaries at 31 Decemnber 2013 are listed below They operate mainly in the countries
of mcorporation or registration The mvestments are i equity share capital and they are all [00% owned

Couniry of In€orparatson or regsuuon

Pearson Education

Pearson Education Inc us
Pearson Education Ltd England
NCS Pearson Inc ) N ) . us
FT Group

The Financial Times Ltd . England

The company has taken advantage of the exemption under Secuon 410(2) of the Companes Act 2006 by
providing informatian only in relation to subsidiary undertakings whose resuits or financial position, in the opiion
of the directors, principally affected the financial statements A complete list of subsidiary and associated
undertakings will be included in the next Pearson ple annual return filed with the Registrar of Compantes
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Five-year summary
2001 012

Al figures i £ milions 200 2010 Restied Rewtatad 2013
Sales
North American Education 2470 2,640 2,584 2,658 2779
international Education {,035 [,234 t,424 1,568 1,53¢
Professional 275 333 382 3%0 410
Education 3.780 4207 4,390 4616 4728
FT Group e 288 325 338 343 34|
Continuing 4,068 4,532 4,728 4,959 5.069
Disconunued [,556 1,427 [,134 £, 153 621
Total sales 5624 5959 5862 6112 5690
Adjusted operating profit
MNorth American Education 403 469 493 536 406
international Education 141 171 194 214 140
Professional 43 51 66 37 57
Education 587 691 753 787 603
FT Group 9 44 53 22 29
Penguin Random House - - - - 50
Continuing 606 732 806 809 682
Discontinued 252 206 i32 123 54
Toral adjusted operating profit 858 938 938 932 736
Operating margin — continting 149% 16 2% 17 0% 16 3% {3 5%
Adjusted earnings
Total adjusted operaung profit 8s8 938 938 912 736
Net finance costs &N {85} {55} (65) (72}
Income tax (194} {215) {196) (200 (97)
Non-controlling mnterest (44) (17} ! {3) )
Adjusted earnings 523 621 688 664 566
Weghted average number of shares (mulfions) 7993 801 2 800 2 804 3 807 8
Adjusted earnings per share o e 65 4p 77 5p 86 0p 82 6p 70 ip

2011 and 2012 have been restated to reflect the adopuon of IAS 19 revised Prior periods have not been restated
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Five-year summary continued

01

2012

Al figures s £ mullions 2009 2010 Reswated Restated 2013
Cash flow

OCperaung cash flow 213 1,057 983 788 588
Operating cash conversion 106% I13% 105% 85% 80%
Operaung free cash flow 723 904 772 657 324
Operaung free cash flow per share 30 5p 112 8p 96 5p Bi7p 40 Ip
Total free cash flow 723 904 772 657 269
Total free cash flow per share S0 Sp |12 Bp 96 5p 8i7p 333p
Net assets 4,636 5,605 5.962 5710 5,706
Net debt 1,092 430 499 218 1,379
Return on invested capital (gross basis)

Total adjusted operating profit 858 g38 938 932 736
Cash tax paid {103) {BY) (151) {65) (191
Return 755 853 787 B&7 545
Average nvested capital 8,504 8315 8731 9.578 10,130
Return on invested capital 8 9% 10 3% 90% 9 1% 54%
Diwvidend per share 35.5p 38 7p 42 0p 45 0p 48 Op
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Corporate and operating measures

Pearson's corporate and operating measures include the results of Mergermarket throughout 2013 as the business
was wholly-owned duning that period

Sales — underlying and constant exchange rate movement

Sales movement excluding Penguin and excluding the impact of acquisiwons and dispasals and movements
in exchange rates

Al figures in £ ml‘llrg[\_s _ o N 043
Underlying increase 29
Portfolio changes 70
Exchange differences . 9
Total sales increase o 118
Underlying increase 1%
Constant exchange rate increase . L L 2%

Adjusted tncome statement

Reconcthaton of the consolidated income statement to the adjusted numbers presented a2s non-GAAP measures
in the financial statements

i B N 2013
o Other net )

Scatutory QOther net finance Tax Adjusted

income Discontnued  gaws and Acquisizion Intangibic intome/  amorpsition mcome

All hgures in £ millions statement aperauons losses costs charges cosis benefit  stawement

Operating profit 458 54 6 12 196 - - 736

Net finance costs (76) - - - - 4 - {72)

Profit before tax 382 54 {6 12 196 4 - 664

Income tax (87} (18) 32 2) (51) {1} 30 (57)
Profit for the year from

CONTINUING OPErations 295 36 48 i0 145 3 30 567

Profit for the year from

discontinued operations 244 {36} {209) - 2 n — -

Profit for the year 539 - {lsl) 0 [47 2 30 567

Non-controling mnterest (1) — - - - - - {1

Eai nings 538 - {léh) tQ {47 2 30 566
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Corporate and operating measures contmued

Adjusted income statement continued

e - —_ . L
Oither net
Stuutorv Othiwr net finange Tax Adjiated
mcome Duscontinued  gans and Agounen Intanpubte income/ amorusaton mrome
J_\llhgures n £ mibons Slatetient OpLIanoen fusses casts chorges ___casts bebefit  statement
Operaung profit 487 {23 123 20 179 - - 932
Net finance costs (98 - = - - 3t - {65)
Profit before tax 391 123 123 20 t79 31 - 867
income tax (138) (38) - {5) {54) {H 36 (200}
Profit for the year fiom
cantinuing operations 253 85 {23 I5 125 30 36 667
Profit for the year from
disconunued operatons 6l (85) 20 | 3 - - -
Profit for the year 314 - 143 16 128 30 36 667
Non-controlling interest (3) - - - - - — {3)
Earnings 3t - 143 16 28 30 36 664
Adjusted operating profit — undes lying and constant exchange rate movement
Operatng profit movement excluding the impact of acquisiuons, disposals and movements in exchange rates
Alf figures o £ ilions T o B 2013
Underlying decrease (222)
Portfolio changes 30
Exchange differences i 4)
Total adjusted operating profit decrease {196)
Underlying decrease {23)%
Constant exchange rate decrease (21)%

The underlying and constant exchange rate decreases above primarily reflect the impact of restructuring charges
booked during 2013 Excluding the impact of these restructuring charges. underiying and constant exchange rate
operating profits have decreased 9% and 6% respecuvely
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Free cash flow per share

209

Operaung cash flow for continuing and discontunued operations before tax and finance charges, divided by the

werghted average number of shares in issue

Ali bguros o Cmillons _ 2013 012
Adjusted operaung profit 736 932

Cash conversion &0% 85%

Operating cash flow 588 788

Operating tax paid (191) {65)
Net operating finance costs paid "__ (73) (66)
Total operating free cash flow 324 657

Non-operaung tax paid {55) -

Total free cash flow 269 657

Weighted average number of shares in 1ssue (miflions) 8078 804 3

Operating free cash flow per share 40 1p 81 7p

Total free cash flow per share e 333p 8l 7p

Return on wvested capral

T o o S Invested capitel
All figures 1 £ millons 1013 o
Total adjusted operaung profit 736 932
Operaung tax paid {191} (65)
Return 545 867
Average goodwill and other intangibles 8,903 8,550
Average netoperatngassets | 227 1.028

Average mvested capital _ 10,130 9.578
Return on mvested capital 5 4% 9 1%

Rewirn on invested capital 1s calculated as towal adjusted operaung profit less operatng cash tax paid expressed as
a percentage of average mvested capital Invested capital includes the original unamorused goadwill and ntangibles
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Shareholder information

Pearson ordinary shares are hsted on the London
Stock Exchange and on the New York Stock Exchange
i the form of American Depositary Receipts

Corporate website

The investors’ section of our corporate website
www pearsoih com/ mvestors provides a wealth of
information for shareholders |t s also possible to
sign up to receive emall alerts for reports and press
releases relating to Pearson at

www pearson com/investors/announcements/
email-alerts

Shareholder information online

Shareholder infformation can be found on our website
www pearson com/investors/shareholder-information

Our registrar, Equiniti also provides a range of
shareholder informauion online You can check your
holding and find pracucal help on transferring shares
or updating your details at www shareview co uk

For more information, please contact our registrar,
Equiniti, Aspect House, Spencer Road, Lancing, West
Sussex BN99 6DA. Telephone 0871 384 2233 or, for
those sharehalders with hearing difficulues, textphone
number 0871 384 2255°

information about the Pearson share price

The company's share price can be found on our
webstte at www pearson com It also appears in the
financial columns of the national press

2013 Dividends

Payment date Amount por share
interim |3 September 2013 [ 6 pence
Final 2 May 2014 32 pence

Payment of dividends to mandated accounts

Should you elect to have your dividends paid through
BACS, this can be done duectly into a bank or bulding
society account with the tax voucher sent to the
shareholder s registered address Equiniti can be
contacted for informauon on 0871 384 2043

Dividend reinvestment plan (DRIP)

The DRIP gives shareholders the nght to buy the
company's shares on the Landon stock market
with thew cash deadend For further informauon,
please contact Equiniv on 0871 384 2268*

individual Savings Accounts (ISAs)

Equinitt offers 1SAs in Pearson shares For more
information, please go to www shareview co ul/dealing
or calt customer services on 0845 300 0430

Share dealing facifities

Equinin offers telephone and internet services

for dealing in Pearson shares For further

nformaton, please contact thew telephone deahing
helpline on 08456 037 037 {weekdays anly) or, for
online dealing, iog on to www shareview co ul¢/deaiing
You will need your shareholder reference number

as shown on your share certficate

A weekly postal dealing service 15 also avaidable
through Equintti Please tefephone 0871 384 2248* for
details or log on to www shareview co uk to download
a form

ShareGift

Sharehclders with small holdings of shares, whose
value makes them unecononuc to sell, may wish o
donate them to ShareGift the share donation chanty
(registered charity number 1052686) Further
nfarmavon about ShareGift and the chanties it has
supported may be obtained from their website,

www ShareGift org or by contacting them at ShareGift
PO Box 72253, London, SWIP 9LOQ

American Depositary Receipts (ADRs)

Pearson's ADRs are listed on the New York Stock
Exchange and oraded under the symbol PSO Each ADR
represents one ordinary share For enquiries regarding
registered ADR holder accounts and dividends,

please contact The Bank of New York Mellon

PO Box 43006, Providence RI §2940-3006,
telephone | (866) 259 2289 (woll free within the US)
or 001 2C1 680 6825 {(outside the US) Alternauvely
you may emaif shrrelations@bnymeilon com, or log on
to www bnymellon com/shareowner Votng rights for
registered ADR holders can be exercised through

The Bank of New York Mellon and for beneficial
ADR holders (and/or nominee accounts) through
your U5 brekerage institution Pearson will file with
the Securites and Exchange Commission a Form 20-F
*Calls 1o these numbes are charged at 8p per minute plus

network exiras Lines open 8 30am to 5 30pm Monday
to Friday




Share register fraud protecting your investment

Pearson does not contact its shareholders directly to
provide recommendation advice and nerther does 1t
appomt third parties 1o do so As required by law, our
shareholder register 15 avalable for public inspection
but we cannot control the use of information obtained
by persons mspecting the register Please treat any
approaches purporting to originate from Pearson

with caution

For more information, please log on to our website at
www pearson com/ invesiors/shareholder-
information/managing-your-shares and

www pearson com/shareholderfags

Tips on protecting your shares

Keep any decumentation that contams your
shareholder reference number in a safe place and
shred any unwanted documentation

~

s Inform our registrar, Equiniti promptly when you
change address

Secton 5 Financial statements 4|

» Be aware of dividend payment dates and contact the
registrar If you do not receive your diwmidend cheque
or better stll, make arrangements 1o have the dvidend
paid directly into your bank account

» Consider holding your shares electromcally in a CREST
account via a nominee

2014 Financial calendar

Ex-dwidend date 2 April
Record date 4 April
Last date for dividend

reinvestment election 9 April
Annual General Meeung 25 Apni
Payment date for dividend and share

purchase date for dividend remnvestment 2 May
Intertm results 25 July
Payment date for interim dividend |2 September
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Principal offices

Pearson plc

80 Strand,

London WC2R ORL, UK

T +44 (0120 7010 2000

F +44 (0)20 7010 6060

firstname lastname@pearson com

Pearson Inc

330 Hudson Sireet,

New York City,

NY 10013, USA

T+1 2823907100

firstname lastname@pearson com

WWW pearson com

Pearson plc
Registered numbrer 53723 (England)




Reliance on this document

Our Strategic report on pages 02 to 53 has been
prepared in accordance with section 414 ('Duty to
prepare a strategic report’} of the Companies Act
2006 {Swrategic Report and Direcrors’ Report)
Regulations 2013 It also ncorporates much of the
guidance set out in the Accounting Standards Board s
Reporung Statement on the Operatmg and

Financial Review

The intention of this document is to provide
information to shareholders and s not designed
to be relied upon by any other party or forany
other purpose

Forward-looking statements

This document contans forward-loolking statements
which are made by the directors in good faith based
on informaton avallable to them at the tme of
approval of this report In parucular, all statements
that express forecasts, expectat:ons and projectons
with respect to future matters, including trends in
results of aperauons, margins, growth rates, overall
market trends, the impact of interest or exchange
rates, the availability of finanaing, anticipated costs
savings and synergies and the executian of Pearson’s
strategy, are forward-fooltng statements

Logo removed lLogo removed

Dosgnand Producton Radley Teida (Lotdan) www v com
Print Furenting Group

By thewr nature, forward-looking statements involve
risks and uncertainties because they relate to events
and depend on urcumstances that will occur i the
future There are a number of factors which could
cause actual results and developments to differ
materially from those expressed or implied by these
forward-loolung statements, including 2 number of
factors outside Pearson’s cantrol Any forward-
locking statements speak only as of the date they are
made, and Pearson gives no undertaking to update
forward-looking statements to reflect any changes in
1ts expectations with regard thereto or any changes 0

events, conditions or aircumstances on which any such

statement 15 based

Thisrepurt has been printed on Edision Challenger
Ofset which s £5C7 cerofied and made f o 100%

Elemental Chioring Free (ECF) pulp The mill 1nd the

Fearsan has cupported the planting of 400 square mietres
of new namve woodiand with the Woedland Trust helpang,
taremove {6 tennes of carbon dioxde enussion., generated
by the production of this report

printer e bath cor wlied ta 15O 14001 envirnpmentai
management sysiem Jnd repisiered 1o FMAS the tco
manageinert Audit Scheme The report was printed
using vegerible basedinks by a Ca bonMNeutrsl™ printer
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